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Forward Looking Statements

Certain statements in this document are “forwaakiiog statementsas that term is defined in the Private Securitigigiation Reform Act ¢
1995 and are made pursuant to the safe harborspwasi of that act. Some of the forwdabking statements can be identified by the us

forward-looking words such as “believes”, “expeg¢tgjotential”, “continued”, “may”, “will", “should”, “seeks”, “approximately”, “predicts
“intends”, “plans”, “estimates”, “anticipates” dne negative version of those words or other conippanaords. The forwaréboking statemen
are based on the current expectations of Argo Gtatgrnational Holdings, Ltd. (“Argo Group,” “we”rathe “Company”)and our beliei
concerning future developments and their potemtitdcts on Argo Group. There can be no assurarateattiual developments will be th

anticipated by Argo Group. Actual results may diffeaterially as a result of significant risks amttertainties including but not limited to:

« changes in the pricing environment including thdse to the cyclical nature of the insurance anasteiance industry;
« increased competition;
« the adequacy of our projected loss reserves inogdi

« development of claims that varies from that whidswexpected when loss reserves were established;

» adverse legal rulings which may impact the liapilinder insurance and reinsurance contracts bettwidwhich wa
anticipated when the reserves were establis

« development of new theories related to coveragehvhiay increase liabilities under insurance andsigiance contrac
beyond that which were anticipated when the lossrkes were establishe

« reinsurance coverage being other than what wasipatitd when the loss reserves were established;
e changes to regulatory and tax conditions and latyist;
e natural and/or memade disasters, including terrorist a
e the inability to secure reinsuranc
e the inability to collect reinsurance recoverab
e adowngrade in our financial strength ratin
e changes in interest rate
e changes in the financial markets that impact inmestt income and the fair market values of our itmesits;
e changes in asset valuatiol
e failure to execute information technology stratsg
e failure to execute expense reductic
e inability to successfully execute mergers or adtjaiss; and
e other risks detailed in this Form-K or that may be detailed in other filings with tBecurities and Exchange Commissi

These risks and uncertainties are discussed irtegrdatail in Item 1A, “Risk FactorsWe undertake no obligation to publicly update
forward-looking statements.




PART |

Iltem 1. Business
Business Overview

Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. (“Argo Gnagd “we” or the “Company”)is an international underwriter of specialty insw@ an
reinsurance products in the property and casuaditket. We target niches where we can develop atehip position and where we believe
will generate superior underwriting profits. Ouogith has been achieved both organically througbperating strategy focused on discipli
underwriting and as a result of strategic acquisgi

Following is a summary organizational chart for &@roup:
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Business Segments and Products

For the year ended December 31, 2014, our opegfimtiuded four ongoing business segments: ExcedsSairplus Lines, Commerc
Specialty, International Specialty and Syndicat®éQl2n addition to the four main business segmemtshave a Ruff Lines segment fc
certain products we no longer underwrite. For distan of the operating results of each businessneery please refer to Item
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€@ahdition and Results of Operations” and Note Ekdgment Informationin the Notes t
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Excess and Surplus Lin

Excess and Surplus lines carriers focus on risksttte standard (admitted) market is unwilling palle to underwrite. The standard market
limited appetite for such coverage is often dris®nthe insured unique risk characteristics, the perils involvéidy nature of the busine
and/or the insured’loss experience. Excess and Surplus lines caraier able to underwrite these risks with moreilflexpolicy terms ¢
unregulated premium rates on a non-admitted besis-admitted carriers, while approved, are not licensetthe states where they undern
and, therefore, are subject to less regulationc@ytrast, admitted carriers are licensed by st@tesare subject to all of the regulations
requirements of those states.

Our Excess and Surplus Lines segment consists @bpyerating platforms: Colony Specialty and Argo.R#¥hile focused primarily on non-
admitted business, each of these operations mayuatierwrite certain classes of business on anttsathbasis for risks that otherwise meet
underwriting standards.




Colony Specialty underwrites primary and excessi@#g, property and professional liability coverége hard to place risks and/or distres
businesses that typically fall outside of the staddnsurance market'risk appetite. This business is underwrittenuplosix business uni
Casualty, Transportation, Specialty Property, GaotirEnvironmental and Allied Medical. Through thasits, Colony Specialty provic
coverage to a broad group of commercial enterpiiseading contractors, manufacturers, distributgn@operty owners, retailers, restaure
environmental consultants and contractors and emalédical facilities within the social servicedsecellaneous healthcare and Iaiegm car
segments.

Argo Pro, which is our U.S.-only midharket professional lines platform, provides a Hbrpartfolio of errors and omissions and manage
liability products for our wholesale and retailtdisution partners. Argo Pro offers customized gage on a primary and excess basis for
on both an admitted and naadmitted basis, targeting commercial and seleeinfifal institution risks in the middle market angpar middls
market segments. Our underwriting focus providek management solutions for accountants, archiutisengineers, commercial cril
directors and officers, employment practices, fidog lawyers, miscellaneous professionals, teabhmglprivacy and security.

Commercial Specialty

This segment provides property, casualty and swetgrages designed to meet the specialized inseinraeeds of businesses within cel
well-defined markets. It targets business classes ahgbtines with distinct risk profiles that can bahéfom specially designed insurat
programs, tailored loss control and expert claimasdting. This segment serves its targeted nich&etsmwith a narrowly focused underwrit
profile and specialized knowledge of the businegisesrves. Our Commercial Specialty segment ctsisthe following riskbearing busine:
units: Argo Insurance, Rockwood Casualty Insura@oenpany (“Rockwood”)Commercial Programs, Argo Surety, Trident and ARIg&e
Insurance Corporation (“ARIS”). In addition, we ogte a variety of non-riskearing agency and brokerage operations that genfeincom
under the Alteris brand. Most of the Alteris busises operate as managing general agents (“M@AGASs usually have the authority to b
insurance contracts of companies with whom theyehappointments. Alteris units have underwritinghauty for thirdparty carriers, as we
as for certain Argo Group companies.

The core operations of Argo Insurance consist afcéry, Restaurants, Fabricare for dry cleanersadiner Specialty Retail. Argo Insural
provides property, liability, workers compensatianfomobile and umbrella coverage throughout thigedrStates.

Rockwood is a specialty underwriter of workers cemgation for the mining industry. It also underesitcoverage for small commer
businesses including office, retail operationshlijmanufacturing, services and restaurants. Appratély 51% of its premiums are writter
Pennsylvania. Rockwood underwrites policies on lzothrge deductible basis and on a guaranteedbes# for smaller commercial accou
In addition, Rockwood provides general liabilitygnamercial automobile and artisan contractor package well as coverage for pollut
liability, umbrella liability and surety to suppadts core clients’ other mining and minimglated exposures. These supporting lines of bss
represented approximately 12% of Rockwood’s grasttem premiums in 2014,

Argo Surety offers surety products to a diversgyeanf U.S. businesses operating in numerous indastkrgo Surety provides surety soluti
to businesses that must satisfy various eligibiipnditions in order to conduct commerce, suchiesnsure requirements required
government statute or regulation, counterparty it found in private or public construction prois or satisfactory performance
contracted services. Surety products are commordypeed into two broad categories referred to asnsernial bonds and contract bor
Commercial bonds are generally required of busgsghat guarantee their compliance with regulatiand statutes, the payment

performance assurance for various forms of contedabbligations, or the completion of services. Cact bonds are typically thirgarty
performance, payment or maintenance guaranteegiat®xb with construction projects. Argo Surety @sgmultiple industries includil
construction (general, trade and service contrajtananufacturing, transportation, energy (codland gas and waste management), indu
equipment, technology, retail, public utilities amehlthcare.

Trident provides primary insurance products an#ét risanagement solutions for small to intermedisifed public sector entities, suck
counties, municipalities, public schools and otheral government units and special districts. lisdpict lines include general liabili
automobile liability, automobile physical damageppgerty, inland marine, crime, public official’sability, educators legal liability
employment practices, law enforcement liability avatkers compensation coverage.

Alteris focuses on specialty programs and alteveatisks solutions for selected niche markets, atirgg through the following units: Alte
Public Risk Solutions (“APRS"), Alteris AlternativiRisk Solutions (“AARS™and Strategic Markets. APRS serves larger indiViduatities an
group risks (pools) within the public sector, usingth traditional and alternative approaches. AARBvides access to admitted prin
underwriting capacity in ancillary lines and magkébr captive carriers and risk retention groups)-b/S licensed or noadmitted reinsure
and other well capitalized regional insurance camgxathrough unbundled alternative risk structufsategic Markets provides insura
programs and risk solutions to a variety of nicharkets including specialty whedissed businesses, wineries and public water andt
districts.




International Specialt

This segment includes business units that undervimgurance and reinsurance risks worldwide throtinghbroker market, specializing
specialty property catastrophe reinsurance andsexcasualty and professional insurance. These das&n operate as Argo Re, the Cas
and Professional Lines unit of Argo Insurance inrrBeda, ArgoGlobal SE in Continental Europe and A&gguros Brazil, S.A. &rgo
Seguros”) in Brazil.

Argo Re underwrites shotail reinsurance lines exposed to property catphEaisks. Argo Re focuses on writing property stitgphe exce:
of loss reinsurance for a relatively small numbe&cedents whose accounts are well known to our mwriters. Argo Re also underwrit
property per risk and pro rata reinsurance on actdlasis. Reinsurance written by Argo Re covererying exposures that are loce
throughout the world, including the United StatBsoperty catastrophe reinsurance generally coMaimg arising from large catastrop
events such as hurricanes, windstorms, hailstoeaashquakes, volcanic eruptions, fires, induseigdlosions, freezes, riots, floods and @
manmade or natural disasters. In addition to its primacation in Bermuda, Argo Re originates busingmseugh other Argo Group affiliat
worldwide.

The Casualty and Professional Lines unit of ourcAligsurance division underwrites on behalf of AR® and is managed from Bermuda.
unit serves the needs of global clients for coveriagthe following lines: general and products iligh directors and offices liability, error:
and omissions liability and employment practicesbility.

ArgoGlobal SE is based in Malta and underwriteggmsional liability business in Continental Europe.

Argo Seguros is our property and casualty insuraoerepany based in Sao Paolo, Brazil, which is fedusn serving that countsydomesti
commercial insurance market. Argo Seguros provédbeoad range of commercial property, casualtysgatialty coverages. Its primary lil
of business are Cargo and Marine, Property andrnéeging and Financial Lines. It also participatesBrazil's federal Motor ThirdRarty
Liability insurance pool.

Syndicate 1200

The Syndicate 1200 segment is focused on undengritvorldwide property, specialty and nbnS. liability insurance through Ar
Underwriting Managing Agency, Ltd. on behalf of tis Syndicate 1200 within the Lloyd’s of Londonobhl franchise. The segment’
business platform is based in London. The Syndit@@0 segment obtains its underwriting capital frarmariety of sources and seek
maintain a balance between capital managed on elalband capital managed on behalf of third partihe sources of the underwrit
capital for the Syndicate 1200 segment includeiotarest, third-party capital participants refertedas trade capital providers and thirakty
capital attributable to individual members refertecas Names and Other Capital. Trade capital dessiparticipate on a quota share bas
directly through the syndicate, assuming 100% efrthontractual participation in the syndicate fesswith such results settled on a yea
account basis. The flexibility in the sources opital allows us to manage underwriting exposurer die insurance cycle. Our econo
participation in the syndicate varies by year afamt based on our risk appetite and third leveigpation. Our Syndicate 1200 segment e
a return on the underwriting capital that is pr@ddy us and fee income earned from the manageshéntd-party capital.

The property division of the Syndicate 1200 segnuamicentrates mainly on North American commerciabprties, but is also active in
residential sector, including collateral protectinaurance programs for lending institutions. Agkaportion of business is underwritten thro
the use of binding authorities. Treaty reinsuraicainderwritten through Argo Group’'dedicated reinsurance company, Argo Re.
segment liability division underwrites professional indeity, general liability, medical malpractice, cakyand motor treaty and direct
and officers insurance, with emphasis on Canadajralia and the U.K. The marine and energy divisimiierwrites cargo, upstream .
downstream energy, yachts, hull and marine ligbiliisurance. The aerospace division underwritelin@jrgeneral aviation, products ¢
operators’liability and satellite insurance. The specialtyision underwrites personal accident, politicakyisrade credit, terrorism a
contingency insurance.

In November of 2014, this segment was rebrandea #ogo International Syndicate 1200 and adoptedttsent trading name, ArgoGlol
Syndicate 1200.

Lloyd’s currently operates in over 200 countriesl &rritories, and we currently transact businask4i7 of these countries. Lloygbusiness
often written on a syndicated basis across theamae market. ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200 is the leadkrwriter on approximately 36% of
business it underwrites.

Rur-off Lines

Run-off Lines segment includes outstanding liabilitessociated with discontinued lines previously undligien by our insurance subsidiar
such as those arising from liability policies dgtlmack to the 1960s, 1970s and into the 1980smakagement policies
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written by a business unit that has since beentscddthird-party and other legacy accounts preslipwritten by our reinsurance subsidiaries.

Marketing and Distribution

We provide products and services to well defineth@imarkets. We use our capital strength and tlge Aroup brands to crossarket th:
products offered by each of our segments amongother operating platforms and divisions. We offer dlistribution partners tailore
innovative solutions for managing risk using thi fange of products and services we have available

Excess and Surplus Lin

Colony Specialty distributes its products througheawork of appointed wholesale agents and broggesializing in excess and surplus |
and certain targeted admitted lines. Approximatelg-thirds of Colony Specialtg’ premium volume in 2014 was produced by whol
brokers who submit business in the ordinary cotos@nderwriting business and rely on Colony Splécie produce quotes and handle pa
issuance on such accounts. The remaining one-afi@&blony Specialtys premium was produced through a select group ofeghle agents
whom Colony Specialty has delegated limited autiida act on its behalf. These agents are graniétabaty to underwrite, quote, bind &
issue policies in accordance with predeterminediajiies and procedures prescribed by Colony Specilalgo Pro distributes its produ
through both wholesale brokers and retail agents.

Commercial Specialty

Commercial Specialty uses a broad distributionfptat to deliver specialty insurance products andises to our policyholders and age
Argo Insurance products and services are distribtiteough selected independent agents, brokerslesdlers and program managers '
demonstrated expertise in one or more of its tadheiche markets and through itshouse managing general agents and on a directibae
limited number of states. Rockwood distributesitsduct lines through a network of independentilratad wholesale agents. Trident provi
its insurance products and related services thrdioghsed retail agents, selected brokers and ptagam managers. Argo Surety distrib
its products through selected surety specialty @sgand brokers across the United States. ARIS gmfloth a direct and partndistributior
strategy, which includes brokers, insurers, maddatisors, art lenders, investment funds and audiiouses. Alteris generally distribu
products underwritten on behalf of third-party eeng and Argo Group through retail agents and sedlorokers.

International Specialt

Argo Re has obtained substantially all of its remasice business through brokers and tpady intermediaries who represent client
negotiations for the purchase of reinsurance. Nafrghe intermediaries through which Argo Re obtdinis business are authorized to t
business on our behalf. Argo Insurance distributesproducts through selected brokers with whom ooderwriters have experien
ArgoGlobal SE distributes products through brokarselected European markets. Argo Seguros diséisbproducts through selected bro
and agents within their local markets.

Syndicate 1200

ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200 obtains insurance andstgance business from two main sources: the Léopgen market and underwrit
agencies with delegated authority. In the Li@ydpen market, brokers approach ArgoGlobal Synelitd00 directly with individual insurar
risk opportunities for consideration by our undeteys. Brokers also approach ArgoGlobal Syndice2801through selected underwrit
agencies that are granted limited authority dekydty ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200 to make undervgititecisions on individual risks.
general, risks written in the open market are lathan risks written on our behalf by authorizecragies in terms of both exposure
premium.

Competition

We compete in a variety of markets against a wardtcompetitors depending on the nature of thk a@sd coverage being written. 1
competition for any one account may range fromdangernational firms to smaller regional comparinethe domiciles in which we operate.

To remain competitive, our strategy includes, amotiggr measures: (1) focusing on rate adequacyaddrwriting discipline while providir
a competitively priced product, (2) leveraging distribution network by providing product solutior{8) controlling expenses, (4) maintain
financial strength and issuer credit ratings, (@vjging quality services to agents and policyhaddend (6) exploiting opportunities to acq
suitable books of business.




Excess and Surplus Lin

Competition within the excess and surplus linesket@lace comes from a wide range of carriers. biiteh to mature companies that ope
nationwide, there is competition from carriers fedrin recent years. The Excess and Surplus Lingimesgt may also compete with natic
and regional carriers from the standard markeinglto underwrite policies on selected accountamadmitted basis.

Commercial Specialty

Due to the diverse nature of the products offengthie Commercial Specialty segment, competition €®iinom various sources. The majc
of the competition comes from regional companiesegional subsidiaries of national carriers. Naglocarriers tend to compete for lar
accounts along all product lines. Competition far public entity products is primarily from smadl medium size commercial insurers as
as from state and regional risk pools.

International Specialt

Argo Re competes with numerous reinsurance anddnsa companies. These competitors include independsurance and reinsura
companies, subsidiaries or affiliates of estabtiswerldwide insurance companies, departments aghicecommercial insurance companies
underwriting syndicates. Argo Insurance and ArgguBes compete with international, national and aegi insurance companies that @
similar specialty lines of business.

Syndicate 1200

The principal lines of business in this segmentverigen by numerous other insurance companiessyndicates at Lloyd. Competition fc
any one account may come from other Lloyd’s syrdiganternational firms or smaller regional conipan

Ratings

Ratings are an important factor in assessing ounpetitive position and our ability to meet our oimgp obligations. Ratings are no
recommendation to buy, sell or hold any security] they may be revised or withdrawn at any timeHhgyrating agency. Moreover, the rati
of each rating agency should be evaluated indepelydas the rating methodology and evaluation pseamay differ. The ratings issued ot
or our subsidiaries by any of these agencies areuarted publicly and are available on our websitktae respective rating agensyvebsite:
We have two types of ratings: (i) Financial Stréngatings (“FSR”) and (ii) Debt Ratings or Issueedit Ratings (“ICR").

Financial Strength Ratings reflect the rating agénassessment of an insuegbility to meet its financial obligations to pmholders. Witl
the exception of two companies, ARIS Title Insum@orporation and Argo Seguros (which are not )afibe “Unrated Companies”gll of
our insurance and reinsurance companies have anoFS® (Excellent) from A.M. Best Company (“A.M. 8st”), and our U.S. insuran
subsidiaries have an FSR of “A-" (Strong) from Stard & Poor’s (“S&P”). In 2014, S&P revised our lmak from negative to stable.

Debt Ratings and Issuer Credit Ratings reflectriteng agency’s assessment of a compamprospects for repaying its debts and ca
considered by lenders in connection with the sgtbihinterest rates and terms for a company’s sieon or longterm borrowings. Argo Grot
US, Inc. has an ICR and senior unsecured debtgratirfBBB-" from S&P. Argo Group International Holdings, Ltdashan ICR and sen
unsecured Debt Rating of “bbfom A.M. Best. Except for the two Unrated Companiall of our insurance and reinsurance comparage
an ICR of “a” from A.M. Best.

The outlook is stable on the FSR ratings from bti. Best and S&P. A.M. Best Financial StrengthiRgs range from “A++” Superior) ti
“S” (Suspended) and include 16 separate ratingsgoaies. S&P Financial Strength Ratings range ff@tAA” ( Extremely Strong) |
“R” (under regulatory supervision) and include 2parate ratings categories.

ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200, our Lloyd’s syndicaexeives the Lloyd’s market FSR rating of “AEXcellent) with a positive outlook by A.l
Best and “A+" (Strong) with a stable outlook by S&P

Regulation

General

The business of insurance and reinsurance anedetatrvices is regulated in most countries, althahg degree and type of regulation ve
from one jurisdiction to another. The principaliggictions in which our insurance and reinsurareggrgents operate
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are Bermuda, the United States, the European Ufild"), the United Kingdom, Brazil and Dubai. We are alsgulated by other countr
where we do business.

Bermuda
Insurance Company and Insurance Group SupervisimhRegulation Schen

Many of Bermuda’s insurance groups subject to sugien are internationally active. Therefore, Bedals group supervision framewc
reflects international developments in this ared principles for insurance group supervision addptg the International Association
Insurance Supervisors (“IAIS”).

Based on the Insurance Act 1978 (“the Act”), as raaeel from time to time, Bermuda maintains a pragjues riskbased supervisory syst
for registered (Re)lnsurance Companies and focsalgRe)lnsurance Groups.

A number of Bermuda registered (re)insurers opesdti@in a group structure, meaning that a localires's financial position and risk profi
and its overall prudential position, may be impedbg being part of a group, both positively andategly. Therefore, the Bermuda Monel
Authority (“BMA”") has established a group supervision frameworkrfeurance groups. The BMA conducts its responsésliand powers
Group Supervisor under the Act, and the suppotteggslation, the Insurance (Group Supervision) RWO11 and the Insurance (Prude
Standards) (Insurance Groups Solvency RequirenrRerg)s 2011.

The main objectives of group supervision includgp@icyholder protection, (b) ensuring at lease @upervisor has an overall view of
group and its associated risks and (c) addressingapervisory gaps, the risk of contagion andittygact of any unregulated entities withi
group. Therefore, key areas of focus within theugreupervision framework are (1) ensuring solveatogroup level, (2) monitoring interouy
transactions and (3) assessing corporate governaigkemanagement and internal control processemsafrance groups. In conducting
function as Group Supervisor, the BMA, among othargs, convenes and conducts supervisory collegi@sother supervisory authorities t
have regulatory oversight of entities within a grand coordinates the gathering and disseminafiorlevant or essential information fri
groups for going concern or emergency situations.

In May 2011, the BMA gave notice that it had detievend itself to be the proper group supervisor ferfar purposes of its Group Supervis
regime, and nominated Argo Re to serve as the watsd insurer. Accordingly, we and our subsidiades deemed to be an affiliated gr
supervised by the BMA under applicable rules amgliations in Bermuda.

In 2014, we have not received any notice that thMABconducted any supervisory college sessions edlab us with other supervisc
authorities that have regulatory oversight of cufitees.

The BMA is also responsible for the supervisiomutation and inspection of Bermuda domiciled insgewcompanies and for the licensin
all insurance companies, brokers, agents and menatpéng business in Bermuda. The Act and its stjpp legislation, the Insuran
(Prudential Standards) (Class 4 and 3B SolvencyRement), the Insurance (Eligible Capital) Rulas,well as various other policies
guidance notes, including the Insurance Code ofido) provide the Authority with substantive licengsand intervention powers.

These rules provide for significant reporting requients related to us and our consolidated finanoizdition.

Solvency Regulation Scheme

Bermuda continues to enhance its fislsed regulatory regime, which is intended to meeixceed international standards, including Saly
Il (“S II") as enacted by the EU in November 20@9discussed more fully below.

Additionally, Bermuda is seeking to become recogdiby the EU as having an “equivalent solvencymegiin an effort to benefit Bermuda-
based companies through recognition agreementswibald acknowledge equivalent solvency requirememts protect these insurers
reinsurers from having to fulfill the solvency ré@uments under various and differing regimes.

Many of the areas covered under this initiativel Wwé phased in over a number of years. The B&/&m is to enhance its currently exis
regime consisting of three core components: (1)t@apdequacy, (2) Governance and Risk Managemadt(8) Disclosure and Reportil
Most of these elements are interconnected and paitgrinfluenced by developments in other intefoaal regimes. (Re)insurance compa
as well as (re)insurance groups are also subjatiet®ermuda Solvency Capital Requirement (“BSCR")iskbased capital system mandz
by the above mentioned rules.




Regulation of Argo R

Classification of Insurers

The Insurance Act distinguishes between specigbga@ insurers, insurers carrying on Idagn business and insurers carrying on ge
business. There are various classifications ofrgrsucarrying on general business, with Class 4rars subject to the highest level
regulation. Argo Re, which is incorporated to casrygeneral insurance and reinsurance businessjiitered as a Class 4 insurer in Bern
and is regulated as such under the Act. Undemtbrance Act, no distinction is made between imggand reinsurance business.

Principal Representative and Principal Office

As an insurer, Argo Re is required to maintainiagipal office and to appoint and maintain a pratirepresentative in Bermuda. The princ
representative is required to give notice to theABktgarding certain events relating to solvencgniicant losses, proposed change
ownership and other material changes defined inrtbigrance Act. In some instances, prior approwvay tre required for a proposed action
is the subject of a notice.

Controlling Shareholders of an Insurer; Effect omnr@rship of Shares in the Company

The definition of a “shareholder controllgs’ set out in the Insurance Act, but generallynefe a person who holds 10% or more of the s
carrying rights to vote at a shareholdergeting of the registered insurer or its parentgamy. More stringent requirements apply at ce
thresholds to those holding, directly or indirectlp% or more. The BMA also has the power underitisurance Act, at any time, by writ
notice, to object to any “controllerincluding a shareholder controller) if it appeardhie BMA that such person is not a fit and prgpenson t
be such a controller. The BMA may require a shalddr controller to reduce its holding of our commshares and direct, among other thi
that voting rights attaching to the common shahedl si0t be exercisable.

Dividends

The payment of dividends by Argo Re is limited untte Insurance Act. Argo Re is prohibited fromldeag or paying any dividends duri
any financial year it is in breach of its minimuwh&ncy margin or minimum liquidity ratio or if théeclaration or payment of such divide
would cause it to fail to meet such margin or raBbould Argo Re fail to meet its minimum solvemogrgin or minimum liquidity ratio as
the last day of any financial year, it will be piloited from declaring or paying any dividends dgrithe next financial year without pr
approval from the BMA.

As of December 31, 2014, Argo Resolvency and liquidity margins and statutory tpand surplus were in excess of the minimum &
required by the Insurance Act. As of December 3142 the statutory capital and surplus of Argo Res wstimated to be $1,278.3 million
the amount required to be maintained was estimatbée $340.9 million. As of December 31, 2014, AR@s total investments in subsidial
in its statutory balance sheet were approximat8go# million.

In December of 2014 and 2013, Argo Re paid a castiethd of $40.9 million and $84.5 million, respeely, to Argo Group which was us
to repay an intercompany note. No dividends weré Ipa Argo Re to Argo Group in 2012.

United States
State Insurance Regulation

Argo Group US, Incs insurance subsidiaries are subject to the suglenviand regulation of the states in which they doeniciled. Wi
currently have twelve insurance companies domiditefive states (the “U.S. SubsidiariesArgo Group US, Inc., as the indirect parent of
U.S. Subsidiaries, is subject to the insurance ihgldompany laws of lllinois, New York, Ohio, Peghsania and Virginia. These la
generally require each of the U.S. Subsidiariesubmit annual holding company registration statémén its respective domestic s
insurance department and to furnish annually firdrad other information about the operationshef tompanies within the holding comp
group. Generally, all material transactions amoomganies in the holding company group to which ahthe U.S. Subsidiaries is a pa
including sales, loans, reinsurance agreementssandce agreements, must be fair and, if materiadfaa specified category, require p
notice and approval or natisapproval by the insurance department whereuhsidiary is domiciled. Transfers of assets amarth sffiliatec
companies, certain dividend payments from insurasugsidiaries and certain material transactionsvé@h companies within the hold
company group may be subject to prior notice tqgrar approval by, state regulatory authoritiesclssupervision and regulation is intende
protect our policyholders rather than our sharetysld Matters relating to authorized lines of busseunderwriting standards, finan
condition standards, licensing of insurers, investinstandards, premium levels, policy provisioh® filing of annual and other financ
reports prepared on the basis




of Statutory Accounting Principles, the filing afam of actuarial reports, dividends and a varigtyther financial and nofinancial matter
are also areas that are regulated and supervistésgate in which each of our U.S. Subsidiariesdamiciled.

Guaranty Associations

Our U.S. Subsidiaries are participants in the sbaty created insolvency guaranty associationalirstates where they are licensed can
These associations were formed for the purposeagihg unearned premium and loss claims of licenssdlvent insurance companies.
U.S. Subsidiaries are assessed their pro rata shatech claims based upon their written premiusafject to a maximum annual assess
per line of insurance. Such costs can generallsebevered through surcharges on future premiuma:-adiitted business is neither suppa
by or subject to guaranty assessments.

Dividends

All of the U.S. Subsidiaries are subsidiaries ofjdiGroup US, Inc., meaning that any dividends ftbm U.S. Subsidiaries are payable in
first instance to Argo Group US, Inc. prior to bgipassed upward as dividends to Argo Group. Thityabf our U.S. Subsidiaries to p
dividends is subject to certain restrictions impbd®y the jurisdictions of domicile that regulaterdu.S. Subsidiaries and each s
jurisdictior’s limitations upon the amount of dividends thatisurance company may pay without the approvébkahsurance regulator.

Argo Group US, Inc. may receive dividends fromdiect subsidiaries: Argonaut Insurance Companyo@olnsurance Company (“Colony”
and Rockwood. For the year ended December 31, 20f4naut Insurance Company paid an ordinary diviti® Argo Group US, Inc. in t
amount of $48.8 million. For the year ended Decanfie 2014, Colony paid an extraordinary divideaddtgo Group US, Inc. in the amol
of $55.2 million. For the year ended December 3,42 Rockwood paid an extraordinary dividend to dAfgroup US, Inc. in the amount
$20.0 million. During 2015, Argonaut Insurance Ca@myp may be permitted to pay dividends up to $3%illiom without approval from th
lllinois Department of Insurance, based on the iappibn of the lllinois ordinary dividend calculati. Colony may be permitted, during 2C
to pay dividends up to $71.7 million without priapproval from the Virginia Bureau of Insurance, dzth®n the application of Virginig’
ordinary dividend calculation. Rockwood may be péed, during 2015, to pay dividends up to $13.3liam without approval from tF
Pennsylvania Department of Insurance, based orapipdication of Pennsylvanig’ordinary dividend calculation. Business and ratgu,
considerations may impact the amount of dividerutigadly paid, and prior approval of extraordinaiyidend payments is required.

State laws require prior notice or regulatory appl®f direct or indirect changes in control ofiasurer, reinsurer or its holding company,
certain significant intecorporate transfers of assets within the holdinmmmany structure. An investor who acquires or attsmp acquir
shares representing or convertible into more tha# df the voting power of the securities of ArgooGp would become subject to at l¢
some of such regulations, would require approvathgyfive domiciliary regulators of the U.S. suliaites prior to acquiring such shares
would be required to file certain notices and répuwrith the five domiciliary regulators prior toduacquisition.

The Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorizaf\at

On November 26, 2002, the President of the UniteteS signed into law the Terrorism Risk Insurascceof 2002 (“TRIA”). On January 1.
2015, the President of the United States signexdlaw the Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reaizhtion Act of 2014 (“TRIPRA”)which
extends TRIA through December 31, 2020. Under TBbdAmercial insurers are required to offer insurazmeerage against terrorist incide
and are reimbursed by the federal government fal gaims subject to deductible and retention ant®ufiRIA, and its related rules, cont
certain definitions, requirements and proceduresrisurers filing claims with the Treasury for pagmt of the Federal share of compens:
for insured losses under the Terrorism Risk InstedProgram (“TRIP”).TRIP is a temporary federal program that has betanded by TRI/
to provide for a transparent system of shared pubid private compensation for insured losses tiegutom acts of terrorism. The Treas
implements the program. On June 29, 2004, the Urgassued a final Claims Procedures Rule, effectiuly 31, 2004, as part of
implementation of Title | of TRIA. TRIA also corntes specific provisions designed to manage litatarising out of, or resulting from
certified act of terrorism, and on July 28, 200% Treasury issued a final Litigation ManagemereRor TRIA.

TRIA, the Claims Procedures Rule, the Litigationndgement Rule and related rules set out certainitiefhs, requirements and procedt
for insurers filing claims with the Treasury forymaent of the Federal share of compensation forretsipsses under the TRIP. The Cle
Procedures Rule, in particular, specifically adsessrequirements for Federal payment, submissicemahitial notice of insured loss, I¢
certifications, timing and process for payment,oa&ted recordkeeping requirements, as well asTieasurys audit and investigati
authority. These procedures will apply to all iress that wish to receive their payment of the Faldghare of compensation for insured lo
under TRIA. Insurers are advised to review théslation and TRIP regulations before submittingomnfiation.
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Additional materials addressing TRIA and TRIP, irdihg Treasury issued interpretive letters, ardaiord on the Treasury’s website.

European Union (EU)

The enhanced S Il regulatory regime in the EU, Whi@s enacted in November 2009, imposes new sgivend governance requireme
across all 27 EU Member States. These requirenaget® be implemented through the European Inserand Occupational Pensions Age
(“EIOPA"). The application date of the S Il regime is Jandarg016. On March 11, 2014, the European Parliaméopted in plenary sess
the “Omnibus Directive” that completed the “Solvegrt’ Directive and finalized the new framework for insnice regulation and supervis
in the EU. On October 10, 2014 the European Coniomissdopted a Delegated Act combining implementirigs for S Il. This will enter ini
force once the European Parliament and Council batte approved it.

The EIOPA has proposed a number of interim measases step towards full implementation. Final rimemeasures, or Guidelines, w
issued by the EIOPA in September 2013 to Natiormh@etent Authorities. These Guidelines becamecffe January 1, 2014. S I, wh
manifests a significant enhancement of the exisBotyency | framework, is the expanded regulategime that will impose economic risk-
based solvency requirements across all 27 Eurolksmnber States and consists of three pillars: (1aRi— quantitative capital requiremer
based on a valuation of the entire balance sh2gtPiflar 11 — qualitative regulatory review, which includes gawence, internal contro
enterprise risk management and supervisory reviemegss; and (3) Pillar Il market discipline, which is accomplished througpomting o
the insurer's financial condition to regulators.

Our Lloyd’s Managing Agency, Argo Managing Agenciynited, which manages ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200layd’'s, and ArgoGlobal S
will be required to comply with S Il and are una@diihg actions to be compliant by the proposed imjgletation date.

Up until final implementation of S Il is complet&dthin the EU, the existing country specific rulasd regulations remain in force, and
being observed by Argo Group and its affiliatesrafing in the respective country.

United Kingdom
The Financial Services Act

The Financial Services Bill, which received RoyasaAnt on December 19, 2012, has now become anfA&Rartbament and is known as
Financial Services Act (2012). The Act, which caim® force from April 1, 2013, provides regulatavith comprehensive powers to coul
future risks to financial stability and to ensunattconsumers are treated fairly.

The legislation reformed the regulatory system,clwhpreviously divided responsibility for financistiability between the Treasury, Bank
England and Financial Services Authority (“FSA hel'new system gives the Bank of England maetmlential responsibility for oversight
the financial system and, through the PrudentigjuRdion Authority (“PRA"), for day-taday prudential supervision of financial servicemf
managing significant balanaheet risk. The FSA has ceased to exist. A proactew conduct of business regulator, the Finar@@iduc
Authority (“FCA"), has been created to protect aomgrs, promote competition and ensure integritpankets.

PRA and FCA Regulatiot

During 2014, the operations of ArgoGlobal Syndica#00 were regulated by the PRA and the FCA, ad a®lbeing supervised
Lloyd's. The PRA, FCA and Lloyd’s have common atjees in ensuring that the Lloy&l'market is appropriately regulated. To minir
duplication, there are arrangements with Lloyd’s ¢o-operation on supervision and enforcement. BothRR& and FCA have substan
powers of intervention in relation to the LlogdVianaging Agents (such as Argo Managing Agencyitieid) that they regulate, including
power to remove their authorization to manage Lley8yndicates. In addition, each year the PRA irequLloyd’'s to satisfy an annt
solvency test that measures whether Llsyias sufficient assets in the aggregate to meeustanding liabilities of its members, both e
and run-off. If Lloyd’s fails this test, the PRAayrequire Lloyd’s to cease trading and/or its merslto cease or reduce underwriting.

Lloyd's Regulations and Requirements

The operations of ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200 areestiped by Lloyd's. The Council of Lloyd’has wide discretionary powers to regt
members’ underwriting at Lloyd’s. The Lloygl'Franchise Board is responsible for setting rigthagement and profitability targets for
Lloyd’'s market and operates a business planningnamitoring process for all Syndicates, includiegiewing and approving the Syndicates
annual business plans. The Lloyd’s Franchise Baaglires annual approval of ArgoGlobal Syndicat®Q® business plan, includi
maximum underwriting capacity, and may require geanto any business plagnesented to it or that additional capital be pied to suppo
underwriting. Lloyd’s also imposes various charged assessments on its members.
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ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200 predominately participaite the Lloyd’s market through Argo (No 604) L, Lloyd’'s corporate member. |
entering into a membership agreement with Lloy&igio (No 604) Ltd undertakes to comply with all ¥tis bydaws and regulations as w
as the provisions of the LloysI'’Acts and Financial Services and Markets Act 20@@ are applicable to it. The underwriting capadt &
member of Lloyd’s must be supported by providingeaosit (referred to as “Funds at Lloyd'#i)the form of cash, securities or letters of c
in an amount determined by Lloyd' The amount of such deposit is calculated fohe@aember through the completion of an annual ck
adequacy exercise. These requirements allow Lioyalevaluate that each member has sufficientasseteet its underwriting liabilities plu
required solvency margin.

If a member of Lloyd’s is unable to pay its claitiws policyholders, such claims may be payable byltloyd’'s Central Fund. If Lloyds
determines that the Central Fund needs to be isededt has the power to assess premium leviesioert Lloyds members. The Council
Lloyd’s has discretion to call or assess up to 3% member’s underwriting capacity in any one ya&saa Central Fund contribution.

Dividends

Dividend payments from Argo Managing Agency Limitedts immediate parent are not restricted by letguy authority; however, when pe
such dividends become part of the capital and sarpf Argo Re, at which point further upward distion to Argo Group is subject
Bermuda insurance and solvency regulations as siscuabove. Dividend payments from Argo Managingerey Limited will be at tt
discretion of Argo Managing Agency LimitexiBoard of Directors and will be subject to then@ays, operations, financial condition, caf
and general business requirements of ArgoGlobadi®gte 1200. Dividends from a Lloyd’s managing dgemd a Lloyds corporate membhb
can be declared and paid provided it has suffiatapital available.

Malta

ArgoGlobal SE operates as a licensed insurer déadiéh Malta under the Malta Business Act (Cap.)408 the Malta Financial Servic
Authority (“MFSA”"). ArgoGlobal SE is regulated asdmmestic insurer by the MFSA and subject genetalljvialta’s laws and regulatio
relating to insurance and solvency requirementgoSiobal SE entertains risks throughout the Europeember States and Europ
Economic Area (“EEA”),either directly from Malta or through an authorizledinch office pursuant to the applicable Malteskes an
European regulations on the ‘Exercise of PasspigiitR — Services/Establishmen8witzerland is not an EEA state and as such therand
passporting rights available. On October 24, 20A8)oGlobal SE received authorization from the Swkieancial Market Supervisc
Authority (“FINMA™) to establish a branch office and conduct insurdnegness in Switzerland, followed by a formal riotifion from thi
MFSA on November 6, 2013 approving the opening gfo&lobal SE Swiss branch. When payable, dividdms ArgoGlobal SE will b
subject to applicable laws and regulations in Malta

Brazil

Argo Seguros is authorized to operate as a liceimseoter domiciled in Brazil by the Superinte@dhcia de Seguros Privados, (“SUSEPREI
Ordinance No 4.316. Argo Seguros is regulated a@eraestic insurer by SUSEP and subject to Braddws and regulations relating
insurance and solvency requirements. When paydbieends from Argo Seguros will be subject to aggible laws and regulations in Brazil.

In April 2014, Argo Re Ltd. was registered by thd SEP as an admitted reinsurer in Brazil, and eistadyd its representative office, Argo
Escritério de Representacao no Brasil Ltda. (“ARm@Escritorio”)in Sao Paolo, Brazil. Argo Re Escritorio is foadism serving the domes
commercial reinsurance market. Argo Re Ltd. angoARe Escritorio are subject to Bragilaws and regulations relating to business aids
as an admitted reinsurer.

Dubai

Argo Re (DIFC) Ltd. is authorized as an “AuthoriZeidn” licensed to operate in Dubai as an insurance maegkinsurance intermediary
the Dubai Financial Services Authority (“DFSAAlthough not subject to solvency requirements atigtioregulations that apply to insura
carriers and reinsurers generally in Dubai, Argo(BE-C) Ltd. is subject to Duba’laws and regulations relating to its businesivities as a
Authorized Firm (Category 4) operating in Dubai.

Reinsurance

As is common practice within the insurance induysfingo Groups insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries trangferten of the risks insur
under their policies by entering into a reinsuratreaty with another insurance or reinsurance comp®&urchasing reinsurance prot
primary carriers against the frequency and/or sgvef losses incurred on the policies they isssigch as in the case of unusually ser
occurrences in which a number of claims on onecpotiggregate to produce an extraordinary loss an pwiicy or where a catastrog
generates a large number of serious claims on pleulpiolicies at the same time. Reinsurance does not
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discharge the issuing primary carrier from its gation to pay a policyholder for losses insuredaurits policy. Rather, the reinsured portiol
each loss covered under a reinsurance treaty edcedthe assuming reinsurer for reimbursemerntiégptimary carrier. Because this creat
receivable owed by the reinsurer to the primaryiegrthere is credit exposure with respect todssseded to the extent that any reinsui
unable or unwilling to meet the obligations assumrder its reinsurance treaty. The ability to adllen reinsurance is subject to the solve
of the reinsurers, interpretation of contract laaggiand other factors. We are selective in regaadit reinsurers, seeking out those with st
financial strength ratings from A.M. Best or S&Powkver, the financial condition of a reinsurer nehange over time based on ma
conditions. We perform credit reviews on our refess, focusing on, among other things, financialdition, stability, trends and commitm
to the reinsurance business. In certain instanees|so require deposit of assets in trust, letiécsedit or other acceptable collateral to sug
balances due from certain reinsurers whose finhatiength ratings fall below a certain level, dnaransact business on a reximitted bas
in the case of the U.S. subsidiaries in the stdtere/the reinsured subsidiary is domiciled, or whavide reinsurance only on a collaterali
basis.

At December 31, 2014, Argo Grogpfeinsurance recoverable balance totaled $997lidminet of an allowance for doubtful accounts$at<
million. The following table reflects the creditirags for our reinsurance recoverable balance atebwer 31, 2014

2014

(in millions) Reinsurance
Ratings per A.M. Best Recoverables % of Total
Reinsurers rated A+ or beti $ 529.7 53.1%
Reinsurers rated . 302.z 30.3%
Reinsurers rated - 52.7 5.3%
Reinsurers rated below- or not ratec 112.5 11.3%

$ 997.2 100.(%

The nine of the top ten reinsurers, rated A or éighccounted for $550.8 million, or approximat&$pb of the reinsurance recoverable bal
as of December 31, 2014. Management has conclhdédlit balances (net of any allowances for douilatégounts) are considered recover
as of December 31, 2014.

Additional information relating to our reinsuranaetivities is included under Item 7, “Managemenbiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations” and Note &ifRurance” in the Notes to the Consolidated FirsBtatements.

Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Argo Group records reserves for specific claimsuiired and reported, as well as reserves for clantisred but not reported (“IBNR”)The
estimates of losses for reported claims are estaddi judgmentally on an individual case basis. Segthmates are based on our partic
experience with the type of risk involved and ounoWwledge of the circumstances surrounding eaclhvithail claim. Reserves for repor
claims consider our estimate of the ultimate costdtitle the claims, including investigation andedse of the claim, and may be adjustet
differences between costs originally estimated @ds re-estimated or incurred.

Reserves for IBNR claims are based on the estimaltedate cost of settling claims, including thdeets of inflation and other social ¢
economic factors, using past experience adjusteduiment trends and any other factors that woutdlifg past experience. We use a variet
statistical and actuarial techniques to analyzesatitlaims costs, including frequency and sevefitia and prevailing economic, social and |
factors. Reserves established in prior years ajested as loss experience develops and new infammaecomes available. Adjustment:
previously estimated reserves are reflected intesuthe year in which they are made.

The estimate of reinsurance recoverables relatadported and unreported losses and loss adjustexpeinses represent the portion of
gross liabilities that are anticipated to be recederom reinsurers. Amounts recoverable from n@iess are recognized as assets at the
time as, and in a manner consistent with, the Joss®s associated with the reinsurance treaty.

We are subject to claims arising out of catastrephat may have a significant effect on our businessults of operations and/or finan
condition. Catastrophes can be caused by variosistgvincluding hurricanes, windstorms, earthquaka#storms, explosions, power outay
severe winter weather, fires and nraade events, such as terrorist attacks. The inca&demd severity of catastrophes are inher
unpredictable and cannot be reserved for in advartoe extent of losses from a catastrophe is atifumof both the total amount of insu
exposure in the area affected by the event andawerity of the event.

We have discontinued underwriting certain linedoasiness; however, we are still obligated to pagds incurred on these lines. Certain
currently in runeff are characterized by long elapsed periods batvike occurrence of a claim and any ultimate payrweresolve the clair
Included in Rumeff Lines segment are claims related to asbestdsawironmental liabilities arising out of liabifipolicies primarily written i
the 1960s, 1970s and into the nii@i80s with a limited number of claims occurring molicies written in the early 1990s. Business forly
written in our Risk Management segment is alsosdfi@sl in the Run-off Lines
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segment. Additional discussion on the Run-off Lisegment can be found under Item 7, “Manageraddiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations”.

The tables below present a development of losdamsdadjustment expense (“LAE®serve liabilities and payments for the years 20@dugt
2014. The information presented in Table | is rethe effects of reinsurance. The information prése in Table Il includes only amou
related to direct and assumed insurance. Amountthé predecessor Bermuda reinsurance companiesoaiiacluded for the years prior
2007, the year of acquisition. Additionally, amauffior the Syndicate 1200 segment are not includedhie years prior to 2008, the yea
acquisition.

Table |
Analysis of Losses and Loss Adjustment Expense Démement
(Net of Reinsurance)
(in millions) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Reserves for Losses and
LAE @ @) $1,060.¢ $1,394.¢ $1,530.5 $1,863.Z $2,115.¢ $2,213.2 $2,253.C $2,336.7 $2,110.¢ $2,107.¢ $2,137.]
Cumulative Amount
Paid as of®)
1 year latel 183.1 235.€ 286.€ 410.€ 567.¢ 577.¢ 577.¢ 578.¢ 554.2 546.4
2 years late 341.¢€ 435.2 517.€ 721.5 965.5 960.2 968.€ 974.2 941.2
3 years late 492.¢ 600.3 712.7 930.C 1,213t 1,213.7 1,243.¢ 1,227.
4 years late 614.C 734.C 840.¢ 1,072.C 1,372.% 1,393.7 1,402
5 years late 717.1 822.2 926.7 1,169.C 1,487.& 1,491.
6 years late 785.3 886.€ 994. 1,253z 1,559.
7 years late 840.7 943.C 1,055.C 1,309.
8 years late 890.€ 1,022.C 1,102.2
9 years late 950.¢  1,063.€
10 years late 987.€
Reserves Re-estimated
as of4)
1 year latel 1,216.C 1,349.¢ 1,499. 1,798.€ 2,109.. 2,170.1 2,249.¢ 2,303.t 2,077.. 2,069.¢
2 years late 1,196.: 1,331« 1,472%f 1,757¢ 2,018. 2,112.( 2,193 2,265.C 2,019.7
3 years late 1,200.z 1,306.F 1,446.1 1,696.¢ 1974 2,055t 2,160.¢ 2,190.f
4 years late 1,196.C 1,316.% 1,413t 1,659.1 1,946.6 2,025.6 2,119.f
5 years late 1,219t 1,296.6 1,389.1 1,640.€ 1,919.0 2,013.
6 years late 1,208.1 1,284.( 1,376.2 1,621.1 1,921t
7 years late 1,196.f 1,276.C 1,369.2 1,634.F
8 years late 1,196.1 1,303.f  1,387.7
9 years late 1,211.¢  1,323.7
10 years late 1,230.2
Cumulative (Deficiency)
Redundancy®) (169.9) 711 142.€ 228.€ 194.1 199.2 133.t 146.2 91.2 37.7
Prior Year Cumulative
(Deficiency)
Redundancy (151.]) 91.3 161.3 242.2 196.3 187.€ 92.1 71.7 33.6 —
Change in Cumulative
(Deficiency)
Redundancy $ (183 $ (202) $ (185 $ (1349 $ (22 $ 117 $ 414 $ 745 $ 576 $ 37.7

@ Original estimated reserves for losses and LAEphetinsurance, as of the balance sheet dateafir ef the years indicate

@  Reserves for losses and LAE for 2012 are net of2®19nillion of reserves ceded under a whole accamta share reinsurar
transaction covering the Syndicate 1200 segmen2®®9 and prior years of account. The table dodsimaude the impact of th
transaction on years prior to 20:

®  Cumulative amounts paid, net of reinsurance paysn@nbf the end of successive years related te tieserves

@ Re-estimated reserves are calculated by adding latimeiamounts paid subsequent to year-end toetlestimated unpaid losses and L
for each year

®  Cumulative (deficiency) redundancy, compares thested reserves (3) to the reserves as originaflgbdished (1) and shows that
reserves as originally recorded were either inadigar excessive to cover the estimated cost ofislas of the respective year e
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Table Il

Analysis of Losses and Loss Adjustment Expense Démement
(Gross Reserves)

(in millions) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Reserves for Losses
and LAE @) $1,607.F $1,875.« $2,029.2 $2,425.5 $2,996.¢ $3,203.2 $3,152.2 $3,291.1 $3,223.f $3,230.Z $3,042.«
Cumulative Amount
Paid as of@
1 year latel 275.2 335.€ 358.¢€ 4995 789.F 834.¢ 764.7 774.2 739.2 702.F
2 years late 470.4 578.E 650.4 894.¢€ 1,383.¢ 1,342.7 1,295.2 1,292.7 1,233.¢
3 years late 645.E 784.1 903.7 1,198.¢ 1,716.¢ 1,691.¢ 1,657.¢ 1,620.2
4 years late 791.¢€ 957.1 1,086.7 1,364.¢ 1,938.¢ 1,927.c 1,867.¢
5 years late 924.C 1,085.4 1,195.2 1,500.2 2,102.c 2,063.¢
6 years late 1,026.2 1,164.¢ 1,294.2 1,605.¢ 2,197.C
7 years late 1,092.2 1,248 1,369.4 1,680.%
8 years late 1,157.¢ 1,309.2 1,432.¢
9 years late 12127  1,364.¢
10 years late 1,262.:
Reserves Re-estimated
as of®
1 year latel 1,604.1 1,792.( 1,960.1 2,369.¢  3,044.C 3,135.( 3,132.1 3,245.¢ 3,195.¢ 3,197.7
2 years late 1,547.1 1,741.¢ 1,939.¢ 2,333 2,899.¢ 3,067. 3,073.1 3,204.1 3,151.¢
3 years late 1,540.¢ 1,727.¢ 1,932.¢  2,254.1 2,871.C 2,994 ¢ 3,039.7 3,134.¢
4 years late 1,542.¢ 1,764.7 1,869.¢ 2,182.7 2,834.¢ 2,970.t 3,003.t
5 years late 1,608.2 1,725.1 1,836.F 2,154.2 2,809.C 2,965.1
6 years late 1,588.F 1,708.4 1,815.7 2,147.7 2,819.€
7 years late 1,576.1 1,695.¢ 1,824.« 2,172.C
8 years late 1563.2 1,714« 1,856.¢
9 years late 1,584.7 1,749.1
10 years late 1,617.1
Cumulative (Deficiency)
Redundancy® (9.6) 126.2 172.€ 253.E 176.7 238.2 148.7 156.7 71.8 32.€
Prior Year Cumulative
(Deficiency)
Redundancy 22.8 161.C 204.€ 277.€ 187.¢€ 232.¢ 112.5 87.0 27.7 —
Change in Cumulative
(Deficiency)
Redundancy $ (324) $ (34.7) $ (32.2) $ (243) $ (109 $ 54 $ 362 $ 697 $ 442 $ 32.¢

@

(@)
(©)

4)

Original estimated reserves for losses and LAErpio the effects of reinsurance, as of the balasiwet date for each of the ye
indicated.

Cumulative amounts paid, prior to the effects @isarance as of the end of successive years rdlathdse reserve

Re-estimated reserves are calculated by adding latireiamounts paid subsequent to year-end toetlestimated unpaid losses and L
for each year

Represents changes of the original estimate ofehe indicated (1) and the reserve-estimated (3) as of the current y-end.

Excluded from the preceding tables are loss resert@&135.7 million, which were classified as “Lil#es held for sale’as of December 3
2007.

O

n December 31, 2012, the Syndicate 1200 segméateehinto a whole account quota share contracerany the 2009 and prior years

account. The counterparty was another syndicateiwitloyd’s. As a result of this transaction, net reserveddsses and LAE at the end
2012 were reduced by $192.2 million ceded undes djuiota share agreement. On December 17, 201Rrthiential Regulatory Authori
approved a Split Reinsurance to Close arrangembateby the liabilities assumed by the whole accouiata share provider could be leg
transferred to that quota share provider. On Jgni@y2014, this transaction was effected withraxeption date of January 1, 2014.

C
al

aution should be exercised in evaluating the médion shown in the above tables. It should bedtitat each amount includes the effec
| changes in amounts for prior periods. In additithe tables present calendar year data, nodlextcor policy year development data.

social, economic and legal conditions and otherdsevhich have had an impact on the changes in the
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estimated liability in the past are not necessairlgicative of the future. Accordingly, readers arautioned against extrapolating
conclusions about future results from the inforomafpresented in these tables.

Additional information relating to our loss reseevelopment is included under Item 7, “Managensebiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations” and Note &s®&ves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Experisegbe Notes to Consolidated Finan
Statements.

Investments
Investment Strategy and Guidelir

We follow an investment strategy designed to emighathe preservation of capital and provide adegjligtidity for the prompt payment
our obligations, including claims payments. To easadequate liquidity for payment of claims, weetéihto account the maturity and dura
of our investment portfolio and our general lialyilprofile. To meet our liquidity needs, our comrnlbl portfolio consists primarily of investm
grade, fixed-maturity securities. As of December&l114, these securities, along with cash, reptedef% of our total investments and cash.

In an effort to meet business needs and mitigates riour investment guidelines provide restrictionsour portfolios composition, includir
issuer limits, sector limits, credit quality limitportfolio duration, limits on the amount of inte®nts in approved countries and permis:
security types. We may direct our investment margageinvest some of the investment portfolio imrencies other than the U.S. dollar be
on where our business is written, the currencyliictvour loss reserves are denominated or regylagguirements.

The performance of our investment portfolio is sebjto a variety of risks, including risks relatedgeneral economic conditions, ma
volatility, interest rate fluctuations, liquiditysk and credit and default risk. Investment guigeliestrictions have been established in an
to minimize the effect of these risks but may netags be effective due to factors beyond our cdntkosignificant change in interest ra
could result in losses, realized or unrealizedhavalue of our investment portfolio. Additionallyith respect to some of our investments
are subject to prepayment and possibly reinvestmght Certain investments in our Capital AppreciatPortfolio, which includes high yie
fixed maturity securities, emerging market debtusities, domestic and global equities and otheeraditive investments are subjec
restrictions on sale, transfer and redemption, kvhi@y limit our ability to withdraw funds or readizyains on such investments for some pi
of time after our initial investment. The values afid returns on, such investments may also be vudatile.

Investment Committee and Investment Mana

The Investment Committee of our Board of Directbes approved an investment policy statement thatagts investment guidelines ¢
supervises our investment activity. The Investm@ammittee regularly monitors our overall investmesgults, compliance with investm
objectives and guidelines and ultimately reportsauerall investment results to the Board of Diogst

We currently use multiple professional investmeranagers to manage our portfolio. Certain shkemia investments and other strat
investments are managed internally.

Additional information relating to our investmerrffolio is included under Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Nt
Risk” and Note 2, “Investments” in the Notes to €olidated Financial Statements.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had 1,302 employeespitéde a comprehensive benefits program for surtistly all employees, including
401(k) savings plan and other retirement plansltinelife and disability benefits and a tuition médursement program. Management beli
our relationships with our employees are good.

Available Information

Our executive offices are located at 110 Pitts Bapd, Pembroke HMO08, Bermuda. The mailing addies§5®. Box HM 1282, Hamilton H
FX, Bermuda. The telephone number is (441) 2968. The website address is www.argolimited.comndlof the information contained
our website is part of this report or is incorpechin this report by reference. We file annual,rtgréy and current reports, proxy statements
other information and documents with the Securitied Exchange Commission (“SEC¥Which are made available to read and copy ¢
SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Wgtin, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information dw toperation of the Pub
Reference Room by contacting the SEC at 1-800-8E8D-. Reports filed with the SEC are also madelaiviai at www.sec.gov. We me
available free of charge on our website our anre@drt on Form 10-K,
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quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, interactive daltesficurrent reports on Formk8and amendments to those reports filed with oni&lred ti
the SEC pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the S&@esiExchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonahlstipal after we electronically file the
with or furnish them to the SEC. Also available aur website, under the Investor Relations and Guwmre links, are copies of our At
Committee Charter; Human Resources Committee Ghanteestment Committee Charter; Nominating ComeaitCharter; Risk Committ
Charter; Corporate Governance Guidelines and TafrReference; and Code of Conduct and Businesc&ti@ur Code of Conduct &
Business Ethics applies to all of our board membefficers, thirdparty providers and employees, including our ppatiexecutive office
principal financial officer and principal accourginfficer. All of these documents will be providedthout charge upon written request to
Senior Vice President, Investor Relations at owvataddress.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

An investment in our common shares involves variigkss, including those mentioned below and thbse &re discussed from time to timi
our other periodic filings with the SEC. Investafsould carefully consider these risks, along with bther information filed in this repc
before making an investment decision regardingconmmon shares. There may be additional risks wiielare currently unaware or cons
immaterial. All of these risks could have a matesidverse effect on our financial condition, resuf operations and/or value of our comi
shares.

Enterprise Risk Management and Governance Framework
Purpose
The objective of our Enterprise Risk Management@nternance Frameworks are to ensure that:

1. All reasonably foreseeable material risks,udaig financial and non-financial, on and bfilance sheet and current and contin
exposures are identifie

2. The potential impact of such material riskgluding material risks affecting capital requirerteeand capital management, short
term and lon-term liquidity requirements, policyholder obligat®and operational strategies and objectives aesasd; an

3. Policies and strategies are developed and maimtanmanage, mitigate and report material risksatiffely.

Our frameworks for managing enterprise risks atenided to meet standards that are not only consistgh the applicable laws a
regulations, but which are commercially reasonallé prudent taking into consideration the intere$tsur shareholders, policyholders
other counterparties.

Conducting our insurance and reinsurance businpssations and related services in a prudent mameguires us to establish sol
governance mechanisms, including a sound risk neanagt and internal controls framework. This framdwtakes into considerati
international best practice on enterprise risk rgangent and internal controls and is overseen byBoard of Directors (the “Board”).

The focus of our risk management framework is ogaéonably foreseeable material risks,” meaningettogosures (financial and non
financial, on and ofbalance sheet, current and contingent exposum@$,tieat we can identify in advance as having themtial, should the
occur, to change the way relevant stakeholdersdvasstess our solvency and/or liquidity positiomisk profile in general. These risks inch
those that are on a group wide risk register. Relestakeholders include the Board, senior managermelicyholders, investors and
various governmental and non-governmental autlesritiat monitor and regulate our business actvéiel securities.

Risk Strategy

Our “Risk Strategy”encompasses our risk appetite, risk tolerance demetl strategy for addressing and managing risk. Risk Strategy
outlined and implemented through the respectivéciesl, targets, guidelines, requirements and budgpeproved by our Board on a peric
basis.

Because we are subject to an increasingly compigikanment for regulatory and financial oversighie consider enterprise risk manager
and compliance as key functions from an operatistaidpoint. However, maintaining a suitable aridotif’e Risk Strategy is also viewed ¢
strategic imperative since it allows us to remaimpetitive through a better understanding of oun eisks and overall solvency needs, on
a per risk and an aggregated, enterprise wide.basis
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Framework

Our risk management and internal controls framevi@designed to enable us to achieve an accurdtéraaly understanding of (1) the nat
caliber and sensitivity of the material foreseeaisks to which we are exposed, (2) our abilitymdigate or avoid such risks and (3) to
extent that an identified risk falls outside of dRisk Strategy, what course of action is necesgaddress such risk consistent with ou
goals, principles and risk appetites.

Key elements of our risk management framework anensarized below:

1.

Our risk management framework consists of threelteuf defense and begins at the departmental. IBagh business departm
is charged with the task of identifying, assessimggasuring, monitoring, reporting and mitigatingks associated with t
departmens respective functions and responsibilities. ThedHef Enterprise Risk Management, who reports enes of ris
management directly to the Risk Committee of theaoand serves as the second line of defense, pladysy role in ris
management by coordinating, facilitating and oveirsg the effectiveness and integrity of our risknagement activities. Tt
function is also charged with establishing, maimteg and enhancing the methodology and tools usédentify and evaluate ris
and, where risks are outside our risk appetiteolmrance, ensuring that there is an appropriatgorese applied by the respec
risk owner. The Internal Audit department providethird line of defense by assessing the effecégerof our risk managem
processes, practices and internal controls andigingvtimely feedback and assurance to the Boardhenadherence to our r
management framework. The Head of Internal Augibres on issues related to the internal contrah&aork directly to the Auc
Committee of the Boar«

We have established policies to identify and addke®wn existing as well as evolving and emergigisrthat have the potential
materially impact the adequacy of our financiabreses, volatility of our results, expected shalédioreturns or our ability to me
our commercial, legal and regulatory obligatic

Our risk management framework

- embedded in both the organizational structure drategic oversight process, supported by apprapiiigiernal contre
policies and procedure

Our Board has Corporate Governance Guidelines anthg of Reference that reflect local and intermatiaevelopmen
with regard to Risk and Capital Management. The&k RlIsmmittee of the Board is regularly briefed oneeging issue
relevant to our international expansion as welkeaslving regulatory developments, especially inrBeda, the Unite
States and the European Union. The Enterprise R&kagement function at the Argo Group level andatiditional loce
risk management functions further fortify the implentation of and compliance with our risk managenienmework
Throughout the year, risk related aspects to owiness are reviewed and evaluated at all levelse®an thes
assessments, appropriate risk management actioesben taken to address and mitigate risks whecessary and
ensure that underwriting and investment activite®ain consistent with managemenstrategic and business plans
approved by the Board.

These risk management activities are subsequentlyitared, reviewed and, if required, adjusted dwrihe course 1
regularly scheduled operational meetings, reseevéew meetings and other management meetings dtinmgear t
assure proper alignment with approved risk appatitbtolerance levels.

» supported by information systems that capture wadiéng, investment and operational data in ordeptovide relevan
accurate and timely information to the applicahisibess function:

We continue to evaluate and fortify our processebsmotocols to assure the integrity of our daté sk models.

- designed to incorporate techniques necessary htifglemeasure, respond to, monitor and reporta @ontinuous basis a
on an individual and aggregate level, materialdeeable risks

The risk management techniques, especially witlancedo our internal capital model, are constandfined as ne
methods are developed, enhanced tools and apptisadre released and our means to quantify andygrisks improve.

- designed to specify objectives, risk appetite aldrance levels, as well as appropriate delegaifooversight, reportin
and operating responsibilities across all functir

Our Risk Strategy is determined by a risk appetéfned by a series of risk limits at the Argo Gudavel as well as ¢
operational segment level. The risk appetite itasn the available capital and liquidity and iBected in the Boai
approved business plans and designed to fit withitain volatility tolerances, which provide a teaireference for ot
operational segments.
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« Risk limits encompassed in our Risk Strategy inelud

« Primary companyide portfolio limits, which are based on our oVegzortfolio and designed to protect «
capital and liquidity position and limit the likalbod of an economic loss for the ye

« Secondary, supplementary limits, which serve toitlilosses that can arise out of individual risk €gpo
accumulations, such as natural catastrophes amdisen, and to limit market and credit risks thatiltl materiall
impact our solvency were they to materiali

« Other limits, which are designed to protect andseree our reputation and strategic agility and thrggectour
future business potential. These limits includeap@ters for individual risks that could cause perema damag
to how our customers, clients, shareholders arfipsteceive us

- The prescribed risk appetite ensures that an apptepbalance is struck between entertained busiopportunitie
and associated risk

» Our risk appetite is reflected in our strategic &ndiness planning. In the event of capacity sigegar conflicts wit
the stipulated limits profile and internal guidelf fixed escalation and decisioraking processes are designe
ensure that business interests and risk manageaspetts are being surfaced, vetted and recontfiledcessary, risl
are ceded or hedged by means of reinsurance, tieeisar other forms of risk relie

« documented insofar as all significant policies anatedures associated with our risk managementefrank are in writini
and available to the Board, Senior Management erglayees

Our Corporate Governance, Compliance, Risk Managearal Internal Controls Policies and Proceduresaviewed o
at least an annual basis. Recommendations are todlde Board, its Committees and Senior Managerioentpdates ar
upgrades as required on a timely basis.

We believe that the foregoing risk management fraomk and oversight activities are structured in @ayvthat enables us to take an ac
approach to risk management in an ever changiray,leggulatory and business environment. Throughefffiorts of management, our intel
risk management functions and the Board, we seedvdid or mitigate unnecessary risks while acceptiartain other risks, the return
which may be deemed beneficial to us and our sbéders.

Significant Risks

Our risk management framework covers the followdatggories of material foreseeable risks consistéhtthe guidance provided for each:

Insurance Underwriting Risks

Insurance Underwriting risks are defined as thk ofloss, or adverse change in the value of insgdiabilities, due to inadequate pric
and/or reserving practices. These risks may beechiby the fluctuations in timing, frequency and eséy of insured events and cle
settlements in comparison to the expectationseatithe of underwriting.

The insurance and reinsurance business is histotlgacyclical, and we may experience periods withcegs underwriting capacity ai
unfavorable premium rates; conversely, we may havshortage of underwriting capacity when premiumtes are strong both of whic
could adversely impact our results.

Historically, insurers and reinsurers have expeegensignificant fluctuations in operating resulteedo competition, frequency and severit
catastrophic events, levels of capacity, adverseds in litigation, regulatory constraints, genexabnomic conditions and other factors.
supply of insurance and reinsurance is relatedé@giling prices, the level of insured losses amal level of capital available to the indu:
that, in turn, may fluctuate in response to changeates of return on investments being earnatiéninsurance and reinsurance industry.
result, the insurance and reinsurance businessrisety has been a cyclical industry characteribggeriods of intense price competition
to excessive underwriting capacity as well as griwhen shortages of capacity increased premiugisdelemand for reinsurance depend
numerous factors, including the frequency and sgvef catastrophic events, levels of capacityraduction of new capital providers, gen
economic conditions and underwriting results ofmaiy insurers. The supply of reinsurance is relatedgrevailing prices, recent lc
experience and capital levels. All of these factlrstuate and may contribute to price declinesagalty in the reinsurance industry.

We cannot predict with certainty whether marketditons will improve, remain constant or deterieraNegative market conditions n
impair our ability to underwrite insurance and seirance at rates that we consider appropriate @ameéhensurate relative to the risk assume
we cannot underwrite insurance or reinsurance @ogpiate rates, our ability to transact businessld/ be
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materially and adversely affected. Any of thesddexcould lead to an adverse effect on our businesults of operations and/or finan
condition.

We operate in a highly competitive environment and assurance can be given that we will continueb® able to compete effectively in t
environment.

We compete with numerous companies that providegrty, casualty and specialty lines of insurance @@insurance and related servi
Some of those companies have a larger capital dradeare more highly rated than we are. No assureaicde given that we will be able
continue to compete successfully in the insurame#aa reinsurance market. Increased competitiath@se markets could result in a chanc
the supply and/or demand for insurance or reinsuaaffect our ability to price our products ak+éslequate rates and retain existing bus
or underwrite new business on favorable termai#f increased competition limits our ability tortsact business, our operating results cou
adversely affected.

Our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries have espre to unpredictable and unexpected changes ir tblaims environment ¢
catastrophes and terrorist acts that can materiadlgyd adversely affect our business, results of gems and/or financial condition.

Emerging Claim:

Changes in industry practices and legal, judisiatial and other environmental conditions may hevenforeseeable adverse impact on cl
and coverage issues. These issues may adversety affr business, such as by extending coveragendethe intended scope at the tim
underwriting business or increasing the numberize of expected claims. In some instances, theaagds may not become apparent
sometime after insurance or reinsurance contrhatsare affected were issued and hence cannotfemjately factored into the underwriti
decision. As a result, the full extent of liabilignder such insurance or reinsurance contracts moaye known for many years after th
contracts have been issued, and our financialiposiind results of operations may be materially atersely affected in such future peri
The effects of these and other unforeseen evolvirgmerging claims and coverage issues are inhgdifftcult to predict.

Catastrophic Losses

We are subject to claims arising out of catastrephat may have a significant effect on our businessults of operations and/or finan
condition. Catastrophes can be caused by varioestgvincluding tornadoes, hurricanes, windstortegnamis, earthquakes, hailstor
explosions, power outages, severe winter weathigdfirgs and marmmade events. The incidence and severity of suctoraly occurrin
catastrophic events are inherently unpredictatie. 8xtent of losses from a catastrophe is a fumaidoth the total amount of insured val
in the area affected by the event and severithefevent. Insurance companies are generally natifted to reserve for probable catastro
events until they occur. Therefore, although we agtively manage our risk exposure to catastropeaigh underwriting limits and proces
and further mitigate it through the purchase afisarance protection and other hedging instrumantgspecially severe catastrophe or seri
catastrophes could exceed our reinsurance or hgggotection and may have a material adverse impactur business, results of operat
and/or financial condition. Also, it is possibleatta series of catastrophic events could occur witisual frequency in a given period wh
although individually not severe enough to trigtiex reinsurance protection or other hedging insémimin the aggregate could have a mal
adverse impact on us.

Further, as a provider of property catastrophestg@nce coverage in the worldwide marketplace, ARg& operating results in any gi\
period will depend to some extent on the numberraagnitude of such natural and maade catastrophes. While Argo Re may, dependil
market conditions, purchase catastrophe retrogessimverage for its own protection, the occurresicene or more major catastrophes in
given period could nevertheless have a materia¢@dvimpact on Argo Re'operating results and/or financial condition.sTéould, in turr
result in a material adverse impact on Argo Grolnisiness, results of operations and/or finan@abion.

Terrorism

We also carry the risk of losses resulting fronsaaftterrorism. Even if reinsurers are able to edel coverage for terrorist acts or price
coverage at rates that we consider attractivectdirsurers, like our primary insurance companysglibries, might not be able to likew
exclude coverage of terrorist acts because of agguyl constraints. If this occurs, we, in our cafyaas a primary insurer, would hav:
significant gap in our own reinsurance protection avould be exposed to potential losses as a refalhy terrorist act. It is impossible
predict the occurrence of such events with statibttertainty and difficult to estimate the amoaoftoss per occurrence they will generat
there is a future terrorist attack, the possibiéiggsts that losses resulting from such event cputde to be material to our financial condi
and results of operations. Terrorist acts may a#ssse multiple claims, and there is no assurarateothr attempts to limit our liability throu
contractual policy provisions will be effective.
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We deem terrorism peril to include the damage tegpfrom various terrorist attacks through eithenventional weapons or weapons of r
destruction such as nuclear or radioactive expéosievices as well as chemical and biological coimtanis. We continue to review ¢
underwriting data in assessing aggregate exposutkig peril. We underwrite against the risk ofréeism with a philosophy of avoidar
wherever possible to the extent permitted by applie law. For both property and casualty exposuhes,is accomplished through the us
portfolio tracking tools that identify high riskeas, as well as areas of potential concentratiom egfimate the probable maximum loss 1
each risk as well as for the portfolio in total afadtor this analysis into the underwriting andnseirance buying process. The prob
maximum loss is model generated, and subject tngstsons that may not be reflective of ultimatesks incurred for a terrorist act.

Additionally, we have identified certain high riklcations and hazardous operations where ther@dateatial for an explosion or a rapid spt
of fire due to a terrorist act. Through modeling gontinue to refine our estimates of the probatdg&imum loss from such an event and fe
this analysis into the underwriting evaluation s and also seek to mitigate this exposure threaghus policy terms and conditions (wt
allowed by statute) and through the use of reimtgato the extent possible. Our current reinswaarcangements either exclude terro
coverage or significantly limit the level of covgrathat is provided.

Terrorism exclusions are not permitted in the Whi&tates for workers compensation policies undetedrStates federal law or under the |
of any state or jurisdiction in which we operateh&M underwriting existing and new workers compeasdbusiness, we consider the ac
potential risk of loss due to terrorist activitpcluding foreign and domestic, and this may leadoudecline to underwrite or to renew cer
business. However, even in lines where terrorisolusions are permitted, our clients may object tereorism exclusion in connection w
business that we may still desire to underwritehait an exclusion, some or many of our insurand&ipe may not include terroris
exclusion. Given the retention limits imposed unttex U.S. federal act and that some or many ofpmlicies may not include a terrori:
exclusion, future foreign or domestic terroristaaks may result in losses that have a material radveffect on our business, result:
operations and/or financial condition.

On November 26, 2002, the President of the UniteteS signed into law the Terrorism Risk Insurascceof 2002 (“TRIA”). On January 1.
2015, the President of the United States signexdiaw the Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reaizhtion Act of 2014 (“TRIPRA")which
extends TRIA through December 31, 2020. Under TBbdAmercial insurers are required to offer insurazmeerage against terrorist incide
and are reimbursed by the federal government fal gaims subject to deductible and retention ant®ufiRIA, and its related rules, cont
certain definitions, requirements and proceduresrfsurers filing claims with the Treasury for pagmt of the Federal share of compens:
for insured losses under the Terrorism Risk InstedProgram (“TRIP”).TRIP is a temporary federal program that has be&nded by TRI;
to provide for a transparent system of shared pubid private compensation for insured losses tiegutom acts of terrorism. The Treas
implements the program. On June 29, 2004, the Urgassued a final Claims Procedures Rule, effectiuly 31, 2004, as part of
implementation of Title | of TRIA. TRIA also corntes specific provisions designed to manage litmatarising out of, or resulting from
certified act of terrorism, and on July 28, 200% Treasury issued a final Litigation ManagemereRor TRIA.

TRIA, the Claims Procedures Rule, the Litigationndgement Rule and related rules set out certainitiefhs, requirements and procedt
for insurers filing claims with the Treasury forymaent of the Federal share of compensation forretsipsses under the TRIP. The Cle
Procedures Rule, in particular, specifically adsessrequirements for Federal payment, submissicemahitial notice of insured loss, I¢
certifications, timing and process for payment,oaiged recordkeeping requirements, as well asTieasurys audit and investigati
authority. These procedures will apply to all irss that wish to receive their payment of the Faldghare of compensation for insured lo
under TRIA.

Additional materials addressing TRIA and TRIP, irdihg Treasury issued interpretive letters, ardaiord on the Treasury’s website.

Global climate change may have an adverse effecbanfinancial results.

Although uncertainty remains as to the nature dfetteof future efforts to curb greenhouse gas (&MHemissions and thereby the mitiga
of long-term GHG effects on climate, a broad speutof scientific evidence suggests that maede production of GHG has had an ad\
effect on the global climate. Many sectors, to whige provide insurance coverage, might be affebtedlimate change. Some examples
coastal management, infrastructure, buildings, w&ed and energy supply, lapdanning, health and rescue preparedness. Assabsngs!
of loss and damage associated with the adversetefié climate change and the range of approachaddress loss and damage associatec
the adverse effects of climate change, includingaats related to extreme weather events and sleet@vents, remains a challenge and r
adversely impact our business, results of operaiom/or financial condition.
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Because our business is dependent upon insurance agsinsurance agents and brokers, we are exposeaddain risks arising out ¢
distribution channels that could cause our resulis be adversely affected.

We market and distribute some of our insurance yrtsdand services through a select group of whiglesgents who have limited quoting :
binding authority and who, in turn, sell our insuca products to insureds through retail insuramokdss. These agencies can bind certain
that meet our prestablished guidelines. If these agents failedtogly with our underwriting guidelines and the teraf their appointment, v
could be bound on a particular risk or number sisithat were not anticipated when we developedntheance products. Such actions ¢
adversely affect our results of operations. Addiilly, in any given period, we may derive a sigrfit portion of our business from a limi
number of agents and brokers and the loss of atiyesk relationships could have a significant inhpacour ability to market our products i
services.

In accordance with industry practice, we may payumts owed on claims under our insurance and reinsa contracts to brokers ant
third-party administrators who in turn remit these ameuntour insureds or reinsureds. Although the lawrsettled and depends upon
facts and circumstances of each particular cassonme jurisdictions in which we conduct businekgni agent or broker fails to remit fur
delivered for the payment of claims, we may remahle to our insured or reinsured ceding insuaerthe deficiency. Likewise, in cert:
jurisdictions, when the insured or reinsured pdngsremitting funds to our agent or broker in follir premiums are considered to have |
paid in full, notwithstanding that we may or mayt have actually received the premiums from the aigeibroker. Consequently, we assur
degree of credit risk associated with certain egant brokers with whom we transact business.

We may incur income statement charges (or benefitdhe reserves for losses and loss adjustmentesges are insufficient (or redundan
Such income statement charges (or benefits) coukdrbaterial, individually or in the aggregate, to odinancial condition and operatin
results in future periods.

General Loss Reserves

We maintain reserves for losses and loss adjustmepenses to cover estimated ultimate unpaid liedsl with respect to reported ¢
unreported claims incurred as of the end of eadanba sheet date. Reserves do not represent ah @daalation of liability, but inste:
represent managemesitbest estimates, which take into account varidatisical and actuarial projection techniques adl vas othe
influencing factors. These reserve estimates reptamanagemerst’expectations of what the ultimate settlement administration of clain
will cost based on an assessment of known factscamdmstances, review of historical settlementqyat, estimates of trends in cla
severity and frequency, changing legal theorielsability and other factors. Variables in the raseestimation process can be affected by
internal and external events, such as changesimglhandling procedures, economic inflation, lggalcedent and legislative changes. M
of these items are not directly quantifiable, arttirly on a prospective basis. Additionally, theray be significant reporting lags betweer
occurrence of an insured event and the time itctaadly reported to the insurer. Reserve estimatescontinually reevaluated in a reg
ongoing process as historical loss experience dpsednd additional claims are reported and settled,consequently, managemerdstimate
may change from time to time. Because the calarasind setting of the reserves for losses andddgsstment expenses is an inhere
uncertain process dependent on estimates, ourrexistserves may be insufficient or redundant astilmates of ultimate losses and
adjustment expenses may increase or decreaseiroeer t

Asbestos and Environmental Liability Loss Rese

We have received asbestos and environmental tiabliims arising out of liability coverage primigrivritten in the 1960s, 1970s and into
mid-1980s. Beginning in 1986, nearly all standard ligbipolicies contained an express exclusion fdpemtos and environmental rele
claims. All standard policies currently being issugy our insurance subsidiaries contain this exafusCertain of our specialty units of
coverage for environmental damages on a restriatimetained basis with fixed limit caps within.dddition to the previously described gen
uncertainties encountered in estimating reservesetare significant additional uncertainties itineating the amount of our potential los
from asbestos and environmental claims. Reserveadioestos and environmental claims cannot be &sidnwith traditional loss reservi
techniques that rely on historical accident yearettgpment factors due to the uncertainties surrmgnthese types of claims.
Among the uncertainties impacting the estimatioswath losses are:

« potentially long waiting periods between exposuré amergence of any bodily injury or property damag

« difficulty in identifying sources of environmentat asbestos contamination;

« difficulty in properly allocating responsibility dror liability for environmental or asbestos damage

« changes in underlying laws and judicial interpiietabf those laws;

« potential for an environmental or asbestos claiim¢olve many insurance providers over many paofieyiods;
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« long reporting delays from insureds to insurancaganies;

« historical data concerning asbestos and envirorehéwgses, which is more limited than historicdbimation on other types
claims;

« questions concerning interpretation and applicatibimsurance coverage; and

« uncertainty regarding the number and identity stineds with potential asbestos or environmentabsxie.

Management believes these factors continue to remmeditional actuarial methods less effective stinating reserves for asbestos
environmental losses than reserves on other typémsses. We establish reserves to the extent ithdhe judgment of our management,
facts and prevailing law reflect an exposure fornas dissimilar to those results the industry hageeenced with regard to asbestos
environmental related claims. We have annuallyeweid our loss and loss adjustment expense restowerir runoff lines of busines
including asbestos and environmental claims. Théve entails a detailed analysis of our direct asdumed exposure. We will continut
monitor industry trends and our own experienceriglento determine the adequacy of our environmeantdl asbestos reserves. There i
assurance that future adverse development wilboatr, and such development may have an adverset effi our results of operations.

Black Lung Disease Loss Reser

Through workers compensation coverage providea#&b mining operations by our subsidiary Rockwood,vave exposure to claims for bl
lung disease. Those diagnosed with black lung déesase eligible to receive workers compensatiorefitsnirom various U.S. federal and s
programs. These programs are continually beingevesdl by the governing bodies and may be revisedowitnotice in such a way as
increase our level of exposure.

Because of all of the above, estimates of ultinegses and loss adjustment expenses may incre#ise fature. Income statement charges
would result from such increases, if any, cannat he reasonably estimated. Such charges could beriaiaindividually or in the aggrega
to our future operating results and financial ctindi We can provide no assurances such capithbeihvailable. Adjustments to reserves
reflected in the results in the periods in whiclnagement's best estimates are changed.

Additional information relating to our reserves fosses and loss adjustment expense is includeer e 7, “Managemers’Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gaiems” and Note 6, “Reserves for Losses and Ladisisiment Expensesh the Notes t
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss arisingm inadequate or failed internal processes, lgegystems or the operational impac
external events. This risk encompasses all expssaoed by functions and services rendered indliese of conducting business including,
not limited to, accounting and financial reportifgisiness continuity, claims management, infornmatechnology and data processing, |
and regulatory compliance, outsourcing and reimsggurchasing.

We may be unable to attract and retain qualified pioyees and key executives.

We depend on our ability to attract and retain eigpeed underwriting talent and other skilled ergples and seasoned key executives wh
knowledgeable about our business. The pool of higkilled employees available to fill our key pasits may fluctuate based on ma
dynamics specific to our industry and independémtverall economic conditions. As such, higher dechtor employees having desired tali
within a particular geographic region or businesgnsent in which we operate could lead to increasendpensation expectations for exis
and prospective personnel, making it difficult tar to recruit and retain key employees and/or raairiabor costs at desired levels. If we
unable to attract and retain such talented managienve may be unable to maintain our current coitipetposition in the specialized mark
in which we operate and be unable to expand ouatipas into new markets, which could adverselgetfbur results.

Argo Group and its subsidiary, Argo Re have operatithat require highly skilled personnel to wonkBermuda. Given that the pool
Bermudian citizens available to fill certain keysfimns is limited, we are often required to retand retain qualified noBermudians to wol
in Bermuda. Our ability to do so is constrained Bgrmuda law, which provides that n8@rmudians are not permitted to engage in
occupation in Bermuda without an approved work perfrom the Bermuda Department of Immigration. TBermuda Department
Immigration will issue a work permit after propaulic advertisements and no Bermudian, spouseRéranudian or holder of a perman
resident certificate is available who meets theiiregl education, skills and experience for the aikesd position. In January 2013, the Berrr
Department of Immigration suspended the term o$ehStandard Work Permits. A significant number of Bermuda based employees
employed pursuant to these work permits grante@iigyBermuda
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Department of Immigration. These individuals ar@sidered key employees. If the Bermuda Departmefmmigration changes its polici
with regard to work permits, our operations coutddisrupted and our financial performance coulddbeersely affected.

Offices in foreign jurisdictions, such as Dubai, Maand Brazil, may have residence and other mangaequirements that affect 1
composition of its local boards of directors, exe@iteams and choice of thighrty service providers. Due to the competition daailable
talent in such jurisdictions, we may not be ablattoact and retain personnel as required by osinless plans, which could disrupt operat
and adversely affect our financial performance.

Our internal controls may fail and have an adverséect on our business.
We use a number of strategies and processes tgateitbur insurance risk exposure including:

« engaging in vigorous underwriting within certairfided risk parameters and subject to various legélsversight by experienc
underwriting professional:

« carefully evaluating terms and conditions of ouliges;
« focusing on our risk aggregations by geographiezpmdustry type, credit exposure and other basek;

« ceding insurance risk to reinsurance companies.

However, there are inherent limitations to the @ffeeness of these strategies and processes. Nmass can be given that a failure to mair
or follow such processes or controls, an unanttegba&vent or series of such events will not resuloss levels that could have a mate
adverse effect on our financial condition or resolt operations.

We continually enhance our operating proceduresiatednal controls to effectively support our buesa and comply with our regulatory
financial reporting requirements. As a result o# ithherent limitations in all control systems, netem of controls can provide abso
assurance that all control objectives have beemilbbe met, and that instances of fraud, if anythim the Company have been detecte
control system, no matter how well conceived andraged, can provide only reasonable, not absoagsyrance that the objectives of
control system are met. These inherent limitatiookide the realities that judgments in decisinaking can be faulty, and that breakdowns
occur because of a simple error or mistake. Adaiiily, controls can be circumvented by the indiadacts of some persons or by collusio
two or more persons. The design of any system ofrols is based in part upon certain assumptionsitatine likelihood of future events, ¢
there can be no assurance that any design wilkgdcin achieving its stated goals under all paaéftture conditions. Over time, controls n
become inadequate because of changes in conditiche degree of compliance with policies or praced may deteriorate. Further, the de
of a control system must reflect the fact thatehee resource constraints, and the benefits adfaermust be considered relative to their ci
As a result of the inherent limitations in a ceffective control system, misstatement due to eorofraud may occur and not be detec
Accordingly, our disclosure controls and procedumesdesigned to provide reasonable, not absasegeirance that the disclosure controls
procedures are met. Our management does not edaa¢ctur disclosure controls or our internal colstmill prevent all errors or fraud.

We have a risk of dependency upon the stability aedurity of our information technology systems.

Our business is highly dependent upon the sucdemsfuuninterrupted functioning of our computer alada processing systems. We rel
these systems to perform accounting, policy adinatien, actuarial and other modeling functionsessary for underwriting business, as"
as to process and make claims and other paymerdsietdin highly trained staff committed to the depenent and maintenance of th
systems. The failure of these systems could inp¢wur operations which could result in a mateaiderse effect on our business results.

In addition, a security breach of our computer esyst could damage our reputation or result in firdr@bility. We retain confidentii
information regarding our business dealings in @amputer systems. We may be required to spendfisigmi capital and other resource:
protect against security breaches or to alleviatdlpms caused by such breaches. It is criticdl tthese facilities and infrastructure ren
secure. Despite the implementation of security mmeess this infrastructure may be vulnerable to majsbreakins, computer viruse
programming errors, attacks by third parties orilsindisruptive problems. In addition, we could fagbject to liability if external parties we
able to penetrate our network security or othenmisgappropriate confidential information.
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We may experience issues with outsourcing relatioips which might impact our ability to conduct busgss in a prudent manner and cot
negatively impact our operations, results and fingal condition.

We outsource certain technology and business psdaestions to thirgparty providers and may do so increasingly in thtere. If we do nc
effectively develop, implement and monitor our autsing relationships, or if thirgarty providers do not perform as anticipated owé
experience technological or other problems witmditon, we may not realize productivity improverteror cost efficiencies and
experience operational difficulties, increased £@std a loss of business that may have an advies¢ @pon on our operations or finan
condition.

Our outsourcing of certain technology and busimessess functions to third parties may expose umnttanced risk related to data sect
which could result in adverse monetary, reputatiaral/or regulatory consequences, which in turnicdave an adverse effect on
operations or financial condition.

In addition, our ability to receive services frohirtl-party providers outside of the United States mightimpacted by cultural differen
political instability, unanticipated regulatory régements or policies inside or outside of the BdiStates. As a result, our ability to conduc
business might be adversely affected.

Market, Credit, Investment and Liquidity Ris

Market Risk is the risk of loss or adverse chamgthé financial position due to fluctuations in teeel and volatility of market prices of ass
liabilities and financial instruments. This risk ynee caused by fluctuations in interest rates,iforexchange rates or equity, property
securities values.

Credit Risk is the risk of loss or adverse changehie financial position due to fluctuations in tbeedit standing of issuers of securit
counterparties or any other debtors, including oloss arising from an insurer’s inability to tadt funds from debtors.

Investment Risk is the uncertainty associated wittking an investment that may not yield the exgbotturns or performance, including
risk that an investment will decline in value, riésu a loss or result in liability or other adversonsequences for the investor.

Liquidity Risk is the risk of loss or our inability realize investments and other assets in oderdet our financial obligations when they
due or the inability to meet such obligations ex@gpexcessive cost.

In an effort to meet business needs and mitigates riour investment guidelines provide restrictionsour portfolios composition, includir
limits on the type of issuer, sector limits, creglitality limits, portfolio duration, limits on th@mount of investments in approved countries
permissible security types. We may direct our itwesit managers to invest some of the investmerttgliorin currencies other than the LU
dollar based on the business we have written, sayran which our loss reserves are denominateeéguilatory requirements.

The performance of our investment portfolio is segbjto a variety of risks, including risks relatedgeneral economic conditions, ma
volatility, interest rate fluctuations, liquiditysk and credit and default risk. Investment guitelrestrictions have been established in an
to minimize the effect of these risks but may netags be effective due to factors beyond our cdntkosignificant change in interest ra
could result in losses, realized or unrealizedhavalue of our investment portfolio. Additionallyith respect to some of our investments
are subject to prepayment and possibly reinvestmskt Certain investments outside our highly rafigdd income portfolio, which includ
high yield fixed maturity securities, equities asttier alternative investments are subject to giris on sale, transfer and redemption, w
may limit our ability to withdraw funds or realizgins on such investments for some period of tiftex aur initial investment. The values
and returns on, such investments may also be nuiagile.

A prolonged recession or a period of significantrtooil in the U.S. and international financial markes, could adversely affect our busine
liquidity and financial condition and our share pce.

U.S. and international financial market disruptiengh as the ones experienced in the recent diiolaaicial crisis, along with the possibility
a prolonged recession, may potentially affect wagiaspects of our business, including the demananfd claims made under our products,
counterparty credit risk and the ability of our mmsers, counterparties and others to establishaimtain their relationships with us, our abi
to access and efficiently use internal and extecagital resources and our investment performaviokatility in the U.S. and other securit
markets may also adversely affect our share pbepending on future market conditions, we couldiingubstantial realized and unreali
losses in future periods, which may have an advierpact on our results of operations, financialditan, debt and financial strength ratir
insurance subsidiaries’ capital and ability to @sceapital markets.
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Our investment portfolio is subject to significambarket and credit risks which could result in an adrse impact on our financial position
results.

We hold a diversified portfolio of investments. Bbeinvestments are managed in accordance withnyastiment policy by professiol
investment management firms and internally, underdirection of our Investment Committee, Chief &xese Officer, Chief Financial Offic
and Chief Investment Officer. Although our investh@olicies stress diversification of risks, constion of principal and liquidity, o
investments are subject to general economic camditand market risks as well as risks inherentttiqular securities.

During an economic downturn, our investment poitfalould be subject to higher risk. The value of mvestment portfolio is subject to 1
risk that certain investments may default or becampaired due to deterioration in the financial dibion of one or more issuers of
securities held or due to deterioration in theritial condition of an insurer that guarantees andss payments of such investments. £
defaults and impairments could reduce our net imvest income and result in realized investmentdsss

Our investment portfolio is also subject to incezhsaluation uncertainties when investment mar&egsilliquid. The valuation of investme
is more subjective when markets are illiquid, thegrancreasing the risk that the portion of the stweent portfolio that is carried at fair value
reflected in our consolidated financial stateméntsot reflective of prices at which actual trar&ats would occur for certain investments.

Additionally, our portfolio of investments in fixemhaturity and shorterm securities may be adversely affected by chang@flation and/c
interest rates which, in turn, may adversely affgmrating results. The fair value and investmeobine of these assets fluctuate with ge:
economic and market conditions. Generally thealue of fixed maturity securities decreases asr@st rates increase. Some fixed mat
securities have call or prepayment options, whigbresent possible reinvestment risk in declining environments. Other fixed matu
securities such as mortgage-backed and asset-bsekedties carry prepayment risk.

During the recent global financial crisis, delinques and losses with respect to residential mgeidaans generally increased, particularl
the subprime sector. In addition, during recentyesidential property values in many states ltwalined or remained stable after exter
periods during which those values appreciated. icoed decline or an extended flattening in theslees may result in additional increase
delinquencies and losses on residential mortgagesloSuch developments could have a significanéradveffect on the prices of loans
securities, including those in our investment midf Conditions in the residential mortgage markentinue to have wide rangi
consequences, including the potential for downwanessure on economic growth, which could have eensdtand adverse impact on

results of operations, financial condition, busgasd operations.

We also invest in marketable equity securities.sEhgecurities are carried on our balance sheairatdlue and are subject to potential lo
and declines in market value. Our invested assstsirclude investments in limited partnershipsyately held securities and other alterna
investments. Such investments entail substansisri

Risks for all types of securities are managed thincapplication of the investment policy, which édishes investment parameters that incl
but are not limited to, maximum percentages of stweent in certain types of securities, minimum Iswa credit quality and optioadjuste:
duration guidelines. There is, however, no guaenfeolicy effectiveness.

There can be no assurance that our investmenttiMgisavill be achieved, and results may vary suliglly over time. In addition, although
seek to employ investment strategies that areoroélated with our insurance and reinsurance exgssilbsses in our investment portfolio
occur at the same time as underwriting lossesthrdefore, exacerbate such losses’ adverse effieas.o

We may be adversely affected by foreign currenefiiations.

Although our foreign subsidiariesfunctional currency is the U.S. Dollar, with theception of our Brazilian subsidiary whose functik
currency is the Brazilian Real and our Malta suidsidwhose functional currency is the Euro, cerfaiamium receivables and loss rese
include business denominated in currencies ottaer thS. Dollars. We are exposed to the possihilfitgignificant claims in currencies otl
than U.S. Dollars. We may, from time to time, expece losses in the form of increased claims costdevaluation of assets available
paying claims resulting from fluctuations in thesm-U.S. currencies, which could materially andeadely affect our operating results.

We may be adversely affected by changes in econamétpolitical conditions, including inflation andchanges in interest rates.

The effects of inflation could cause the cost @firok to rise in the future. Our reserve for lossed LAE includes assumptions about fu
payments for settlement of claims and claims hagdéixpenses, such as medical treatments andibtigedsts. To the extent inflation cau
these costs to increase above reserves establishédese claims, we will be required to increase lmss reserves with a correspont
reduction in our net income in the period in whilsh deficiency is identified. Furthermore, if weperience
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deflation or a lack of inflation going forward amderest rates remain very low or continue to dexlive could experience low portfolio rett
because we hold fixed income investments of faifgrt duration.

Additionally, our operating results are affected,part, by the performance of our investment péafoOur investment portfolio may
adversely affected by inflation or changes in iestrrates. Such adverse effects include the patdatirealized and unrealized losses in a ri
interest rate environment or the loss of incomeaurinenvironment of prolonged low interest rateschSaffects may be further impacted
decisions made regarding such things as portfaimoposition and duration given the prevailing mametironment. Interest rates are affe
by many factors, including the fiscal and monetanlicies of the U.S. and other major economiedaiitin, economic and political conditic
and other factors beyond our control. Although weerapt to take measures to manage the risks ofsiimge in changing interest ri
environments, we may not be able to mitigate isterate sensitivity effectively. Despite our mitiga efforts, which include duration targ
for asset portfolios, compliance monitoring of #éargets and means to reasonably and effectivatghmasset duration to the duration of
liabilities, fluctuation in interest rates couldvesa material adverse effect on our business,teesfibperations and/or financial condition.

We face a risk of non-availability/norcollectability of reinsurance, which could materigl and adversely affect our business, results
operations and/or financial condition.

As is common practice within the insurance industrg transfer a portion of the risks insured urmarpolicies to other companies through
purchase of reinsurance or other, similar risk gating hedging instruments. This reinsurance isntaaied to protect the insurance

reinsurance subsidiaries against the severityss¥ds on individual claims, unusually serious o@nwes in which a number of claims proc
an aggregate extraordinary loss and catastropleiotevAlthough reinsurance does not discharge wbsidiaries from their primary obligati
to pay for losses insured under the policies tlssye, reinsurance does make the assuming reirlg@bier to the insurance and reinsure
subsidiaries for the reinsured portion of the rislcredit exposure exists with respect to cededdsgo the extent that any reinsurer is unat
unwilling to meet the obligations assumed underréhiasurance contracts. The collectability of ranasice is subject to the solvency of
reinsurers, interpretation and application of cacittanguage and other factors. We are selectivegard to our reinsurers, placing reinsuri
with those reinsurers with strong financial stréngitings from A.M. Best, S&P or a combination #aft Despite strong ratings, the finan
condition of a reinsurer may change based on madeditions. In certain instances we also requé®ets in trust, letters of credit or ol
acceptable collateral to support balances dus. ribt always standard business practice to regeitarity for balances due; therefore, ce
balances are not collateralized. A reinswgénsolvency or inability to make payments under tirms of a reinsurance contract could he
material adverse effect on our business, resulbgpefations and/or financial condition.

Concentration Risk

Concentration Risk is the risk of exposure to lessssociated with inadequate diversification oftfpios of assets or obligatior
Concentration risk can arise in both the assetiabdity side of the balance sheet as well asfinb@alance sheet items and can originate fr
series of sources such as natural or maitle catastrophes or unprecedented economic eiraditggual risk exposure, or a combination of
exposures such as credit, investment, underwriimgliquidity.

We are an integrated financial services providésrofg a variety of products across different ofiersal segments and geographic regions
such, diversification is a key component to ouritess model. Risk diversification helps us managecapital allocation by limiting the impz
of any single event to our economic, financial aaglulatory condition. The degree to which the diferation effect can be realized depe
not only on the correlation between risks but @sdhe level of relative concentration of thos&sisBased on these assumptions, our goa
maintain an appropriately balanced risk profileawpiding any disproportionately large risks. At thego Group level, we identify, meast
manage and monitor paefined concentration risk scenarios across theaatipeal segments, including our own outward reiasue
placements. With respect to investments,dopm indicators such as strategic asset allocdticasholds are defined and closely monitore
ensure balanced investment portfolios. Dispropoéiely large risks that might accumulate and hheepbtential to produce substantial los
such as, major natural catastrophic or credit eyeme modeled, budgeted and monitored on a stzmelbbsis.

Despite the introduction of identification, modegjiand monitoring protocols and in light of the irdr@ limitations to the tools and applicati
used, it is possible that an unknown, undetectadhderestimated accumulation event could occuresudlt in a material financial loss.

For more details, see also above Insurance anddii@redit Risk sections.

Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk means the risk of our inability tgpiement appropriate business plans stnategies, make decisions, allocate resourceday
to changes in the business environment. StrateglciRcludes the risk of the current or prospectimpact on
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earnings or capital arising from adverse businesssibns, improper execution of decisions or laickesponsiveness to industry changes.

Deterioration of the macroeconomic environment ine U.S., Eurozone and worldwic

Economic imbalances and financial market turmoildaesult in a widening of credit spreads and tiithain share prices. Certain financ
and economic data may deteriorate. These circumssarould lead to a decline in asset value anchpallg reduce the demand for insura
due to limited economic growth prospects. The wtenmpact of such conditions on the insurancestigiin general, and on our operation
particular, cannot be fully or accurately quantfe this time.

Adverse developments in the broader economy caddte significant challenges to the insurance itrdu$f policy responses in Europe,
U.S. and internationally are not effective in métigg these conditions, the insurance sector cbeldadversely affected by the resul
financial and economic environment. The sovereight drisis in certain Eurozone countries could alegatively impact insurerdjalanci
sheets, resulting in associated solvency issuathdfuinsurance regulators worldwide have respdridghe sovereign credit risk, equity |
and current economic cycle by imposing or contetimanew or stricter regulatory measures and irsgdaolvency requirements, all of wt
could have an adverse effect on us.

The financial crisis has created substantial firgngerformance challenges associated with theopg®d low interest rate environment
response, we have adjusted the duration and cotigosf our asset portfolio. Should these challengantinue for an extended period of ti
the risk of achieving adequate returns will be greand could have an adverse effect on our busimesults of operations and competive
of our products in the market.

Our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries are sebj to riskbased capital and solvency requirements in theispective regulatol
domiciles.

A risk-based capital system is designed to measure whitthermount of available capital is adequate t@stphe inherent specific risks
each insurer. Risk-based regulatory capital isutated at least annually. Authorities use the haked capital formula to identify insura
companies that may be undercapitalized and thusrewayire further regulatory attention. The formuteisscribe a series of risk measuren
to determine a minimum capital amount for an insaeacompany, based on the profile of the individi@hpany. The ratio of a compasy’
actual policyholder surplus to its minimum capreduirements will determine whether any regulation is required based on the respe
local thresholds.

As a result of these and other requirements, we maqyire additional capital in the future that miglot be available to us on commerci
favorable terms. Our future capital requirementgetiel on many factors, including our ability to urvddgte new business, risk propensity
ability to establish premium rates and accuratetyrgserves at levels adequate to cover expectsddoTo the extent that the funds gene
by insurance premiums received and sale proceedsiremome from our investment portfolio are insuffitt to fund future operatil
requirements and cover incurred losses and lossnegg, we may need to raise additional funds tirdugncings or curtail our growth a
reduce in size. The prolonged effects of the fim@nmarket crisis have created uncertainty in theity and fixed maturity securities mark
and have affected our ability, and the ability tfeys within our industry, to raise additional ¢apin the public or private markets. Any fut
financing, if available at all, may be on termsttage not favorable to us and our shareholderthdrcase of equity financing, dilution to cur
shareholdings could result, and the securitiesidsnay have rights, preferences and privilegesatesenior or otherwise superior to thos
our common shares.

United States

Argo Group U.S. is subject to the risk-based capigatem outlined in the RisRased Capital for Insurers Model Act. This Act po®s fou
levels of regulatory activity if the riskased capital ratio yielded by the calculationsfakklow specified minimums. At each of four sucibesg
lower riskbased capital ratios specified by statute, broesfgrlatory remedies become available. The four$eare: (i) Company Action Lev
Event, (ii) Regulatory Action Level Event, (iii) Alworized Control Level Event and (iv) Mandatory @ohLevel Event. If we fall below tt
minimum acceptable risk-based capital level, weldidne subject to additional regulatory actions.

European Unior

S II the enhanced EU regulatory regime providing #oriskbased system for the supervision of European inseraand reinsuran
undertakings, was enacted in November 2009. @pbses new solvency and governance requiremerdssaall 27 European Union Mem
States to be implemented through the Europeandnsarand Occupational Pensions Agency (“EIOPANe application date of the S
regime is January 1, 2016. Due to ongoing devetapirand implementation efforts relating to S Ik #pecific future impact of S Il on ¢
business, results of operations or financial camalitannot be determined at this time.
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United Kingdom

ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200 is subject to the riskdzhcapital requirements administered by the PtiaddRegulation Authority (“PRA")anc
will be subject to S Il risk-based capital requisgtts when implemented as discussed above. Ldolyds introduced its own implementa
plan and requirements for S Il with which ArgoGlbBgndicate 1200 has to date complied and in theduwill be expected to comply. Due
ongoing development implementation efforts relatiogS I, the specific future impact of S Il badddyd’'s standards and requirements
ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200’s business, results @frafions or financial condition cannot be deterrdiatthis time.

The PRA allows firms to use S Il models under amagweed Individual Capital Adequacy Standards (“IQA&egime prior to ful
implementation of S Il. The PRA has encouragedetiity use of S Il work to meet existing ICAS reguirents, an approach known as IC,
and encourages the use of S Il models and baldresssto meet ICAS requirements as a stepping stomards full S 1l implementatio
Consequently, Lloyd requires the submission of an ultimate Solvenapit@l Requirement which continues to be used énddpital settin
process together with the S Il balance sheet agdldoconsiders this approach provides equivalent yudikcler protection to the mandat
ICAS regime.

Bermuda
Argo Group and Argo Re

As discussed in the summary of regulatory provisiabove relating to Argo Group and Argo Re in BatmjuArgo Re is subject to t
Bermuda Solvency Capital Requirement (“BSCR”), skiased capital system mandated by the Bermuda mser@Prudential Standar
(Class 4 and Class 3B Solvency Requirement) Ralesamended from time to time. Similarly, Argo Groigpsubject to the Insurar
(Prudential Standards) (Insurance Group SolvenayuRement) Rules 2011 as amended from time to tiiine. application and methods
calculating the BSCR required by the Bermuda Manefauthority (‘BMA”) are subject to change, and the ultimate impactuwnsolvenc
position from any future material changes cannaddtermined at this time.

Minimum Solvency Margin

Argo Re must ensure that the value of its genarsiness assets exceeds the amount of its geneiakbs liabilities by an amount greater 1
the prescribed minimum solvency margin (“MSMigrtaining to its general business. As a Classdrar, Argo Re is required, with respec
its general business, to maintain a minimum solyenargin equal to the greatest of (A) $100 milligR) 50% of net premiums written (be
gross premiums written less any premiums cededrigp Re, but Argo Re may not deduct more than 25%rads premiums when comput
net premiums written) and (C) 15% of net discourggdregate losses and loss expense provisionsthadinsurance reserves. Argo Grou
supervised by the BMA as an Insurance Group, anst ensure that the value of the Insurance Grougssta exceeds the Insurance Greup
liabilities by the aggregate MSM of each qualifyimgmber of the Insurance Group.

Enhanced Capital Requirement

Argo Group, as a BMA supervised Insurance Groud, Ao Re, as a Class 4 insurer, are required totaia available statutory capital ¢
surplus pertaining to its general business at @l legual to or in excess of its enhanced capitplirement (‘ECR”).The ECR is established
reference to either the BSCR model or an approvesirial capital model, but must be equal to or eddbe MSM for the insurer. The BSCF
a risk-based capital model which provides a metioodietermining an insures’capital requirements (statutory capital and sig)pby takin
into account the risk characteristics of differaspects of the insurerbusiness. The BMA may, subject to compliance \lith relevar
provisions of the Act, make such adjustments tansurers ECR and available statutory capital and surphguirements as it consid
appropriate.

Target Capital Level

Although not a metric specifically defined in thestirance Act, the BMA has the authority to estabdigarget capital level (“TCL"jor eacl
Class 4 insurer. The TCL is equal to 120% of amriess ECR. The purpose of the TCL is to serve as aly @arning tool for the BMA
Failure to maintain statutory capital at or abdwe TCL will likely result in increased regulatoryeysight.

Eligible Capital

Effective December 31, 2011, Argo Re is requiredlistlose the makeup of its capital in accordanith the recently introduced “Berec
capital system”Corresponding requirements did not exist for Argo@ for the fiscal year ended 2012, but becomecéffe on January
2013.

28




Under the respective systems applied to Argo Re es(insurer) and Argo Group as an Insurance Geugervised by the BMA, all capi
instruments at Argo Group and Argo Re will be dféesd as either basic or ancillary capital, whichturn will be classified into one of thi
tiers based on their “loss absorbencyiaracteristics. Highest quality capital will bexsdified Tier 1 Capital, lesser quality capitallviié
classified as either Tier 2 Capital or Tier 3 CabitUnder this regime, not less than 80% of Ti&apital and up to 20% of Tier 2 Capital r
be used to support the company’s minimum solvenaygim for the filing entityS general business. Thereafter, a minimum of 60%ief 1
Capital and a maximum of 15% of Tier 3 Capital nb@yused to satisfy the filing entisyfECR. Any combination of Tier 1, 2 or 3 Capitaly
be used to meet the TCL. As respect to Argo Grtwp/nsurance (Prudential Standards) (Insurancegigmlvency Requirement) Amendm
Rules 2012 provide for a phaseever a period of six years, starting at 50%haf amount determined and increasing in 10% incrésnévher
the BMA has previously approved the use of ceradtruments for capital purposes, the BMA/onsent must be obtained if such instrun
are to remain eligible for use in satisfying thenimum margin of solvency pertaining to the filingtiéy general business and it's ECR.

Minimum Liguidity Ratio

Argo Re is required to maintain a minimum liquidigtio for general business equal to the valugsafelevant assets at not less than 75% ¢
amount of its relevant liabilities. Relevant assetdude cash and time deposits, quoted investmantpuoted bonds and debentures, first
on real estate, investment income due and accraemhunts and premiums receivable and reinsurankeendes receivable. The relev
liabilities are total general business insurancemees and total other liabilities less deferremime tax and sundry liabilities (by interpretat
those not specifically defined).

Restrictions on Dividends and Distributions

Argo Re is prohibited from declaring or paying atiyidends during any financial year if it is in leh of its ECR, general business solv¢
margin or minimum liquidity ratio or if the decldian or payment of such dividends would cause sadireach. If it has failed to meet
minimum margin of solvency or minimum liquidity iaton the last day of any financial year, Argo Ri# e prohibited, without the approy
of the BMA, from declaring or paying any dividendigring the next financial year. In addition, Arge B prohibited from declaring or pay
in any financial year dividends of more than 25%itsftotal statutory capital and surplus (as shoarits previous financial yea’statutor
balance sheet) unless it files (at least 7 daysrbgfayment of such dividends) with the BMA andfiit stating that it will continue to meet
required margins.

Argo Group

As discussed in the regulatory section above, Agoup and its various subsidiaries are consideydzbtan affiliated group for purposes of
BMA’s Group Supervision regime. This Group Supervigiegime stipulates solvency margins, capital requiets and eligible capi
requirements at the consolidated Argo Group levat may affect the calculation of similar solveranyd capital requirements at the Argo Re I
The methodology for applying these solvency andtalagequirements, particularly in regard to thigiellity, and classification of certain capi
instruments within an affiliated group, is subjerbngoing refinement and interpretation by the BMAe applicable rules and regulations for
regime, and the manner in which they will be apmpte Argo Group, are subject to change, and ibispossible to predict the ultimate impac
future changes on Argo Group’s operations and @izducondition.

We may incur significant additional indebtedness.

We may seek to incur additional indebtedness ettireugh the issuance of public or private delthoough bank or other financing. The fu
raised by the incurrence of such additional indétéss may be used to repay existing indebtednedsiding amounts borrowed under
credit facility, outstanding subordinated debt #lodting rate loan stock or for our general corpenpurposes, including additions to work
capital, capital expenditures, investments in slibgies or acquisitions.

This additional indebtedness, particularly if need to repay existing indebtedness, could limitfowancial and operating flexibility, includil
as a result of the need to dedicate a greateropoati our cash flows from operations to interesd grincipal payments. It may also be r
difficult for us to obtain additional financing davorable terms, if at all, limiting our ability toapitalize on significant business opportun
and making us more vulnerable to economic downturns

Argo Group is a holding company and if its subsidies do not make dividend payments to Argo Groupg@ Group may not be able to p
dividends or other obligations.

Argo Group is a holding company with no significapterations or significant assets other than tlaeesbapital of its subsidiaries. Argo gr
relies primarily on cash dividends from its subaitis to pay operating expenses and obligatioris.dkpected that future distributions fr
these subsidiaries will be the principal sourcéuofls to meet financial obligations and pay shadgradividends. The payment of dividends
the insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries isddmiinder the laws and regulations of the respedirricile. These regulations stipulate
maximum amount of annual dividends or other digtidns available to
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shareholders without prior approval of the releveagulatory authorities. Thus, cash resources docat subsidiaries may not be rea
available to Argo Group in whole or in part to agkl its liquidity needs.

There can be no assurance that we and our subsigisuwill not experience a ratings downgrade, whiotay result in an adverse effect
our business, financial condition and operating nass.

Ratings with respect to claims paying ability anthfcial strength are important factors in esthintig the competitive position of insural
companies and will also impact the cost and aviditiatof capital to an insurance company. Ratings AAM. Best and S&P represent
important consideration in maintaining customerfisnce in us and in our ability to market insurpcoducts. Rating organizations regul
analyze the financial performance and conditiomsfirers.

All of our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaresept for our two unrated companies, have a FinbhStrength Rating of “A” Excellent
(3rd highest rating out of 16 rating classificaipiwith a stable outlook from A.M Best. In 2014, B&as affirmed our Financial Stren
Rating of “A-" (Strong) of our U.S. insurance subsidiaries (othantARIS Title Insurance Corporation) and revisad autlook to stable fro
negative. Argo Group US, Inc. has an Issuer Ciedting of “BBB-" (Good) with a stable outlook from S&P. ArgoGlobalnBicate 1200, ol
Lloyd’'s syndicate, receives the Lloyd’s market F&ng of “A” (Excellent) with a positive outlookybA.M. Best and “A+” Strong) with i
stable outlook by S&P.

Our ratings are subject to periodic review by th@gencies and the maintenance of those ratingstaenassured. A significant downgrad
these ratings could adversely affect our competigigsition in the insurance industry, make it ndiffcult for us to market our products, res
in a material loss of business as policyholdersertovother companies with higher claipesying and financial strength ratings and may ne
us to raise additional capital.

Our merger and acquisition strategy may not succeed

Our strategy for growth may include mergers anduaiiipns. This strategy presents risks that cchdsle a material adverse effect on
business and financial performance, includingth@ diversion of managemestattention, (ii) our ability to execute a trangacteffectively
including the integration of operations and theméibn of employees and (iii) the contingent artdrairisks associated with the past opera
of and other unanticipated problems arising frotnaasaction partner. We cannot predict whether ebe able to identify and complete
future transaction on terms favorable to us. Wenoaknow if we will realize the anticipated benefiif a completed transaction or if there
be substantial unanticipated costs associatedsuith a transaction.

A future merger or acquisition may result in taxseguences at either or both the shareholder agm Group level, potentially dilutive issuance
our equity securities, the incurrence of additiatelt and the recognition of potential impairmdrgandwill and other intangible assets. Each ofd
factors could adversely affect our financial positi

Argo Re's inability to provide the necessary collateralud affect Argo Re’s ability to offer reinsurancenicertain markets.

Argo Re, the Bermuda Class 4 risk bearing entityat licensed or admitted as an insurer in arigdigtion other than Bermuda. Because n
jurisdictions do not permit insurance companiesale credit for reinsurance obtained from unlicense nor-admitted insurers in statutc
financial statements unless appropriate security jdace, Argo Re anticipates that its reinsuraci@nts will typically require it to post a let
of credit or other collateral for incurred lossésArgo Re is unable to arrange for security on coencially reasonable terms, Argo Re couli
limited in its ability to underwrite business fagrtain of its clients.

Reputational Risk

Reputational Risk is the risk of potential lossotigh a deterioration of our reputation or standing to a negative perception of our im
among customers, counterparties, shareholderspendsory authorities, and includes risk of advgrsblicity regarding our business pract
and associations.

We may be adversely affected by misconduct of oarspnnel or failure to identify transactions thatra in violation of local ant
international trade sanctions.

We have updated and strengthened our internal Gridg Corporate Governance Guidelines and Code ofiGat and Business Ethics, i
we maintain a continuous education and trainingyim and monitor compliance on an ongoing basisvéyer, there can be no ultim
assurance that these measures will be sufficieall instances to prevent an undetected violatioimternal or external rules of conduct, wt
might lead to a financial loss and/or reputaticeahage.
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Legal, Regulatory and Litigation Risk
Legal and Regulatory Risk means the risk arisimgnfiour (a) failure to comply with statutory or régfory obligations; (b) failure to comg
with our bye-laws; or (c) failure to comply withyanontractual agreement.

Litigation Risk means the risk that acts or omigsi@r other business activity of Argo Group and loey functionaries and employees c¢
result in legal proceedings to which we are a pdhty uncertainty surrounding the outcome of sedall proceedings and the risk of an ad\
impact on us resulting from such legal proceedings.

Litigation and legal proceedings against us couldve an adverse effect on our financial conditic

Our subsidiaries are parties to legal actions mddl to their business. Adverse outcomes coulderadly affect our financial condition
results of operations.

Regulatory constraints may restrict our ability tiperate our busines:
General Regulatory Constraints
Restrictions on Ownership

Argo Groups ownership of U.S. subsidiaries can, under apgkcstate insurance company laws and regulatiadaydr impede a change
control of Argo Group. Under applicable insuranegulations, any proposed purchase of 10% or mofegd Groups voting securities wou
require the prior approval of the relevant insuearegulatory authorities.

Except as provided below, shareholders have one fateach common share held by them and are ezhtith vote at all meetings
shareholders. However, for so long as the shares sifareholder are treated as “controlled shaes'détermined under section 958 of
Internal Revenue Code) of any U.S. Person (thatsosirares directly or indirectly through nonS. entities) and such controlled sh.
constitute 9.5% or more of the votes conferred byissued shares, the voting rights with respet¢héocontrolled shares of such U.S. Pel
which we refer to as a 9.5% U.S. Shareholder, vgllimited, in the aggregate, to a voting poweless than 9.5% under a formula specifie
our byefaws. The formula is applied repeatedly until theging power of all 9.5% U.S. Shareholders has beenced to less than 9.5%.
addition, our Board may limit a shareholdevoting rights where it deems it appropriate tosdato (i) avoid the existence of any 9.5% |
Shareholder and (ii) avoid certain material advéase legal or regulatory consequences to Argo @ramy of its subsidiaries or any direc
indirect shareholder or its affiliates. “Controllsedares’include, among other things, all shares of Argouprthat such U.S. Person is dee
to own directly, indirectly or constructively (withthe meaning of section 958 of the Internal RexeGode).

Under these provisions, certain shareholders mag tfeeir voting rights limited, while other sharéders may have voting rights in exces
one vote per share. Moreover, these provisionsgdcbale the effect of reducing the votes of certdiareholders who would not otherwise
subject to the 9.5% limitation by virtue of theiratt share ownership.

Regulation of Subsidiarie
General

Our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries andanserelated services subsidiaries may not be able taimlor maintain necessary licen:
permits or authorizations, or may be able to dordy at significant cost. In addition, we may netdble to comply with, or obtain appropr
exemptions from the wide variety of laws and retiofes applicable to insurance or reinsurance comegaar insuranceelated service
companies or holding companies. Failure to comgiy wr to obtain appropriate authorizations angfeemptions under any applicable [i
could result in restrictions on our ability to dasiness or certain activities that are regulatedria or more of the jurisdictions and cc
subject us to fines and other sanctions, whichcchalve a material adverse effect on our business.

Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd

Argo Group is supervised by the BMA as an InsuraBoaup, and as such, is subject to specific laulesrand regulations promulgated by
Bermudian authorities according to the Insurance 8banges in Bermuda'statutes, regulations and policies could resulestrictions on ol
ability to pursue our business plans, strategieaibjes, execute our investment strategy and folfiler shareholders’ obligations.
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Argo Groups U.S. Subsidiaries

Our U.S. insurance subsidiaries are subject taneite regulation, which may reduce our profitapibr inhibit our growth. If we fail to comp
with these regulations, we may be subject to pEsalincluding fines and suspensions, which mayeembly affect our financial condition
results of operations. Finally, changes in the ll@feregulation of the insurance industry or change laws or regulations themselves
interpretations by regulatory authorities could exdely affect our ability to pursue our businesanpblnd operate our U.S. insura
subsidiaries.

Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to the gigi@n and regulation of each of the states in Whkey are domiciled and do business.
supervision and regulation is designed to protectpolicyholders rather than our shareholders. &lmegulations are generally administere
a department of insurance in each state and rédatearious aspects of our business. State insurdepartments also conduct peric
examinations of the affairs of insurance and reimsce companies and require the filing of annua ather reports relating to financ
condition, holding company issues and other matftese regulatory requirements may adversely taffemhibit our ability to achieve sor
or all of our business objectives.

In addition, regulatory authorities have relativbhpad discretion to deny, suspend or revoke ligeffigr various reasons, including the viola
of regulations. If we do not have the requisiteettises and approvals or do not comply with appleabgulatory requirements, insura
regulatory authorities could preclude or tempoyasilspend us from carrying on some or all of odiviies or otherwise penalize us. T
could adversely affect our ability to operate ousibess.

From time to time, various laws and regulations @um@posed for application to the U.S. insuranceugtiy, some of which could advers
affect the results of reinsurers and insurers. Agnibre proposals that have been considered are thasevould establish a federal syster
regulation in addition to or in lieu of a state-bdsystem of regulation and repeal the McCarragtsam Act and/or measures under the Dod
Frank Act that have established the Federal Insgr&ffice. Additionally, the National Associatiofilasurance Commissioners (“NAICHas
undertaken the Solvency Modernization Initiativ8Nt”), the primary focus of which is the review of insusatvency regulations throught
the U.S. and the development of long-term solvenogernization objectives. Included within NAKCScope of review for SMI purposes, is
U.S. insurer solvency framework, group solvencyéss capital requirements, international accoundéind regulatory standards, reinsure
and corporate governance. We are unable to prddicpotential effect, if any, such legislative egulatory developments may have on
future operations or financial condition.

Argo Groups Bermuda Subsidiary

Argo Re is registered as a Class 4 Bermuda insarammpany and is subject to regulation and sugervia Bermuda by the BMA. Changes
Bermuda insurance statutes, regulations and pslicauld result in restrictions on Argo Reability to pursue its business plans, i
reinsurance policies, distribute funds and exeitst@vestment strategy.

U.K. Financial Services Authority, Prudential Reafidn Authority and Financial Conduct Authority Reégtions

During 2014 regulatory supervision over ArgoGloBaindicate 1200 was conducted by the PRA and FQ#e dperations of ArgoGlok
Syndicate 1200 continued to be supervised by Llmyd’he PRA, FCA and Lloyd’'s have common objectiiregnsuring that the Lloyd’
market is appropriately regulated. To minimize lchgion, there are arrangements with Lloyd’s far-aperation on supervision &
enforcement. Both the PRA and FCA have substaptialers of intervention in relation to the LlogdManaging Agents (such as A
Managing Agency Limited) that they regulate, inéhgdthe power to remove their authorization to nignaloyd’s Syndicates. In additic
each year the PRA requires Lloyd’s to satisfy anuah solvency test that measures whether Lioydis sufficient assets in the aggrega
meet all outstanding liabilities of its membersthbourrent and run-off. If Lloyd’s fails this teghe PRA may require Lloyd’'to cease tradil
and/or its members to cease or reduce underwrifingure regulatory changes or rulings by the PR&/@ FCA could interfere with tl
business strategy or financial assumptions of Asffitbal Syndicate 1200, possibly resulting in aneade effect on the financial condition
operating results of Argo Global Syndicate 1200.

Lloyd’'s Requlations and Requirements

The operations of Argo Global Syndicate 1200 amestised by Lloyd’s. The Lloyd’ Franchise Board requires annual approval of tigs
Global Syndicate 1200 business plan, including maxn underwriting capacity, and may require chargesy business plan presented to
additional capital to be provided to support undémg. Lloyd’s also imposes various charges and assessmerttsmamber companies.
Lloyd's were to require material changes in the Argo @ldbyndicate 1200 business plans, or if charges assgssments payable
ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200 to Lloyslwere to increase significantly, these eventscchalve an adverse effect on the operations anddial
results of ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200. In additiom, assurances can be given as to how much budihegs$'s will permit Argo Globe
Syndicate 1200 to underwrite in 2016 and subseqyeans nor the viability and cost of the capitalisture we may use as a substitute fo
external capital and reinsurance used by Argo Gl8gadicate 1200 in 2015 and prior underwritingrgea
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The financial security of the Lloyd’market is regularly assessed by three indepemdéng agencies (A.M. Best, S&P and Fitch Ratings
satisfactory credit rating issued by an accreditgthg agency is necessary for LlogdSyndicates to be able to trade in certain clasf
business or certain jurisdictions at current levélsgo Global Syndicate 1200 would be adversefeaéd if Lloyd's current ratings we
downgraded.

Other Applicable Laws

Lloyd’'s worldwide insurance and reinsurance busineashies to various regulations, laws, treaties ath@oapplicable policies of the EU,
well as each nation, state and locality in whicbgerates. Material changes in governmental reopgings and laws could have an adverse ¢
on Lloyd's and its member companies, including A@jobal Syndicate 1200.

Malta Financial Services Authority MMESA")

ArgoGlobal SE is authorized by the MFSA to carrytbe business of insurance under the Business@eaji.(403). In addition, ArgoGlobal
is subject to regulation by the EU and its branffic® in Switzerland is subject to regulation byetBwiss Financial Market Supervis
Authority FINMA. Changes in the applicable lawsgulations and supplementing rules could intenféte ArgoGlobal SES business strate
or financial assumptions, possibly resulting ineaiverse effect on ArgoGlobal SE’s financial comgitand operating results.

Brazil's Superintend ncia de Sequros Privados, Superintendence of Brimatirance,"SUSEP)

Argo Seguros is authorized by SUSEP to carry orinless of insurance under the applicable laws, rates resolutions. Brazd' insuranc
regulatory regime contains provisions which restifie amount of reinsurance a domestic insurer ptage with reinsurers outside of Br:
and places limits on the amount of reinsurance rttet be placed with affiliates. Such restrictionsigtrain the size and category of risks
Argo Seguros can entertain and require that Arggues be capitalized at a level that is comparbtibégher than in other jurisdictions
which Argo Group has subsidiaries. Failure to mantge impact of such restrictions within its busmelan, as well as changes in
applicable laws, rules and supplementing resolsticould result in restrictions on Argo Segurodigity to pursue its mandate.

Argo Re Ltd. Is registered by the SUSEP as an dedhieinsurer under the applicable laws and reiguiatof Brazil and is authorized to ce
on such business through its representative offitgp Re Escritério de Representacdo no Brasil Lidhanges in the applicable laws
regulations could result in restrictions on ArgotBgursue its business strategy as an admitteduesr in Brazil.

Dubai Financial Services Authority[DFSA")

Argo Re (DIFC) Ltd. is licensed to operate as arthatized Firm (Category 4) to carry on financiahsees in the area ofifisuranc
management” and “insurance intermediatio@lianges in the applicable laws and regulationsdcoegult in restrictions on Argo Re (DIF
Ltd.’s ability to pursue its business strategy.

Special Selected Risk Factors

An impairment in the carrying value of goodwill andhtangible assets could negatively impact our colidated results of operations al
shareholder’ equity.

Goodwill and intangible assets are originally releat at fair value. Goodwill is not amortized witlertain intangible assets are amortized
their estimated useful lives or have indefinitefuskves. Goodwill and intangible assets are rexgd for impairment at least annually or ir
frequently if indicators are present. Managemeangvaluating the recoverability of such assetsesabn estimates and assumptions relat
margin, growth rates, discount rates and other.dgtare are inherent uncertainties related to tlies®rs and managemesiudgment i
applying these factors. Goodwill and intangibleeassmpairment charges can result from declinesp@rating results, divestitures or susta
market capitalization declines and other factargpdirment charges could materially affect our firiahresults in the period in which they
recognized. As of December 31, 2014, goodwill antdrigible assets represented approximately 14.08haktholderséquity. We continue
monitor relevant internal and external factors #mglr potential impact on the fair value of our egfng segments, and if required, we
update our impairment analysis.
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Some aspects of our corporate structure and appleainsurance regulations may discourage or impeithe sale of the Company, tenc
offers or other mechanisms of control.

Restrictions in Byd.aws on Stock Transfers

Our bye-laws generally permit transfers of our camrshares unless the Board determines a transferesalt in a norde minimus adver:
tax, legal or regulatory consequence to us, amyuofsubsidiaries or any direct or indirect shardbolbf Argo Group or its affiliates. We nr
refuse to register on our share transfer recondg,ti@nsfer that does not comply with these sheamsfer restrictions. A transferee will

permitted to promptly dispose of any of our shan@shased that violate the restrictions and akddransfer of which registration is refused.

Restrictions on Voting Rights

In the event that we become aware of a U.S. Pdthahowns our shares directly or indirectly thrbuwpnU.S. entities) owning more than
permitted 9.5% level of voting power of our outstiny shares after a transfer of shares has beéstermyl, our bydaws provide that, subje
to certain exceptions and waiver procedures, thimgaights with respect to our shares owned by sungh shareholder will be limited to
permitted level of voting power, subject only t@ tlurther limitation that no other shareholder edied any such voting rights may exceec
permitted level of voting power as a result of slictitation.

We also have the authority under our liges to request information from any shareholder tfte purpose of determining whethe

shareholder’s voting rights are to be reallocateden the bydaws. If a shareholder fails to respond to sucbcuest for information or subrr
incomplete or inaccurate information in responssuich a request, we may, in our sole discretiomiehte such shareholder’s voting rights.

Election of Board of Directors

Our byefaws provide for a classified board of directorbeTdirectors of the class elected at each annurgkmeeting hold office for a te

of three years, with the term of each class exgiahsuccessive annual general meetings of shaleisolUnder our bye-laws, the vote of two
thirds of the outstanding shares entitled to vote approval of a majority of the Board are requit@é@mend byéaws regarding appointme
and removal of directors, indemnification of dilst and officers, directors’ interests and proceddior amending bye-laws.

Insurance laws and other applicable regulationarobng change of control

Because a person who acquires control of Argo Greayld thereby acquire indirect control of the sgmecentage of the stock in its insure
company subsidiaries, change of control provisionthe laws and other rules applicable to our iasue subsidiaries in various jurisdicti
would apply to such a transaction. Such changeoaotfral provisions generally apply to transactionsoiving the acquisition of direct
indirect control over 10% or more of our outstamdamares. No assurance can be given that an dpplicgyulatory body would approve of i
future change of control. These changes of coptr@lisions may discourage potential acquisitionppsals and may delay, deter or preve
change of control of Argo Group, including trangacs that some or all of our shareholders mighsater to be desirable.

Restrictions on ThirdParty Takeovers

The provisions described above may have the effieataking it more difficult or discouraging unsoted takeover bids from third parties.
the extent that these effects occur, shareholdarisl e deprived of opportunities to realize talegwemiums for their shares and the mz
price of their shares could be depressed. In anfdithese provisions could also result in the etienent of incumbent management and B
members.

We are a Bermuda company and it may be difficult fmu to enforce judgments against us and/or ouretitors and executive officers.

We are organized under the laws of Bermuda anddueaittred in Bermuda. The Companies Act 1981 ofrideia, and its subsequ
amendments, which applies to us, differs in centadtterial respects from laws generally applicabl®&/1S. corporations and their shareholc
These differences include the manner in which tiirscmust disclose transactions in which they havénterest, rights of shareholders to b
class action and derivative lawsuits, our righetder into business transactions with shareholdéi®ut prior approval from shareholde
committee organization and scope of indemnificatigailable to directors and officers.
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In addition, certain of our directors and officeeside outside the U.S. As such, it may be diffi¢af investors to effect service of proc
within the U.S. on our directors and officers wieside outside the U.S. or to enforce against wsipdirectors and officers judgments of L
courts predicated upon civil liability provisionstbe U.S. federal securities laws.

We have been advised that there is doubt as tdwhet

« a holder of our common shares would be able toreefan the courts of Bermuda, judgments of U.Siurtsoagainst persons w
reside in Bermuda based upon the civil liabilitpysions of the U.S. federal securities la

» a holder of our common shares would be able toreefan the courts of Bermuda, judgments of U.Suirtobased upon the ci
liability provisions of the U.S. federal securiti@svs; anc

« aholder of our common shares would be able tatamoriginal action in the Bermuda courts to ecddiabilities against us or ¢
directors or officers, as well as our independegbantants, who reside outside the U.S. basedysopein U.S. federal securit
laws.

Further, we have been advised that there is ntythe@ffect between the U.S. and Bermuda providarghe enforcement of judgments of L
courts, and there are grounds upon which Bermudésmay not enforce judgments of U.S. courts. Beegudgments of U.S. courts are
automatically enforceable in Bermuda, it may bédlift for our shareholders to recover against asdal on such judgments.

Tax Risks Associated with Argo Group
U.S. Tax Risks

Argo Group and Argo Grou’s non-U.S. subsidiaries may be subject to U.S. tax, whighy have a material adverse effect on our finar
condition and operating results.

Argo Group and Argo Group’s ndd:S. subsidiaries have operated and intend to moetio operate in a manner that should not cagse tt
be treated as engaged in a trade or business ib.Bie(and, in the case of those fdrs. companies qualifying for treaty protection,a
manner that should not cause any of such b@h-subsidiaries to be doing business throughriaaqu@ent establishment in the U.S.) and, 1
we believe that we and our n@hS. subsidiaries should not be subject to U.Seri@dncome taxes or branch profits tax (other thihholding
taxes on certain U.S. source investment incomeeanide taxes on insurance or reinsurance premidtosyever, because there is uncerte
as to the activities that constitute being engagea trade or business within the U.S., and as hiatwonstitutes a permanent establish
under the applicable tax treaties, there can beaggsurances that the United States Internal Rev&aueice (“IRS”) will not content
successfully that one or more of the rdrs. subsidiaries is engaged in a trade or busir@ssarrying on business through a perme
establishment, in the U.S.

The reinsurance agreements between us and our Wifisidiaries may be subject to obvaracterization or other adjustment for U.S. fedd
income tax purposes, which may have a material adeeeffect on our financial condition and operatingsults.

Under Section 845 of the Internal Revenue Code|RIS$may allocate income, deductions, assets,wesgecredits and any other items rel,
to a reinsurance agreement among certain relatiépéo the reinsurance agreementcharacterize such items or make any other adjug
in order to reflect the proper source, charactesroount of the items for each party. No regulatibage been issued under Section 845 c
Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the applicattbisuch provisions is uncertain and we cannotiptedhat impact, if any, such provisic
may have on us and our subsidiaries.

Changes in U.S. federal income tax law could beroetctive and may subject us or our ndu-S. subsidiaries to U.S. federal income taxati

Legislation has been introduced in the U.S. Corggattempting to eliminate certain perceived taxaatizges of companies (including insurz
companies) that have legal domiciles outside tHe But have certain U.S. affiliates. There areentty pending legislative proposals tha
enacted, could have a material adverse effect aor wsir shareholders. For example, legislation been introduced in Congress to limit
deductibility of reinsurance premiums paid by UcBmpanies to foreign affiliates that, if enacteduld adversely impact our results. |
possible that broader-based or new legislativegsals could emerge in the future that could havadverse effect on us or our shareholders.

The tax laws and interpretations thereof are stiltgechange, possibly on a retroactive basis. Véaat able to predict if, when or in what fc
such changes will be provided and whether suchamaie will be applied on a retroactive basis.
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Bermuda Tax Risk
Argo Group and Argo Grou’s Bermuda subsidiaries may become subject to Bedantaxes after 2035.

Bermuda currently imposes no income tax on corpmrat In addition, we have obtained an assurarme the Bermuda Minister of Finan
under The Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection 1866 of Bermuda, that if any legislation is enadte@ermuda that would impose

computed on profits or income, or computed on aapital asset, gain or appreciation or any tax ertature of estate duty or inheritance
then the imposition of any such tax will not be ligable to us or our Bermuda subsidiaries, untiréfa3l, 2035. During 2011, legislation \
passed to extend the period of the assurance medtiabove from 2016 to March 31, 2035. We filed #ord received, an extension of
assurance in January of 2012.

U.K. Tax Risks
Our non-U.K. companies may be subject to U.K. tax.

We intend to operate in such a manner so that oboar companies other than those companies incatgpa in the United Kingdom should
resident in the U.K. for tax purposes or have anagrent establishment in the U.K. Accordingly, weexot that none of our companies o
than Argo Global Syndicate 1200 should be sub¢i.K. taxation. However, since applicable law aadulations do not conclusively def
the activities that constitute conducting busingsshe U.K. through a permanent establishment, Whi€. Inland Revenue might conte
successfully that one or more of our other comgaisieonducting business in the U.K. through a peent establishment in the U.K.

Any arrangements between U.kesident entities of Argo Group and other membérargo Group are subject to the U.K. transfer prg
regime. Consequently, if any agreement betweerka tgsident entity of Argo Group and any other AGmup entity (whether that entity
resident in or outside the U.K.) is found not todrearms length terms and as a result a U.K. tax advarisageing obtained, an adjustm
will be required to compute U.K. taxable profitsibsuch an agreement were on asniéngth terms. Any transfer pricing adjustmentid
adversely impact the tax charge incurred by thevesit U.K. resident entities of Argo Group.

Irish Tax Risks
Dividends paid by our U.S. subsidiaries to Argolaad may not be eligible for benefits under the L-Ireland income tax treaty.

Under U.S. federal income tax law, dividends pajcabJ.S. corporation to a ndui-S. shareholder are generally subject to a 30%helting
tax, unless reduced by treaty. The income taxytieetween the Republic of Ireland and the UniteteSt (“the Irish Treaty")educes the rate
withholding tax on certain dividends to 5%. Were IRS to contend successfully that Argo Financialdihgs, Ltd (“Argo Ireland”)is no
eligible for benefits under the Irish Treaty, aryidiends paid by Argo Group’'U.S. subsidiaries to Argo Ireland would be subjeche 309
withholding tax. Such a result could have a matedaerse effect on our financial condition andragieg results.

Tax Risks Associated with Our Shareholders

If you are a U.S. no-corporate shareholder, dividends you receive from will not be eligible for reduced rates of tax up@nactment ¢
certain legislative proposals.

Legislation has been introduced in the U.S. Corgyteat would, if enacted, deny the applicabilityrefluced rates to dividends paid by
corporation organized under the laws of a foreiguntry that does not have a comprehensive incomsystem, such as Bermuda. Theret
depending on whether, when and in what form thigslative proposal is enacted, we cannot assuretlyatuany dividends paid by us in
future would qualify for reduced rates of tax.

If we are classified as a passive foreign investieompany “PFIC”), your taxes would increase.

In order to avoid significant potential adverse Uesleral income tax consequences for any U.Sopesho owns our common shares, we t
not constitute a PFIC in any year in which such.p&son is a shareholder. Those consequencesioclide increasing the tax liability of 1
investor, accelerating the imposition of the taxi aausing a loss of the basis step-up on the dwfathe investor. In general, a n@hS
corporation is a passive foreign investment comgany taxable year if 75% or more of its incomagtitutes passive income or 50% or n
of its assets produce passive income. Passive maanerally includes interest, dividends and otheestment income. However, pas:
income does not include income derived in the actionduct of an insurance business by a companyigh@edominantly engaged in
insurance business. This exception is intendedsore that income derived by a bona fide insuraooepany is not treated as passive inc
except to the extent such income is attributablintncial reserves in excess of the reasonabldsekthe insurance business. We believe
we should not be, and currently do not expect tobe, a PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purpokesiever, we cannot assure you tha
will not be deemed a PFIC by the IRS. There areectly no regulations regarding the applicationtted PFIC provisions to an insura
company. New
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regulations or pronouncements interpreting or fylarg these rules may be forthcoming. We cannotlisptevhat impact, if any, such guidai
would have on persons subject to U.S. federal irctar that directly or indirectly own our shares.

If you acquire 10% or more of our shares and we one or more of our nond.S. subsidiaries is classified as a controlled dam
corporation (“CFC”) your taxes could increase.

Each U.S. person who, directly, indirectly or thghuattribution rules, owns 10% or more of our comnsbares should consider the pos:
application of the controlled foreign corporatiares.

Each U.S. 10% shareholder of a controlled foreigmparation on the last day of the controlled fore@@rporations taxable year generally m
include in its gross income for U.S. federal incoiae purposes its pro-rata share of the contrdideeign corporatiors subpart F income, ev
if the subpart F income has not been distributedydneral, a nob).S. insurance company is treated as a controllezlgn corporation only
such U.S. 10% shareholders collectively own moan tB5% of the total combined voting power or tet@ue of the compang’ capital stoc
for an uninterrupted period of 30 days or moremyany year. We believe that, because of the patied dispersion of share ownership an
holders and because of the restrictions in ourlawes- on transfer, issuance or repurchase of oumtmmshares, shareholders will not
subject to treatment as U.S. 10% shareholderscohaolled foreign corporation. In addition, becausder our by¢aws no single shareholc
is permitted to exercise 9.5% or more of the totahbined voting power, unless such provision isvediby the unanimous consent of
Board, we believe that our shareholders shouldrotiewed as U.S. 10% shareholders of a contrédliezign corporation for purposes of
controlled foreign corporation rules. Notwithstamglithe above, it is possible that the CFC ruleddcba construed by the IRS in the future
amended, in such a way as to apply to our sharetsld

We cannot assure you that we or our hb8- subsidiaries will not be classified as CFCe bélieve that because of the anticipated dispa
of our common share ownership, provisions in ogianizational documents that limit voting power artlder factors, no United States pel
who (i) owns our shares directly or indirectly thgh one or more nob-S. entities and (ii) has not received a waivenfrour Board ¢
provisions in our organizational documents thaitlvoting power, should be treated as owning (diygéndirectly through nornd.S. entities ¢
constructively) 10% or more of the total voting pavef all classes of the shares of Argo Group grafrour non-U.S. subsidiaries.

Due to the attribution provisions of the Intern@v@nue Code regarding determination of benefisialarship, there is a risk that the IRS ct
assert that Argo Group or one or more of our bo8: subsidiaries are CFCs and that U.S. holdemipthares who own 10% or more of
value of our shares should be treated as owning @0%ore of the total voting power of Argo Groupdéor our nonb.S. subsidiarie
notwithstanding the reduction of voting power dissed above.

If one or more of our noi-U.S. subsidiaries is determined to have relatedspe insurance income (“RPII"),you may be subject to U.
taxation on your pro rata share of such income.

If the RPII of any of our non-U.S. insurance sulzsiés were to equal or exceed 20% of such compagngss insurance income in any tax
year and direct or indirect insureds (and persetaead to such insureds) own, directly or indinetiirough entities, 20% or more of our vot
power or value, then a U.S. person who owns ouresh@irectly or indirectly through ndd:S. entities) on the last day of the taxable
would be required to include in its income for Uf8deral income tax purposes such person’s pro giadése of such nobkS. insuranc
subsidiarys RPII for the entire taxable year, determinedfasuch RPII were distributed proportionately onty W.S. persons at that d
regardless of whether such income is distributedddition, any RPII that is includible in the imge of a U.S. taxexempt organization may
treated as unrelated business taxable income. Mbert of RPII earned by the n@hsS. insurance subsidiaries (generally, premiumratate
investment income from the direct or indirect irmwe or reinsurance of any direct or indirect lh@der of common shares or any pel
related to such holder) will depend on a numbefaofors, including the identity of persons direatllyindirectly insured or reinsured by
non-U.S. insurance subsidiaries. We believe thagtioss RPII of each ndd:S. insurance subsidiary did not in prior year@pération and
not expected in the foreseeable future to equalkoeed 20% of such subsidiasygross insurance income. Additionally, we do ngteet th
direct or indirect insureds of our n@hS. insurance subsidiaries (and persons relateddio insureds) to directly or indirectly own 20%awore
of either the voting power or value of our shais.assurance can be given that this will be the tegause some of the factors that detel
the existence or extent of RPIl may be beyond owmitedge and/or control.

The RPII rules provide that if a U.S. person digsosf shares in a ndd:S. insurance corporation in which U.S. persona @&% or more ¢
the shares (even if the amount of RPII is less &@# of the corporatios’gross insurance income and the ownership ohases by direct «
indirect insureds and related persons is less ttm@ai20% threshold), any gain from the dispositialh generally be treated as ordinary incc
to the extent of the U.S. person’s share of thepaations undistributed earnings and profits that were amdated during the period that
U.S. person owned the shares (whether or not sarctings and profits are attributable to RPII). didition, such U.S. person will be require:
comply with certain reporting requirements, regesdl of the amount of shares owned by the U.S. pefl$ese RPII rules should not appl
dispositions of our shares because we will notelues be directly
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engaged in the insurance business. The RPIl pomashowever, have never been interpreted by thesor the U.S. Treasury Departmer
final regulations, and regulations interpreting BRell provisions of the Internal Revenue Code eaidly in proposed form. It is not cert
whether these regulations will be adopted in thedposed form or what changes or clarificationshhigtimately be made thereto or whe!
any such changes, as well as any interpretati@pplication of RPII by the IRS, the courts or othise, might have retroactive effect. The |
Treasury Department has authority to impose, anathgr things, additional reporting requirementshwiéspect to RPII. Accordingly, t
meaning of the RPII provisions and applicationhafse provisions to us and our non-U.S. subsidiaresincertain.

U.S. tax-exempt organizations that own our shareaymecognize unrelated business taxable income.

A U.S. taxexempt organization may recognize unrelated busit@sable income if a portion of our insurance imeois allocated to tl
organization. In general, insurance income willdecated to a U.S. tax-exempt organization if &itive are a CFC and the taxemp
shareholder is a 10% U.S. Shareholder or therd?i$ &d certain exceptions do not apply. Although do not believe that any U.S. pers
should be allocated such insurance income, we t¢assaertain that this will be the case. U.S. éaempt investors should consult their
advisors as to the U.S. tax consequences of angadibn of our insurance income.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We lease office space in Bermuda, where our prai@gecutive offices are located. Argo Group UK. lrases office space in San Anto
Texas, for its U.S. headquarters, Commercial Sfigaagment and for certain support functions. ge &ease space in the following locatic

« New York City, New York (Argo Group US, Inc. and IGoy Specialty’
« Jersey City, New Jersey (Argo Group US, Inc.)
« Brussels, Belgium (Argo Solutions)
« Chicago, lllinois (Argo Group US, Inc. and Commat@pecialty)
« Richmond, Virginia (Colony Specialty)
« Portland, Oregon (Grocers Insurance and Argo Ima&a
« San Francisco, California (Argonaut Insurance Camgpa
« Houston, Texas (Argo Surety)
« Boston and Greenfield, Massachusetts (Trident rsze Service and Alteris)
« Seattle, Washington (Argo Group US, Inc. and A#eri
« London, England (Argo International)
« Denver, Colorado (Colony Specialty)
« Scottsdale, Arizona (Colony Specialty)
« Sao Paulo, Brazil (Argo Brasil Participacfes Ltda.)
o Dubai, UAE (Argo Re (DIFC) Ltd.)
« Paris, France (Argo Assurances)
- Malta (ArgoGlobal SE)
« Singapore (ArgoGlobal Asia)
In addition, we have entered into other leasesomunction with our operations at various geogragdbtations throughout the world. 1

properties are leased on terms and for duratioat dre reflective of commercial standards in thenmmnities where these properties
located. We believe the facilities we occupy areqaéite for the purposes in which they are currarggd and are well maintained.

38




Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Our subsidiaries are parties to legal actions eridl to their business. Based on the opinion ahsel, management believes that the resol
of these matters will not materially affect ourdircial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edjy Securities
Market Information

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Sdiéatket under the symbol “AGII.The following table sets forth the range of d
high and low sales prices for our common sharedandends declared per share for the periods atdit:

Years Ended December 31 High Low Dividends

2014

First Quartel $ 475¢ % 4294 % 0.1t

Second Quarte 51.4¢ 43.7% 0.18

Third Quartel 54.0C 49.3: 0.18

Fourth Quarte 60.5¢ 49.37 0.18
2013®)

First Quartel $ 378 $ 28.64 $ 0.14

Second Quarte 43.87 35.1¢ 0.15

Third Quartel 46.61 39.77 0.15

Fourth Quarte 48.82 34.57 0.15

@ On May 7, 2013, our Board of Directors declared0&olstock dividend which was paid on June 17, 2@il8hareholders of record
June 3, 2013. The sales prices have been adjustefidct the effect of the stock divider

On February 23, 2015, the closing price of our camrstock was $52.47.

Holders of Common Stock

The number of holders of record of our common stkf February 23, 2015 was 1,615.

Dividends

Our dividend policy is determined by the Board afeBtors and depends, among other factors, uponeatmings, operations, financ
condition, capital requirements and general busioeslook at the time the policy is considered.

The declaration and payment of future dividendsupshareholders will be at the discretion of ooail of Directors and will depend upon
factors noted above.

On February 17, 2015, our Board of Directors detlaa quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $@B0each share of common st
outstanding. The dividend will be paid on March 2015 to our shareholders of record on March 25201 addition, our Board declare:
10% stock dividend on March 16, 2015, to sharehisldérecord at the close of business on Marct0252

On February 18, 2014, our Board of Directors declaa quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $@th5each share of common st
outstanding. On May 5, 2014, August 5, 2014 anddxayer 4, 2014, our Board of Directors declaredatguy cash dividend in the amoun
$0.18 on each share of common stock outstandingth€oyear ended December 31, 2014, we paid casdedd totaling $18.2 million to o
shareholders.

On February 15, 2013, our Board of Directors detlaa quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $@th5each share of common st
outstanding or $0.14 on each share outstandingi&djdor the 10% stock dividend discuss below.

On May 7, 2013, our Board of Directors declaredO&olstock dividend, payable on June 17, 2013, toeslwdders of record at the close
business on June 3, 2013. All references to shatgar share amounts in this document and relasetbdures have been adjusted to reflec
stock dividend for all periods presented. On May(@13, August 6, 2013 and November 4, 2013, ourdBoé Directors declared a quarte
cash dividend in the amount of $0.15 on each staresmmon stock, on a post stock dividend basis.tke year ended December 31, 2
we paid cash dividends totaling $15.8 million t@ sbareholders.

Sale of Unregistered Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we digelbbr issue any unregistered securities.
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Use of Proceeds from Sale of Registered Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we didelbbr issue any registered securities.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On November 5, 2013, our Board authorized the @mge of up to $150.0 million of our common sht2813 Repurchase Authorization”
The 2013 Repurchase Authorization supersedeseaprgvious Repurchase Authorizations.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we repurdtaat®al of 1,048,144 shares of our common stoclaftotal cost of $50.8 million. Sir
the inception of the repurchase authorizationsuginoDecember 31, 2014, we have repurchased 8,808/ es of our common stock a
average price of $35.02 for a total cost of $30tilion. These shares are being held as treaswageshn accordance with the provisions o
Bermuda Companies Act 1981. As of December 31, 28¢4dilability under the 2013 Repurchase Authoiirafor future repurchases of «
common shares was $92.8 million.

The following table provides information with regpéo shares of our common stock that were repsethar surrendered during the tt
months ended December 31, 2014:

Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Shares Purchased Value of Shares
Total Number Average as Part of Publically That May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid Announced Plan Purchased Under the
Period Purchased (a) per Share (b) or Program (c) Plan or Program (d)
October 1 through October 31, 2C 143,39¢ $ 51.87 143,39¢ $ 94,016,31
November 1 through November 30, 2( 192 % 55.14 — 3 94,016,31
December 1 through December 31, 2! 22,73t $ 53.44 22,73t $ 92,801,25
Total 166,32¢ $ 52.0¢ 166,13/

Employees are allowed to surrender shares to $b#léax liability incurred upon the vesting or mise of shares under the various empli
equity compensation plans. For the three monthecicember 31, 2014, we received 192 shares afasomon stock, with an average p
paid per share of $55.14, that were surrendereghijyloyees in payment for the minimum required witHing taxes. In the above table, tt
shares are included in columns (a) and (b), buuded from columns (c) and (d). These shares deathice the number of shares that ma
be purchased under the repurchase plan.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we recei8etB2 shares of our common stock, with an averaige paid per share of $45.59, 1
were surrendered by employees in payment for tiiénmim required withholding taxes.
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the peréorce of our common stock during the fixear period from December 31, 2009 thrc
December 31, 2014 with the performance of the NA®DZomposite Index and the SNL Property & Casualsutance Index. The graph p
the changes in value of an initial $100 investmever the indicated time periods, assuming all dinids are reinvested. The stock f
performance shown on the following graph is nogiated to predict or be indicative of future priegfprmance.

Total Return Performance
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For the Years Ended December 31
Index 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Argo Group International Holdings, Lt $ 100.0C $ 130.5C $ 102.5¢ $ 120.8¢ $ 186.6¢ $ 225.77
NASDAQ Composite 100.0c¢ 118.1¢ 117.2: 138.0z 193.4: 222.1¢
SNL Property & Casualty Insurance Inc 100.0C 119.2¢ 120.5¢ 142.31 188.5: 216.52
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected financial data is derivednfr our consolidated financial statements. The m&dion set forth below should be rea
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Asédyof Financial Condition and Results of Operajdimcluded under Item 7 and 1
consolidated financial statements and notes theratluded in Item 8, “Financial Statements and@amentary Data.”

For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions, except per share amour 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Statement of Operations Data
Gross written premium $ 1,905, $ 1888« $ 1,7457 $ 1544¢% $ 1,527.1
Earned premium 1,338.] 1,303.¢ 1,186.k 1,082.( 1,211.€
Net investment incom 86.€ 100.C 118.€ 125.¢ 133.€
Total revenus 1,518.% 1,475.1 1,331.( 1,258.2 1,384t
Net income (loss 183.2 143.2 52.3 (81.9 86.7
Net income (loss) per diluted common sh(@ 6.9C 5.14 1.83 (2.74) 2.64
Cash dividends declared per common s[(® 0.6¢ 0.5¢ 0.44 0.44 0.44
Balance Sheet Data
Invested asse $ 4,097.¢ $ 4,079.2 $ 42007 $ 4,145 $ 4,215«
Total asset 6,356.: 6,591.( 6,688.¢ 6,378.: 6,463.¢
Other indebtedne: 62.C 66.3 63.8 65.5 65.0
Junior subordinated debentul 1727 193.5 193.5 311k 311k
Senior unsecured fixed rate no 143.¢ 143.¢ 143.¢ — —
Shareholders' equii 1,646.7 1,563.( 1,514.1 1,463.( 1,609.¢
Other Select data
Cash provided (used) by operating activi $ 130t % 0.2 $ 30 % @ar7n $ (3.2)
Book value per shai® 64.04 58.9¢ 55.22 50.54 52.5¢E
Combined ratic®) 96.2% 97.5% 104.6% 119.8% 102.7%

@  Per share amounts adjusted for the effects of @€ dtock dividend declared in May 2013. Book vabee share is calculated by tak
total shareholde’ equity divided by total outstanding shares lesastuey share:

® |n determining the combined ratio, “Earned premitilmsreduced by the “Other reinsurance-related azxpgas management views t
transaction as ceded premiu

Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the consolidated financial statements aatdted notes beginning on pagéd FFhis
discussion contains forwatdeking statements that involve risks and uncefiiesn Our actual results could differ materiallprfr thos
anticipated in the forward looking statements assalt of various factors described in this report.

Consolidated Results of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we repoeeiticome of $183.2 million, or $6.90 per fullywiéd share. For the year ended Dece
31, 2013, we reported net income of $143.2 million$5.14 per fully diluted share. For the yearesh®ecember 31, 2012, we reportec
income of $52.3 million, or $1.83 per fully dilutstiare.
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The following is a comparison of select data framn esults of operations:

For the Years Ended December 31,
(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Gross written premium $ 1905¢4 $ 1,888« $ 1,745.
Earned premium $ 1,33871 $ 1,303.¢ $ 1,186.f
Net investment incom 86.6 100.C 118.€
Net realized investment and other ge 94.0 71.3 25.7
Total revenue $ 15185 $ 1,4751 $ 1,331.(
Income before income tax 216.C $ 1797 % 66.7
Provision for income taxe 32.8 36.5 14.4
Net income $ 183.z $ 1432 $ 52.3
Loss ratic 55.9% 57.8% 64.5%
Expense rati 40.3% 39.7% 40.1%
Combined ratic 96.2% 97.5% 104.6%

The modest increase in gross written premiums Herytear ended December 31, 2014 as compared teathe period ended in 2013 \
primarily the result of increased premiums in owMcé&ss and Surplus Lines and Commercial Speciatfjneats, partially offset by a decline
our Syndicate 1200 segment as we continue to expegi competition in this segment. All segments werpacted to some degree
increasing competition and, in some cases, deglirates. The increase in consolidated earned presifar the year ended December 31, :
as compared to 2013 was due to increased premiuthe fourth quarter of 2013 which continued in@d2.

Consolidated net investment income decreased éoye¢hr ended December 31, 2014 as compared tairte geriods ended 2013 and 2012
primarily to the continued reinvestment at markigids below the portfoli® book yield and an increased focus on total pliwtfieeturn:
relative to investment income. Additionally, thectiee in consolidated net investment income wasaictgd by the transfer of invested as
used to settle a quota share reinsurance agreemirin our Syndicate 1200 segment. Total investssets at December 31, 2014 v
$4,022.7 million, net of $75.2 million of investedsets attributable to ArgoGlobal Syndicate 12Gade capital providers. Total inves
assets at December 31, 2013 were $3,991.9 milfienpf $87.3 million of invested assets attributatd ArgoGlobal Syndicate 12G0trads
capital providers. Total invested assets at Decei®@bg2012 were $4,056.8 million, net of $143.9liwrl of invested assets attributable to ¢
trade capital providers.

The increase in consolidated net realized investraed other gains for the year ended December @4 2s compared to 2013 was prime
attributable to the recognition of a $43.3 millipretax gain resulting from the sale of property andtéase in value of our other investme
which are accounted for under the equity methodagbunting. Absent these increases, a small angdugdins were recognized on our fi:
maturity and equity portfolios. The increase imsolidated net investment and other gains for #ar ynded December 31, 2013 as comj
to 2012 was primarily driven by $57.7 million inatezed gains from our equity portfolio due to atieal reduction in equities at year end.
realized gains from the sales of fixed maturitywsiies were $4.8 million, $13.9 million and $18riillion for the years ended December
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Net realizédsgfmr our other investments were $23.0 millio8,1$million and $6.4 million for the yet
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectidat realized gains (losses) from the salesqoitg investments were $28.6 millic
$57.7 million and $(0.1) million for the years eddBecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectiiabluded in consolidated net reali
investments gains and other for the year ended rhleee 31, 2014 was a $2.0 million gain resultingnfrthe extinguishment of one of «
junior subordinated debentures and a $4.0 milliorrdalized losses resulting from the w-down of an asset held for sale. Include
consolidated net realized investment and othersgainthe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 @h2l Rere writedowns of approximate
$2.3 million, $7.8 million and $3.7 million, resgeely, from the recognition of other-thaamporary impairments on certain investn
securities.

Consolidated losses and loss adjustment expenses$¥d7.4 million, $742.0 million and $747.6 miliidor the years ended December
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Included indesand loss adjustment expenses during 2014 wé&ré $illion in large losses for t
current accident year along with $18.7 million iatastrophe losses resulting from storm activitytha U.S., various hailstorms, Typhc
Rammasum and Hurricane Odile. Partially offsettimgse current accident year losses was $37.7 mifliavet favorable development on p
year accident loss reserves, primarily attributabléavorable development in our general liabilitye and our Syndicate 1200 liability ¢
property lines, partially offset by unfavorable dmpment in the commercial multi-peril and commaireiutomobile lines.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expensésgd2013 were $16.8 million in current accidentiylsage losses in our Excess and Sul
Lines, Commercial Specialty and International Spiegisegments. There was also $24.6 million instad@he losses
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primarily attributable to storm activity in the U.8nd Germany and flooding in Europe and Canadise@ihg these 2013 accident year lo
was $33.6 million in net favorable loss reservealigement on prior accident years, primarily witbir general liability lines of business.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expensethéoyear ended December 31, 2012 was $75.2 millioratastrophe losses from st
activity in the United States, including Superstd@andy and Hurricane Isaac. Partially offsettingsthcatastrophe losses was $32.9 millic
net favorable loss reserve development on priodaot years. The net favorable development wasariiynattributable to our general liabili
workers compensation and Syndicate 1200 segmepegyolines, partially offset by unfavorable deyaizent in our commercial mulgeril
lines.

The following table summarizes the above referefossl reserve development as respects to priorlgsareserves by line of business fol
year ended December 31, 20

Net Reserve Percent of
2013 Development 2013 Net

(in millions) Net Reserves (Favorable)/Unfavorable  Reserves
General liability $ 924.¢ $ (50.5) -5.5%
Workers compensatic 337.7 5.6 1.7%
Syndicate 1200 proper 172.¢ (5.5) -3.2%
Syndicate 1200 liabilit 136.€ (12.0) -8.8%
Commercial mul-peril 171.C 15.5 9.1%
Commercial auto liability 167.C 13.€ 8.1%
Reinsuranc+ nonproportional assumed prope 97.9 1.6 1.6%
Syndicate 1200 special 35.6 (1.9 -5.3%
All other lines 63.8 (4.2) -6.4%
Total $ 2,107¢ $ (37.7) -1.8%

In determining appropriate reserve levels for tharyended December 31, 2014, we maintained the ganeral processes and disciplines
were used to set reserves at prior reporting datessignificant changes in methodologies were ntadestimate the reserves since the
reporting date; however, at each reporting dateemesess the actuarial estimate of the resented®iand loss adjustment expenses and r
our best estimate. Consistent with prior reseraations, as claims data becomes more maturerior accident years, actuarial estimi
were refined to weigh certain actuarial methods enbeavily in order to respond to any emerging tseimd the paid and reported |
data. While prior accident yeansét reserves for losses and loss adjustment expdémiseome lines of business have developed falyora
recent years, this does not imply that more reeauident yearsteserves also will develop favorably; pricing, mimance costs, leg
environment, general economic conditions includihgnges in inflation and many other factors impactultimate loss estimates.

Consolidated gross reserves for loss and loss tatjié expenses were $3,042.4 million (including .88@illion of reserves attributable
ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1208'trade capital providers), $3,230.3 million (irdihg $128.6 million of reserves attributable to thede capite
providers) and $3,223.5 million (including $161.@lion of reserves attributable to the trade cdpit@viders) as of December 31, 2014, 2
and 2012, respectively. Management has recordéxdisestimate of loss reserves at each date baseatrent known facts and circumstan
Due to the significant uncertainties inherent ia #stimation of loss reserves, there can be noas=ithat future loss development, favor
or unfavorable, will not occur.

In 2011, we entered into two reinsurance transastwith a special purpose reinsurance company wiievided coverage through the issu:
of two catastrophe bond transactions. The reinsardransactions provided coverage for selectedtgv@ihe initial catastrophe bond ca
expired on December 31, 2012. The second catagtrbphd cover expired on December 31, 2013. In derme with generally accep
accounting principles in the United States (“GAAPWe accounted for these covers as derivatives, anduah, presented the finan
statement impact in “Other reinsurance-related egeg’ in our Consolidated Statements of IncomeeOthinsuranceelated expenses tota
$19.2 million and $27.3 million for the years endedcember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. As @lsé ¢f these contracts expirec
December 2013, there was no expense recognizedlih. s management viewed these coverages as ramitguprotection, we treated
financial statement effects of these covers asccpdamium for the purposes of calculating our lesgpense and combined ratios.

Consolidated underwriting, acquisition and insueaespenses were $539.2 million, $510.8 million &464.5 million for the years enc
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.ifidrease in the consolidated expense ratio fod 2%l compared to 2013 was prime
attributable to increased compensation relatedscasupled with increased consulting and infornmatiechnology expenses. The decrea
the consolidated expense ratio for 2013 as compgar2d12 was primarily attributable to reduced dixe

45




costs as a percentage of earned premiums, pariifigt by increased equity compensation expensetalihe impact of the increase in
stock price on cash-settled equity awards.

Consolidated interest expense was $19.9 millio).Z2nillion and $23.7 million for the years endeédember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2(
respectively. The decline in consolidated intemgiense from 2014 as compared to 2013 was thet @fstle July 2014 extinguishment ¢
junior subordinated debenture. The decline in clidated interest expense for the year ended DeceB81he2013 as compared to 2012 was
to the redemption in November 2012 of the $118.aniCapital Trust Securities with proceeds frome senior fixed rate notes, which be
lower interest rate.

Consolidated foreign currency exchange gains wet@ $nillion and $1.7 million for the years endedcBmber 31, 2014 and 20
respectively, compared to foreign currency exchdongses of $4.3 million for the year ended Decen®ier2012. The changes in the fore
currency exchange gains/losses were due to fliohsabf the U.S Dollar, on a weighted average bhasiginst the currencies in which
transact our business.

The consolidated provisions for income taxes w&2&million, $36.5 million and $14.4 million fon¢ years ended December 31, 2014,
and 2012, respectively. The consolidated incomeptaxision represents the income tax expense agsdaivith our operations based on the
laws of the jurisdictions in which we operate. Tdfere, the consolidated provision for income tasgsesents taxes on net income for our |
Ireland, Belgium, Brazil, Switzerland and Unitech§dom operations. The consolidated effective taates were 15.2%, 20.3% and 21.6%
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 284 ctively. The decline in the consolidated dffedax rate for the year ended Decen
31, 2014 as compared to 2013 and 2012 was primattilijputable to increased income from our Bermagarations, which is not subject
income taxes. The decline in the consolidatedctffe tax rate for the year ended December 31, 25l8ompared to 2012 was prime
attributable to reduced income tax expense fotunited Kingdom operations.

Segment Results

We are primarily engaged in writing property andualty insurance and reinsurance. We have fouoioggeporting segments: Excess
Surplus Lines, Commercial Specialty, InternatioBpécialty and Syndicate 1200. Additionally, we énavRuneff Lines segment for produt
that we no longer underwrite.

We consider many factors, including the natureamhesegmens’ insurance and reinsurance products, productioress, distribution strateg
and regulatory environment, in determining howdgragate reporting segments.

In evaluating the operating performance of our sags) we focus on core underwriting and investeguits before consideration of reali
gains or losses from the sales of investmenterdagment transactions are allocated to the segihantnitiated the transaction. Reali
investment gains and losses are reported as a c@npof the Corporate and Other segment, as dasisegarding the acquisition and disp
of securities reside with the corporate investnfanttion and are not under the control of the ifdlial business segments. Although
measure of profit (loss) does not replace net iredloss) computed in accordance with GAAP as a aread profitability, management u:
this measure of profit (loss) to focus our rep@tsgments on generating operating income.

Since we generally manage and monitor the invedtimenfolio on an aggregate basis, the overallgrenince of the investment portfolio,
related net investment income, is discussed abova oombined basis under consolidated net invedtineome rather than within or
segment.

46




Excess and Surplus Line:

The following table summarizes the results of ofjens for the Excess and Surplus Lines segment:

For the Years Ended December 31
(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Gross written premiums $ 607.2 $ 5942 $ 513.F
Earned premium $ 4852 3 460.2 $ 399.2
Losses and loss adjustment expel 248.C 244.C 223.5
Other reinsurancrelated expense — 4.9 —
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 161.€ 157.2 143.€
Underwriting income 75.6 54.1 321
Net investment incom 36.7 42.2 51.1
Interest expens (6.3) (6.9) (9.1)
Income before income tax $ 106.C $ 89.4 $ 74.1
Loss ratic 51.1% 53.6% 55.9%
Expense ratit 33.3% 34.5% 36.0%
Combined ratic 84.4% 88.1% 91.9%
Loss reserves at December $ 1,165 $ 1171.¢6 $ 1,209.(

The increase in gross written and earned premiomthé year ended December 31, 2014 as compatbd tame period in 2013 was prime
attributable to growth in all lines, with the extiep of transportation and special property. Wegareexiting transportation in 2013 due
reduced profitability. Gross written premiums fgoesial property declined due to increased compatifrom both U.S. and Lond
markets. During 2014, all lines within the Excassl Surplus Lines segment have experienced coropetihd pressure on rates. The incr
in gross written and earned premiums for the yeded December 31, 2013 as compared to the sanwlper2012 was primarily attributal
to increased underwriting activity and rate incesais virtually all lines, excluding transportatias noted above.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expensthiéoyear ended December 31, 2014 was $2.3 milfiaatastrophe losses from storm act
in the United States. Included in losses and dofsstment expense for the year ended Decembe034, was $5.1 million related to curr
accident year large property and inland marinedes®Offsetting these current accident year logses $47.4 million of net favorable Ic
reserve development on prior accident years prigndtie to $63.2 million of favorable developmenttlire general and products liability lit
of business. Partially offsetting this net favdeablevelopment was $12.5 million of unfavorable @lepment in commercial automobile lii
and $3.3 million in the property lines.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expensiiaéoyear ended December 31, 2013 was $4.1 milliaratastrophe losses from storm act
in the United States. Included in losses and dofsstment expense for the year ended Decembe03B, was $5.0 million related to curr
accident year large property losses. Offsettirgéhcurrent accident year losses was $43.9 millioret favorable loss reserve developmer
prior accident years primarily due to $55.8 milliohfavorable development in the general and prtdliability lines of business. Partis
offsetting this net favorable development was $hiilion of unfavorable development in commerciat@nobile lines.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expensethéoyear ended December 31, 2012 was $12.6 milliocatastrophe losses from st
activity in the United States, including $8.2 nahifrom Hurricane Isaac and $2.6 million from Sigb@m Sandy. Offsetting these catastrc
losses was $48.0 million of net favorable loss meselevelopment on prior accident years primarityitkutable to $39.2 million of favorak
development in the general and products liabilitgd of business.

The decline in the expense ratio for the year efigieckmber 31, 2014 as compared to the same per@@li3 was primarily attributable to
increase in ceding commission received coupled witlecline in agent contingent commissions. Fiecgoenses were comparable betwee
periods. The decline in the expense ratio for yfhar ended December 31, 2013 as compared to the paniod in 2012 was primar
attributable to the increase in earned premiumthowt a corresponding increase in fixed costs.
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Commercial Specialty

The following table summarizes the results of oppens for the Commercial Specialty segment:

For the Years Ended December 31,
(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Gross written premiums $ 440.z $ 419.1 $ 437.C
Earned premium $ 291¢ % 299.C % 317.t
Losses and loss adjustment expel 189.1 194.C 257.C
Other reinsurancrelated expense — 0.9 —
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 103.E 97.4 108.2
Underwriting (loss) incom (0.7) 6.7 (47.8)
Net investment incom 18.7 22.8 27.6
Interest expens (3.2 (3.8) (5.9
Fee (expense) income, 1 (2.5) 4.3 1.3
Impairment of intangible asse (3.9 — —
Income (loss) before income tax $ 89 $ 214 $ (24.8)
Loss ratic 64.8% 65.1% 81.0%
Expense ratit 35.4% 32.7% 34.1%
Combined ratic 100.2% 97.8% 115.1%
Loss reserves at December $ 652.z $ 6534 $ 660.C

The increase in gross written premiums for the yaated December 31, 2014 as compared to the saroel gmded 2013 was primar
attributable to increased underwriting in our syrebmmercial mining and state funds units. Phytiaffsetting these increases was redt
underwriting in our retail business, commercialgreans and public entity units due to planned redaostas we exited unprofitable accot
and implemented underwriting initiatives. The d&elin gross written premiums for the year endeddd&ber 31, 2013 as compared to 2
was primarily due to reduced writings in our retaikiness and public entity units due to plannddctons noted above. The decline in ea
premiums was attributable to the reduced grosdemrppremiums for the years presented.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expenstidoyear ended December 31, 2014 was $5.7 miliaafastrophe losses for storm activit
the United States. Included in losses and losssadent expense for the year ended December 34, @& $2.4million related to currel
accident year large losses primarily within thependy lines. Additionally, included in losses dods adjustment expenses was $6.8 millic
net unfavorable loss reserve development on pdeoidant years, primarily attributable to $19.5 mill of unfavorable development in gen
liability due to increases in claim severity, paliti offset by favorable development of $7.9 mitliof favorable development in shaai# lines
and $5.8 million in workers compensation.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expengitidoyear ended December 31, 2013 was $4.0 miliaafastrophe losses for storm activit
the United States. Included in losses and losssadent expense for the year ended December 3B, @& $7.4 million related to curr
accident year large losses in our retail, commepriagrams and public entity businesses. Additignéncluded in losses and loss adjustn
expenses was $1.1 million in net unfavorable I@senve development on prior accident years, priynattributable to $16.2 million
unfavorable development in general liability dueirioreases in claim severity and $2.0 million ofaworable development in automol
liability, offset by favorable development of $9rBllion in workers compensation and $6.8 millionfaforable development in short-tail lines.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expensethéoyear ended December 31, 2012 was $16.7 millioratastrophe losses from st
activity in the United States, including $8.8 nuhi from Superstorm Sandy. In addition, CommerSig¢cialty experienced several large nor
cat property losses during the year. The Commiesgiacialty segment had net unfavorable loss resgevelopment on prior accident year
$22.2 million primarily attributable to $31.5 mdh of unfavorable development in general liabititye to increases in claim severity and
million of unfavorable development in the automeHibbility lines of business. Partially offsetiirthis unfavorable development was $:
million of favorable development in workers com pesien.

The increase in the expense ratio for the yearcdeBDdEember 31, 2014 as compared to the same parkil3 was primarily due to increa:
corporate and information technology costs and edesing ceding commissions earned. The declinbérekpense ratio for the year en
December 31, 2013 as compared to 2012 was primtifputable to a shift of select functions froiskrbearing activities to norisk bearin
activities, as we were developing our fee-basethbss.
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As noted above, in 2013 we began to focus on threldpment of our fee-based operations. As a rethdtexpenses associated with the fe
based operations have outpaced the income reckivétese activities, resulting in net fee expefusehe years ended December 31, 2014
2013, respectively.

As a result of our annual evaluation of goodwiltlasther intangible assets, we determined that doelgill and intangible asset which resu
from a 2010 acquisition were impaired and thereftitey were written-off during the fourth quartér2014.

International Specialty

The following table summarizes the results of opens for the International Specialty segment:

For the Years Ended December 31,
(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Gross written premiums $ 290.2 $ 290.6 $ 260.2
Earned premium $ 148  $ 1424 $ 130.1
Losses and loss adjustment expel 77.8 79.9 73.5
Other reinsurancrelated expense — 6.2 9.4
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 54.5 50.1 43.8
Underwriting income 16.0 6.2 3.4
Net investment incom 8.2 8.4 12.3
Interest expens (3.1) (3.3) (4.9
Income before income tax $ 211 $ 113 $ 11.3
Loss ratia 52.5% 58.7% 60.9%
Expense ratic 36.7% 36.7% 36.2%
Combined ratic 89.2% 95.4% 97.1%
Loss reserves at December $ 306.2 $ 295 $ 257.8

The slight decline in gross written premiums foe §ear ended December 31, 2014 as compared taathe geriod in 2013 was primau
attributable to declines in our property reinsuemnoit due to increased competition and declineitgg. Partially offsetting this decline v
increased gross written premiums in our casuahlyfegsional liability and Brazil units. The inceeain earned premiums for the year et
December 31, 2014 as compared to 2013 was duemaiygm growth in the first half of 2014. Gross wait and earned premiums increase:
the year ended December 31, 2013 in comparisonetedme period in 2012 primarily as a result oftiooied growth in our Brazil operatic
and in our excess casualty and professional linés,while gross written premiums for the propedinsurance lines remained consistent.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses for the ydadddecember 31, 2014 included $8.2 million in s@tgphe losses primarily attributable
hail and other storms. Loss reserve developmeption accident years was negligible.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses for the ydadddecember 31, 2013 included $16.5 million irastibphe losses primarily attributabli
Canadian and European floods and the German hailst@ss reserve development on prior accidentsyeas negligible.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses for the ydadddecember 31, 2012 included $24.7 million irasttbphe losses from storm activity
the U.S., including $23.6 million from Superstormn8y. In addition, International Specialty expecieth $6.0 million in losses related to ¢
exposures. Partially offsetting these current aatid/ear losses was $7.2 million in net favorabksIreserve development on prior acci
years primarily attributable to favorable develominia shor-tail non-catastrophe losses.

The expense ratios were comparable for the yeasepted.
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Syndicate 120(

The following table summarizes the results of ofjens for the Syndicate 1200 segment:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Gross written premiums $ 566.2 $ 583.¢ $ 533.4
Earned premium $ 4111 % 4017 $ 337.¢
Losses and loss adjustment expel 208.1 208.€ 184.C
Other reinsurancrelated expense — 6.7 7.5
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 167.€ 156.2 133.€
Underwriting income 35.2 30.2 12.5
Net investment incom 10.2 11.C 15.3
Interest expens (3.2 (3.3) 3.7
Fee income (expense), I 1.9 (0.6) 4.0
Income before income tax $ 441 $ 373 §$ 28.1
Loss ratia 50.6% 52.8% 55.7%
Expense rati 40.8% 39.6% 40.5%
Combined ratic 91.4% 92.4% 96.2%
Loss reserves at December $ 600.C $ 777.C $ 738.€

In 2014, we decreased our direct participatiorhim gyndicate managed by ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1809%, down from 79% in both 20
and 2012, which resulted in a reduction in grositevwr premiums. Additionally, the decline in grossitten premiums for the year enc
December 31, 2014 as compared to 2013 was attbleuta reductions in the property and general ligbiines as we exited certe
unprofitable accounts. Partially offsetting theselohes were increased gross written premiumsemtarine and energy and political risk lir
The Syndicate 1200 segment has been adversely tetpay increased competition in 2014. The increéasearned premiums was due
increased gross written premiums in the fourth guaof 2013 and continuing into the first half dd12. The increase in gross written
earned premiums for the year ended December 3B @9tompared to 2012 was primarily attributablméoeases in certain liability lines &
in the personal accident lines.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses are reportenf tesses ceded to the trade capital providérsluded in losses and loss adjustn
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014 2v4srifllion of catastrophe losses resulting fronriitane Odile. Additionally, included
losses and loss adjustment expenses were curi@deatyear losses of $18.1 million resulting frarge general liability, aviation and satel
losses. Offsetting these current accident yeaselosvas $21.9 million in net favorable loss resetgeelopment on prior accident ye
primarily attributable to $11.9 favorable developrha various property classes, $5.5 million faxmeadevelopment in the liability lines
$4.4 million favorable development in the aerospaue specialty lines.

The Syndicate 1200 segment reported no catastrimsises for the year ended December 31, 2013. dadlun losses and loss adjustn
expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 werent accident year large losses of $4.4 milliesufting from two onshore enel
losses. The Syndicate 1200 segment had net fdeoleds development of $6.2 million primarily dbwiable to $12.8 million of favorat
development in various property classes, partialfiset by $6.3 million of unfavorable developmenmt liability lines associated wi
municipality business.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expensethdoyear ended December 31, 2012 was $21.2 midifacatastrophe losses consisting
$18.2 million from Superstorm Sandy and $3.0 millfoom Hurricane Isaac. The Syndicate 1200 segtnadtnet favorable loss developn
of $9.7 million primarily attributable to favorabtievelopment in the property facultative, North Amoan binder and Directors and Offic
classes of business, partially offset by unfavara@velopment in the general liability propertysslaf business.

The increase in the expense ratio for the yearceidgeember 31, 2014 as compared to the same pgar@il3 was primarily attributable tc
decline in ceding commission received from a qebi@re reinsurance contract that was terminate@14,2coupled with increased commis:
expenses due to the current competitive markeé dHtline in the expense ratio for the year endeceBber 31, 2013 as compared to the
period in 2012 was primarily attributable to reddidixed costs as a percentage of earned premiums.

Fee income (expense), net represents fees and poofimission derived from the management of thiadtyp capital for our underwritir
syndicate at Lloyd’s. The fee income, net forykar ended December 31, 2014 was primarily dukeag¢duced
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syndicate participation maintained by Argo Grougich resulted in increased commissions for manatfiegbusiness for the trade cay
providers. The fee expense, net for the year eddm@mber 31, 2013 was primarily due to the aliocadf certain compensation expense
borne by the Syndicate.

Run-off Lines

The following table summarizes the results of ofjens for the Run-off Lines segment:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Earned premiums $ 16 $ 05 $ 1.7
Losses and loss adjustment expel 24.4 15.5 9.8
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 8.2 4.6 2.8
Underwriting loss (31.0 (19.6) (10.9
Net investment incom 9.7 10.8 12.5
Interest expens (1.7) (1.8) (2.5)
Loss before income tax $ (23.0) $ (10.6) $ (0.9

Earned premiums for the years ended December 34, 2013 and 2012 were primarily attributable tuatinents resulting from final aud
reinstatement premiums and other adjustments acig®previously underwritten.

Through our subsidiary Argonaut Insurance Comparyare exposed to asbestos liability at the prinkergl through claims filed against «
direct insureds, as well as through its positiormasinsurer of other primary carriers. Argonaigulance Company has direct liability aris
primarily from policies issued from the 1960s te #arly 1980s, which préated policy contract wording that excluded astsest@osure. Tt
majority of the direct policies were issued on Bebasmall contractors or construction companlé& believe that the frequency and sew
of asbestos claims for such insureds is typicaibg Ithan that experienced for large, industrialufenturing and distribution concerns.

Argonaut Insurance Company also assumed risk emsurer, primarily for the period from 1970 to 59@ portion of which was assumed fi
the London market. Argonaut Insurance Company edéosured risks on policies written by domesticrieas. Such reinsurance typice
provided coverage for limits attaching at a rekatpvhigh level, which are payable only after otlegrers of reinsurance are exhausted. Sor
the claims now being filed on policies reinsuredArgonaut Insurance Company are on behalf of clatmaho may have been expose
some time to asbestos incorporated into buildifgsy toccupied, but have no apparent medical problessslting from such exposu
Additionally, lawsuits are being brought againssibesses that were not directly involved in the ufacture or installation of materi
containing asbestos. We believe that a signifigamtion of claims generated out of this populatifrclaimants may result in incurred los
generally lower than the asbestos claims filed tvempast decade and could be below the attachmegitof Argonaut Insurance Company.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses for the ydadddecember 31, 2014 included $24.4 million ofurdavorable loss reserve developn
on prior accident years primarily driven by $13.9lion from our asbestos and environmental exposamd $10.3 million in our rupif
workers compensation lines. The unfavorable dewveéy from our ashestos and environmental exposuaesiriven by our primary exposu
and our domestic assumed programs. The unfavod®delopment for our workers compensation lines thasresult of increasing medi
costs on older claims.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses for the ydadddecember 31, 2013 included $10.5 million ofamofable loss reserve developmet
general liability lines resulting from asbestos @qre. The unfavorable development was driven byeasing defense costs in the prin
book of business, higher than expected loss agtinithe assumed book of business and commutatindssettlements in 2013. Other roifi-
lines recorded $4.4 million in unfavorable devel@mt including $2.0 million in unfavorable develognt in medical malpractice liability d
to the loss of the New York Liquidation Bureau furgifor structured annuity payments.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses for the ydadddecember 31, 2012 included $9.8 million in urgfavorable loss reserve developn
on prior accident years primarily attributable 8.3 million of unfavorable development in genetability lines resulting from asbes!
exposure. The unfavorable development was driveimdrgasing defense costs in the primary book sfri®ss and increasing settlement ¢
in the assumed book of business.

Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenseshe Runeff Lines segment consists primarily of administratexpenses. Underwriti
expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 wasafsly impacted by a $1.1 million recovery of a
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policyholder dividend in the ruoff risk management lines, offset by $1.8 millionhigher fee and bad debt expenses. Underwritipgrese fc
the year ended December 31, 2013 was reduced Byn§ilion received due to the settlement of a disduassessment. Underwriting expe
for the year ended December 31, 2012 were reduz&drillion due to a reduction in insurance assesgm Absent these items, underwri
expenses were comparable for the years presented.

The following table represents a reconciliatiortatfl gross and net reserves for the Réfnkines. Amounts in the net column are reduce
reinsurance recoverables.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(in millions) Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Asbestos and environment

Loss reserves, beginning of the y $ 575 $ 533 $ 64€ $ 589 $ 753 $ 68.2

Incurred losse 15.1 135 9.8 11.0 9.4 9.1

Losses pait (18.7) (16.4) (16.9) (16.6) (20.1) (18.4)
Loss reserve- asbestos and environmental, end of 53.9 50.4 57.5 53.3 64.6 58.9
Risk management reserv 257.1 168.¢ 264.2 171.F 272.€ 191.7
Rur-off reinsurance reservi 4.1 4.1 5.8 5.8 144 14.4
Other rur-off lines 3.4 3.1 4.9 4.6 6.7 6.0
Total loss reserve- Rur-off Lines $ 3185 $ 226 $ 332 $ 2352 $ 358.2 $ 271.C

The following table represents the components ofgtoss reserves for the Run-off Lines:

For the Years Ended December 31

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Asbestos
Direct
Case reserve $ 25 % 1.7 $ 2.0
Unallocated loss adjustment expense ("ULA 1.0 1.3 1.7
IBNR 7.6 6.4 4.3
Total direct written reserve 11.1 9.4 8.0
Assumed domesti
Case reserve 13.2 15.7 184
ULAE 1.6 2.2 2.7
IBNR 15.8 15.8 17.4
Total assumed domestic reser 30.6 33.7 38.5
Assumed Londol
Case reserve 4.7 5.8 5.9
ULAE 0.2 0.4 0.6
IBNR 1.2 1.4 2.5
Total assumed London resen 6.1 7.6 9.0
Total asbestos reserv 47.8 50.7 55.5
Environmental
Case reserve 2.8 3.3 3.5
ULAE 0.1 0.3 0.4
IBNR 3.2 3.2 5.2
Total environmental reservi 6.1 6.8 9.1
Risk management reserv 257.1 264.3 272.€
Rur-off reinsurance reservi 4.1 5.8 14.4
Other rur-off lines 3.4 4.9 6.7
Total loss reserve- Rur-off Lines $ 318t $ 3325 $ 358.¢

We perform an extensive actuarial analysis of steeatos and environmental reserves on at leastrarabbasis. We continually monitor
status of the claims and may make adjustmentsdmutie annual review period. The review entailetaited analysis of our direct and assu
exposure. We consider the indications from theousriactuarial methods from the review to deternoinebest estimate of the asbestos
environmental losses and loss adjustment expesseves. We primarily relied on a method that prisjdéature reported claims and severi
with some weight given to other methods. This mdthelies most heavily on our historical claims a®Verity information, whereas otl
methods rely more heavily on industry informatidhe method produces an
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estimate of IBNR losses based on projections afréutlaims and the average severity for those éutlaims. The severities were calculi
based on our specific data and in our opinion tefktct our liabilities based upon the insuranckcpes issued.

The following table represents a reconciliatiortt@ number of asbestos and environmental clainganding:

For the Years Ended December 3]

2014 2013 2012
Open claims, beginning of the ye 1,47¢ 1,784 2,122
Claims closed during the ye 415 477 540
Claims opened during the ye 211 172 202
Open claims, end of the ye 1,27t 1,47¢ 1,784

The following table represents gross payments besies and environmental claims:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Gross payments on closed clai $ 77 $ 6.7 $ 10.3
Gross payments on open clai 11.C 10.2 8.8
Total gross paymen $ 18.7 $ 16.9 $ 19.1

Because of the types of coverage within the Bfiri-ines of business still being serviced by Argahlnsurance Company, a significant am
of subjectivity and uncertainty exists in estalilighthe reserves for losses and loss adjustmenénsgs. Factors that increase t
uncertainties are: (1) lack of historical data, iipplicability of standard actuarial projecti@chniques, (3) uncertainties regarding ultir
claim costs, (4) coverage interpretations andi{g)judicial, statutory and regulatory environmaumsler which these claims may ultimately
resolved. Significant uncertainty remains as towtimate liability due to the potentially long wiaig period between exposure and emerg
of any bodily injury or property damage and theutisg potential for involvement of multiple poligyeriods for individual claims. Due to th
uncertainties, the current trends may not be inidieaof future results. Although we have determirgetl recorded our best estimate of
reserves for losses and loss adjustment expensBsaifoff Lines, current judicial and legislative decissocontinue to broaden liability, exp:
policy scopes and increase the severity of claimgnents. As a result of these and other recentlal@vents, the uncertainties inherer
estimating ultimate loss reserves are heightengthdr complicating the already complex procesdetérmining loss reserves. The industr
a whole is involved in extensive litigation oveesie coverages and liability issues continue to nitakificult to quantify these exposures.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The primary sources of our cash flows are premiumad)surance recoveries, proceeds from sales aeimmions of investments &
investment income. The primary cash outflows aeéntlpayments, loss adjustment expenses, reinsu@sts and operating expenses.
nature of insurance is that cash collected for jwera written is invested, interest and dividends @arned thereon and loss and settle
expenses are paid out over a period of years. déni®d of time varies by line of business and tleuenstances surrounding each clain
substantial portion of our losses and loss expeasepaid out after more than one year. Additiarzah outflows occur through payment
underwriting and acquisition costs such as commissitaxes, payroll and general overhead expeMsasagement believes that cash rec
from premiums, proceeds from investment sales addmptions and investment income are sufficiesbiger cash outflows in the foresee:
future. Should the need for additional cash arisebelieve we have access to additional sourcbguodlity.

Cash provided (used) by operating activities cantflate due to timing difference in the collectampremiums and reinsurance recoveries
the payment of losses and expenses. For the yedesl ©@ecember 31, 2014 and 2012, cash provideghésating activities was $130.5 milli
and $30.5 million, respectively, while cash usedpegrating activities was $0.2 million for the yesided December 31, 2013. For 2014,

provided by operating activities was primarily dtee increased collections on our reinsurance re@hles on paid losses offset by

settlement of our reinsurance payable due to &gy of the Syndicate 1200 segmenmEmaining whole account quota share contractrouy
segment loss reserves for 2009 and prior yearsamfuat in addition to the closing of the 2011 yefaccount. The decrease in cash flows
operations in 2013 compared to 2012 was primatilg tb net cash payment of $86.2 million in parsieitlement of a whole account g
share contract covering the Syndicate 1200 seglossireserves for the 2009 and prior years of adcdihe source of cash used to settle
reinsurance payable was the sale of fixed matasgets, and is included in the cash from investatiyities of our Statements of Cash Flow.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 201Zaskt used by investing activities was $121.3 amilland $3.7 million, respective
compared to net cash provided by investing actisitf $120.8 million for the year ended December2B13. The decrease in cash flows f
investing activities from 2014 to 2103 was maitilg tesult of the sale of fixed maturity assets used
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settle the Syndicate 1200 segmentinsurance payable in 2013 and fewer salesvalstments in 2014 as cash from operations assis
meeting operational activities. Also, the increaseash flows from investing activities from 20122013 was mainly the result of the sal
fixed maturity assets used to settle the Syndita@® segmens reinsurance payable. As of December 31, 20143 284 2012, $275.8 millic
$351.6 million and $234.3 million, respectively,tbé investment portfolio were invested in shortrténvestments.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an#, 2@t cash used by financing activities was $82iion, $59.5 million and $33
million, respectively. During 2014, 2013 and 20&&, repurchased approximately 1.0 million, 1.1 milliand 1.5 million shares, respectiv
of our common shares for a total cost of $50.8iaom|l $46.5 million and $44.2 million, respectivelle paid dividends to our shareholc
totaling $18.2 million, $15.8 million and $12.3 tiwh during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2632012, respectively. During 20
we paid $18.0 million for the extinguishment of oofeour fixed rate trust preferred securities. Aulfially, during 2012, we used $11
million for the redemption of two of our fixed rateust preferred securities and received $138.Taniin net cash proceeds from the issui
of senior unsecured fixed rate notes.

Argo Group and its other holding company subsidmare largely dependent on dividends and othenified payments from their insurai
and reinsurance subsidiaries to pay cash dividemdseir shareholders, for debt service and foirtbperating expenses. The ability of
insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries to pay elids to us is subject to certain restrictions iredoBy the jurisdictions of domicile tt
regulate our immediate insurance and reinsuranbsidiaries and each jurisdiction has calculatioms the amount of dividends that
insurance and reinsurance company can pay withewpproval of the insurance regulator.

In addition, our ability to receive dividends fromur downstream subsidiaries is subject to the tgbilf each parent corporation within
corporate ownership structure to receive divideénais its respective subsidiary(ies), based uporstiiesidiarys domiciliary regulations. Ar¢
Re is the primary direct subsidiary of Argo Grouygas subject to Bermuda insurance laws. Argo hels indirectly owned by Argo Re anc
a mid-level holding company subject to Irish lawsd its primary subsidiary is Argo Group US, Inagé Group US, Inc. is a mikkvel
holding company subject to Delaware laws. Argo @rols, Inc. is the parent of all of our U.S. inswrasubsidiaries.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, Argo Regaash dividend of $40.9 million to Argo Group whiwas used to repay an intercomg
note. For the year ended December 31, 2014, ArgaisJS, Inc. received dividends of $55.2 milliomrfr Colony, $48.8 million froi
Argonaut Insurance Company and $20.0 million froatiRvood.

The payment of dividends by Argo Re is limited unBermuda insurance laws which require Argo Re &ntain certain measures of solve
and liquidity. As of December 31, 2014, the unaedlistatutory capital and surplus of Argo Re wasreded to be $1,278.3 million and

amount required to be maintained was estimatedet&3#0.9 million, thereby allowing Argo Re the putel to pay dividends or capi
distributions within the parameters of the solveaod liquidity margins. We believe that the divideand capital distribution capacity of Al
Re will provide us with sufficient liquidity to méénhe operating and debt service commitments, disas@ther obligations.

During 2015, Argo Group US, Inc. may be permitteddceive dividends from its subsidiaries as folo@olony — $1.7 million, Argonat
Insurance Company — $39.1 million and Rockwood 3.$ million. Business and regulatory consideratioray impact the amount of divide|
actually paid and prior approval of dividend paytsemay be required.

On March 7, 2014, each of Argo Group, Argo Group, Ufs., Argo International Holdings Limited, and g&r Underwriting Agency Limite
(the “Borrowers”) entered into a $175.0 million @ite Agreement (“New Credit AgreementWith JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
administrative agent. The New Credit Agreementaegll and terminated the original $150.0 million diiréA\greement. The New Cre
Agreement provides for a $175.0 million revolvingdit facility with a maturity date of March 7, 201inless extended in accordance witt
terms of the New Credit Agreement. Borrowings untter New Credit Agreement may be used for genesgbazate purposes, includi
working capital and permitted acquisitions, andheafcthe Borrowers has agreed to be jointly aneésa#ly liable for the obligations of the otl
Borrowers under the New Credit Agreement.

The New Credit Agreement contains customary evehtdefault. If an event of default occurs and isitcwing, the Borrowers could

required to repay all amounts outstanding undeMNiae Credit Agreement. Lenders holding at leastagonty of the loans and commitme
under the New Credit Agreement may elect to acatdethe maturity of the loans and/or terminate dbeamitments under the New Cre
Agreement upon the occurrence and during the aeation of an event of default. No defaults or esesftdefaults have occurred as of the
of this filing.

Included in the New Credit Agreement is a providioat allows up to $17.5 million of the revolvingedit facility to be used for letters of cre
(“LOCs"), subject to availability. On March 7, 2014, the $@n2llion LOC outstanding under the original $1500edit Agreement wi
transferred to the New Credit Agreement. As of Delger 31, 2014, there were no borrowings outstandimy$0.2 million in LOCs against
New Credit Facility
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We have two additional LOC facilities totaling $500nillion that allow us to provide LOCs to our aggl companies if such LOC is requi
under the terms of the contract and Lloyd’s to iedfon behalf of Argo (No. 604) Limited, our corpte member at Lloyd. All of the
facilities require us to provide collateral in tleem of fixed maturity securities or cash to thsuisig bank as security for the outstanding L(
We also have a previously issued facility that bim&e been canceled under which we still have aoding LOCs. We no longer have
ability to issue new LOCs from this facility. We siuransfer eligible assets to collateral accopnts to each respective bank issuing an L
Since eligible assets include fixed maturity inwestts, such securities need not be sold in ordequalify as eligible collateral. ,
December 31, 2014, we have pledged assets with eefae of $56.3 million to support outstanding C&

LOCs have been filed with Lloyd’by trade capital providers as part of the terfvghmle account quota share reinsurance contraéses int
by the trade capital providers. In the event su€@Ck are funded, the outstanding balance would berébponsibility of the trade cap
providers.

Under certain insurance programs (i.e., large d#alecprograms and surety bonds) and various reamae agreements, collateral and Lt
are held for our benefit to secure performancesfiieds and reinsurers in meeting their obligatidn®ecember 31, 2014, the amount of ¢
collateral and LOCs held under insurance and resmae agreements were $550.3 million and $359.Homjlrespectively. Collateral can
provided in the form of trust accounts. As we & beneficiary of these trust accounts only to etuture performance, these amounts ar
reflected in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. @olhprovided by an insured or reinsurer may eaaaefall below their total outstandi
obligation.

Through a series of trusts, that are wholly-ownabsgliaries (norconsolidated), we issued trust preferred securiflé® interest on tl
underlying debentures is variable with the rateéadeeset quarterly and subject to certain interat ceilings. Interest payments are pay
quarterly. The debentures are all unsecured andsatverdinated to other indebtedness. All are reddénsubject to certain terms
conditions at a price equal to 100% of the prinkjpas accrued and unpaid interest.

On July 16, 2014, Argo Group US, Inc. purchaseddhtstanding PXRE Capital Trust V $20,000,000 Jusiabordinated Debt Securit
(“Capital Trust V") at a discount equal to 90.0% of the principal amqlus accrued and unpaid interest through the afgpeirchase for a tof
price of $18.2 million. As of December 31, 2014 tbapital Trust V has not yet been redeemed ardeistt will continue to accrue and be |
until the redemption date. In accordance with AS#pi¢ 405, “Liabilities,”we have eliminated the outstanding debt, associatedest an
intercompany balances related to the purchaseeofCtipital Trust V since the purchase was made Iy Aroup Us, Inc. In essence,
reduces our outstanding debt related to the J@ubordinated Debentures.

A summary of our outstanding junior subordinatedegdgures at December 31, 2014 is presented below:

55

(in millions)
Interest Rate at
Issue Date Trust Preferred Pools Maturity Redeemable Rate Structure December 31, 201.  Amount
Argo Group
05/15/200: PXRE Capital Statutory Trust 05/15/203= 05/15/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 4.10% 4.33% $ 181
11/06/200: PXRE Capital Trust V 09/30/203= 09/30/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.90% 4.16% 10.3
Argo Group US
05/15/200=  Argonaut Group Statutory Trus 05/15/203= 05/15/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 4.10% 4.33% 155
12/16/200%  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust | 01/08/2034 01/08/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 4.10% 4.33% 12.3
04/29/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust | 04/29/2034 04/29/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.85% 4.08% 134
05/26/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust 05/24/2034 05/24/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.85% 4.08% 12.3
05/12/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust 05/12/2034 06/01/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.80% 4.04% 134
09/17/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust V 12/15/2034 09/17/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.60% 3.84% 15.5
09/22/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust VI 09/22/2034 09/22/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.55% 3.80% 15.5
10/22/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust | 12/15/2034 12/15/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.60% 3.84% 15.5
09/15/2005  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust 09/15/2035 09/15/201C 3M LIBOR + 3.40% 3.64% 30.9
Total Outstanding $ 1727




We assumed debt through the acquisition of Argo@li&@yndicate 1200. These notes are unsecuredré\legleemable subject to certain te
and conditions at a price up to 100% of the priaciplus accrued and unpaid interest. Interest enUtss. Dollar and Euro notes is 1
semiannually and quarterly, respectively. A sumntdrhe notes outstanding at December 31, 2014esented below:

(in millions)
Interest Rate at

Issue Date Currency Maturity Redeemable Rate Structure December 31, 201. Amount
12/08/2004 U.S. Dollar 11/15/2034 12/08/200¢ 6 month LIBOR + 4.2% 4.53% $ 6.5
09/06/200¢ Euro 08/22/203¢& 09/06/201C 3 month LIBOR + 4.0% 4.08% 14.9
10/31/200¢ U.S. Dollar 01/15/203¢€ 01/15/2011 6 month LIBOR + 4.0% 4.33% 10.C
10/31/200¢ Euro 11/22/203¢ 10/31/2011 3 month LIBOR + 4.0% 4.08% 13.1
06/08/2007 Euro 09/15/2037 06/08/201z2 3 month LIBOR + 3.9% 3.98% 16.8

$ 61.3

Throughout 2014, 2013 and 2012, we had no prefesinades outstanding.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, our Boaddrmecquarterly dividends in the aggregate amot$0db9 per share. Cash dividends |
for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $hdldn. On February 17, 2015, our Board declaregliarterly cash dividend in the ama
of $0.20 on each share of common stock outstandihg.dividend will be paid on March 19, 2015 to rethelders of record at the close
business on March 2, 2015. In addition, our Boardated a 10% stock dividend, payable on March2085, to shareholders of record at
close of business on March 2, 2015. The cash eliddvill be paid on the adjusted number of comnf@res outstanding. The declaration
payment of future dividends to our shareholdesat ithe discretion of our Board and will depend upan financial results, cash requireme
future prospects and other factors deemed reldaatir Board.

On November 5, 2013, our Board authorized the wasge of up to $150.0 million of our common sh&f2813 Repurchase Authorization”
The 2013 Repurchase Authorization supersedes @alptavious repurchase authorizations. These slaaeebeing held as treasury share
accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda CorigzaAct 1981. As of December 31, 2014, availabilinder the 2013 Repurchi
Authorization for future repurchases of our commsbares was $92.8 million.

We invest excess cash in a variety of investmeotriiees. As of December 31, 2014, our investmenttfplio consisted of 69.3% fix¢
maturities, 11.9% equity securities, 12.1% otheesiments and 6.7% shderm investments (based on fair value) comparegPto% fixec
maturities, 13.1% equity securities, 9.3% otheestments and 8.6% shaerm investments as of December 31, 2013. We §jabs& majority
of our investment portfolio as available-feale; resulting in these investments being repaatef@dir market value with unrealized gains
losses, net of tax, being reported as a comporfesttaveholderséquity. At December 31, 2014, no investments wesghated as trading. |
issuer (excluding United States Government andddn8tates Governmental agencies) of fixed matwritgquity securities represents r
than 2.6 % of shareholders’ equity at Decembe2814.

Our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries retjgiriglity and adequate capital to meet ongoinggsilbns to policyholders and claimants
fund operating expenses. During the year ended Deee31, 2014, cash flow provided by operations $630.5 million. Based on currt
premium volumes and other measures of capital gedlin our business, we determined we had excgstalcand, therefore, returned cag
to our shareholders through the share bagk program and through dividend payments to bareholders. We believe our liquidity gener:
from operations and, if required, from our investimgortfolio, will be sufficient to meet our obligans for the foreseeable future. We bel
we have access to various sources of liquidityuidicly cash, investments and the ability to borravdar our revolving credit facilit
Additionally, we continue to have access to thetdelal equity markets, though we currently do noédee needing access to these sour¢
capital.

We believe we maintain sufficient liquidity to palaims and expenses, as well as satisfy our comenitsnin the event of unforeseen ev
such as reinsurer insolvencies, inadequate premates or reserve deficiencies.

We maintain a comprehensive reinsurance progratevals management considers adequate to divensikyand safeguard our financ
position. Increases ithe costs of this program, or the failure of ounsarers to meet their obligations in a timely fash may have a negati
impact on liquidity.

Transactions with Related Parties

The discussion of transactions with related paitigacluded in Note 24, “Transactions with Relatatties”in the Notes to the Consolida
Financial Statements, included in Item 8, “FinahSi@mtements and Supplementary Data” beginningage f--1.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have committed to invest up to a total of $358@iion in a series of private equity related lted partnerships, of which $286.1 mill
was funded and included in other invested assaisriconsolidated balance sheet. As of Decembe2@®14, we have a remaining obligatiol
the partnerships to invest up to an additional $#gillion, which can be called at any time. We hawe recorded this commitment in
consolidated financial statements. The investmahtb& recorded at such time as the capital pastniprrequires the additional investm:
Additionally, we have not recorded the liabiliti®s our operating leases in our consolidated fingratatements.

Other than as described in the immediately precegaragraph, we have not entered into anybafince sheet arrangements, as define
Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K at December 31,20

Contractual Obligations

Our estimated contractual obligations and commitsas of December 31, 2014 were as follows:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less Than 1

(in millions) Total Year 1-3Years 3-5 Years Thereafter
Long-term debt

Junior subordinated debentu®) $ 309.E % 70 $ 140 $ 146 $ 273.¢

Senior unsecured fixed rate no(@) 403.C 9.3 18.7 18.7 356.8

Floating rate loan stoc®) 115.¢ 2.5 5.1 5.1 103.1

Note payable 0.6 — — — 0.6
Operating lease 51.7 11.1 17.3 13.9 9.4
Purchase obligatior) 70.9 10.8 23.0 24.4 12.7
Contingent consideration for asset purct®) 6.5 — 6.5 — —
Other lon¢-term liabilities:

Claim payment(®) 3,042.¢ 874.€ 1,034.1 469.2 664.2

Multi-year reinsurance contre(? 79.5 26.5 53.0 — —

Catastrophe bond progre 70.6 22.0 43.3 5.3 —

Partnership commitmen(® 72.9 72.9 — — —
Total contractual obligatior $ 4,223+ $ 1,036.¢ $ 1,215.C $ 551.2 $ 1,420.2

@ Interest only on Junior Subordinated Debenturesutyin 2033. Interest calculated based on the raeffact at December 31, 20
Principal due beginning May 203

@ Interest only on Senior Unsecured Fixed Rate Ntitesugh 2042. Interest calculated based on theimagéfect at December 31, 20
Principal due September 20:

®  Interest only on Floating Rate Loan Stock throu§B4 Interest calculated based on the rate in teffieDecember 31, 2014. Principal
beginning November 203

@  Purchase obligations consist primarily of softwémardware and equipment servicing and softwaredicg fees

®  Contingent consideration for asset purchasesiipasd at the maximum payout if profit targets raet.

®  Claim payments do not have a contractual matuekgct timing of claim payments cannot be predietéth certainty. The above tal
estimates timing of claim payments based on hisdbpayment patterns and excludes the benefitsin$urance recoverie

(M Multi-year reinsurance contrastbase terms, as reflected in the above tableydacpremium per annum of $26.5 million during
remaining coverage period of January 1, 2015 toeBder 31, 2017. Based on the loss results of delered by the contract, additio
annual premium installments ranging between $13illom and $39.0 million may be due beginning Jamyub, 2015. The contre
contains an early termination clause whereby we teayinate the contract at December 31, 2015 ore®ber 31, 2016, subject
meeting certain contractual stipulatio

®  Argo Group has invested in multiple limited parstép agreements and can be called to fulfill thigakions at any time

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The discussion of the adoption and pending adomforecently issued accounting policies is includedote 1, Business and Significe
Accounting Policies” in the Notes to the Consol@hFinancial Statements, included in Item 8, “F@ianhStatements and Supplementary Datz
beginning on page F-1.
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Critical Accounting Estimates
Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expel

We establish reserves for the estimated total uhgasts of losses including loss adjustment exme(feAE"), for losses that occurred in 2(
and prior. Unless otherwise specified below, tment “loss reserveséncompasses reserves for both losses and LAE. regssves refle
managemen$ best estimate of the total cost of (i) claimst thave been incurred, but not yet paid and (ii) BBNlaims. Loss reserv
established are not an exact calculation of oupiliip. Rather, loss reserves represent manageémémsst estimate of our liability based
application of actuarial techniques and other mtiga methodologies and taking into consideratitrenfacts and circumstances known a
balance sheet date. The process of establishsg) rfeserves is complex and necessarily imprecgeét mvolves using judgment that
impacted by many internal and external variableh sis past loss experience, current claim trendstenprevailing social, economic and l¢
environments. In determining loss reserves, we gareful consideration to all available data actdarial analyses and this process invc
significant judgment.

The relevant factors and methodologies used tmasti loss reserves vary significantly by produnt ldue to differences in loss exposure
claim complexity. Much of our business is undeneriton an occurrence basis, meaning that therebmay significant time lag between
event that gives rise to a claim and the date orttwthe claim is reported to us, which can alsailteim additional time being required
resolve the claim. During these time lags, which span several years for complex claims, new faats information specific to the cla
become known to us, and general econometric aridtabtrends including inflation continue to changequiring us to refine our loss rese
estimates on a regular basis. We apply a stridtneg to assure that review of these facts and sramturs on a timely basis so that
information can be factored into our estimate dfife liabilities. However, due to the number anteptial magnitude of these variables, ac
paid losses in future periods may differ materidiym our estimates as reflected in current reseribese differences can be favorabl
unfavorable. More precise estimation of loss reseiig also hindered by the effects of growth iina bf business and uncertainty as to
new business performs over time. In addition temaag for known claim events, we also establisssloeserves for IBNR. Loss reserves
IBNR are set using our actuarial estimates for t/thrat have occurred as of the balance sheebdateave yet been reported to us. Estimi
of IBNR loss reserves is subject to significantentainty.

Following is a summary of gross and net loss ressewe recorded by line of business:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in millions) Gross Net Gross Net
General liability $ 1,355.¢ $ 913.C $ 1,341.C $ 924.¢
Workers compensatic 536.¢ 327.¢ 541.2 337.7
Syndicate 1200 liabilit 295t 202.4 392.¢ 172.¢
Syndicate 1200 proper 130.1 99.2 264.¢ 136.€
Commercial mul-peril 198.: 164.€ 203.7 171.C
Commercial auto liability 165.2 158.: 172.€ 167.C
Reinsuranc- nonproportional assumed prope 105.¢ 79.7 124.C 97.9
Syndicate 1200 special 304 18.7 74.5 35.6
All other lines 224.4 173.8 115.€ 63.8

Total reserve $ 3,042.¢ 2,137.1  $ 3,230.2 % 2,107.¢

Loss Reserve Estimation Methc

The process for estimating our loss reserves begitisthe collection and analysis of claim datéheTdata collected for actuarial analy
includes reported claims, paid losses and caseveesstimates sorted by the year the loss occuiféé. data sets are sorted into homoger
groupings, exhibiting similar loss and exposurerabgeristics. We primarily use internal data ie #imalysis but also consider industry da
developing factors and estimates. We analyzersssrves on a quarterly basis.

We use a variety of actuarial techniques and methodietermine loss reserves for all lines of bessn Each such method has its own ¢
assumptions and outputs, and each has strengtheealhesses in different areas. Since no singimatson method is superior to anot
method in all situations, the methods and assumgtised to project loss reserves will vary by bhdusiness. We use what we believe t
the most appropriate set of actuarial methods asdmptions for each product line grouping. WHile koss projection methods may vary
product line, the general approach for calculatBiyR remains the same: ultimate losses are foreddstt, and that amount is reduced by
amount of cumulative paid claims and case reserves.

When we initially establish IBNR reserves at theyibaing of an accident year for each line of busijewe use the expected loss |
method. This method is based upon our analysdsstdrical loss ratios incorporating adjustmentsgdcing changes, anticipated loss r
trends, changes in reinsurance structure and dy tactors that may impact loss ratio expectatiokisthe end of each
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quarter, we review the loss ratio selections arnel ¢imerged loss experience to determine if deviatiogn the loss ratio method
appropriate. In general, we continue to use tke tatio method until the end of the accident yatwhich time we begin to assign weigl
the paid and incurred BF methods depending onitieedf business being evaluated. The BF methodgpate IBNR through a blend of 1
expected loss ratio method and traditional lossligment methods. The BF methods estimate IBNRafoaccident year as the produc
expected losses (earned premium multiplied by gpeeed loss ratio) plus an expected percentagencdported losses. The exper
percentage of unreported losses is derived fromt@agéiimate loss development factors that result froan analyses of loss developmr
triangles. As accident years mature to the pdinthdch the reported loss experience is more ctediie assign increasing weight to the |
and incurred loss development methods.

For shorttail lines of business such as property, the exguetbss ratio method is initially selected and eguplto earned premium at -
beginning of an accident year. As property logsasur and are reported, and when claims adjustere bufficient time and information
make specific claims estimates, the BF methodsused to supplement the expected loss ratio metRogperty losses are generally repc
within a short time from the date of loss, and iestinstances, property claims are settled and pétidin a relatively short period
time. Therefore, paid and incurred developmenthiois are given greater weight in our analysesettid of the accident year. In the e
there are large claims incurred, we will analyzegdaloss information separately to ensure thatltiss reserving methods appropria
recognize the magnitude of these losses in thaiatiah of ultimate losses.

For longtail lines such as general liability and automobhaéility, the starting point for determining utiate losses is initially the expected
ratio method. The time lag for reporting claimgyieater in liability lines of business than itinsshorttail lines. Facts and information .
frequently not complete at the time case reservesstablished, and because protracted litigaospimetimes involved potentially crea
additional uncertainty in final settlement amourtase reserves alone are an insufficient measutdeoilltimate loss costs. Due to
variability in the timing of receipt and completeseof case reserve data, loss experience is notedehilly credible for several years. At
end of the accident year, we rely primarily on BlEemethods and continue to rely on those methodseweral years. We assign greater wt
to the paid and incurred development methods addtematures.

Workers compensation is also a lowag-line of business. An expected loss ratio rodtis used for the initial evaluations of an acoidgear
followed by paid and incurred BF loss developmenthdologies as well as paid and incurred developmethods as the data matures.
development for workers compensation spans mangsyédtowever, a significant portion of the outstagdreserves correspond to sched
annuity payments and are not subject to extrematili). The portion of reserves that is not salled or annuitized is subject to potenti
large variations in ultimate loss cost due to tmeentainty of medical cost inflation. Sources oédital cost inflation include increas
utilization, new and more expensive medical testirmcedures and increased utilization and costegquiption drugs.

We have a Rupff Lines segment that includes reserves for asBegnvironmental and other latent exposures. &lasnt exposures
typically characterized by extended periods of timeéwveen the dates we first became exposed tosadodaim was reported and the clai
resolved. For our Run-off Lines segment ldat-loss reserves, there is significant uncertaintolved in estimating reserves for asbe:
environmental and other latent injury claims. Ve several methods to estimate reserves for thaisesancluding an approach that proje
future calendar period claims and severities, antegear method which estimates loss reserves basdlde pattern and magnitude of repc
claims and groundyp analysis that relies on an evaluation of indiaidpolicy terms and conditions. We also consglawival ratio and mark
share methods which compare our level of loss veseand loss payments to that of the industry iioilar exposures. We apply grea
weight to the method that projects future calenpdarod claims and severities because we belidvesit captures the unique claim reporting
severity characteristics of the underlying exposward loss development potential. We perform baréwiew of our Rureff Lines asbesto
environmental and other latent exposures lossveseat least once a year and review loss activigrtgrly for significant changes that mi
impact management’s best estimate.

Each business segment is analyzed individuallyh diéivelopment characteristics for each short-tail langtail line of business identified a
applied accordingly. In comparing loss reserve hoe$ and assumptions used at December 31, 2014mpaced with methods a
assumptions used at December 31, 2014, manageagenbhchanged or adjusted methodologies or asgmaph any significant manner.

In conducting our actuarial analyses, we genemisume that past patterns demonstrated in thendat@peat themselves and that the |
provides a basis for estimating future loss reserie the event that we become aware of a matehiahge that may render past experi
inappropriate for the purpose of estimating curress reserves, we will attempt to quantify theeeffof the change and use inforr
management judgment to adjust loss reserve foeapgiropriately.
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Uncertainties in Loss Reserve Estimation

The major causes of uncertainty will vary for eachduct line reviewed. For shaa# property lines of business, we are exposezhtastroph
losses, both natural and manmade. Due to theeafurertain catastrophic loss events, such ascangs, earthquakes or terrorist attacks
normal claims resolution processes may be impaitedto factors such as difficulty in accessing intpd areas and other physical, legal
regulatory impediments. These factors can malkablshhment of accurate loss reserve estimatesdliffand render such estimates subje
greater uncertainty. Additionally, if the catagtne occurs near the end of a financial reportimipgethere are additional uncertainties in
reserve estimates due to the lack of sufficienetimconduct a thorough analysis. Ldag-casualty lines of business also present chgdls it
establishing appropriate loss reserves, partigularthe event of changes in the legal environnoaetr time which may broaden our liability
scope of policy coverage and increase the magnatidiaim payments.

In all lines, final claim payments may differ fraime established loss reserve. Due to the uncédsidiscussed above, the ultimate losses
vary materially from current loss reserves and ddwdve a material adverse effect on our futurenfifed condition, results of operations
cash flows. Any adjustments to loss reservesedtected in the results for the year during which &djustments are made.

In addition to the previously described generalantainties encountered in estimating loss resethese are significant additional uncertain
in estimating the amount of our potential lossesnfrasbestos and environmental claims. Loss resdoveasbestos and environmental cle
normally cannot be estimated with traditional lesserving techniques that rely on historical aatidgear development factors due to
uncertainties surrounding these types of claimsoAg the uncertainties impacting the estimatiosurh losses are:

» potentially long waiting periods between exposurd amergence of any bodily injury or property damag

» difficulty in identifying sources of environmentai asbestos contamination and in properly allogat@sponsibility and/or liability fc
environmental or asbestos dame

« changes in underlying laws and judicial interpiietabf those laws;

« potential for an environmental or asbestos claiimtolve many insurance providers over many pofieyiods;

« long reporting delays from insureds to insuranaaganies;

« historical data concerning asbestos and envirorethrgtses which is more limited than historicabimfiation on other types of clairr

« questions concerning interpretation and applicatfimsurance coverage; and

« uncertainty regarding the number and identity sfineds with potential asbestos or environmentabsxe.

Case reserves and expense reserves for costs atkdelitigation have been established where sefiiciinformation has be
developed. Additionally, IBNR has been establisteedover additional exposure on known and unknolams.

We underwrite environmental and pollution coveragea limited number of policies and undergroundasie tanks. We establish loss rese
to the extent that, in the judgment of managentaetfacts and prevailing law reflect an exposureufo

Risk Factors by Line of Business in Loss Reserim&tson

The following section details reserving considenasi and loss and LAE risk factors for the linesespnting most of our loss reserves. |
risk factor presented will have a different impaat required loss reserves. Also, risk factors ltave offsetting or compounding effects
required loss reserves. For example, introductinod approval of a more expensive medical procecuag result in higher estimates
medical inflation costs. But in the workers comgetion context, the availability of that same mabjrocedure may enable workers to re
to work more quickly, thereby lowering estimates iftdemnity costs for that line of business. Assult, it usually is not possible to iden
and measure the impact that a change in one distgs&tfactor may have or construct a meaningfokgiity expectation around it. We do
make explicit estimates of the impact on loss resestimates for the assumptions related to thefaitors described below.

Loss adjustment expenses used in connection withoss reserves are comprised of both allocatedusatiocated expenses. Allocated
adjustment expenses generally relate to speciiencfiles. We often combine allocated loss adjésttrexpenses with losses for purpose
projecting ultimate liabilities. For some typesaiims, such as asbestos, environmental and giofes liability, allocated loss adjustm
expenses consisting primarily of legal defense scastly be significant, sometimes exceeding the liigbio indemnify claimants fc
losses. Unallocated loss adjustment expensesabnelate to the administration and handling

60




of claims in the ordinary course of business. Wgcally calculate unallocated loss adjustment espereserves using a percentage of ul
losses for each line of business.

General Liability

General liability is considered a longi line, as it takes a relatively long periodtifie to finalize and resolve all claims from a givaccider
year. The speed at which claims are received lzenl tesolved is a function of the specific covenageided, jurisdiction in which the claim
located and specific policy provisions. There atenerous components underlying the general lighpitoduct line. Some of these h
relatively moderate payout patterns with most af thaims for a given accident year closed withire fio seven years, while others
characterized by extreme time lags for both repgréind payment of claims. In addition, this linelides asbestos and environmental clz
which are reviewed separately because of the unitpaeacter of these exposures. Allocated losssadpnt expenses in this line con
primarily of legal costs and may exceed the totabant of the indemnity loss on some claims.

Major factors contributing to uncertainty in logserve estimates for general liability include réipg lags (i.e., the length of time between
event triggering coverage and the actual repominthe claim), the number of parties involved ie tlnderlying tort action, events trigget
coverage that are spread over multiple time perits inability to know in advance what actual imagty costs will be associated with
individual claim, the potential for disputes ovenether claims were reasonably foreseeable anddetkto be covered at the time the conti
were underwritten and the potential for mass tlaints and class actions. Generally, claims withreyer reporting lag time are character
by greater inherent risk of uncertainty.

Examples of loss and LAE risk factors associateth weneral liability claims that can change ovemnetiand result in adjustments to |
reserves include, but are not limited to, the folloy:

Claims risk factors:

« Changes in claim handling procedures;

« Changes in policy provisions or court interpretatod such provisions;

« New theories of liability

« Trends in jury awards;

« Changes in the propensity to sue, in general attuspiecificity to particular issues;
« Changes in statutes of limitations;

« Changes in the underlying court system;

« Changes in tort law;

« Shifts in law suit mix between U.S. federal andestaourts; and

« Changes in inflation.

Book of Business risk factors:

« Changes in policy provisions (e.g., deductibledicgdimits, endorsements);
« Changes in underwriting standards; and
o Product mix (e.g., size of account, industries iedujurisdiction mix).

Actuarial methods used to forecast ultimate lisibsi for general liability are adjusted to takeoimonsideration the uncertainties relate
handling claims expected to remain open for anneldd period of time as well as the Claims and BafdRusiness risk factors noted above.

Workers Compensation

Workers compensation is generally considered a-taitgoverage as it takes a relatively long perddime to finalize claims from a givi
accident year. Certain payments, such as initiatioal treatment or temporary wage replacementtier injured worker, are genere
disbursed quickly. Other payments are made owvercturse of several years, such as awards for pembgartial injuries. Some payme
continue to take place throughout the injured woskiEfe, such as permanent disability benefits andgoing
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medical care. Although longil in nature, claims generally are not subjectoing reporting lags, settlements are generallycoohplex an
most of the liability exposure is characterizedhiigh frequency and moderate severity. The largesdrve risks are generally associated
low frequency, high severity claims that requifetime coverage for medical expense arising fronoeker’s injury.

Examples of loss and LAE risk factors that can geaover time and cause workers compensation lessues to fluctuate include, but are
limited to, the following:

Indemnity claims risk factors:

« Time required to recover from the injury;

» Degree of available transitional jobs;

» Degree of legal involvement;

« Changes in the interpretations and processes afdhieers compensation commissions’ oversight ahtla
» Future wage inflation for U.S. states that inderddis;

« Changes in the administrative policies of secofutynfunds; and

« Changes in benefit levels.

Medical claims risk factors:

« Changes in the cost of medical treatments, inctugiescription drugs, and underlying fee schedules;
« Frequency of visits to health providers;

« Number of medical procedures given during visithealth providers

« Types of health providers used;

« Type of medical treatments received;

« Use of preferred provider networks and other mediost containment practices;

« Availability of new medical processes and equipment

« Changes in life expectancy;

« Changes in the use of pharmaceutical drugs; and

« Degree of patient responsiveness to treatment.

Book of Business risk factors:

o Injury type mix;
« Changes in underwriting standards; and
« Changing product mix based on insured demand.

Syndicate 1200 Liability and Property

Our Syndicate 1200 segment loss reserves are adatyrarterly by internal staff at ArgoGlobal Syrad& 1200. Additionally, we employ &
independent actuary to conduct a detailed reviewos$ reserves annually. Managemengstimate of reserves is based on the ini
study. The external study is completed to supth@actuarial opinion for Lloyd’s reporting.

We use several approaches and actuarial technigua®ject gross and net loss reserves. For ptpfiaes of business, we review our |
reserves considering the underlying claims. We paie and incurred loss development as our prinmaeghods for determining ultime
losses. Additionally, we consider expected losi®sapricing trends and any other variations i@ llusiness underwritten, including change
underlying terms and conditions. Catastrophicneldiabilities and other large losses are inheremtlgre volatile than attritional loss
therefore, we use other loss forecasting methodedog-or known catastrophic claims, we initialgfyron industry estimates and informa
from third-party modeling software to determine our exposuss.catastrophic events mature, specific claimrimfation we receive is used
refine our initial loss estimate. After approximlgtfour to six months
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from the date of the catastrophic event, our remblbsses relative to the event are assigned &ignifcredibility. However, it may be seve
years before ultimate loss amounts are fully kn@srdisputes over policy coverage or the relevamtgaverning a claim cause uncertaint
the estimation of outcomes. The observed largs lostterns are subsequently adjusted by changesderlying exposures and r
characteristics.

For the long-tail lines underwritten by ArgoGlot&lndicate 1200 such as professional indemnity and general ltgbit may be several ye:
before claims are fully advised and settled. Targd time lag involved for reporting and settlinigims introduces a large amount
uncertainty into the loss estimation process. leoggerience is not deemed fully credible for selvgears. Until the time that an underwrit
year of account is closed, we use an expectedriiss method to determine ultimate losses, supphtetkeby paid and incurred BF ¢
development methods, to the extent that the regdotes data matures and is considered credible.

We perform our loss reserve analysis on a syndibagts, which represents 100% of the business wmitken by the syndicate. We
reinsurance to cede a proportion of its premiunomne and incurred losses to reinsurers. The pexgentdf the cession differs for e
underwriting year of account. The reinsuressiare of provisions for claims is based on caledlaamounts of outstanding claims
projections for IBNR, net of estimated unrecovesadiinounts. ArgoGlobal Syndicate 128@luates the reinsurance program in place fc
class of business, claims experience for the ye@isacurity rating of the reinsurance companieslired.

Commercial Multiple Peril

Commercial multiple peril lines insure a combinatiof property and liability exposures, and therefoinclude both short and lorgH
coverage. Property coverage claims are genemsdlyived in a short period of time, while liabiltpverage claims generally require more
to resolve. The risk of fluctuation in loss resexfor this line is predominately associated widility coverage with risk factors similar
other general liability lines described above.

Because commercial multiple peril lines involve hshort-tail and longail coverage, we give weight to different methadpés in derivin
estimated loss reserves based on the coverage beahgated. In general, paid and incurred loseldgvwment methods are used to fore
property losses. For liability losses, due to@&ms and Book of Business risk factors describetie General Liability section above, we
several loss reserving methods to capture the deweint characteristics associated with these lofeBusiness. Paid and incurred
development, paid and incurred BF methods andsafteguency/severity method are used in derivirignased loss reserves.

Commercial Automobile Liability

The commercial automobile liability product lineadongtail coverage, mainly due to exposures arisingoddtodily injury claims. Losses
this line associated with bodily injury claims gealy are more difficult to accurately estimate aakle longer to resolve. Claim reporting |
also can be lengthy. Examples of loss and LAE fékors that can change over time and result juostmients to commercial automol
liability loss reserves include, but are not lirdite, the following:

Claims risk factors:

« Trends in jury awards;

« Changes in the underlying court system;

« Changes in case law;

» Litigation trends;

» Subrogation opportunities;

« Changes in claim handling procedures;

« Frequency of visits to health providers;

« Number of medical procedures given during visithéalth providers
» Types of health providers used;

» Types of medical treatments received;

« Changes in cost of medical treatments; and

« Degree of patient responsiveness to treatment.
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Book of Business risk factors:

« Changes in policy provisions (e.g., deductibledicgdimits, endorsements, etc.);
« Changes in mix of insured vehicles; and
« Changes in underwriting standards.

Reinsurance- Nonproportional Assumed Property

As a property catastrophe reinsurer, incurred bsse inherently more volatile than those of pryriasurers and reinsurers of risks that t
an established historical pattern of losses. Thstmignificant uncertainty in reserves involvetineates of catastrophe losses. In reservin
catastrophe losses, estimates are influenced bgrwniting information provided by clients, clientsiarket shares, industry catastrophe mo
industry loss estimates and internal analyses isfitfiormation. This reserving approach can caigaificant development from initial lo
estimates in the immediate wake of a catastroplemtestue to the limited information available to as a reinsurer regarding the ac
underlying losses. This process can cause thaatki estimates to differ significantly from init@lojections.

The loss estimation process often begins with temtification of events with characteristics simita the recent catastrophe (geogra
location, wind speed, damageability, etc.), whiclnt results in a list of the expected losses byraonfrom our proprietary risk managen
system. Third-party modeling software is embeddeslr proprietary risk management system.

Concurrently, underwriting teams employ a markeirehapproach as well as perform a thorough conbtatontract analysis to ident
potential changes to the expected loss estimatdsding IBNR by contract. The results of this iaitprocess are updated when additi
information is available. This information comesthe form of publicly available announcementspinfal contact with brokers and/or cliel
submission data and formal claim notices. As ¢aiphic events mature and reporting loss method®rbe more credible, usually six
twelve months after the event, more credibility d@nassigned to actuarial methods implementingtiést patterns. In evaluating the |
estimates for catastrophic events, we use intafatlbases to establish projected reporting and @atypatterns. Industry patterns from
Reinsurance Association of America (“RAA”), an insace industry organization, are also employed.

Impact of changes in key assumptions on resenédilityl

We estimate reserves using a variety of methodsinagtions and data elements. The reserve estimataress includes explicit assumpti
about a number of factors in the internal and ewteenvironment. Across most lines of business,ntost important assumptions are fu
loss development factors applied to paid or repbltsses to date. The trend in loss costs is alkey assumption, particularly in the o
recent accident years, where loss developmentriaate less credible.

The following discussion includes disclosure of gible variations from current estimates of lossress due to a change in certain
assumptions. Each of the impacts described betowstimated individually, without consideration fany correlation among other |
assumptions or among lines of business. Theretazeuld be misleading to take each of the amodatribed below and add them togeth
an attempt to estimate volatility for reservesatat The estimated variations in reserves dwhémges in key assumptions discussed belo
a reasonable estimate of possible variations tlet accur in the future, likely over a period of emal calendar years. It is important to 1
that the variations discussed herein are not exivauand are not meant to be a worst or best ceeeasio, and therefore, it is possible
future variations may be more than amounts disclisstow.

Recorded gross reserves for general liability w&te8355.8 million, with approximately 4% of that anmb related to rumff asbestos ar
environmental exposures as of December 31, 20b4.gEneral liability losses relating to ongoing @tens, reported loss developrr
patterns are a key assumption for this line of iess. Historically, assumptions on reported l@sskbpment patterns have been impacte
among other things, emergence of new types of sl§erg., construction defect claims) or a shifthie mixture between smaller, more rou
claims and larger, more complex claims. We hawéeveed the historical variation in reported losyv&lepment patterns for general liabi
losses deriving from continuing operations. If thported loss development patterns change by a08hange that we have experienced ii
past and that management considers possible, tieatsd net reserve could change by $60.0 milliomither direction.

Similar to general liability, commercial multiplepl reserves are affected by reported loss devedop pattern assumptions. Recorded ¢
reserves for commercial multiple peril businessen®t98.3 million as of December 31, 2014. If tegedlopment patterns underlying our
reserves for this line of business change by 18&estimated net reserve could change by $10.®milh either direction.
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Recorded gross reserves for workers compensatioa $£36.8 million as of December 31, 2014. The mamst important assumptions
workers compensation reserves are loss developiaeotrs and loss cost trends, particularly medicat inflation. Loss development patte
are dependent on medical cost inflation. Approxetya60% of the workers compensation net reservegelated to future medical costs
review of National Council on Compensation Insumdata suggests that the annual growth in induséglical claim costs has varied from -
2% to +13% since 1991. Across the entire reseaseba 1% change in calendar year medical inflatbardd change the estimated net res
by $20.0 million, in either direction.

Recorded gross reserves for commercial auto lighitere $165.2 million as of December 31, 2014key assumption for commercial lir
auto liability is the annual loss cost trend, pautérly the severity trend component of loss costs3% change in assumed annual sever
within the range of our historical experience arfdolr management considers possible. A 3% changesamed annual severity could che
the estimated net reserve by $25.0 million, ineittirection.

Recorded gross reserves for the Syndicate 1200esegmere $600.0 million as of December 31, 2014tinkation of our international liabili
reserves are subject to late emergence and mits &ldfween smaller, more routine claims and langere complex claims. Our internatio
property reserves are analyzed by the charactarisfi the underlying exposures. Property lossrveseare characterized by relatively s
periods between occurrence, reporting, determinatfocoverage and ultimate claims settlement. &h@eperty loss reserves tend to be
most predictable. Catastrophic loss reserves terekhibit more volatility due to the nature of thederlying loss event which may ca
delays and complexity in estimating ultimate loggasure.

With respect to asbestos and environmental gefiahdlity losses, we wrote several different cateége of insurance contracts that may c
asbestos and environmental claims. First, we wpobmary policies providing the first layer of caage in an insured’ general liabilit
insurance program. Second, we wrote excess polpigviding higher layers of general liability imance coverage for losses that exhaus
limits of underlying coverage. Third, we actedaa®insurer assuming a portion of those risks fodiner insurers underwriting primary, exc
and reinsurance coverage. Fourth, we participatethe London Market, underwriting both direct irsoce and assumed reinsure
business. With regard to both environmental am@stes claims, significant uncertainty limits thslisy of insurers and reinsurers to estirn
the ultimate reserves necessary for unpaid logsésedated expenses. Traditional actuarial reegriéchniques cannot reasonably estimat
ultimate cost of these claims, particularly durpegiods where theories of law are in a state ofiooad uncertainty. The degree of variab
of reserve estimates for these types of exposarsgificantly greater than for other more trautiil general liability exposures, and as s
we believe there is a high degree of uncertairttgiiant in the estimation of asbestos and envirotahtass reserves.

In the case of the reserves for ashestos expodagters contributing to the high degree of undatyainclude inadequate loss developn
patterns, plaintiffsexpanding theories of liability, the risks inheré@mmajor litigation and inconsistent emerging legatcomes. Furthermo
over time, insurers, including Argo Group, have exignced significant changes in the rate at whisbeatos claims are brought, cla
experience of particular insureds and value ohtéaimaking predictions of future exposure from gagterience uncertain. For example, ir
past, insurers in general, including Argo Groupyenaxperienced an increase in the number of asbedtded claims due to, among ol
things, plaintiffs’increased focus on new and previously peripherfdrdiants and an increase in the number of inswsedking bankruptt
protection as a result of asbestos-related ligslit Plaintiffs and insureds have sought to usektogtcy proceedings, including “pre-packaged
bankruptcies, to accelerate the funding and amolluss payments by insurers. In addition, someyloolders continue to assert new cla:
of claims for coverage to which an aggregate liofitiability may not apply. Further uncertaintiselude insolvencies of other insurers
reinsurers, delays in the reporting of new claimps$nsurers and reinsurers and unanticipated issdiegncing our ability to recover reinsurai
for asbestos and environmental claims. Managebedigves these issues are not likely to be resdlvéite near future.

In the case of the reserves for environmental ex@ss factors contributing to the high degree dfeutainty include expanding theories
liability and damages, the risks inherent in mdjtigation, inconsistent decisions concerning thesince and scope of coverage
environmental claims and uncertainty as to the nasgemount being sought by the claimant from tisaiied.

The reporting pattern for assumed reinsurance slaintluding those related to asbestos and envieotath claims is much longer than
direct claims. In many instances, it takes morthyears to determine that the policyholdeown obligations have been met and how
reinsurance in question may apply to such claifitse delay in reporting reinsurance claims and exyessadds to the uncertainty of estime
the related reserves.

The factors discussed above affect the variabilitgstimates for asbestos and environmental resénetuding assumptions with respect to
frequency of claims, average severity of thosentdasettled with payment, dismissal rate of clainith wo payment and expense to inderr
ratio. The uncertainty with respect to the undagyreserve assumptions for asbhestos and enviraiaimaads a greater degree of variabilit
these reserve estimates than reserve estimatesofertraditional exposures. While this variabilgyreflected in part in the size of the rang
reserves we have developed, that range may stilbedndicative of the potential variance betwela tiltimate outcome and the recor
reserves. The process of estimating asbestosraimemental
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reserves, which is detailed in Note 21, “Run-offids,” of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, mesnsubject to a wide variety
uncertainties. Due to these uncertainties, furtthevelopments could cause us to change our essneatd ranges of our asbestos
environmental reserves, and the effect of thesegd®could be material to our consolidated opegaBsults, financial condition and liquidity.

Loss Reserve Estimation Variabil

After reviewing the output from various loss resegvmethodologies, we select our best estimatesémes. We believe that the aggre
loss reserves at December 31, 2014 were adequeat¢o claims for losses that have occurred, inoythoth known claims and claims ye
be reported. As of December 31, 2014, we recogteds loss reserves of $3,042.4 million and losermes net of reinsurance $2,137.:
million . Although our financial reports reflect our bestimate of reserves, it is unlikely that the finadount paid will exactly equal our b
estimate. In order to provide an indication of taiability in loss reserve estimates, we develkegerve ranges by evaluating the variat
implied by the results of the various methods anplct of changing the assumptions and factors insén loss reserving process.

We estimate our range of reserves, net of reinseraat approximately $1,955 million to $2,365 roiflias of December 31, 2014ln
determining this range, we evaluated the varigbdit the loss reserves for each of our major opagasegments, comprising both ongc
operations and ruoff businesses. Our estimated range does not maipecific provision for sources of unknown or uicpated correlate
events such as potential sources of liability ndicgpated at the time coverage was afforded, saghsbestos. These events in combin
with other events which may not be contemplatedniayagement in developing our range may cause esséovdevelop either more or |
favorably than indicated by assumptions that wesittiar reasonable. This means that the range efuesalues does not represent the ran
all possible favorable or unfavorable reserve aues, and actual ultimate paid losses may fall dattis range. No one risk factor has t
isolated for the purpose of performing a sensitieit variability analysis on that particular riskctor.

In establishing our best estimate for reservescovisider facts currently known and the presentcjatand legislative environment. Howe
given the expansion of coverage and liability by tlourts, legislatures in the recent past and pitigsiof similar interpretations in the futu
particularly with regard to asbestos and envirortaleriaims, additional loss reserves may develofutare periods. These potential increi
cannot be reasonably estimated at the present #mg.increases could have an adverse impact emegperating results, liquidity, ridgkase:
capital ratios and ratings assigned to our inswanbsidiaries by the nationally recognized insteanating agencies.

Valuation of Investments

Our investments in fixed maturities and stocks dassified as available-farale and reported at fair value under GAAP. Chamngéke fai
value of investments classified as availabledale are not recognized in income during the pered rather are recognized as a sep
component of shareholders’ equity until realizedir Walues of these investments are estimated ymiegs obtained from thirgarty pricing
services, where available. For securities whereareeunable to obtain fair values from a pricingvieser or broker, fair values are estime
using information obtained from investment advisddsinagement performed several processes to asctrareasonableness of investn
values included in our consolidated financial staats at December 31, 2014, including i) obtairdang reviewing internal control reports
our accounting service providers that obtain fatues from thirdparty pricing services, ii) discussing with our @tment managers th
process for reviewing and validating pricing ob&irfrom outside services and obtained values fareglurities from our investment manag
and iii) comparing the security pricing receivednr the investment managers with the prices usediirconsolidated financial statements
obtained additional information for variances thateeded a certain threshold. As of December 314,2@vestments classified as available
for-sale for which we did not receive a fair value franpricing service or broker accounted for les® th® of our investment portfolio. T
actual value at which such securities could be eolgettled with a willing buyer or seller may @ifffrom such estimated fair values depen
on a number of factors including, but not limitex turrent and future economic conditions, the tjtyasold or settled, the presence ol
active market and the availability of a willing klaryor seller. Our investments in hedge and prieatgity funds and other private equity dii
investments are accounted for under the equity adettfi accounting, with changes in the value of strreents recognized in realized gain
losses during the period. We also have two smalaf equity investments accounted for at cost.

We regularly monitor the difference between theinested fair values of our investments and theirt cms book values to identi
underperforming investments and whether declinegaloe are temporary in nature or “other-than-terapo” If a decline in the value of
particular investment is believed to be temporé#ng, decline is recorded as an unrealized lossofnietx, in other comprehensive income
separate component of shareholders’ equity. Ifdbeline is believed to be “other-than-temporatpé carrying value of the investmen
written down and recorded as a realized loss inGansolidated Statements of Income. We evaluaténwestments for impairment. For fix
maturities securities, the evaluation for a créalis is generally based on the present value af@gd cash flows of the security as compar
the amortized book value. For mortgage-backed gexsyr
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frequency and severity inputs are used in projgctinure cash flows of the securities. Loss freqyeis measured as the credit default
which includes such factors as loanvedue ratios and credit scores of borrowers. Lessesty includes such factors as trends in ov
housing prices and house prices that are obtainfmtexlosure. For equity securities, the lengthimie and the amount of decline in fair ve
are the principal factors in determining other-th@amporary impairment. For the years ended DeceBibeP014 and 2013, we recorded
million and $7.8 million, respectively, of realizéasses due to the recognition of other-than-temyampairments.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determiveexbd on the differences between the financialrtieygoand tax bases of Argo GrospUnitec
States, Brazil, Ireland, Switzerland, Belgium, Maknd United Kingdom subsidiarieassets and liabilities. Deferred tax liabilities
recognized for temporary differences that will feso taxable amounts in future years. Deferred émsets are recognized for deduc
temporary differences and tax operating loss arctedit carryforwards. The deferred tax assetslmilities are measured by applying
enacted tax rates and laws in effect for the ymavghich such differences are expected to revérse.components of our deferred tax asse
temporary differences primarily attributable toda®serve discounting and unearned premium rese@uasdeferred tax liabilities resull
primarily from unrealized gains in the investmenttfolio, deferred acquisition costs and undenngtprofits arising from business condut
at Lloyd’s which do not become subject to corpamatiax in the United Kingdom until the year in whisuch profits are distributed.

The evaluation of the recoverability of our netetedéd tax asset and the need for a valuation aloeaequires us to weigh all positive
negative evidence to reach a conclusion thatrase likely than not that all or some portion oé thet deferred tax asset will not be reali
The weight given to the evidence is commensurath thie extent to which it can be objectively vexifi The more negative evidence
exists, the more positive evidence is necessanytlamdnore difficult it is to support a conclusidrat a valuation allowance is not needed
each balance sheet date, management assesseedie restablish a valuation allowance that reddeésrred tax assets when it is more lil
than not that all, or some portion, of the defert@dassets will not be realized. The valuatidovednce is based on all available informa
including projections of future taxable income freach taxpaying component in each tax jurisdiction, prindlipderived from business pla
and available tax planning strategies. If our aggions and estimates that resulted in our foregbftture taxable income for each tpayinc
component prove to be incorrect, an additional atdun allowance could become necessary, which coaleg a material adverse effect on
financial condition, results of operations, andidity.

For additional information regarding our deferrad aissets and liabilities, please see Note 16 fhecdaxes'in the Notes to the Consolida
Financial Statements, included in Item 8, “FinahSi@mtements and Supplementary Data” beginningage f--1.

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets, including Goodwiill

We perform annual impairment tests of our indeéitited intangible assets, including goodwill, or mdrequently when impairment indicat
exist. We have elected to perform our goodwill ifnpant test on the first day of the fourth quadéeach year. The goodwill impairment -
is determined using a twatep process. The first step is to identify if agpbial impairment exists by comparing the fairueabf a reporting ur
with its carrying amount, including goodwill (‘Stelg). If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds igsrging value amount, goodwill of t
reporting unit is not considered to have a potéiigpairment and the second step is not necesstowever, if the carrying amount of 1
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the secdeg ¢‘Step 2")is performed to determine if goodwill is impaireddato measure the amoun
impairment loss to recognize, if any. Step 2 corapadhe implied fair value of goodwill with the cgmg amount of goodwill. If the implie
value of goodwill is less than the carrying amooingoodwill, then a charge is recorded to reduaadgall to the implied goodwill. The implie
goodwill is calculated based on a hypothetical pase price allocation, similar to the requirementshe accounting guidance for busir
combinations, whereby the implied fair value of teporting unit is allocated to the fair value loé tassets and liabilities of the reporting unit.

At December 31, 2014, we had goodwill of $152.2liomil assigned to the following reporting units: Ezs and Surplus lines #&4 million
Commercial Specialty — $47.1 million and Syndicag00 — £8.7 million. Additionally, at December 31, 2014¢vhad intangible ass
totaling $78.6 million, including indefinitéved intangible assets of $60.5 million in the 8imate 1200 segment. Due to the nature o
Syndicate 1200 segment’s business, for purposegeainnual impairment evaluation, we have aggregatefair values between the indefinite
lived intangible asset and goodwill.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we deterrmdred result of the slower than anticipated dewety of revenues for our title
insurance company, the likelihood of near term vecp of the intangible assets, including goodwilgs not probable. Therefore, we wrote
$1.6 million of goodwill and $1.8 million of indefite lived intangible assets related to this opegatinit.
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For purposes of evaluating goodwill for impairmeng determined that our reporting units are theesamour business segments becau
components of each segment are similar and notreeafomponents were determined to be separatetirepanits. Additionally, each busine
segment has discrete financial information ava@labht is regularly reviewed by the chief operatilegision maker to make decisions al
resources to be allocated and to assess performafecallocated the assets, including goodwill, Aalilities of our reporting units consist
with our business segment reporting and prior pistiblo material changes in the accounting meth@yalsed to evaluate goodwill were m
during 2014.

The fair value of reporting units was estimatedngsan average of three valuation methods: a corbfsm@ompany analysis, precec
transaction analysis and discounted cash flow aigAll three methods require us to make variagginents and assumptions including
not limited to: (i) market dynamics affecting easggment such as the competitive environment, gricitle and pricing outlook; the econa
and interest rates, (ii) projections of earned puems, losses, expenses and cash flows, and @igodint rates and valuation multip
Assumptions about future cash flows are based orbedgets, business plans, economic projectiongipated future cash flows and mat
data. Finally, the comparable company analysis @mededent transaction analysis required judgmeiselacting comparable companies
comparable transactions for use in the calculatidhgse judgments and assumptions, and the outcomesich they result, are potentic
subject to material change based on factors, dyssaarid influences outside our control. In all insts, future changes in these judgment:
assumptions could cause impairment of goodwill.

On October 1, 2014, the resulting fair values @& thporting units were in excess of the carryinpeaincluding goodwill, of the reportil
units. Accordingly, management did not perform Steplowever, a 39% decline in the fair value of Eheess and Surplus Lines repor
unit, 21% decline in the fair value of the Commar@pecialty reporting unit or 16% decline in tladr fvalue of the Syndicate 1200 segn
would have resulted in the carrying values of theg®rting units being in excess of their respectair values, resulting in the need to perf
Step 2, which could have resulted in a materialaimpent to our goodwill. Any decline in the fairlua of these reporting units could resu
the carrying value of the reporting unit being ktess of fair value, triggering Step 2 of the imnpeant testing model. Step 2 could result i
impairment of goodwill.

As noted above, we have elected to make the fagtad the fourth quarter the annual impairment sesent date for goodwill and indefinite-
lived intangible assets. An impairment analysissggiient to this date has not been performed aselieé that no additional indicators
impairment have arisen, such as significant aduigricing competition, unexpected significant litexs in operating results, divestiture «
significant component of the business or furthgni§icant decline in market capitalization.

Our market capitalization has increased in 2014yéwer, our stock continues to trade below book eal/e considered the mar
capitalization below book value as a data poimgarforming our annual impairment test. We constterdecline in our market capitalizatior
be primarily attributable to global financial matk®nditions, including the credit crisis, as wagl current trends within the insurance indu
The valuation analysis discussed above supportsviewr that goodwill and indefinitéved intangible assets are not impaired at Octdlk
2014. Through December 31, 2014, there have beémdizators of impairment of goodwill and indefiedived intangible assets. During 20
we will monitor relevant internal and external farst and their potential impact on the fair valueof reporting segments, and if required
will update our impairment analysis.

While we believe the estimates and assumptionse@®nable in determining the fair value of repartinits, it is possible a material cha
could occur. If our actual results are not consisteith our estimates and assumptions used to leddctiair value, we may be requirec
perform Step 2 in future periods and impairmengoddwill and/or indefinitdived assets could result. We cannot predict furwents th:
might impact the fair value of reporting units aga@odwill impairment. Such events include, but aot Irmited to, increased competition
insurance markets and global economic changes.

We evaluated our definite lived intangibles forigadors of impairment. If indicators of impairmdmad been identified, we would have b
required to test definite lived intangible asseis impairment. As of October 1, 2014, the testiraged no indicators of impairment w
identified. Therefore, we were not required to festimpairment. As with the indefinitiived intangible assets, we will continue to monitor
indicators of impairment and test as required.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures @out Market Risk
We believe that we are principally exposed to thypes of market risk: interest rate risk, cre@tikrand foreign currency risk.

Interest Rate Risl

Our fixed investment portfolio is exposed to intreate risk. Fluctuations in interest rates hawiract impact on the fair valuation of th
securities. As interest rates rise, the fair vatieur fixed maturity portfolio generally falls, drihe converse is generally also true. We ma
interest rate risk through an asset liability €iggtthat involves the selection of investments &jipropriate
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characteristics, such as duration, yield, curreanty liquidity that are tailored to the anticipatash outflow characteristics of our liabilities
significant portion of the investment portfolio raegs each quarter, allowing for reinvestment atentrmarket rates. Based upon a pri
model, we determine the estimated change in fdirevaf the fixed maturity securities, assuming indiiaée parallel shifts in the treasury yi
curve while keeping spreads between individual seesl and treasuries static. The following intéreste sensitivity analysis measures
potential change in fair value for fixed maturitgdashort-term investments resulting from changemarket rates ranging fron260 basi
points to +300 basis points as of December 31, 2014

-200 -100 Base Cast +100 +200 +300
Market Yield 1.3% 1.4% 1.9% 2.7% 3.5% 4.3%
Average Life (years 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.2
Option Adjusted Duration (year 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3
Fair Value (in millions) $3,2115 $3,179.« $ 3,116.f $3,0452 $ 297524 $2,907.2
Gain (Loss) (in millions $ 952 $ 629 $ — $ (71.3) $ (141.1) $ (209.9

Credit Risk

Credit risk is a major factor of our overall entgsp risk, and we have established policies andqutares to evaluate our exposure to credit
particularly with respect to our investment holdirand our receivable balances. In particular, eesaposed to credit risk on losses recove
from reinsurers and receivables from insureds. Doms in one sector or market can adversely imptutr sectors and may result in hic
credit exposure. We do not currently use crediadiéswaps to mitigate our credit exposure frorhegiinvestments or counterparties.

We invest in the debt securities markets, whichosgg us to credit risk. As a consequence of extgndiedit and/or carrying investm
positions, we have exposure to credit risk aridiogn the uncertainty associated with a financiatioment obligoss ability to make timel
principal and/or interest payments. We attempt tiigate this risk by limiting credit concentratigrdiversification and frequently monitori
the credit quality of issuers and counterparties.

We have exposure to credit risk primarily as a bpldf fixed maturity investments, shderm investments and other investments. Oui
management strategy and investment policy is tmamily invest in debt instruments of high creditaity issuers and to limit the amount
credit exposure with respect to particular ratingegories and any one issuer. We control our tceagiosure related to receivables by limi
our exposure to any one counterparty and evaludtiagfinancial strength of our reinsurance courgdigs, including generally requiri
minimum credit ratings. In certain cases, we atsteive collateral from our customers and reinswamunterparties, which reduces our ci
exposure in certain instances.
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As shown on the accompanying table, our fixed nit&srportfolio is diversified among different typef investments. The securities are r
by one or more National Recognized Statistical iRpDrganizations, (i.e., Standard & Poor’'s, Moadjnvestors Service, Inc. and Fi
Ratings Ltd). If a security has two ratings, thedo rating is used, and if a security has thre@gat the middle rating is used in the prepar:
of this table. At December 31, 2014, our fixed mi¢ites portfolio had a weighted average rating ef, &vith 71.4% ($2,028.0 million fair valu
rated A or better and 31.5% ($896.0 million failue) rated AAA. Our portfolio included 9.7% ($276million fair value) of less the
investment grade (BB+ or lower) fixed maturitieDatcember 31, 2014.

Fair Value
(in millions) AAA AA A Other Total
USD denominatec
U.S. Government $ 1844 $ — % — 06 $ 185.C
Non-U.S. Government 324 18.5 6.0 23.0 79.9
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 121.7 285.2 70.1 13.6 490.7
Credi-Financial 6.1 61.8 296.¢ 153.4 518.1
Credi-Industrial 5.3 14.2 106.¢ 373.2 499.¢€
Credi-Utility — 13.1 25.0 103.¢ 142.C
Structured securitie
CMO/MBS-agency 175.z — — — 175.2
CMO/MBS-non agenc! — 8.2 1.0 4.8 14.C
CMBS 117.C 34.2 8.3 20.5 180.C
ABS 144.2Z 4.8 28.3 437 221.C
Foreign denominate:
Government: 75.2 33.8 3.6 27.6 140.z
Credit 34.4 36.3 75.8 48 .4 194.¢
Total fixed maturitie: $ 896.C $ 510.2 $ 621.¢ $ 8127 $ 2,840.%

We also hold a diversified investment portfolio @dmmon stocks in various industries and market sedgsn ranging from small mar!
capitalization stocks to large capitalization comipa. Marketable equity securities are carried wn@onsolidated Balance Sheets at fair vi
and are subject to the risk of potential loss in ¥alue resulting from adverse changes in pridgesDecember 31, 2014, the fair value of
equity securities portfolio was $486.3 million.

Foreign Currency Risk

We have exposure to foreign currency risk in bath iosurance contracts and invested assets. Sornarahsurance contracts provide
ultimate losses may be payable in various foreigmencies. Foreign currency exchange rate riskexibere we do not have cash or secu
denominated in the currency for which we will ultitely pay the claims. Thus, we attempt to managdaraign currency risk by seeking
match our liabilities under insurance and reinsceapolices that are payable in foreign currenciéh wash and investments that
denominated in such currencies. In certain instgnwe use foreign exchange forward and put opt@niracts to mitigate this risk. Due to
extended time frame for settling the claims plus fluctuation in currency exchange rates, the piateaxists for us to realize gains anc
losses related to foreign exchange rates. In aigitve may experience foreign currency gains adeselated to exchange rate fluctuatiol
operating expenses as certain operating costsagable in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. the year ended December 31, 2014
recorded realized gains of $7.8 million from moveisen foreign currency rates on our insurance apars. In addition, we recorded reali
losses of $0.8 million from movements on foreigmrency rates in our investment portfolio and readigiains of $1.9 million from our currer
forward contracts for the year ended December 8142We had unrealized losses at December 31, 80$24.7 million in movements «
foreign currency rates in our investment portfolichich are recorded in “Other comprehensive incone, of taxes”in our Consolidate
Balance Sheets. These losses are principally cetatehe weakening of nod-S. Dollar denominated investment exchange ratabd U.S
Dollar.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The report of the independent auditors, consolitldieancial statements of Argo Group Internatiohtildings, Ltd. and supplement:
financial statements called for by this Item 8iauded in this report beginning on page F-1 ardiacorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Argo Group, under the supervision and with the ipg@ation of its management, including the ChiefeEntive Officer and Chief Financ
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the desiga operation of our “disclosure controls and pdoces” (as defined in Rule 13#&{(e) unde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedctiinge Act”))as of the end of the period covered by this redartdesigning an
evaluating these disclosure controls and procedérg® Group and its management recognize thatcanyrols and procedures, no matter
well designed and operated, can provide only resderassurance of achieving the desired contr@atibps, and management necessarily
required to apply its judgment in evaluating angliementing possible controls and procedures. Baped that evaluation, the Chief Execu
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded thhe disclosure controls and procedures were efiect the reasonable assurance lev
ensure that information required to be disclosedigo Group in the reports filed or submitted untter Exchange Act are recorded, proce:
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipd in the SEC’s rules and forms.

There were no changes in the internal control éimancial reporting made during the quarter endedddnber 31, 2014 that materially affec
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, anternal control over financial reporting. We rewi@ur disclosure controls and procedt
which may include internal controls over finanai@porting, on an ongoing basis. From time to timenagement makes changes to ent
the effectiveness of these controls and ensurdtibgitcontinue to meet the needs of our busindsstexs over time.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The management of Argo Group is responsible fahbtishing and maintaining adequate internal cordx@r financial reporting. Our inter
control over financial reporting is a process desijunder the supervision of the Chief ExecutivBc®f and Chief Financial Officer to provi
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilityirefnicial reporting and the preparation of our fitiah statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes

As of December 31, 2014, management assessed féaivefness of our internal control over finandi@porting based on the criteria
effective internal control over financial reportirggtablished in “Internal Control — Integrated Feawvork,” issued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations (“COSQ3Jf the Treadway Commission (2013 framework). A®sult of the assessment, management deter
that we maintained effective internal control ofieancial reporting as of December 31, 2014, basethose criteria.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered pullccounting firm that audited our consolidatedaficial statements included in 1
Annual Report on Form 1K; has issued an attestation report on our intecoatrol over financial reporting as of December 2014. Th
report, which expresses unqualified opinions ondfiectiveness of our internal control over finaiaieporting as of December 31, 201«
included in this Item under the heading “AttestatiReport of Independent Registered Public Accogrfiinm.”
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Attestation Report of Independent Registered Publidccounting Firm
Report of Ernst & Young LLP

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Argouprimternational Holdings, Ltd.:

We have audited Argo Group International Holdingsl.’s internal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2014, based on crit
established in Internal Controlktegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commis
(2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). Argo Groupehnational Holdings, Ltds' management is responsible for maintaining effedtiterna
control over financial reporting, and for its assesnt of the effectiveness of internal control ofieancial reporting included in t
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Cootrer Financial Reporting. Our responsibility ésexpress an opinion on the company’
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ifq@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiafuthe design and operating effectiveness ofivalecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thahadit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdidose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet tlransactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalssurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Argo Group International Holdingdd. maintained, in all material respects, effegetinternal control over financial reporting
of December 31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@wnited States), the consolids
balance sheets of Argo Group International Holdingd. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and tlateck consolidated statements
income, comprehensive income, shareholdegsiity and cash flows for each of the three yeatbé period ended December 31, 2014 of ,
Group International Holdings, Ltd. and our repaatetl February 27, 2015 expressed an unqualifiedapthereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Antonio, Texas
February 27, 2015

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

Incorporated herein by reference is the informatippearing under the captions “Election of DirexfofNamed Executive Officers,”Audit
Committee,” “Audit Committee Financial Experts,” 6@e of Business Ethics and Conduct” aB&¢tion 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repor
Compliance” in our Proxy Statement to be filed whilke SEC relating our Annual Meeting of Sharehaderbe held on May 5, 2015.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated herein by reference is the informatigpearing under the captions “Compensation of &kex Officers,” “NonEmployet
Director Compensation” and “Human Resources Coremithterlocks and Insider Participatiom’ our Proxy Statement to be filed with
SEC relating to our Annual Meeting of Shareholderbe held on May 5, 2015.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Shareholder Mattsr
Equity Based Compensation Plans

In November 2007, our shareholders approved th& 20dg-Term Incentive Plan, which provided for an aggregzt4.5 million shares to
available for the issuance of our common sharexégutives, nommployee directors and other key employees. In R, our shareholde
approved the 2014 Longerm Incentive Plan which provides an addition8&l @illion shares of our common shares to be avial&dy issuanci
bringing the total number of shares available $suance to 4.3 million.

The following table sets forth information as ofd@enber 31, 2014 concerning our equity compensatizms:

Number of Securities Remaining
Number of Securities to Weighted-Average Per Share  Available For Future Issuance Under

be Issued Upon Exercis Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
of Outstanding, Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in the First Column)
Equity compensation plans approved by sharehol
Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. Long-
Term Incentive Pla 1,528,83: $ 31.3¢ 2,100,19¢
Terminated historical plar 3,96 $ 113.1¢ —
Equity compensation plans not approved by
shareholder — $ — —
Total 1,532,80. $ 31.64 2,100,19¢

Under the terms of the LonBerm Incentive Plans, only awards that are to idesein shares are included in the totals abowdDécember 3:
2014, 1,823,769 cash-settled stock appreciationtgigind 8,133 cas$ettled restricted stock units are issued and andgtg. Additione
information relating to our equity compensationnglas included in Note 14, “Share-based Compensatio the Notes to Consolidat
Financial Statements.

Incorporated herein by reference is the informatippearing under the caption “Security Ownershipraicipal Stockholders and Management”
our Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC retatd our Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be balilay 5, 2015.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns and Director Independence

Incorporated herein by reference is the informatappearing under the captionsldman Resources Committee Interlocks and In
Participation,” “Related Persons Transactions” &Daector Independenceih our Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEGatialy to ou
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Mag®.,5.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Incorporated herein by reference is the informatampearing under the caption “Relationship withejpehdent Auditors’in our Prox
Statement to be filed with the SEC relating to Anonual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Mag.5.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(@ 1. Financial Statemer
Selected Financial Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourféinm
Consolidated Balance Sheets—December 31, 2014GiRI 2

Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an? 201

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an?l 201

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an2l 201

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an2 201

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) 2. Financial Statement Schedt

Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Schedule Il —Supplemental Insurance Information
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an2l 201

Schedule V—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an2l 201

Schedule VI—Supplemental Information for Property-Casualty hasice Companies
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an?l 201

All other schedules and notes specified under Reigul SX are omitted because they are either not appkcatudt required or the informati
called for therein appears in response to the item&orm 10K or in the Consolidated Financial Statements amel related Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements of Argo Grouprhmtional Holdings, Ltd. and its subsidiarieselisbn the above index.
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@ 3.

Exhibits

The following exhibits are numbered in accordandé ¥tem 601 of Regulation S-K and, except as noted filed herewith.

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Marct2@@7 and amended and restated as of June 8, Rp@nd among Argo Group
International Holdings, Ltd. (formerly named PXRIEoGp Ltd.), PXMS Inc. and Argonaut Group, Inc. @ngorated by reference
Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report of Argo Groupkoerm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange @assion on August 8,
2007).

3.1 Amended and Restated Memorandum of Associatiorrgb &roup (incorporated by reference to Exhibitt®.the Current Report
of Argo Group on Form-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarAugust 8, 2007

3.2 Amended and Restated Bye-Laws of Argo Group (ine@ied by reference to Appendix | to Argo Group'exy Statement for the
2010 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders filétth the Securities and Exchange Commission on Ma&;2010)

4.1 Form of Certificate of Common Shares of Argo Grdumgorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to ther€uot Report of Argo Grot
on Form K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiarmugust 8, 2007

4.2 Junior Subordinated Debentui!

4.3 Form of Senior Indenture among the Company, ArgauiJUsS, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Asstimig as Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Argoo@o’s registration statement on Form S-3 filedwtite Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 18, 201

4.4 Form of First Supplemental Indenture among the GomwipArgo Group US, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, blzi Association, as
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.Argyo Group’s Form 8-A filed with the SecuritiesdiExchange Commission on
September 21, 201z

4.5 Form of 6.500% Senior Notes due September 15, gi@da@rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Argmo@’s Form 8-A filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onedeiper 21, 2012

10.1 Deed Poll Guarantee of Argo Group in respect of EXRinsurance Ltd., dated as of September 1, 286@rporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.3a to Argo Grol's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

10.2 Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. 2007 EmpdeyShare Purchase Plan (incorporated by refererteehibit 99.1 to Argo
Grouf’'s Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiniecember 10, 2007)

10.3 Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. 2007 Annlratentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by esfee to Appendix Il to
Argo Group’s Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annuah&@al Meeting of Shareholders filed with the Satesiand Exchange
Commission on October 2, 2007

10.3A Material Terms of the 2006 Annual Incentive Comgias Plan (incorporated by reference to ExhibiP0tdo Argonaut Group,
Inc.’s Form 1-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMarch 1, 2007).

10.4 Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. 2007 Longfin Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference thilik99.2 to Argo Grous
Registration Statement on Forr-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissieibecember 10, 2007)

10.5 Argonaut Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Stoodritiee Plan (incorporated by reference to ExhiBitt&o Argo Group’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiNovember 29, 2007)

10.6 Argonaut Group, Inc. Retirement Plan (incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 10.2 to Argonaut Group,.'mi&orm 10 Registration

Statement dated September 3, 1986, filed with #wfties and Exchange Commission on SeptembeI86) ¥

1. Argo Group and its subsidiary, Argo Group US, Inkkgve several series of outstanding junior sulnatéid debentures as described in the
footnotes to our consolidated financial statemélad with our Annual Report on Form 10-K. We wiltovide the SEC with copies of the
instruments governing such junior subordinated delyes upon the SE's request in accordance with Regulati-K Item 601(b)(4)(iii)(A).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11
10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

12

401(k) Retirement Savings Plan (incorporated bgrefce to the Exhibit 10.4 to Argonaut Group, &obrm 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February2#)).*

Argonaut Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Non-Eysgl®irector Stock Option Plan (incorporated brefice to Exhibit 99.2
to Argo Grou|'s Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiNovember 29, 2007)

$175,000,000 Credit Agreement, dated as of Mar@®I4, among Argo Group International Holdings,..#&fgo Group US, Inc.,
Argo International Holdings Limited and Argo Undeiting Agency Limited, the Lenders party theretBMbrgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as administrative agent, Wells Fargo Banlf.Nas syndication agent, and the other partie®tb(incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Argo Group’s Current Report ooria 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Cassion on March 10,
2014).

Executive Employment Agreement, effective as of &mber 5, 2013, between Argo Group Internationabitgs, Ltd. and Mark
E. Watson Il (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit1 to Argo Group’s Quarterly Report on Form 1@eQthe quarter ended
September 30, 2013).*

Employment Contract, dated May 12, 2014, betweagoABroup International Holdings, Ltd. and Axel Sdath

Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. Deferredmensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors, effectebruary 12, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to A@mup’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with thecBrities and Exchange
Commission on February 15, 2008

First Amendment, effective November 2, 2009, tod@roup International Holdings, Ltd. Deferred Comgegtion Plan for Non-
Employee Directors (incorporated by reference thikik10.13 to Argo Group’s Annual Report on ForfH filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 20

Executive Employment Agreement, effective Februdry2015, between Argo Group and Jay S. Bullockofiporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Argo Group’s Current Report ooriR 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Cassion on February 23,
2015).*

Employment Contract, dated July 24, 2014, betwergyo Anternational Holdings, Ltd. and Jose Ribeil

Employment Agreement, effective as of June 21, 268%veen Argo Re, Ltd. (formerly known as PeleesBurance Ltd) and
Andrew J. Carrier (incorporated by reference toiBixt10.2 to Argo Group’s Quarterly Report on Foi®+Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2011).:

Compensation Clawback Policy (incorporated by mfee to Exhibit 10.1 to Argo Group’s Quarterly Remm Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 201

Second Amendment, effective December 16, 2013r¢gm Aroup International Holdings, Ltd. Deferred Gmnsation Plan for
Non-Employee Directors (incorporated by referencesthibit 10.18 to Argo Group’s Annual Report on Foti®K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februarg@8}.)*

Executive Employment Agreement, effective as of dhial, 2013, between Argo Group US, Inc. and KeviRehnberg
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to A@gmup’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with tBecurities and Exchange
Commission on February 28, 2014

Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. 2014 Longfin Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference tpexulix | to Argo Group’s
Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual General Meatin§hareholders filed with the Securities and Exgde Commission on
March 7, 2014).*

Form of Cash-Settled Share Appreciation Rights Agrent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2Aitgo Group’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Marci2814).*

Form of Stock-Settled Share Appreciation Right Agnent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Aitgo Group’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended MarcH2B814).*

Form of Restricted Share Agreement (incorporatetefgrence to Exhibit 10.4 to Argo Group’s QuastdRieport on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2014).*

Form of Restricted Share Unit Grant Agreement (ipocated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Argo Graupuarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014).*

Statements of Computation of Ratios of Earningsixed Charges and Earnings to Combined Fixed Ckaagd Preferred Share
Dividends.
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Exhibit

Number Description

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant, as amenc

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.

31.1 Rule 13—14(a)/15¢- 14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Office

31.2 Rule 13—14(a)/15¢- 14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Office

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuantt8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuantdtid®e906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuantttd®e906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

*

A management contract or compensatory plan reqtireée filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
By /s| Mark E. Watson |l

Mark E. Watson 1|
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: February 27, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpihe following persons on behalf of
registrant and in the capacities and on the datlisdted.

Signature Title Date
/sl Mark E. Watson Il President, Chief Executive February 27, 2015
Mark E. Watson IlI Officer and Director
' (principal executive officer
/sl Jay S. Bullock Executive Vice President and February 27, 2015
Jay S. Bullock Chief Financial Officer
' (principal financial and accounting office
/sl Gary V. Woods Director February 27, 2015
Gary V. Woods
/sl F. Sedgwick Browne Director February 27, 2015
F. Sedgwick Brown
/sl H. Berry Cash Director February 27, 2015
H. Berry Cast
/sl Hector DelLeon Director February 27, 2015
Hector DeLeor
/s/ Nabil N. El-Hage Director February 27, 2015
Nabil N. E-Hage
/s/ Mural R. Josephson Director February 27, 2015
Mural R. Josephsc
/sl Kathleen A. Nealon Director February 27, 2015
Kathleen A. Nealol
/sl John R. Power, Jr. Director February 27, 2015
John R. Power, J
/sl John H. Tonelli Director February 27, 2015
John H. Tonell
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Argouprimternational Holdings, Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheets of Argo Group International Holdings,. lasl of December 31, 2014 and 2(
and the related consolidated statements of inceormaprehensive income, shareholders' equity and ftash for each of the three years in
period ended December 31, 2014. Our audits aldaded the financial statement schedules listechénTable of Contents at Item 15. Tf
financial statements and schedules are the redplitysof the Company's management. Our resporigibi$ to express an opinion on th
financial statements and schedules based on oitsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedig tonsolidated financial position of Al
Group International Holdings, Ltd. at December 3114 and 2013, and the consolidated results of tperations and their cash flows for €
of the three years in the period ended December2@14, in conformity with U.S. generally acceptaxt@unting principles. Also, in o
opinion, the related financial statement schedulbgn considered in relation to the basic finansiatements taken as a whole, present fai
all material respects the information set forthréfire

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bloddnited States), Argo Gro
International Holdings, Ltd.’s internal control afénancial reporting as of December 31, 2014, Hase criteria established in Internal Control
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee onSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissidil8&framework) and our rep
dated February 27, 2015 expressed an unqualifisdoopthereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Antonio, Texas
February 27, 2015
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ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except number of shares and per shareunts)

Assets
Investments
Fixed maturities, at fair valur
Available-for-sale (cost: 201- $2,817.2; 201- $2,760.1’
Equity securities, at fair value (cost: 2C- $307.3; 201:- $346.9)
Other investments (cost: 20- $488.9; 201 $377.4)
Shor-term investments, at fair value (cost: 2(- $275.8; 201:- $351.6)
Total investment
Cash
Accrued investment incorn
Premiums receivabl
Reinsurance recoverabl
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortiz:
Current income taxes receivable,
Deferred acquisition costs, r
Ceded unearned premiut
Other asset
Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment exp:
Unearned premiurnr
Accrued underwriting expens
Ceded reinsurance payable,
Funds helc
Senior unsecured fixed rate no
Other indebtednes
Junior subordinated debentu
Current income taxes payable,
Deferred tax liabilities, ne
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Shareholders' equit
Common shares - $1.00 par, 500,000,000 sharesragttip34,318,224
and 34,066,889 shares issued and outstandDgcamber 31, 2014
and 2013, respective
Additional paic-in capital
Treasury shares (8,606,489 and 7,558,345 shafscamber 31, 2014
and 2013, respectivel
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net ofst
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

See accompany notes.

F-3

December 31,

2014 2013

2,840.7 $ 2,814..
486.% 534.%
495.1 378.¢
275.¢ 351.€
4,097.¢ 4,079.
81.C 157 .4
22.1 25.7
353.€ 348.4
997. 1,263.F
152.2 153.€
78.6 86.0
14.9 —
124.¢€ 113.€
207.¢€ 196.:
226.€ 166.¢
6,356.. $ 6,591.(
3,042 $ 3,230.
817.2 779.1
143.1 122.:
178.€ 354.7
55.0 437
143.€ 143.€
62.C 66.3
172.7 193.
— 5.2
53.0 28.7
41.6 60.6
4,709.¢ 5,028.(
34.3 34.1
836.: 827.2
(301.9) (250.6)
969. 804.4
108.1 147.¢
1,646.] 1,563.(
6,356.. $ 6,591.(




ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in millions, except number of shares and per shareunt)

Premiums and other revent
Earned premium
Net investment incom
Net realized investment and other ge
Total revenue
Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment exper
Other reinsuranc-related expense
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper
Interest expens
Fee expense (income), r
Debt extinguishment cos
Foreign currency exchange (gain)
Impairment of intangible asse
Total expense
Income before income tax
Provision for income taxe
Net income

Net income per common sha
Basic

Diluted
Dividend declared per common sh

Weighted average common shal
Basic

Diluted

Net realized investment and other gains beforer-than-temporary

impairment losse

Otherthar-temporary impairment losses recognized in earni
Otherthar-temporary impairment losses on fixed maturi
Other-thar-temporary impairment losses on equity secur
Non-credit portion of losses recognized in other cormpnsive incom

Impairment losses recognized in earni
Net realized investment and other ge

See accompanying notes.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
$ 1,338.1 $ 1,303 $ 1,186.t
86.6 100.C 118.€
94.0 71.3 25.7
1,518.7 1,475.1 1,331.C
747.4 742.C 747.€
— 19.2 27.3
539.2 510.€ 464.5
19.9 20.2 23.7
0.6 4.9 (5.3)
— — 2.2
(7.9 (1.7) 4.3
3.4 — —
1,302.7 1,295.¢ 1,264.:
216.C 179.7 66.7
32.8 36.5 14.4
$ 183.2 $ 143.2 $ 52.3
$ 702 $ 533 $ 1.86
$ 6.90 $ 514 $ 1.83
$ 069 $ 059 $ 0.44
26,082,11. 26,851,34. 28,095,221
26,557,15: 27,869,53. 28,650,44:
For the Years Ended December 3!
2014 2013 2012
$ 96.3 $ 791 $ 294
(1.2) (6.0) (1.5)
(1.1) (1.8) (2.2)
(2.3) (7.8) (3.7)
$ 940 $ 713 $ 25.7




ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions)
For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 183.2 $ 1432 $ 52.3
Other comprehensive income (los
Foreign currency translation adjustme 4.2) (2.8) (2.3)
Defined benefit pension plar
Net (loss) gain arising during the ye (3.7) 2.0 (0.9)
Unrealized gains on securitie
(Losses) gains arising during the y (5.7) 1.2 87.4
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedeétincome (30.6) (59.9) (14.4)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before (44.2) (59.4) 69.8
Income tax (benefit) provision related to other poaelhensive income (loss
Defined benefit pension plar
Net (loss) gain arising during the ye (1.3) 0.7 (0.3)
Unrealized gains (losses) on securit
Gains arising during the ye 6.8 1.0 24.4
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedetincome (9.9) (19.4) (4.0)
Income tax (benefit) provision related to other poemensive income (los (4.4) (17.7) 20.1
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of (39.7) (41.7) 49.7
Comprehensive incon $ 1435 $ 101t $ 102.C

See accompanying notes.
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ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in millions, except number of shares and per shareunts)

Balance, January 1, 2012

Net loss

Other comprehensive lo

Repurchase of common shares (1,488,308 at a
weighted average price of $29.¢

Activity under stock incentive plar

Retirement of common shares (tax payments on
equity compensatiot

Deferred ta>- shar-based paymen

Employee stock purchase pl

Cash dividend declared - common shares
($0.44/share

Balance, December 31, 2012

Net income

Other comprehensive incor

Repurchase of common shares (1,098,732 at a
weighted average price of $41.(

Activity under stock incentive plar

Retirement of common shares (tax payments on
equity compensatiot

Deferred ta>- shar-based paymen

Employee stock purchase pl

10% stock dividen:

Cash dividend declared - common shares
($0.59/share

Balance, December 31, 2013

Net income

Other comprehensive lo

Repurchase of common shares (1,048,144 at a
weighted average price of $48.:

Activity under stock incentive plar

Retirement of common shares (tax payments on
equity compensatior

Deferred ta>- shar-based paymen

Employee stock purchase pl

Cash dividend declared - common shares
($0.69/share

Balance, December 31, 2014

See accompanying notes.

Accumulated

Additional Other

Common Paid-In Treasury Retained Comprehensive  Shareholders'

Shares Capital Shares Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
$ 313 $ 716 $ (160.9 $ 736.C $ 139.¢ $ 1,463.(
— — — 52.3 — 52.3
— — — — 49.7 49.7
— — (44.6) — — (44.€)
0.1 51 — — — 5.2
— (0.4) — — — (0.4)
— 1.2 — — — 1.2
— — — (12.3 — (12.3
314 7227 (205.5) 776.C 189.t 1,514.1
— — 143.2 143.2
— — — — (41.7) (41.7)
— — (45.2) — — (45.0)
0.2 8.5 — — — 8.7
— (2.9 — — — (2.9
— 0.1 — — — 0.1
0.1 1.3 — — — 1.4
2.4 96.6 — (99.0) — —
— — — (15.8) — (15.8)
341 827.: (250.€) 804.4 147.¢ 1,563.(
— — — 183.2 — 183.2
— — — — (39.7) (39.7)
— — (50.8) — — (50.8)
0.2 8.5 — — — 8.7
— (1.2) — — — (1.2)
— 0.1 — — — 0.1
— 1.5 — — — 1.5
— — (18.2) — (18.2)
$ 343 $ 8365 $ (301.9) $ 9694 $ 1081 $ 1,646.5




ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal (used) by
operating activities
Amortization and depreciatic
Shar-based payments exper
Excess tax (benefit) expense from s-based payment arrangeme
Deferred income tax provision, r
Net realized investment and other ge
Loss on disposals of fixed assets,
Debt extinguishment cos
Impairment of intangible asse
Change in
Accrued investment incorr
Receivable:
Deferred acquisition cos
Ceded unearned premiui
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment exp
Unearned premiumr
Ceded reinsurance payable and funds
Income taxe:
Accrued underwriting expens
Other, ne:
Cash provided (used) by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Sales of fixed maturity investmer
Maturities and mandatory calls of fixed maturity@stments
Sales of equity securitie
Sales of other investmer
Purchases of fixed maturity investme
Purchases of equity securiti
Purchases of other investme
Change in foreign regulatory deposits and volunpagls
Change in shec-term investment
Settlements of foreign currency exchange forwartdreats
Purchases of fixed asst
Other, ne
Cash (used) provided by investing activil
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of senior unsecured fixechates, ne
Payment on note payak
Redemption of trust preferred securities,
Activity under stock incentive plar
Repurchase of Company's common sh
Excess tax expense from st-based payment arrangeme
Payment of cash dividends to common shareho
Cash used by financing activiti
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Change in cas
Cash, beginning of yei
Cash, end of ye:

See accompanying notes.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
1832 $ 1432 $ 52.3
37.2 39.6 36.6
19.6 23.3 10.5
(0.1) 0.2) —
27.6 3.8 5.0
(94.0) (71.9) (25.7)
— 0.2 0.3
— — 2.2
3.4 — —
3.4 5.3 2.0
256.7 86.7 24.9
(7.3) (14.1) 2.1
(12.4) (4.0) (14.5)
(182.0) (8.9) (78.9)
39.1 51.4 726
(163.9) (246.4) (67.5)
(19.7) 17.0 (1.7)
11.7 (4.0) 21.0
28.0 (21.9) (10.7)
130.F 0.2) 30.5
1,104.¢ 1,795.2 1,117.€
323.C 281.€ 483.C
123.¢ 163.4 10.4
33.2 75 2.5
(1,531.5 (1,822.9 (1,501.5)
(55.9) (80.0) (104.49)
(149.5) (72.9) (15.6)
21.2 (7.7) (21.0)
75.3 (145.9) 58.7
(1.1) (3.9) 0.4
(39.0) (26.1) (34.1)
(25.9) 315 0.1
(121.5) 120. (3.7)
— — 138.7
(0.1) — —
(18.0) — (117.2)
4.6 2.6 1.2
(50.9) (46.5) (44.2)
0.1 0.2 —
(18.9) (15.9) (12.9)
(82.4) (59.5) (33.9)
(3.2) 0.5 0.1
(76.4) 61.6 (6.9)
157.4 95.8 102.7
810 $ 1574 $ 95.8




ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Business

Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. (“Argo Gnogd “we” or the “Company”)is an international underwriter of specialty insw@ an
reinsurance products in the property and casuadtsket. Argo Group US, Inc. (“Argo Group USY a subsidiary of Argo Financial Holdi
(Ireland), Ltd. (“Argo Ireland”). Argo Underwritingdgency Limited (“ArgoGlobal Syndicate 120013 a subsidiary of Argo Internatior
Holdings, Ltd. Argo Re, Ltd. (“Argo Rep Bermuda based company, is the parent of both kej@nd and Argo International Holdings, L
Argo Re is directly owned by Argo Group.

We conduct our ongoing business through four seggnen
Excess and Surplus Linproducts are underwritten under two operating ptatk: Colony Specialty and Argo Pro.

Commercial Specialtgonsists of the following operations: Argo Insuran®ockwood Casualty Insurance Company (“Rockwqodiyo
Surety, Trident Insurance Services, Alteris and 3\Ritle Insurance Corporation (“ARIS”).

International Specialtyproducts are provided by our Bermuda operationsiclwinclude Argo Re and Argo InsuranceGasualty an
Professional Lines and Argo Seguros Brasil S.Aedas Brazil.

Syndicate 120@roducts are underwritten by ArgoGlobal Syndica2@0 based in London, on behalf of one underwrisggdicate under tl
Lloyd’s of London (“Lloyd’'s”) global franchise.

Our Run-off Linesegment includes liabilities associated with otfediility policies that were issued in the 196087@s and into the 1980s,
well as the former risk management business aret dilsiness no longer underwritten.

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The consolidated financial statements of Argo Grang its subsidiaries have been prepared in aceoedaith accounting principles gener:
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAPhe preparation of consolidated financial statemémtconformity with GAAP require
management to make estimates and assumptionsffinattthe reported amounts of assets and liakslisied disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemesntsl reported amounts of revenues and expensewydhe reporting period. The major estim
reflected in our consolidated financial statementfude, but are not limited to, reserves for Iesaad loss adjustment expenses; reinsu
recoverables, including the reinsurance recovesaslewance for doubtful accounts; estimates ottemi and earned premiums; reinsur:
premium receivable; fair value of investments asseasment of potential impairment; valuation ofdyat and intangibles and our defer
tax asset valuation allowance. Actual results califfér from those estimates.

Specifically, estimates for reserves for losseslasd adjustment expenses are based upon pastetgienience modified for current trend:
well as prevailing economic, legal and social ctinds. Although management believes that amounttudied in the accompanyi
consolidated financial statements are reasonabtd estimates may be more or less than the amalthtsately paid when the claims
settled. The estimates are continually reviewed amdchanges are reflected in current operatinglteed-urther, the nature of loss expos
involves significant variability due to the natuwéthe longtailed payments on certain claims. As such, lossekloss adjustment expen
could vary significantly from the recorded amounts.

The consolidated financial statements include tbeoants and operations of Argo Group and its sudns&s. All material intercompal
accounts and transactions have been eliminatedai@ermounts in prior year$inancial statements have been reclassified toaranto the
current presentation. Amounts related to tradetabproviders, who are thirgarty capital participants that provide underwagtitapital to th
Syndicate 1200 segment, are included in the balaheet. Trade capital providers participate on aashare basis, assuming 100% of
contractual participation in the underwriting syeate results and with such results settled on agfeccount basis.

In 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards BodrdAEB") issued revised accounting standards regarding tdason of variable intere
entities. We reevaluated our investment in ouryeetatutory trusts (collectively, the “Trustsiild two charitable foundations (collectively,
“Foundations”).We determined that the Trusts and Foundations moatio be variable interest entities due to thé flaat the Trusts ai
Foundations do not have sufficient equity to firamieeir activities without additional subordinabeahcial support from other parties. We
not have any power to direct the activities thgb@et the Trusts or Foundations’ economic
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performance. We are not entitled to receive a nitgjof the residual returns of the Trusts and Wlsaritable foundations. Additionally, we
not responsible for absorbing the majority of tlkpexrted losses of the Trusts or U.S. charitabledations; therefore, we are not the prin
beneficiary and, accordingly, the Trusts and Ulfaritable foundations are not included in our ctidated financial statements. The expe
and donations of the charitable foundations in Betanare paid by Argo Group and have been incluadéle consolidated results.

We have used a series of special purpose reinsur@mmpanies to provide reinsurance coverage thraugéries of transactions, includ
insurance linked securities. Under the provisi@isAccounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) TopR&10-10, “Consolidation,"thest
reinsurance companies are variable interest entittowever, we do not have a variable intereghése entities, and therefore are not req
to consolidate them in our consolidated finandatesnents.

Stock Dividends

On May 7, 2013, our Board of Directors declared0&o1stock dividend, payable on June 17, 2013, toestwéders of record at the close
business on June 3, 2013. As a result of the stivittend, 2,447,839 additional shares were issGagh was paid in lieu of fractional share
our common shares. All references to share andlpare amounts in this document and related disgdesuave been adjusted to reflect
stock dividend for all periods presented.

On February 17, 2015, our Board of Directors deda 10% stock dividend payable on March 16, 2é15Shareholders of record at the ¢
of business on March 2, 2015. The share humbergpandhare amounts disclosed in the Consolidatean€ial Statements and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements have not beeoaively adjusted to give effect to the stockidiand. For additional details regarding
stock dividend, see Note 27, “Subsequent Event.”

Cash

Cash consists of cash deposited in banks, gendraltpncentration and operating accounts. Intdsearing cash accounts are classifie
short-term investments.

Investments

Investments in fixed maturities at December 31,428ad 2013 include bonds and structured securkigsity securities include common
preferred stocks. Other investments consist ofiforeegulatory deposits, hedge funds, private gduibds, private equity direct investme!
voluntary pools and foreign exchange currency fodn@ntracts. Shotterm investments consist of money market fundgifioattes of deposi
bonds, sovereign debt and interest-bearing castuats Investments maturing in less than one yeaclassified as shotérm investments
our consolidated financial statements.

The amortized cost of fixed maturity securitiesadjusted for amortization of premiums and accretbrdiscounts. This amortization
accretion is included in “Net investment income’bur Consolidated Statements of Income.

For the structured securities portion of the fixadturity securities portfolio, we recognize incomsng a constant effective yield basec
anticipated prepayments and the estimated econdmixf the securities. Premium or discount on highestment grade securities (rated A/
higher) is amortized into income using the retraspe method. Premium or discount on lower gradeustes (rated less than AA)
amortized into income using the prospective method.

Our investments in fixed maturities and equity sii@s with readily determinable fair value are siglered available-fosale and are carried
fair value. Changes in the fair value of investrsasiassified as available-fagle are not recognized to income during the pebatrather ai
recognized as a separate component of sharehoklguity until realized. Fair value of these investiseis estimated using prices obtai
from third-party pricing services, where available. For sé@giwhere we were unable to obtain fair valuemfeopricing service or broker, f
values were estimated using information obtainedhfinvestment advisors. We performed several pesse® ascertain the reasonablene
these investment values by i) obtaining and rewigwinternal control reports for our service provgléhat obtain fair values from thighrty
pricing services, ii) discussing with our investmeranagers their process for reviewing and valggpricing obtained from outside servi
and obtaining values for all securities from ouveistment managers and iii) comparing the securitying received from the investmi
managers with the prices used in the consolidatea¢ial statements and obtaining additional infation for variances that exceeded a ce
threshold. As of December 31, 2014, investmenthald for which we did not receive a fair value frapricing service or broker accour
for less than 1% of our investment portfolio. Thtual value at which these securities could agtuadl sold or settled with a willing buyer
seller may differ from our estimated fair valuepeleding on a number of factors including, but mmited to, current and future econol
conditions, quantity sold or settled, presenceroéetive market and availability of a willing buyer seller. The cost of securities sold is bi
on the specific identification method.
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Changes in the value of other investments congistirhedge funds, private equity funds, privateigogirect investments and voluntary pc
are principally recognized to income during theigebiusing the equity method of accounting. Our ifgmaegulatory deposits are assets he
trust in jurisdictions where there is a legal aagulatory requirement to maintain funds locallyonder to protect policyholders. Llolis the
appointed investment manager for the funds. Thelyidg assets are invested in government secsiritigency securities and corporate b
whose values are obtained from LlogdForeign currency future contracts held by usvaeed by our counterparty using market dr
foreign currency exchange rates.

We regularly evaluate our investments for othentteanporary impairment. For fixed maturity securitiéiee evaluation for a credit loss
generally based on the present value of expect&u ftavs of the security as compared to the amaxitizook value. For structured securi
frequency and severity of loss inputs are usedajepting future cash flows of the securities. L&&gsjuency is measured as the credit de
rate, which includes such factors as loawvddise ratios and credit scores of borrowers. Lesgsty includes such factors as trends in reaite
values and proceeds at foreclosure. We also rezegtier-than-temporary losses on our fixed matsgcurities that we intend to sell.

All investment balances include amounts relatingrade capital providers. The results of operatiamd other comprehensive income exc
amounts relating to trade capital providers. Treagital providersparticipation in the syndicate results are inclu@ettinsurance recovera
for ceded losses and reinsurance payable for qa@@ciums.

Receivables

Premiums receivable, representing amounts due fnsoreds, are presented net of an allowance fobtfiduaccounts. The allowances
doubtful accounts were $5.2 million and $4.5 milliat December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. iBresreceivable include amou
relating to the trade capital providers’ quota shar

Reinsurance recoverables represent amounts oflgssds and loss adjustment expenses, case rese/éscurred but not reported (“IBNR”
amounts ceded to reinsurers under reinsurancéese&einsurance recoverables also reflect amdhatsare due from trade capital provid
Reinsurance recoverables are presented in our Gaeteal Balance Sheets net of an allowance for tlouccounts of $3.4 million and $:
million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respecti(@de Note 4, “Reinsurance” for related disclosures

An estimate of amounts that are likely to be chdrg# is established as an allowance for doubtidoaints as of the balance sheet date
estimate includes specific insured and reinsurdatances that are considered probable to be chaffjafter all collection efforts have cea
and in accordance with historical writdf trends based on aging categories. Premiumsviadadle and reinsurance recoverables on paid |
written off, net of recoveries against the allowafar doubtful accounts or directly to the incontetament are as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Premiums receivabl $ 11 $ 02 % 0.3

Reinsurance recoverabl 0.5 (0.0) (0.4)
Net written off (recoverec $ 16 $ 0.2 $ (0.1)

Recoveries occur when subsequent collection ayalitbn results in the receipt of amounts previoushtten off. Amounts recovered ¢
applied against the bad debt expense account.

Earned Premiums

Premium revenue is recognized ratably over thecpgleriod, with an adjustment, where appropriategflect the risk profile of certain clas
of business, particularly those exposed to seaswmrather related events. Premiums that have ybetearned are reported ddriearne
premiums” in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Unearned premium balances include cessions tourerss including trade capital providers, while th&ned premium recognized in
Consolidated Statements of Income excludes amaefdting to trade capital providers. The trade tdgroviders’quota share amount
included in “Ceded reinsurance payable, net”.

Assumed reinstatement premiums that reinstate ageeare written and earned at the time the assdciass event occurs. The origi
premium is earned over the remaining exposure gesfahe contract. Reinstatement premiums are astidnbased upon contract terms
reported losses and estimated for incurred butepmrted losses.
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Retrospectively Rated Policies

We have written a number of workers compensatioopgrty and other liability policies that are respectively rated. Under this type of poli
the policyholder or coverholder may be entitledysmguent to coverage expiration, to a refund or ovesy additional premiums based on
amount of losses incurred under the policy. Theosgiective premium adjustments on certain poliaieslimited to a minimum or maximt
premium adjustment, which is calculated as a péagenof the standard amount of premium chargechdutie life of the policy. Accrut
retrospectively rated premiums have been deternmaseéd on estimated ultimate loss experience oihthieidual policyholder accounts. T
estimated liability for return of premiums undetrospectively rated policies is included in “Unegalnpremiums’in our Consolidated Balan
Sheets and was $5.8 million and $6.8 million atéelber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Deferred Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs, which include commissiomemium taxes, fees and certain other costs démwriting policies, are deferred, wt
such policies are profitable, and amortized over same period in which the related premiums areeearTo qualify for capitalization, t
policy acquisition cost must be directly relatedth® successful acquisition of an insurance contrAnticipated investment income
considered in determining whether the deferred iattqan costs are recoverable and whether a prendefitiency exists. We continua
review the methods of making such estimates arabkstiing the deferred costs with any adjustmerdgarin the accounting period in wh
the adjustment arose.

The 2014 and 2013 net amortization of policy adtjais costs will not equal the change in our Coidadked Balance Sheets as the trade c:
providers’share is not reflected in our Consolidated Statésneihincome and differences arise from foreigrrency exchange rates applie
deferred acquisition costs which are treated amanonetary asset.

Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Liabilities for unpaid losses and loss adjustmequemses include the accumulation of individual castémates for claims reported as we
estimates of IBNR claims and estimates of claintiesaent expenses. Reinsurance recoverables ondualadins and claim expenses repre
estimates of the portion of such liabilities thall \we recoverable from reinsurers. Amounts recatés from reinsurers are recognized as a
at the same time and in a manner consistent wéthutipaid claims liabilities associated with thexserance policy.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, our insuranceraimsurance subsidiaries reinsure various risks/alzertain retention levels with ot
insurance enterprises. Reinsurance recoverablaéglenclaims we paid and estimates of unpaid lossekloss adjustment expenses tha
subject to reimbursement under reinsurance andceisional contracts. The method for determiniiigsugance recoverables for unpaid lo
and loss adjustment expenses involves reviewingpael estimates of gross unpaid losses and Igsstatent expenses to determine our at
to cede unpaid losses and loss adjustment expensies our existing reinsurance contracts. This oweil continually reviewed and upds
and any resulting adjustments are reflected in iegsnin the period identified. Reinsurance premiuroemmissions and expel
reimbursements are accounted for on a basis censigtith those used in accounting for the origipalicies issued and the term of
reinsurance contracts. Amounts recoverable fromsteers for losses and loss adjustment expenseaghiich our insurance and reinsura
subsidiaries have not been relieved of their legdifations to the policyholder are reported agtsss

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets are allocated toségament in which the results of operations forabguired company are reported (see
20, “Segment Informationfor further discussion). Intangible assets withirdté life are amortized over the estimated uséfalof the asse
Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefiniseful life are not amortized. Goodwill and intarigilassets are tested for impairment o
annual basis or more frequently if events or changeircumstances indicate that the carrying arhauwsy not be recoverable. For goody
we may perform a qualitative test to determine Wweetit is more-likely-thamot that the fair value of a reporting unit is Iéisan its carryin
amount as a basis for determining whether it iessary to perform the quantitative tstep goodwill impairment test. Based on prior goitic
impairment testing, we determined the performarfcéhe quantitative twestep impairment test was required for 2014. Thst fitep is t
identify if a potential impairment exists by comiparthe fair value of a reporting unit with its ggng amount, including goodwill (“Step 1"
If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds itarging value amount, goodwill of the reporting wisi not considered to have a potel
impairment and the second step is not necessamyetsr, if the carrying amount of the reporting umitceeds its fair value, the second
(“Step 27")is performed to determine if goodwill is impairendsto measure the amount of impairment loss togeiee, if any. Step 2 compa
the implied fair value of goodwill with the carrgijramount of goodwill. If the implied value of gooitlws less than the carrying amount
goodwill,
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it is written down to its fair value with a correspling expense reflected in the Consolidated Statésnof Income. The implied goodwill
calculated based on a hypothetical purchase plizeation, similar to the requirements in the aaaing guidance for business combinatis
whereby the implied fair value of the reportingtugiallocated to the fair value of the assetslafidlities of the reporting unit.

We perform our goodwill impairment test on thetfiday of the fourth quarter of each year, or Octdbef each year. In performing Step :
the impairment test, we estimated the fair valueepbrting units using an average of three valuati@thods: a comparable company anal
a precedent transaction analysis and a discoursidl ftow analysis. All three methods require managy@ to make various judgments
assumptions. The discounted cash flow analysisiited] projections of earned premiums, loss ratigqsemse growth and discount rates for «
reporting unit. Assumptions about such future déshis are based on our budgets, business planspeto projections, anticipated future ¢
flows and market data. Finally, the comparable camypanalysis and precedent transaction analysigsreghjjudgment in selecting compare
companies and comparable transactions for useeirtdlculations. In all instances, future changeth@se judgments and assumptions c
cause impairment of goodwill.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ar] 20Df our reporting units passed Step 1 ofghedwill impairment analysis. Howev
based on carrying values of the reporting unitofaBecember 31, 2014, a 39% decline in the faiugadf the Excess and Surplus Li
reporting unit, 21% decline in the fair value oét8ommercial Specialty reporting unit or 16% delin the fair value of the Syndicate 1.
segment would have resulted in the carrying vatdd¢bese reporting units being in excess of thespective fair values, resulting in the nee
perform Step 2, which could have resulted in a netémpairment to our goodwill. Any decline in tliair value of these reporting units co
result in the carrying value of the reporting umiting in excess of fair value, triggering Step 2taf impairment testing model, which cc
result in an impairment of goodwill.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we deterndsed result of the slower than anticipated devetyg of revenues for our art ti
insurance company, the likelihood of near term vecy of the intangible assets, including goodwilgs not probable. Therefore, we wraoi-
$1.6 million of goodwill and $1.8 million of indefite lived intangible assets related to this opegatnit.

As noted above, we have elected to make the fagtad the fourth quarter the annual impairment sssent date for goodwill and indefinite-
lived intangible assets. An impairment analysisssgjent to this date has not been performed asgwearet believes that no additic
indicators of impairment have arisen, such as fggmit additional pricing competition, unexpectagn#ficant declines in operating resu
divestiture of a significant component of the besmor a significant decline in our market captalon.

The following table presents our intangible asaets accumulated amortization at December 31:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

(in millions) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Lloyd's capacity $ 60.5 na $ 60.5 n/a
Title plant — n/a 1.8 n/a
Distribution network 44.8 27.9 44.8 23.1
Additional Lloyd's capacit 4.8 3.9 4.8 3.2
Other 1.5 1.2 1.5 1.1
$ 1116 $ 33.C $ 1134 $ 274

The weighted average useful life by category atebduer 31, 2014 was 9.8 years for the distributietwork, 5.0 years for the additio
Lloyd’s capacity and 9.1 years for other. The wedghaverage useful life for all categories wasy@&s at December 31, 2014.

During the twelve months ended December 31, 20043 2and 2012, amortization expense was $5.6 mjl@nl million and $5.2 milliol
respectively, and is included in “Underwriting, ajtion and insurance expenses” in our Consoli&tatements of Income.

The estimated amortization expense for the yeadedk®ecember 31, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 20$8.4& million, $5.1 million, $4.
million, $2.4 million and $0.4 million, respectiyel

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment used in operations, inclydiartain costs incurred to develop or obtain caepgoftware for internal use,
capitalized and carried at cost less accumulatpded@tion and are reported in “Other assets” in@onsolidated Balance
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Sheets. Depreciation is calculated using a strdightmethod over the estimated useful lives ofdlsets, generally three to thirty two ye
The accumulated depreciation for property and eqgeit was $81.7 million and $65.5 million at Decemb®, 2014 and 2013, respectivi
The net book value of our property and equipmerDetember 31, 2014 and 2013 was $102.7 million &f&10 million, respectively. TI
depreciation expense at December 31, 2014, 2012@t®iwas $15.1 million, $15.5 million and $12.6liom, respectively.

Derivative Instruments

We enter into short-term, currency spot and forwardtracts to mitigate foreign exchange rate exyosuour nond.S. Dollar denominate
fixed maturity investments. The forward contracted are typically less than sixty days and arewedeas long as the ndnS. Dolla
denominated fixed maturity investments are heldunportfolio. Forward contracts are designatetiedges for accounting purposes. We
enter into foreign currency exchange forward cagrdo manage currency exposure on losses relatggdobal catastrophe events. Tt
foreign currency forward contracts are carried at ¥alue in our Consolidated Balance Sheets inh&Dtinvestments.The realized ar
unrealized gains and losses are included in “Naized investment and other gains” in our ConsodideéStatements of Income.

Through our subsidiary Argo Re, in 2011, we enténédl two reinsurance contracts with a special paepreinsurance company that prov
us with protection against certain severe catabBe@vents and the occurrence of multiple signiticatastrophe events during the same
The special purpose reinsurance company providedré¢msurance through two catastrophe bond transacthat were supported by t
collateralized facilities. The reinsurance consagere deemed to be derivatives. We recorded ttwdeacts at fair value, and such fair vi
was included in “Other assets” in our ConsolidaBalance Sheets with any changes in the value teflem “Other reinsuranceslatec
expenses” in our Consolidated Statements of Inc@ae.Note 5, “Derivative Instruments” for relatesctbsures.

Share-Based Payments

Compensation expense for share-based paymentsogniged based on the measurendaie fair value for awards that will settle in s#%
Awards that are expected to be settled in casta@reunted for as liability awards, resulting in fhe value of the award being measure
each reporting date until the award is exercisedeited or expires unexercised. Compensation esgpéor awards that are settled in equity
recognized on a straight line pro rata basis dvernvesting period. Compensation expense for awthedsare settled in cash are recognize
the accelerated recognition method over the awabting period. See Note 14, “Share-based Compenséor related disclosures.

Foreign Currency Exchange Gain (Loss)

The U.S. Dollar is the functional currency of alithwo of our foreign operations. Monetary asseis kgabilities in foreign operations that
denominated in foreign currencies are revaluedateixchange rates in effect at the balance shéet Tae resulting gains and losses f
changes in the foreign exchange rates are refléctedt income. Revenues and expenses denomimafeckign currencies are translated a
prevailing exchange rate during the period withrsulting foreign exchange gains and losses iedud net income for the period. In the ¢
of our foreign currency denominated availabledate investments, the change in exchange rategéetthie local currency and our functic
currency at each balance sheet date representsiraalised appreciation or depreciation in valuethefse securities and is included
component of accumulated other comprehensive gain.

Translation gains and losses related to our omeratin Brazil and Malta are recorded as a compowérghareholdersequity in ou
Consolidated Balance Sheets. At December 31, 28842813, the foreign currency translation adjustsievere a loss of $15.6 million &
$11.5 million, respectively.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognipedhe estimated future tax consequences attiibeitto differences between the finan
statement carrying amounts of existing assets iabdities and their respective tax bases. Defeteadassets and liabilities are measured 1
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in whiubse temporary differences are expected to be esedwor settled. The effect on deferrec
assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratesdegnized in net income in the period in which¢hange is enacted.

For any uncertain tax positions not meeting the révikely-than-not” recognition threshold, accounting standards requéeognition
measurement and disclosure in a compafigancial statements. We had no material unreizedrtax benefits as of December 31, 2014,
and 2012. Our United States subsidiaries are rgelosubject to U.S. federal and state income tax
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examinations by tax authorities for years befor&12@ur United Kingdom subsidiaries are no longdiject to United Kingdom income 1
examinations by Her Majesty’s Revenue and Custamgdars before 2012.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Income taxes paitWe paid income taxes of $23.7 million, $14.2 milliand $21.0 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respelt

Income taxes recovereWe recovered income taxes of $0.1 million and $18ilion in 2014 and 2012, respectively. We did netover an
income taxes in 2013.

Interest paidInterest paid was as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Senior unsecured fixed rate no $ 93 $ 93 $ 2.1
Junior subordinated debentu 7.6 7.9 21.3
Other indebtednes 2.8 2.6 3.1
Total interest pait $ 19.7 $ 19.8 $ 26.5

Nor-cash operating activities transactiorls. our Consolidated Balance Sheet at December@®12,2'Reinsurance recoverables” ar@ietie(
reinsurance payable, net” each included $252.3anifrom the whole account quota share reinsuraraesaction (see Note 6Reserves fc
Losses and Loss Adjustment Expensies further discussion). As cash had not beenexkiti 2012 related to this transaction, $252.3iom
has been excluded from both the change in “Reckisaland the change in “Ceded reinsurance payatdefends heldfor the year ende
December 31, 2012. During 2013, $52.7 million weseived related to the “Reinsurance recoverablad”ia reflected in “Receivablesinc
$155.0 million was paid related to the “Ceded reiaace payable, net” and is reflected in “Cededsugiance payable and funds heild"ou
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Additionaiye “Reinsurance recoverabl@ias increased by $9.2 million for a change in
estimated loss which has not been settled in cagdf ®ecember 31, 2013 and is therefore excludeah filReceivables'in our Consolidate
Statements of Cash Flows. Subject to a Split Reamme to Close arrangement previously approvedh®ytudential Regulatory Authority, -
liabilities assumed by the whole account quotaesipaovider were legally transferred to that qudtare provider on January 18, 2014 witt
inception date of January 1, 2014.

Our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows contaimegonciliation of net income to “Net cash (use)vided by operating activitiesyhich
includes, among other things, certain adjustmemtsibn-cash items. For the year ended Decembe2@4Y, the adjustment folNet realize:
and other gains” includes a $43.3 million non-cisim related to the priax realized gain recognized on the sale of agswte holding, as t
proceeds from this sale are currently held in egciad recorded as a receivable within “Other a%sat®ur Consolidated Balance Shee
December 31, 2014. See Note 3, “Sale of Real Ebtaliing” for further discussion.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revefraen Contracts with CustomersT@pic 606). The ASU is a comprehensive

revenue recognition model that requires a compamgdognize revenue to depict the transfer of ga@wdservices to a customer at an am
that reflects the consideration it expects to nee@ exchange for those goods or services. The pi®Mides a fivestep analysis of transactic
to determine when and how revenue is recognizedragdires additional disclosures sufficient to disecthe nature, amount, timing ¢
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows for thesestaations. This ASU is effective for annual repaytperiods beginning after December
2016 and early adoption is not permitted. Accorljingve will adopt this ASU on January 1, 2017. Camigs may use either dufl
retrospective” adoption, meaning the update isiagpb all periods presented, or a “modified rgbaxdive” adoption, meaning the updat:
applied only to the most current period presentetthé financial statements. While insurance cotdrace excluded from this ASU, fee incc
related to our brokerage operations and manageafghe third-party capital for our underwriting Siicate at Lloyds will be subject to th
updated guidance. We are currently evaluating vilhatact this ASU will have on our financial resuiad disclosures and which adop
method to apply.
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2. Investments

Composition of Invested Assets

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gnos=alized losses and fair value of investments &eoember 31 were as follows:

December 31, 201

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(in millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
Fixed maturities
USD denominatec
U.S. Government $ 184.C $ 1.3 $ 03 $ 185.C
Non-U.S. Government 79.9 0.6 0.6 79.9
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 468.1 22.9 0.3 490.7
Credi-Financial 508.1 12.3 2.3 518.1
CreditIndustrial 493.7 9.4 3.5 499.€
Credi-Utility 142.7 3.2 3.9 142.C
Structured securitie:
CMO/MBS-agency®) 168.C 8.0 0.7 175.2
CMO/MBS-non agenc! 13.2 0.8 — 14.0
CMBS @) 178.€ 1.6 0.2 180.C
ABS 3 221.4 0.6 1.0 221.C
Foreign denominatet
Governmentt 148.4 1.2 9.4 140.2
Credit 211.1 2.7 18.9 194.¢
Total fixed maturities 2,817.% 64.6 41.1 2,840.7
Equity securitie: 307.2 184.1 5.1 486.
Other investment 488.¢ 7.5 1.3 495.1
Shor-term investment 275.€ — — 275.€
Total investment: $ 3,889.c $ 256.2 $ 475 $  4,097.¢

@ Collateralized mortgage obligations/mortg-backed securities* CMO/MBS").
@ Commercial mortgac¢-backed securities* CMBS”).
®  Asse-backed securitie¢ ABS”).
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December 31, 201

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(in millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
Fixed maturities
USD denominatec
U.S. Government $ 2734 % 24 $ 05 $ 275.3
Nor-U.S. Government 60.9 0.3 1.0 60.2
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 563.7 22.9 8.8 577.¢
Credi-Financial 426.2 154 1.8 439.¢
Credi-Industrial 385. 13.8 2.2 397.1
Credi-Utility 162.C 5.4 0.8 166.€
Structured securitie!
CMO/MBS-agency®d) 2194 9.2 1.7 226.¢
CMO/MBS-non agenc! 194 0.8 — 20.2
CMBS @ 162.7 3.1 1.0 164.¢
ABS (3 123.€ 0.8 0.6 123.¢
Foreign denominatet
Government: 207.7 4.9 5.9 206.7
Credit 155.5 4.4 4.8 155.1
Total fixed maturities 2,760.1 83.4 29.1 2,814.¢
Equity securitie: 346.¢ 188.€ 1.2 534.¢
Other investment 377.4 2.8 1.3 378.€
Shor-term investment 351.€ — — 351.€
Total investment $ 38360 $ 274.¢ $ 31.6 $ 4,079.C

@ Collateralized mortgage obligations/mortg-backed securities* CMO/MBS").
@ Commercial mortga¢-backed securities CMBS”).
®  Asse-backed securities ABS").

Included in “Total investmentsin our Consolidated Balance Sheets at Decembe@14 and 2013 is $75.2 million and $87.3 mill
respectively, of assets managed on behalf of Huetcapital providers, who are thpdsty participants that provide underwriting calpitaoul
Syndicate 1200 segment.

Contractual Maturity

The amortized cost and fair values of fixed mayurivestments as of December 31, 2014, by contahataturity, were as follows:

Amortized Fair

(in millions) Cost Value
Due in one year or le: $ 238.7 $ 235.:
Due after one year through five ye 1,326.2 1,328.5
Due after five years through ten ye 507.7 519.1
Thereaftel 163.4 167.5
Structured securitie 581.2 590.:

Total $ 2,817.2 $ 2,840.7

The expected maturities may differ from the contratmaturities because debtors may have the tagtall or prepay obligations.
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Other Invested Assets

Details regarding the carrying value, redemptioarahteristics and unfunded investment commitmehteeoother invested assets portfolic
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

December 31, 201

(in millions) Carrying Value Unfunded Commitments
Investment Type

Hedge fund: $ 153.2 $ —
Private equity 123.€ 72.9
Long only funds 104.4 —
Other investment 113.€ —
Total other invested assets $ 495.1 $ 72.9

December 31, 201

(in millions) Carrying Value Unfunded Commitments
Investment Type

Hedge fund: $ 87.9 $ —
Private equity 93.8 35.7
Long only funds 62.0 —
Other investment 135.2 —
Total other invested assets $ 378.¢ $ 35.7

The following describes each investment type:
« Hedge funds:Hedge funds include equity long/short, multi-stggteredit, relative value credit and distressechéeeedit funds.

« Private equity: Private equity includes buyout funds, real assiedigtructure funds, credit special situations fymdezzanine lendir
funds and direct investments and strategic camtrolling minority investments in private compasithat are principally accounted
using the equity method of accountil

« Long only funds: These funds include a loraply fund that invests in high yield fixed incomecsrities and funds that primau
invests in distressed de!

« Other investments: Other investments include assets on deposit wittiows regulatory authorities to support SyndicaR9C
segment insurance and reinsurance operations and foexigimange currency forward contracts to manage expas losses relat
to global catastrophic events, our Canadian dolla@stment portfolio and certain Euro denominatestments
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Unrealized Losses and Other-than-temporary Impaimte

An aging of unrealized losses on our investmenfxed maturities, equity securities, other investits and shottierm investments is presen
below:

December 31, 201. Less Than One Yeal One Year or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(in millions) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Fixed maturities
USD denominatec

U.S. Government $ 55.C $ 02 $ 157 $ 01 $ 70.7 % 0.3
Non-U.S. Government 36.5 0.4 5.2 0.2 41.7 0.6
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions 104 0.1 16.6 0.2 27.0 0.3
Credi+Financial 195.7 2.2 11.1 0.1 206.€ 2.3
Credi+Industrial 240.¢ 3.3 12.2 0.2 253.C 3.5
Credit-Utility 63.1 3.8 1.9 0.1 65.0 3.9
Structured securitie:
CMO/MBS-agency 10.1 0.1 19.2 0.6 29.3 0.7
CMBS 49.3 0.1 6.0 0.1 55.3 0.2
ABS 129.2 0.7 8.1 0.3 137.¢ 1.0
Foreign denominatet
Governmentt 123.7 9.3 11.2 0.1 134.¢€ 9.4
Credit 190.€ 18.7 0.9 0.2 191.7 18.9
Total fixed maturities 1,104.¢ 38.9 108.1 2.2 1,212.7 41.1
Equity securitie: 53.6 5.1 — — 53.6 5.1
Other investment (0.9) 1.3 — — (0.9) 1.3
Shor-term investment — — — — — —
Total $ 1,157 % 453 $ 108.1 $ 22 $ 1265« $ 47.5
December 31, 201 Less Than One Yeal One Year or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(in millions) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Fixed maturities
USD denominatec

U.S. Government $ 553 $ 05 $ — % — 3 553 $ 0.5
Nor-U.S. Government 36.3 1.0 — — 36.3 1.0
Obligations of states and political
subdivision«? 154.¢ 8.8 3.1 — 157.7 8.8
Credi-Financial 88.7 1.7 2.4 0.1 91.1 1.8
Credi+Industrial 85.7 2.0 2.9 0.2 88.6 2.2
Credi-Utility 21.2 0.7 1.9 0.1 23.1 0.8
Structured securitie:
CMO/MBS-agency 58.4 1.2 5.6 0.5 64.0 1.7
CMBS @) 24.2 1.0 1.1 — 25.3 1.0
ABS 59.1 0.1 5.6 0.5 64.7 0.6
Foreign denominatet
Government: 170.t 5.9 — — 170.5 5.9
Credit 125.2 4.8 — — 125.¢2 4.8
Total fixed maturities 879.5 27.7 22.6 1.4 901.¢€ 29.1
Equity securitie: 25.5 1.2 — — 25.5 1.2
Other investment 1.3) 1.3 — — (1.3 1.3
Shor-term investment(®) 45 — — — 4.5 —
Total $ 908.C $ 302 $ 226 $ 14 $ 930.€ $ 31.6

@ Unrealized losses less than one year are lesssthamillion.
@ Unrealized losses one year or greater are lessidmillion.
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We regularly evaluate our investments for othenttemporary impairment. For fixed maturity secestithe evaluation for a credit los:
generally based on the present value of expect& ftawvs of the security as compared to the amexitizook value. For structured securi
frequency and severity of loss inputs are usedajepting future cash flows of the securities. L&&gsjuency is measured as the credit de
rate, which includes such factors as loawdbse ratios and credit scores of borrowers. Faoitggecurities and other investments, the lend
time and the amount of decline in fair value are phincipal factors in determining other-than-temgpp impairment. We also recognize other
than-temporary losses on fixed maturity securities$ we intend to sell.

We hold a total of 6,165 securities, of which 2,@&re in an unrealized loss position for less thaa year and 139 were in an unrealized
position for a period one year or greater as ofdbdwer 31, 2014. Unrealized losses greater tharvéwabnths on fixed maturities were
result of a number of factors, including increaseetlit spreads, foreign currency fluctuations aighér market yields relative to the date
securities were purchased, and for structured gmsyrby the performance of the underlying collateas well. In considering whether
investment is other-thetemporarily impaired or not, we also considered @ do not intend to sell the investments and itrlikely that w
will be required to sell the investments beforeokesy of their amortized cost bases, which may launity. In situations where we did |
recognize other-than-temporary losses on investnianbur equity portfolio, we have evaluated tharderm prospects of the investmen
relation to the severity and duration of the imp&nt and based on that evaluation, have the ahifityintent to hold these investments ur
recovery of the cost basis. We do not considertigestments to be other-than-temporarily impaaeBecember 31, 2014.

We recognized other-thaemporary losses on our fixed maturities portfafdb1.2 million, $6.0 million and $1.5 million f®014, 2013 ar

2012, respectively. We recognized other-tiemporary losses on our equity portfolio of $1.1lion, $1.8 million and $2.2 million for 201
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Net Investment Income and Realized Gains and Los

Investment income and expenses were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Investment income
Interest and dividends on fixed maturit $ 76.2 % 877 $ 105.¢
Dividends on equity securitie 15.8 17.7 15.2
Interest on shc-term and other investmer 5.3 5.0 7.3
Other (1.0 (1.0) (0.4)
Investment incom 96.4 109.4 128.C
Investment expenst (9.8) (9.4) (9.2)
Net investment incom $ 86.6 $ 100.C $ 118.¢
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The following table presents our gross realizeg@tment gains (losses) and other:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Realized gain
Fixed maturities $ 17C $ 338 $ 27.2
Equity securities 29.2 59.1 0.4
Other investment 44.8 38.9 215
Shor-term investment 0.1 0.1 0.5
Other asset 2.0 — 4.8
Gain on sale of real estate holdir 43.3 — —
Gross realized investment gains and o 136.4 131.€ 54.4
Realized losse
Fixed maturities (12.2) (19.6) (9.1)
Equity securities (0.6) (1.9 (0.5)
Other investment (21.8) (30.8) (15.1)
Shor-term investment (0.9 (0.7) (0.3)
Other asset (4.6) — —
Other-than-temporary impairment losses on fixed
maturities 1.2 (6.0) (1.5
Other-than-temporary impairment losses on equity
securities (1.1) (1.8) (2.2)
Gross realized investment and other lo¢ (42.4) (60.3) (28.7)
Net realized investment gains and ot $ 94.C $ 713 $ 25.7

Realized gains (losses) and changes in unrealippdeaiation (depreciation) related to fixed matum@ind equity security investments
summarized as follows:

Fixed Equity Other Real Estate Tax

(in millions) Maturities Maturities Investments Other Holdings Effects Total
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Realized before impairmer $ 48 $ 286 $ 230 % 34 $ 4332 $ (340 $ 623
Realizec- impairments (1.2 (1.2 — — — 0.8 (1.5)
Change in unrealize (30.5 (8.4) 2.5 — — 3.1 (33.3
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Realized before impairmer $ 139 $ 577 $ 81 $ (0.6) $ — $ (262 $ 529
Realizec- impairments (6.0) (1.8) — — — 2.7 (5.0
Change in unrealize (102.¢) 39.5 4.5 — — 184 (40.2)
Year Ended December 31, 2012

Realized before impairmer $ 181 $ 0.1 $ 64 $ 50 $ — 3 (720 $ 222
Realizec- impairments (1.5) (2.2) — — — 1.3 (2.9)
Change in unrealize 39.5 35.9 (2.9) — — (20.9 52.6

We enter into short-term, currency spot and forwacshtracts to mitigate foreign exchange rate exmodor certain nond.S. Dolla
denominated fixed maturity investments. The forweothtracts used are typically less than sixty days are renewed as long as the nol
U.S. Dollar denominated fixed maturity investmeats held in our portfolio. These forward contraate designated as fair value hedge:
accounting purposes.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we hedged $0libmand $2.3 million, respectively, of ndn:S. Dollar denominated fixed matui
investments in emerging market debt with $0.1 prilland $2.2 million, respectively, of foreign exoba contracts. The net realized effec
income was not significant for the reporting peso@hese emerging market debt fixed income investsneere sold and the related hed
program discontinued in 2014. The net realizedatfbn income was not significant during 2014.

We also enter into foreign currency exchange forwaydtiacts to manage currency exposure on losse®dela global catastrophe eve
These currency forward contracts are carried atvalue in our Consolidated Balance Sheets in “Ofhgestments.”The realized ar
unrealized gains and losses are included in “Nalized investment and other gairie”our Consolidated Statements of Income. The nal
amount of the currency forward contracts was $20iion, $57.2 million and $102.8 million as of Dember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2C
respectively. The fair value of the currency fordvapntracts was a loss of $0.6 million, $1.3
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million and $1.9 million as of December 31, 201812 and 2012, respectively. For the years endecmber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
recognized $4.6 million, $7.8 million and $8.0 noill in realized gains and $4.9 million, $10.4 roitiand $7.5 million in realized loss
respectively, from the currency forward contracts.

In 2014, we entered into foreign currency exchdogward contracts to manage currency exposure oiCanadian dollar (“CAD”"jnvestmer
portfolio. The currency forward contracts are @drat fair value in our Consolidated Balance Shiget®ther investments.The realized ar
unrealized gains and losses are included in “Nalized investment and other gairin”’our Consolidated Statements of Income. The nal
amount of the currency forward contracts was CAR1$& million ($118.1 million) as of December 31,120 The fair value of the currer
forward contracts was a loss of $0.6 million aDetcember 31, 2014. For the year ended Decemb&3¥, we recognized $4.6 million
realized gains and $2.2 million in realized lossespectively, from the CAD currency forward contsa

Also in 2014, we entered into foreign currency exue forward contracts to manage currency exposar€ertain Euro denominal
investments. The currency forward contracts areezhiat fair value in our Consolidated Balance $hée “Other investments'The realize
and unrealized gains and losses are included in f&adized investment and other gaims”our Consolidated Statements of Income. The
value of the currency forward contracts was $2.Bianias of December 31, 2014. For the year endedehber 31, 2014, we recognized :
million in realized gains and $2.4 million in readd losses, respectively, from these currency fatwantracts.

Regulatory Deposits, Pledged Securities and Lettadr€redit

At December 31, 2014, the amortized cost and faluer of investments on deposit with U.S., Canadiad various agencies for regulai
purposes were $186.6 million and $194.2 milliorspextively. At December 31, 2013, the amortized eosl fair value of investments
deposit with U.S. and various agencies for regujapairposes were $196.7 million and $203.4 millimspectively.

At December 31, 2014, investments with an amortzest of $55.0 million and fair value of $55.3 naifi were pledged as collateral in sup
of irrevocable letters of credit (“LOC’s'ln the amount of $43.6 million issued under thenteiof certain reinsurance agreements in resp
reported loss and loss expense reserves. At DeceStib@2013, investments with an amortized cost®.% million and fair value of $9¢
million were pledged as collateral in support oé¥wocable LOGS in the amount of $60.2 million issued under #rens of certain reinsurar
agreements in respect of reported loss and lossnegpreserves.

Our Corporate member’s capital supporting our Lisydusiness was $217.9 million and $250.8 milliorDatember 31, 2014 and 20
respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be receivedeiban asset or paid to transfer a liability in@derly transaction between market participar
the measurement date. Fair value measurement asshatehe transaction to sell the asset or tramiséeliability occurs in the principal marl
for the asset or liability, or in the absence gfrimcipal market, the most advantageous marketkbtgrarticipants are buyers and sellers ir
principal (or most advantageous) market that adependent, knowledgeable, able to transact foaslset or liability and willing to transfer 1
asset or liability.

Valuation techniques consistent with the marketrapgh, income approach and/or cost approach acktasmeasure fair value. The input:
these valuation techniques are categorized ingettavels.

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) tivaanarkets for identical assets or liabilitieattitan be accessed at the repo
date. We define actively traded as a security blhattraded in the past seven days. We receive uwte ger instrument for Leve
inputs.

e Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted pricelsided within Level 1 that are observable for fisset or liability, either direct
or indirectly. We receive one quote per instrunfentevel 2 inputs

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. Unobseevatguts reflect our own assumptions about therapions market participar
would use in pricing the asset or liability basedtioe best information available in the circumsem

We receive fair value prices from thiphty pricing services and our outside investmeanagers. These prices are determined
observable market information such as dealer quatasket spreads, cash flows, yield curves, liaglitrg levels, trade execution data, me
consensus prepayment speeds, credit informationttendecuritys terms and conditions, among other things. We heviewed the proces:
used by the thirgharty providers for pricing the securities, anddnaetermined that these processes result in faiesaonsistent with GAA
requirements. In addition, we review these pricesdasonableness, and have not adjusted any
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prices received from the thiphrty providers as of December 31, 2014. A desoripdf the valuation techniques we use to meassseta ¢
fair value is as follows:

Fixed Maturities (Availabl-for-Sale) Levels 1 and 2:

e United States Treasury securities are typicallyedlusing Level 1 inputs. For these securitiespltain fair value measureme
from thirc-party pricing services using quoted prices (unddglisin active markets at the reporting d.

e United States Government agencies, bWoB:- Government securities, obligations of statad aolitical subdivisions, cre«
securities and foreign denominated securitiesegperted at fair value using Level 2 inputs. Fosthsecurities, we obtain fair va
measurements from thingarty pricing services. Observable data may inclddaler quotes, market spreads, yield curves
trading levels, trade execution data, credit infation and the secur’s terms and conditions, among other thit

e CMO/MBS agency, CMO/MBS non-agency, CMBS, ABSidestial and ABS nomesidential securities are reported at fair v
using Level 2 inputs. For these securities, weinliar value measurements from thipdsty pricing services. Observable data
include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flgvedd curves, live trading levels, trade executidata, market consen
prepayment speeds, credit information and the #g’'s terms and conditions, among other thit

Equity Securities Level (Equity securities are principally reported at feaaue using Level 1 inputs. For these securities,obtain fair valu
measurements from a third-party pricing servicegisjuoted prices (unadjusted) in active marketBeateporting date.

Equity Securities Level We own interests in equity and mutual funds thatraported at fair value using Level 2 inputs. Vhkiations ar
based on the fundsiet asset value per share, determined weekly tireaénd of each month. The underlying assets irfuhds are value
primarily on the basis of closing market quotation®fficial closing prices on each valuation day.

Equity Securities Level We own certain equity securities that are repoatefdir value using Level 3 inputs. The valuatienttniques for the
securities include the following:

e Fair value measurements are obtained from theh&tAssociation of Insurance Commissione3scurity Valuation Office at tl
reporting date

e Fair value measurements for an investment in aityefund obtained by applying final prices provided the administrator of tl
fund, which is based upon certain estimates anghgstsons.

Other Investments Level Eoreign regulatory deposits are assets held it imysirisdictions where there is a legal and reguty requiremel
to maintain funds locally in order to protect pgholders. Lloyds is the appointed investment manager for the fufidese assets are inves
in shortterm government securities, agency securities angbcate bonds and are valued using Level 2 inpased upon values obtained fi
Lloyd’'s. Foreign currency future contracts are valuedoby counterparty using market driven foreign cucsemxchange rates and
considered Level 2 investments.

Short-term Investment8hort-term investments are principally reportedaat value using Level 1 inputs, with the exceptiohshortterr
corporate bonds reported at fair value using Levéhputs as described in the fixed maturities sectibove. Values for the investme
categorized as Level 1 are obtained from varioeftial institutions as of the reporting date.

Other Assets Level 3We had one reinsurance contract deemed a deviati2013. The fair values were estimated by mamant taking int
account changes in the market for insurance lingecurities with similar economic characteristicgl gootential recoveries from eve
preceding the valuation date. See Note 5, “Denrealinstruments” for related disclosures.

Transfers Between Level 1 and Level 2 Securifieere were no transfers between Level 1 and Legel@rities during 2014 or 2013.
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Based on an analysis of the inputs, our financaéts measured at fair value on a recurring basis been categorized as follows:

December 31,

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Usin

(in millions) 2014 Level 1® Level 2(b) Level 30
Fixed maturities
USD denominatec
U.S. Government $ 185.C $ 99.2 $ 85.¢ $ —
Nor-U.S. Government 79.9 — 79.C —
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 490.7 — 490.7 —
Credi-Financial 518.1 — 518.1 —
CreditIndustrial 499.¢€ — 499.€ —
Credi-Utility 142.C — 142.C —
Structured securitie!
CMO/MBS-agency 175.2 — 175.2 —
CMO/MBS-non agenc! 14.C — 14.C —
CMBS 180.C — 180.C —
ABS 221.C — 221.C —
Foreign denominatet
Government: 140.z — 140.z —
Credit 194.¢ — 194.¢ —
Total fixed maturities 2,840.7 99.2 2,741k —
Equity securitie: 486.: 485.4 — 0.9
Other investment 97.3 — 97.3 —
Shor-term investment 275.€ 273.¢ 1.9 —
Other asset — — — —
$ 3,700.1 $ 858. $ 2,840.7 $ 0.9

@ Quoted prices in active markets for identical a=
®  Significant other observable inpt
©  Significant unobservable inpu
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Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Usin¢

December 31,
(in millions) 2013 Level 1® Level 2(b) Level 3()

Fixed maturities
USD denominatec

U.S. Government $ 275.2 $ 143.¢ $ 1315 $ —
Non-U.S. Government 60.2 — 60.2 —
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 577.¢ — 577.¢ —
Credi-Financial 439.¢ — 439.€ —
CreditIndustrial 397.1 — 397.1 —
Credi-Utility 166.€ — 166.¢€ —

Structured securitie:
CMO/MBS-agency 226.€ — 226.€ —
CMO/MBS-non agenc! 20.2 — 20.2 —
CMBS 164.€ — 164.¢ —
ABS 123.€ — 123.¢ —

Foreign denominatet

Government: 206.7 — 206.7 —
Credit 155.1 — 155.1 —
Total fixed maturities 2,814.¢ 143.¢ 2,670.¢ —
Equity securitie: 534.: 476.7 56.3 1.3
Other investment 117.€ — 117.¢ —
Shor-term investment 351.€ 347.C 4.6 —
Other asset 2.6 — — 2.6
$ 3,820.7 $ 967.E $ 2,849.: $ 3.9

@ Quoted prices in active markets for identical &
®  Significant other observable inpt
©  Significant unobservable inpu

The fair value measurements in the tables aboveoti@qual “Total investmentsin our Consolidated Balance Sheets as they exdedair
other investments that are accounted for undeetfuity-method of accounting and include reinsuracm@racts that are classified a3thel
assets”.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakstor the investments categorized as Level 3sfellws:

Fair Value Measurements Using Observable Inputs (Leel 3)

Equity Other
(in millions) Securities Assets Total
Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 13 $ 26 $ 3.9
Transfers into Level — —
Transfers out of Level — — —
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealizt
Included in net income (los — — —
Included in other comprehensive income (l¢ 0.1 — 0.1
Purchases, issuances, sales, and settlel
Purchase — — —
Issuance: — — —
Sales (0.5) — (0.5)
Settlement: — (2.6) (2.6)
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 09 % — $ 0.9

Amount of total gains or losses for the year ineldich
net income (loss) attributable to the change in
unrealized gains or losses relating to ass#itbalid
at December 31, 20: $ — $ — $ —

Equity Other
(in millions) Securities Assets Total
Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 18 $ 69 $ 8.7
Transfers into Level — — —
Transfers out of Level — — —
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealizt
Included in net income (los 0.1 — 0.1
Included in other comprehensive income (I — — —
Purchases, issuances, sales, and settlel

Purchase — — —
Issuance: — — —
Sales (0.6) — (0.6)
Settlement: — (4.3) (4.3)
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 13 $ 26 $ 3.9

Amount of total gains or losses for the year ineltich
net income (loss) attributable to the change in
unrealized gains or losses relating to assiithaid
at December 31, 20: $ — $ — $ —

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, we did not havef@maycial assets or financial liabilities measuetdair value on a nonrecurring basit
any financial liabilities on a recurring basis.

3. Sale of Real Estate Holdin¢

On December 30, 2014, AGI Properties, Inc. (“AGIR)subsidiary of Argonaut Insurance Company, sgbérael of real estate in Torran
California for a sales price of $45.0 million, witlet proceeds of approximately $43.6 million. Timeds are being held in escrow, with A(
named as beneficiary. The sale of this property fumléigain recognition under ASC 360-20, “ProperBlant, and Equipment Real Estat
Sales,” and resulted in a pre-tax realized gai84#.3 million. This amount is included in the Compa “Net realized investment and ot
gains” line on its Consolidated Statements of Ineom

4. Reinsurance

We reinsure certain risks with other insurance camigs. Such arrangements serve to limit our maxidmssion certain individual risks as v
as on catastrophes and large or unusually hazardss We are liable for reinsurance ceded inethent our reinsurers
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do not meet their obligations. Thus, a credit expesexists with respect to reinsurance ceded tceittent that any reinsurer is unable
unwilling to meet the obligations assumed underréirsurance contracts. Our allowance for uncabdéetreinsurance balances receivabli
paid losses and incurred claims was $3.4 milliod $8.7 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2018peetively. Under certain reinsura
agreements, collateral, including letters of creditheld to secure performance of reinsurers ietmg their obligations. The amount of s
collateral was $359.4 million and $335.5 million¢cember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Theateodl we hold does not apply to
entire outstanding reinsurance recoverable. Rattadlateral is provided on an individual contractsls as appropriate. For each indivic
reinsurer, the collateral held may exceed or felbty the total outstanding recoverable from thdbiidual reinsurer.

The longterm nature of the reinsurance contracts creatg®dit risk to us over time arising from potengalincollectible reinsurance.
mitigate that counterparty risk, we evaluate oumgerers to assess their financial condition. Téetdrs that underlie these reviews inclu
financial risk assessment as well as an internséssnent of the capitalization and the operatidsklof the reinsurer. As a result of th
reviews, we may make changes to the approved nsatthat are used in both our treaty and facultatigsurance programs.

Estimated losses recoverable from reinsurers amddékded portion of unearned premiums are repodesbsets in our Consolidated Bale
Sheets. Included in “Reinsurance recoverabdgs’ paid loss recoverables of $91.9 million and0®d4million as of December 31, 2014 .
2013, respectively. “Earned Premiums” and “Lossed Bbbss adjustment expenseafe reported net of reinsurance in our Consolic
Statements of Income.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses of $747.4miHi742.0 million and $747.6 million for the yearsded December 31, 2014, 2013
2012, respectively, are net of amounts ceded tsueers of $246.6 million, $292.8 million and $2#&illion, respectively.

We are required to accept certain assigned risto#rer legally mandated reinsurance obligationer Ro the mid1980s, we assumed varit
forms of casualty reinsurance for which we contitaemaintain reserves for losses and loss adjustmegpenses (see Note 21, “Rafi-
Lines”). For such assumed reinsurance transactions, we emfgagrious monitoring steps that are common a&#bumed reinsurance sucl
ongoing claims reviews. We currently assume prgpegtated reinsurance primarily through our sulasigi Argo Re and casualty rela
reinsurance primarily through ArgoGlobal Syndica®90 (see Note 20, “Segment Information”).

Premiums were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Direct written premium: $ 15855 $ 15761 $ 1,428.¢
Reinsurance ceded to other compa (537.5) (537.]) (501.2)
Reinsurance assumed from other compa 319.€ 312.F 317.1

Net written premium: $ 1367.¢ $ 1351 $ 1244t
Direct earned premiun $ 1551.¢ $ 1541 $ 1,372:
Reinsurance ceded to other compa (524.¢) (533.7) (487.0)
Reinsurance assumed from other compa 311.1 296.5 301.3

Net earned premiurn $ 13381 $ 1303.¢f $ 1,186.
Percentage of reinsurance assumed to net earned

premiums 23.2% 22.7% 25.4%

5. Derivative Instruments

Through our subsidiary Argo Re, in 2011 we enténéal two reinsurance contracts with a special psep@insurance company that provide
with protection against certain severe catastraaats and the occurrence of multiple significaataistrophe events during the same year
first contract was effective June 18, 2011 and ey coverage of $100 million for hurricanes andheuakes in the U.S., windstorms
Europe and earthquakes in Japan based on the escarof second and subsequent events on a pereoebasis over an IBenth coverac
period. The first contract expired in December 20I2e second contract entered into on Decembe2@B] and effective January 1, 2C
provided coverage of $100 million for hurricanesl aarthquakes (including fire) in the U.S. and cedelosses for the first and subseq
events on a per-occurrence basis over an@dth coverage period. The second contract expirékcember 2013. Both of these transac
ignored the effects of inuring reinsurance, crepthe remote possibility of a double recovery owered events, and were therefore deem
be derivatives.
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We recorded these contracts at fair value, and faickalue is included in “Other asseig”our Consolidated Balance Sheets with any che

in the value reflected in “Other reinsurance-ralagxpensesin our Consolidated Statements of Income. As thgrao quoted fair valt
available for these derivatives, the fair value waimated by management taking into account cteig¢he market for insurance link
services with similar economic characteristics pateéntial recoveries from events preceding theatan date. Included in “Other reinsurance
related expensesbr the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 $1&@ million and $27.3 million, respectively, whiwas incurred dt

to the change in the fair value of the derivatimencipally due to the passage of the transactiaslscoverage term. Included in “Other asset:
in our Consolidated Balance Sheets at Decembe2®B was $2.6 million, which represented the falue of the contract at that date. As tl
contracts expired in December 2012 and DecembeB,20d expense was recorded during 2014, nor weasflécted on our Consolidat
Balance Sheet at December 31, 2014.

The special purpose reinsurance company that veasdimnterparty to this transaction was a varialtlereést entity under the provisions of A

Topic 810-10, “Consolidation Argo Group was not the primary beneficiary of thigity and was therefore not required to consddidliain ou
consolidated financial statements.

6. Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expess
The following table provides a reconciliation ofegeves for losses and loss adjustment expenseE£()LA

For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Net reserves beginning of the y: $ 2,107 $ 2,110¢ $ 2,336.]
Add:
Net reserves from assumed retroactive insur.

contraci® — — 13.C

Losses and LAE incurred during current calendar
year, net of reinsuranc

Current accident ye: 785.1 775.€ 780.5
Prior accident yeat (37.7) (33.6) (32.9)
Losses and LAE incurred during calendar year, net
of reinsuranc 747.4 742.C 747.€
Deduct:
Net reserves cede¢ whole account quota share
reinsurance transacti(2 — — 192.2

Losses and LAE payments made during current
calendar year, net of reinsuran

Current accident ye: 185.¢ 199.: 217.7
Prior accident yeat 550.¢ 554.2 578.¢
Losses and LAE payments made during current
calendar year, net of reinsuran 736.7 753.5 796.5
Change in participation intere(® 37.8 104 (3.1)
Foreign exchange adjustme (19.0 (2.2 5.4
Net reserve- end of yea 2,137.1 2,107.¢ 2,110.¢
Add:
Reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses and LAE,
end of yea 905.3 1,122.5 1,112.¢
Gross reserve- end of yea $ 30424 $ 32305 $ 3,223t

@ Amount represents reserves assumed resulting frarticipation in Brazilian Motor ThirdRarty Liability Insurance Pool effecti
January 1, 201:

@ Amount represents reserves ceded resulting fronh@enaccount quota share reinsurance transacti@®@® and prior year of accol
reserves of the syndicate effective December 2

®  Amount represents (decrease) increase in reseneedhange in syndicate participati

On December 31, 2012, our Syndicate 1200 segméateehinto a retroactive whole account quota shargract covering the 2009 and p
years of account. The counterparty was anotherisgtedwithin the Lloy’s market. As a result of this transaction, resefeefosses and LA
at December 31, 2012 were net of $192.2 millionedednder this quota share agreement. Subject itaR®insurance to Close arrangen
previously approved by the Prudential Regulatoryhauity, the liabilities assumed by the whole
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account quota share provider were legally transteto that quota share provider on January 18, 8fttdan inception date of January 1, 2C

Reserves for losses and LAE represent the estinadiednnity cost and related adjustment expensesssacy to investigate and settle cla
Such estimates are based upon individual case assnior reported claims, estimates from cedingpaories for reinsurance assumed
actuarial estimates for losses that have beenrieduout not yet reported to the insurer. Any chaingarobable ultimate liabilities is reflectec
current operating results.

Impacting losses and LAE for the year ended Decedbe2014 was $37.7 million in favorable prior y@aloss reserve developmi
comprised of the following: $47.4 million of netfarable development in the Excess and Surplus LSegment primarily caused by favore
development in the general and products liabilites, partially offset by unfavorable developmentommercial automobile; $6.8 million
net unfavorable development in the Commercial $iigcsegment, primarily driven by unfavorable deyghent in general liability due
increases in claim severity, as well as unfavoraelelopment in auto liability lines, partially eét by favorable development in shtail-anc
workers compensation lines; $0.4 million of netdeble development in the International Speciaégnsent; $21.1 million of favorat
development in the Syndicate 1200 segment primahilyen by favorable development in various propetasses, as well as favore
development in professional indemnity, partiallyfset by unfavorable development in general liagili$24.4 million of unfavorab
development in the Ruoff Lines segment primarily caused by $10.3 millafrunfavorable development in workers compensdtias drivel
by increasing medical costs on older claims, a$ ag$13.5 million in asbestos liability driven Imgreasing defense costs on primary bus
and activity on assumed business including the anpgarbitrations and commutations.

Net favorable loss development recognized in 2@tJofior accident years was a $33.6 million redurctio losses and LAE. The Excess
Surplus Lines segment had net favorable loss dpwedat of $43.9 million primarily due to favorablew@lopment in the general and prod
liability lines of business, partially offset by famworable development in commercial automobiledgs3he Commercial Specialty segment
net unfavorable loss development of $1.1 milliomarily attributable to unfavorable developmenggneral liability due to increases in cli
severity and unfavorable development in automdislglity, partially offset by favorable developmniein workers compensation and shtail-
lines. The International Specialty segment hadnegfigible prior year loss development. The Syn@ice200 segment had net favorable
development of $6.2 million primarily attributabte favorable development in various property clasgeartially offset by unfavorat
development in liability lines associated with mipality business. The Ruwif Lines segment had net unfavorable developmér#ls.c
million primarily due to $10.5 million of unfavorlb development in the asbestos liability drivenHigher defense costs for claims fr
general liability policies written on a direct beisas well as commutation and settlement actiaitigl $2.0 million of unfavorable developm
in the medical malpractice liability line due teettoss of the New York Liquidation Bureau fundirg $tructured settlement annuity payments

Net favorable loss development recognized in 2@tZfior accident years was a $32.9 million redurctio losses and LAE. The Excess
Surplus Lines segment had net favorable loss dpwedat of $48.0 million primarily driven by favorabbevelopment in the general .
products liability lines of business. The CommdrS8pecialty segment had net unfavorable loss dewedmt of $22.2 million primarily drive
by unfavorable development in general liability dadncreases in claim severity, unfavorable dgwelent in the automobile liability lines
business, partially offset by favorable developmienivorkers compensation. The International Spaciabgment had net favorable |
development of $7.2 million primarily attributabte short-tail noncatastrophe losses. The Syndicate 1200 segmenhétafivorable los
development of $9.7 million primarily driven by fanable development in the property facultative, tNokmerican binder and Directors ¢
Officers classes of business, partially offset byauorable development in the general liability gedy class of business. The Roifi-Lines
segment had net unfavorable development of $9.Bomibrimarily due to $9.1 million of unfavorabledelopment in asbestos claims drivel
increasing defense costs in the primary book anck@sing settlement costs in the assumed bookalpadffset by favorable development
workers compensation and run-off reinsurance claims

In the opinion of management, our reserves reptaberbest estimate of our ultimate liabilitiesséd on currently known facts, current |
current technology and assumptions considered meh&® where facts are not known. Due to the siggnifi uncertainties and rela
management judgments, there can be no assurandattira loss development, favorable or unfavoralié not occur.

Pensiontype reserves (tabular reserves) are indemnityvesdhat are calculated using discounts determivigdreference to actuarial tabl
which incorporate interest and contingencies suehmartality, remarriage, inflation or recovery frodisability applied to a reasona
determinable payment stream. We discounted cewaikers compensation pensigype reserves using a maximum interest rate of 3
2014, 2013 and 2012. The amount of unamortizecbdiscwas $17.6 million, $19.5 million and $20.8 Iroih at December 31, 2014, 2013
2012, respectively.
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7 . Senior Unsecured Fixed Rate Notes

In September 2012, through our wholly owned subsydArgo Group US, we issued $143,750,000 aggregateipal amount of Argo Grol
US’s 6.5% Senior Notes due September 15, 2042‘th&es”). The Notes bear interest at 6.5%, payable quarteidash in arrears on the 1
day of March, June, September and December of gaah beginning on December 15, 2012. The Notesuasecured and unsubordine
obligations of Argo Group US and rank equally ighti of payment with all of Argo Group USbther unsecured and unsubordinated deb!
Notes are guaranteed on a full and unconditionaibseinsecured basis by Argo Group. The Notes neayedeemed, for cash, in whole o
part, on or after September 15, 2017, at Argo Gtd8{s option, at any time and from time to time, ptmmaturity at a redemption price ec
to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes tord#eemed, plus accrued but unpaid interest onriheipal amount being redeemed to,
not including, the redemption date. The outstangingcipal balance on the Notes was $143.8 milibDecember 31, 2014 and 2013.

The proceeds, net of issuance costs, from theo$dle Notes were $138.7 million and were usecepray $118.6 million of principal related
two of our trust preferred securities, with the eémaer used for general corporate purposes.

8. Junior Subordinated Debentures

Through a series of trusts, that are wholly-owngus&liaries (norconsolidated), we issued debt. The debenturesaaiable with the rate beil
reset quarterly and subject to certain interes caflings. Interest payments are payable quart&hg debentures are all unsecured an
subordinated to other indebtedness. All are redbEnsubject to certain terms and conditions atieepequal to 100% of the principal p
accrued and unpaid interest.

On July 16, 2014, Argo Group US, Inc. purchaseddhtstanding PXRE Capital Trust V $20,000,000 JuSabordinated Debt Securit
(“Capital Trust V") at a discount equal to 90.0% of the principal amglms accrued and unpaid interest through the afgpeirchase for a tot
price of $18.2 million, resulting in the recogniiiof a $2.0 million preax realized gain. As of December 31, 2014, theit@8prust V has nc
yet been redeemed and interest will continue tougcand be paid until the redemption date. In ataare with ASC Topic 40*Liabilities,”
we have eliminated the outstanding debt, associatetest and intercompany balances related t@tinehase of the Capital Trust V since
purchase by Argo Group US, Inc.

On October 1, 2012, we gave notice of redemptiothéotrustee of our 8.85% PXRE Capital Trust | $003,000 Junior Subordinated D
Securities (“Capital Trust I")Capital Trust | was redeemed on November 13, 2@12 redemption price equal to 102.090% of its ppal
amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest througll#tte of redemption. Additionally, on October 812, we gave notice of redemption to
trustee of our 9.75% PXRE Capital Trust Il $15,480 Junior Subordinated Debt Securities (“Caphalst III"). Capital Trust lll wa
redeemed on November 23, 2012 at a redemption equal to 100.975% of its principal amount, plusraed and unpaid interest through
date of redemption. Interest on Capital Trust | &@wpital Trust Ill ceased to accrue on and after bddemption dates. Subsequer
redemption, we received $3.1 million and $0.5 miilfor our ownership in Capital Trust | and Capitalist Ill, respectively. Redemption
Capital Trust | and Capital Trust Il resulted ircall premium of $2.1 million and $0.1 million, pestively, shown in Debt extinguishme
costs”in our Consolidated Statement of Income for therywaled December 31, 2012. Capital Trust | had reamortized discount of $(
million that was written off to “Interest expensa’our Consolidated Statement of Income for the gyealed December 31, 2012.
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A summary of our outstanding junior subordinatebateures is presented below:

(in millions)
Interest Rate at
Issue Date Trust Preferred Pools Maturity Redeemable Rate Structure December 31, 201. Amount
Argo Group
05/15/200:=  PXRE Capital Statutory Trust 05/15/203: 05/15/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 4.10% 4.33% $ 18.1
11/06/2005  PXRE Capital Trust V 09/30/203: 09/30/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.90% 4.16% 10.3
Argo Group US
05/15/200=  Argonaut Group Statutory Trus 05/15/203: 05/15/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 4.10% 4.33% 155
12/16/200%  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust | 01/08/203: 01/08/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 4.10% 4.33% 12.3
04/29/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust | 04/29/203: 04/29/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.85% 4.08% 134
05/26/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust 05/24/203: 05/24/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.85% 4.08% 12.3
05/12/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust 05/12/203: 06/01/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.80% 4.04% 134
09/17/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust Vv 12/15/203: 09/17/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.60% 3.84% 155
09/22/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust VI 09/22/203: 09/22/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.55% 3.80% 155
10/22/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust | 12/15/203¢ 12/15/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.60% 3.84% 155
09/15/200c  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust 09/15/203! 09/15/201( 3M LIBOR + 3.40% 3.64% 30.9
Total Outstanding $ 1727
(in millions)
Interest Rate at
Issue Date Trust Preferred Pools Maturity Redeemable Rate Structure December 31, 201 Amount
Argo Group
05/15/200=  PXRE Capital Statutory Trust 05/15/203: 05/15/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 4.10% 4.34% $ 18.1
10/29/200:  PXRE Capital Trust \ 10/29/203: 10/29/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.85% 4.09% 20.6
11/06/200:  PXRE Capital Trust V 09/30/203: 09/30/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.90% 4.15% 10.3
Argo Group US
05/15/200z  Argonaut Group Statutory Trus 05/15/203: 05/15/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 4.10% 4.34% 155
12/16/200:  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust | 01/08/203: 01/08/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 4.10% 4.34% 12.3
04/29/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust | 04/29/203: 04/29/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.85% 4.09% 134
05/26/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust 05/24/203: 05/24/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.85% 4.09% 12.3
05/12/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust 05/12/203: 06/01/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.80% 4.04% 134
09/17/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust V 12/15/203: 09/17/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.60% 3.84% 155
09/22/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust VI 09/22/203: 09/22/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.55% 3.80% 155
10/22/2004  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust | 12/15/203: 12/15/200¢ 3M LIBOR + 3.60% 3.84% 155
09/15/2005  Argonaut Group Statutory Trust 09/15/203! 09/15/201( 3M LIBOR + 3.40% 3.64% 30.9
Total Outstanding $ 193.c

9. Other Indebtedness
Floating Rate Loan Stoc

This debt was assumed through the acquisition gb&tobal Syndicate 1200. These notes are unseciilealte redeemable subject to cer
terms and conditions at a price equal to 100% efptfincipal plus accrued and unpaid interest. &seon the U.S. Dollar and Euro notes is
semiannually and quarterly, respectively. A sumntdrhe notes outstanding at December 31, 20128448 is presented below:

(in millions)
Interest Rate at
Issue Date Currency Maturity Redeemable Rate Structure December 31, 2014 Amount

12/08/2004 U.S. Dollar 11/15/203¢ 12/08/200¢ 6 month LIBOR + 4.2% 4.53% $ 6.5
09/06/200¢ Euro 08/22/203¢ 09/06/201(C 3 month LIBOR + 4.0% 4.08% 14.9
10/31/200¢ U.S. Dollar 01/15/203¢ 01/15/2011 6 month LIBOR + 4.0% 4.33% 10.C
10/31/200¢ Euro 11/22/203¢ 10/31/2011 3 month LIBOR + 4.0% 4.08% 13.1
06/08/2007 Euro 09/15/2037 06/08/201z 3 month LIBOR + 3.9% 3.98% 16.8

$ 61.3
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(in millions)
Interest Rate at

Issue Date Currency Maturity Redeemable Rate Structure December 31, 2013 Amount
12/08/2004 U.S. Dollar 11/15/203¢ 12/08/200¢ 6 month LIBOR + 4.2% 4.60% $ 6.5
09/06/200¢ Euro 08/22/203¢ 09/06/201(C 3 month LIBOR + 4.0% 4.22% 16.3
10/31/200¢ U.S. Dollar 01/15/203¢ 01/15/2011 6 month LIBOR + 4.0% 4.40% 10.C
10/31/200¢ Euro 11/22/203¢ 10/31/2011 3 month LIBOR + 4.0% 4.22% 14.3
06/08/2007 Euro 09/15/2037 06/08/201z 3 month LIBOR + 3.9% 4.12% 18.4

$ 65.5

No principal payments have been made since theisitqu of ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200. The floatirgge loan stock denominated in Et
fluctuates due to foreign currency translation. Baéstanding balance on these loans was $44.8miilnd $49.0 million as of December
2014 and 2013, respectively. The foreign currenagdlation adjustment is recorded in our Consatid&tatements of Income.

Borrowing Under Revolving Credit Facili

On March 7, 2014, each of Argo Group, Argo Group, Us., Argo International Holdings Limited and ArdJnderwriting Agency Limite
(the “Borrowers”) entered into a $175.0 million @ite Agreement (“New Credit AgreementWith JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
administrative agent. The New Credit Agreementaepdl and terminated the previous $150.0 milliondErAgreement. The New Cre
Agreement provides for a $175.0 million revolvingdit facility with a maturity date of March 7, 201inless extended in accordance witt
terms of the New Credit Agreement. Borrowings untter New Credit Agreement may be used for genesgbazate purposes, includi
working capital and permitted acquisitions, andheafcthe Borrowers has agreed to be jointly aneésaly liable for the obligations of the otl
Borrowers under the New Credit Agreement.

The New Credit Agreement contains customary evehtdefault. If an event of default occurs and isitcwing, the Borrowers might
required immediately to repay all amounts outstagdinder the New Credit Agreement. Lenders hol@intpast a majority of the loans
commitments under the New Credit Agreement mayt déteaccelerate the maturity of the loans and/onileate the commitments under
New Credit Agreement upon the occurrence and duhagontinuation of an event of defal

Included in the New Credit Agreement is a providioat allows up to $17.5 million of the revolvingedit facility to be used for LOCs, subj
to availability. On March 7, 2014, the $0.2 millit®C outstanding under the previous $150.0 mill@Zredit Agreement was transferred to
New Credit Agreement. At December 31, 2014 and 2@i&e were no borrowings outstanding and $0.2Zamiin LOCs against the Ne
Credit Facility.

Other Debt

As part of the ARIS Title Insurance Corporation RIS”") acquisition, at December 31, 2014 and 2013, weahadte payable for $0.7 milli
and $0.8 million, respectively. The note had aalae interest rate of 2.00% above &y LIBOR, with the variable interest rate beinge
quarterly and subject to certain interest ratarggsl Interest payments are payable quarterly.ntte payable matures on April 1, 2019.

10. Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instrumeis

Cash.The carrying amount approximates fair value.
Investment securities and st-term investmentsSee Note 2, “Investments,” for additional infotioa.

Premiums receivable and reinsurance recoverablegaid lossesThe carrying value of current receivables approxé@sdair value. A
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying valuegremiums receivable over 90 days were $12.4 milhod $9.8 million, respective
Included in “Reinsurance recoverabl@s’our Consolidated Balance Sheets at Decembe2®HY and 2013, are amounts that are due from
capital providers associated with the operation&rgbGlobal Syndicate 1200. Upon settlement, theitable is offset against the liability a
reflected in our accompanying Consolidated BalaBlseets. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the payeddein excess of the receivable.
our reinsurance recoverables on paid losses, ergudmounts attributable to ArgoGlobal SyndicateDd2 trade capital providers,
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying values 60edays were $9.9 million and $22.2 million, resfvely. Our methodology f
establishing our allowances for doubtful accountdudes specifically identifying all potential udieetible balances regardless of aging
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the allowance for dolultcounts for premiums receivable was $5.2 onlland $4.5 million, respectively, ¢
the allowance for doubtful accounts for
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reinsurance recoverables on paid losses was $1li8mmand $1.6 million, respectively. Premiums reable over 90 days were securec
collateral in the amount of $0.3 million and $0.4lion at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivi@sinsurance recoverables on paid Ic
over 90 days were secured by collateral in the amnofi$0.4 million and $0.3 at December 31, 2014 2013, respectively.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the fair value ofJounior subordinated debentures, Senior unsedixedi rate notes and Other indebtedi
was estimated using appropriate market indicesioteql prices from external sources based on cumarket conditions.

A summary of our financial instruments whose cargyalue did not equal fair value is shown below:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(in millions) Amount Value Amount Value
Junior subordinated debentu $ 1727 $ 155t $ 1932 $ 155.5
Senior unsecured fixed rate no 143.¢ 132.¢ 143.¢ 116.2
Other indebtednes
Floating rate loan stoc 61.3 55.2 65.5 52.7
Note payable 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.6

$ 378 $ 343€ $ 4034 $ 325.C

11. Shareholders Equity

On February 17, 2015, our Board of Directors decla 10% stock dividend, payable on March 16, 2@dShareholders of record at the ¢
of business on March 2, 2015. For additional detagarding the aforementioned stock dividend Nste 27, “Subsequent Eventri addition
our Board of Directors declared a quarterly casliddnd in the amount of $0.20 on each share of comsatock outstanding, on a patock
dividend basis. The cash dividend will be paid oartdh 19, 2015 to shareholders of record at theeabdusiness on March 2, 2015.

On February 18, 2014, our Board of Directors declaa quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $@@5each share of common st
outstanding. On May 5, 2014, August 5, 2014 anddxayer 4, 2014, our Board of Directors declaredatguy cash dividend in the amoun
$0.18 on each share of common stock outstandingMé@nch 17, 2014, June 16, 2014, September 15, a8#l4ADecember 15, 2014, we |
$4.0 million, $4.7 million, $4.7 million and $4.8iltion to our shareholders of record on March 3120June 2, 2014, September 1, 2014
December 1, 2014, respectively. For the year efia@mber 31, 2014, we paid cash dividends totdlit®2 million to our shareholders.

On February 15, 2013, our Board of Directors dedaa quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $@f@5each shares of common si
outstanding or $0.14 on each share outstandingt@djdor the 10% stock dividend discussed belowMarch 15, 2013, we paid $3.7 milli
to our shareholders of record on March 1, 2013.

On May 7, 2013, our Board of Directors declaredO&b1stock dividend, payable on June 17, 2013, toestwéders of record at the close
business on June 3, 2013. As a result of the stivittend, 2,447,839 additional shares were issGagh was paid in lieu of fractional share
our common shares. All references to share andhpane amounts in this document and related diseesuave been adjusted to reflect
stock dividend for all periods presented.

On May 7, 2013, August 6, 2013 and November 4, 2018 Board of Directors declared a quarterly cdisidend in the amount of $0.15
each share of common stock outstanding, on a posk dividend basis. On March 15, 2013, June 2Q,328eptember 16, 2013 ¢
December 16, 2013, we paid $3.7 million, $4.1 )i $4.0 million and $4.0 million to our sharehaklef record on March 1, 2013, Jun
2013, September 2, 2013 and December 2, 2013,atasgg. For the year ended December 31, 2013, aid pash dividends totaling $1.
million to our shareholders.

On February 15, 2012, May 8, 2012, August 7, 20i@ ldovember 6, 2012, our Board of Directors dedaequarterly cash dividend in
amount of $0.11 on each share of common stockandstg. On March 15, 2012, June 15, 2012, Septet)e2012 and December 17, 2(
we paid $3.2 million, $3.1 million, $3.0 million dr$3.0 million to our shareholders of record on dhat, 2012, June 1, 2012, Septemb
2012 and December 3, 2012, respectively. For trer yaded December 31, 2012, we paid cash dividestding $12.3 million to ot
shareholders.

We are authorized to issue 30 million shares 0d&par value preferred shares. As of December @14 2nd 2013, no preferred shares 1
issued and outstanding.
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On November 5, 2013, our Board of Directors autteatithe repurchase of up to $150.0 million of ommmon shares 2013 Repurcha
Authorization”). The 2013 Repurchase Authorization supersedes allptievious Repurchase Authorizations. As of Deceribe 2014
availability under the 2013 Repurchase Authorizafmr future repurchases of our common shares @as8$nillion.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we repurdt3k 758 common shares on the open market fo@$ndlion. These shares are be
held as treasury shares in accordance with thagioog of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

In 2014, we repurchased shares under Securitigsabge Act of 1934 Rule 10b5-1 trading plans a®fedt

Date 2014 Number of Average Price Repurchase

Trading Plan Purchase Shares of Shares Total Cost Authorization
Initiated Period Repurchased Repurchased (in millions) Year
12/17/201z 02/04/1-02/12/14 15,78¢ $ 43.2¢ $ 0.7 2013
3/18/2014 03/18/1+04/28/14 436,867 $ 4581 $ 20.0 2013
6/13/2014 06/17/1+07/04/14 41,362 $ 4994 $ 21 2013
9/12/2014 09/16/1+10/28/14 229,63 $ 51.9¢ $ 11.9 2013
12/15/201¢ 12/16/1+-12/23/14 22,73t $ 5344 $ 1.2 2013

At December 31, 2014, we had the following authexizinissued common shares reserved for futuranssu

Shares
Reserve Name Reserved
2014 Lon+Term Incentive Pla 4,130,53:
2007 Employee Share Purchase F 1,600,88t
Historical stock compensation pla 3,96¢
Total 5,735,38!

Shares reserved under the historical plans reprafiegrants issued and outstanding under termihplens as of December 31, 2014. (See
14, “Share-based Compensation” for further disarski

12. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02 #mends ASC 220, “Comprehensive Income.” See NotdBasiness and Significe
Accounting Policies”for additional information regarding the provisioos this update. Effective January 1, 2013, we #elbpghe upda
prospectively.

A summary of changes in accumulated other compmateincome (loss), net of taxes (where applicabyjeyomponent is presented below:

Foreign
Currency Unrealized Defined
Translation Holding Gains Benefit
(in millions) Adjustments on Securities Pension Plans Total
Balance, January 1, 2013 $ 8.7 % 2041 $ 5.9 $ 189.t
Other comprehensive (loss) income before
reclassification (2.8) 0.2 1.3 (1.3)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (los — (40.4) — (40.4)
Net current-period other comprehensive (loss)
income (2.8) (40.2) 1.3 (41.7)
Balance, December 31, 2013 (11.5) 163.€ (4.6) 147.¢€
Other comprehensive loss before
reclassification 4.2 (12.5) (2.4) (19.0)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive o — (20.7) — (20.7)
Net curren-period other comprehensive Ic (4.2) (33.2 (2.4) (39.7)
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ (15.6) $ 130.7 $ (7.0) $ 108.1
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The amounts reclassified from accumulated otherprehensive income (loss) shown in the above table been included in the followi
captions in our Consolidated Statements of Income:

For the Years Ended December 3!

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Unrealized gains and losses on securi
Net realized investment gai $ (30.6) $ (59.8) $ (14.4)
Provision for income taxe 9.9 19.4 4.0
Net of taxes $ (20.7) $ (40.4) $ (10.4)

13. Net Income Per Common Shart

The following table presents the calculation ofinebme per common share on a basic and diluted:bas

For the Years Ended December 31

(in millions, except number of shares and per shareunts’ 2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 183z $ 143z $ 52.3
Weighted average common shares outstar- basic 26,082,11.  26,851,34.  28,095,21I
Effect of dilutive securities

Equity compensation awar 475,03 1,018,19: 555,23¢
Weighted average common shares outstar- diluted 26,557,15.  27,869,53.  28,650,44!
Net income per common sha

Basic $ 7.02 $ 533 $ 1.86

Diluted $ 6.9C $ 514 $ 1.83

Excluded from the weighted average common sharéstamaling calculation at December 31, 2014, 2018 2012 are 8,606,489 sha
7,558,345 shares and 6,459,613 shares, respectivieigh are held as treasury shares. The sharesxahgded as of their repurchase dat
2014, equity compensation awards to purchase Isi@fes of common stock were excluded from the ctatipn of diluted net income [
common share as these instruments weredilotive. These instruments expire at varying tinfieen 2015 through 2021. In 2013, eq!
compensation awards to purchase 3,300 shares ahoorstock were excluded from the computation aftdd net income per common st
as these instruments were aditistive. These instruments expired or will expaevarying times from 2014 through 2020. In 2014uigy
compensation awards to purchase 550,632 sharesmuhon stock were excluded from the computationilbftet net income per comm
share as these instruments were anti-dilutive. & iretruments expired or will expire at varying éisnfrom 2013 through 2019.

On February 17, 2015, our Board of Directors deda 10% stock dividend payable on March 16, 2é15Shareholders of record at the ¢
of business on March 2, 2015. The share numberpanghare amounts shown in the table above havieeen retroactively adjusted to ¢
effect to the stock dividend. For additional detagdgarding the stock dividend, see Note 27, “Sylset Event.”

14 . Share-based Compensation

The fair value method of accounting is used foritygbased compensation plans. Under the fair value adettompensation cost is measi
based on the fair value of the award at the meamnedate and recognized over the requisite sepaded. We use the Blackeholes mod
to estimate the fair values on the measurementfdatehare options and share appreciation rigf8®\Rs”). The BlackScholes model us
several assumptions to value a share award. Tladilitplassumption is based on the historical cleimgour stock price over the previous-
years preceding the measurement date. Th-free rate of return assumption is based on theyfaar U.S. Treasury constant maturity rat
the measurement date. The expected award lifesiscbapon the average holding period over the lisibthe incentive plan. The expec
dividend yield is based on our history and expedigaiend payouts.

The following table summarizes the assumptions sezlu

For the Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Risk-free rate of retur 1.53%to 1.77% 0.80% to 1.71Y 0.68% to 1.11Y
Expected dividend yield 1.49% to 1.55% 1.49% to 1.67Y 1.58% to 1.67%
Expected award life (year 4.67 to 4.8¢ 4.91 to 5.07 5.03 to 5.0¢
Expected volatility 22.84% to 25.469  26.30% to 32.079  32.12% to 32.849

F-34




We estimate forfeitures based on historical foufeis patterns, thereby recognizing expense onlthfise awards that are expected to vest
estimate of forfeitures is adjusted as actual farfes differ from our estimate, resulting in reodgpn of compensation expense only for tf
awards that actually vest.

The compensation expense recognized under all lmanebased payment plans was $19.6 million ($16.2 nniJlioet of tax), $23.0 millic
($18.3 million, net of tax) and $10.3 million ($8illion, net of tax) for the years ended Decentdier2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
compensation expense is included in “Underwritaguisition and insurance expenses” in our Conatil Statements of Income.

We present all tax benefits resulting from the eiser of stock options and vesting of mneested shares as cash flows from financing ads
Excess tax benefits are realized tax benefits ftaxndeductions for exercised options and vestedeshia excess of the deferred tax &
attributable to stock compensation costs for systfons. Such tax benefits and cash flows were imnstfor all reporting periods.

Argo Grouf's Long-Term Incentive Plans

In November 2007, our shareholders approved th@ 20dig-Term Incentive Plan (the “2007 Plan@hich provides for an aggregate of
million shares of our common stock that may bedsdsto executives, noamployee directors, and other key employees. AMay 2014
1,457,800 shares remained available for grant utide2007 Plan. In May 2014, our shareholders ajgatthe 2014 Longd-erm Incentive Ple
(the “2014 Plan”), which provides for an additiorzaB million shares of our common stock to be adé for issuance to executives, non
employee directors and other key employees. Theeshaards may be in the form of share options, SA&stricted shares, restricted sl
awards, restricted share units awards, performawegds, other share-based awards and otherbzssitt awards. Shares issued under this
may be shares that are authorized and unissudthogssthat we reacquired, including shares purchaesehe open market. Share options
SARs will count as one share for the purposes @fithits under the incentive plans; restricted sbarestricted share units, performance t
performance shares or other shhased incentive awards which settle in common shaik count as 2.75 shares for purpose of thet$
under the 2014 Plan.

Share options may be in the form of incentive stogntons, norgualified share options and restorative optionarStoptions are required
have an exercise price that is not less than th&ehsalue on the date of grant. We are prohibitech repricing the options. The term of
share options cannot exceed seven years from dm date.

A summary of option activity as of December 31,2@hd changes during the year then ended is asvill

Weighted-Average Aggregate
Weighted-Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price Contractual Term Value
Outstanding at January 1, 20 158,09 $ 34.27
Grantec — $ —
Exercisec (108,184 $ 34.3¢
Expired or forfeitec 1,779 $ 32.0¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 48,13t $ 34.11 0.3 $ 1,028,24°
Vested and exercisable at end of y 48,13t $ 34.11 0.3 $ 1,028,24

Options outstanding under this plan vested ovenato five year period, subject to continued empiegt. As of December 31, 2014,
options under this plan were fully vested. Casteiraml for the exercise of options under this plaasv$3.7 million for the year enc
December 31, 2014.

The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated asdifference between the exercise price of the ugthgylawards and the quoted price of
common stock for those options where the exerdise pvas below the quoted price at December 314201

There were no options granted under this plan dutie years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
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A summary of restricted share activity as of Decen81, 2014 and changes during the year then endegdfollows:

Weighted-Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at January 1, 20 257,97 $ 32.97
Grantec 123,22¢ $ 45.61
Vested and issue (60,19¢) $ 31.6¢
Expired or forfeitec (35,51) $ 33.0¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 285,49t $ 38.6¢

As of December 31, 2014, there was $6.8 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost related toictssl share compensation arrangern
granted by Argo Group. The weightatglerage period over which this unrecognized expansgpected to be recognized is 1.7 years. Tl
fair value of shares vested during the year endszeber 31, 2014 was $1.9 million.

A summary of stock-settled SARs activity as of Deber 31, 2014 and changes during the year therddadses follows:

Weighted-Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 20 1,288,69¢ $ 29.4¢
Grantec 188,27 $ 43.2¢
Exercisec (124,54) $ 28.9¢
Expired or forfeitec (155,909 $ 32.72
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,196,52: $ 31.2¢
Vested or expected to vest as of end of 1,102,21: $ 30.81
Exercisable at end of ye 763,30: $ 28.27

The stock-settled SARs vest over a one to four gedaond. Upon exercise of the stoskttled SARs, the employee is entitled to recefages c
our common stock equal to the appreciation of theksas compared to the exercise price. For the ggded December 31, 2014, 124,
stocksettled SARs were exercised resulting in 49,742%esh&eing issued. As of December 31, 2014, there $26 million of tote
unrecognized compensation cost related to stodlkede3ARs outstanding. The weightaderage period over which this unrecognized ex
is expected to be recognized is 2.0 years. Aggedg#insic value of the stock-settled SARs at Delger 31, 2014 was $26.5 million.

A summary of cash-settled SARs activity as of Deoen81, 2014 and changes during the year then dadedfollows:

Weighted-Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 20 1,743,75¢ $ 33.0C
Grantec 756,85! $ 44.2¢
Exercisec (446,209 $ 30.9¢
Expired or forfeitec (230,63%) $ 36.1¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,823,76¢ $ 37.7¢
Vested or expected to vest as of end of 1,518,83: $ 37.4Z
Exercisable at end of ye 421,99 $ 31.7¢

The cash-settled SARs vest over a one to four peeand. Upon exercise of the casbttled SARs, the employee is entitled to receas
payment for the appreciation in the value of ounown stock over the exercise price. We accounthi®icashsettled SARs as liability awart
which require the awards to be revalued at eachrtieg period. For the year ended December 31, 2048,209 caskettled SARs we
exercised resulting in $9.3 million in cash paymseits of December 31, 2014, there was $10.1 millibtotal unrecognized compensation
related to cash-settled SARs outstanding. The vieiiverage period over which this unrecognized expansepected to be recognized is
years. Aggregate intrinsic value of the ¢-settled SARs at December 31, 2014 was $32.3 milllte liability for castsettled SARs was $2¢
million and $19.4 million at December 31, 2014 &20d.3, respectively.

Included in the total shares outstanding at Dece®be2014 are 30,050 restricted shares, 2,563¢46M-settled SARs and 160,204 stoc}
settled SARs whose vesting is contingent on thel@yep meeting defined performance conditions. Eygéds have a specified time periol
which to meet the performance condition (typicalhe year) and forfeit the grant (on a pro ratad)akthe
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performance conditions are not met in the specifiete frame. We evaluate the likelihood of the emgpke completing the performai
condition and include this estimate in the deteatian of the forfeiture factor for the grants.

We have granted to certain key employees restrgtege units, which provide the employee with tbenemic equivalent of stock ownerst
Each restricted share unit is valued at the clopiige of our common stock on the national exchangevhich it is listed as of the date credi
and fluctuates daily thereafter. The restrictedrshmits outstanding under this plan vest over @248 month period, subject to contin
employment. Upon vesting, the employee receivessh payment equivalent to the number of restristede units vested valued at the clo
market price of our common shares. Total expensegrézed for the restricted share units totaled $dillion, $0.9 million, and $0.6 millic
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, ah?l, 28spectively. Cash payments paid for vesteddsvander this plan totaled $0.4 mill
and $1.2 million for the years ended December 8142and 2013, respectively.

Employees Share Purchase Pli

We have established an employee stock purchasdqiafigible employees (Argo Group2007 Employee Share Purchase Plan). Unde
plan, our common stock may be purchased over @mindf period of three months at 85% of the lowethef market value on the first day of
offering period or on the designated purchase datke end of the offering period. We have alsal#isthed a Save As You Earn Plan for
United Kingdom employees (Argo GrogpSave As You Earn Plan). Under this plan, our comistock may be purchased over an offe
period of three or five years at 85% of the maskatie of the common shares on the first day ofoftfering period. Expense recognized ur
these plans for the years ended December 31, 2013, and 2012 was $0.3 million, $0.3 million afdZmillion, respectively.

Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. Deferred @pensation Plan for N-Employee Directors

Until December 16, 2013, the nemployee members of our Board of Directors werdledtto participate in the Argo Group Internatit
Holdings, Ltd. Deferred Compensation Plan for Nangioyee Directors (“Directors Plan”), a non-fundedd nongualified deferre
compensation plan. Under the Directors Plan, employee directors could elect each year to defgment of 0%, 50% or 100% of their ¢
compensation payable during the next calendar y#nile no further deferrals were permitted undee tirectors Plan from and af
December 16, 2013, and certain amounts thereunder paid out prior to the end of 2013, additiorefledred amounts remain subject to
terms of the Directors Plan and will be paid ouagtordance with the terms of the Directors Plagfebed amounts are credited with inte
earned at a rate two percent above the prime coamhéending rate, to be reset each May 1. In @olditthe Directors Plan calls for us to gi
a match equal to 75% of the cash compensation amalaferred in the form of “Stock Unitswhich provide directors with the econoi
equivalent of stock ownership and were credited Bsokkeeping entry to each director’s “Stock Uxgtount.” Each Stock Unit is valued
the closing price of our common stock on the nati@xchange on which it is listed as of the daéslited for all purposes under the Direc
Plan and fluctuates daily thereafter on that saasisb The Directors Plan provided for a Stock Wwdtount to be established for each nor
employee director upon their election to the Boamtl credits their account with an initial bookkeepientry for 1,650 Stock Units.
conjunction with the termination of the Directortaf®, all cash balances and related interest forydas 2010 through 2013 were sel
resulting in $1.9 million in cash payments for ffear ended December 31, 2013. Remaining distribsititom the Directors Plan will occur
months after the noamployee director ceases to be a member of thedBda date on which a change in control (as ddfinehe Director
Plan) occurs or December 1, 2017, whichever cornnss &nd will be made in cash. The nemployee directors are responsible for all
requirements on the deferred compensation and @layed earnings. Under the Directors Plan, we dmmbrcompensation expense of ¢
million, $2.0 million and $1.2 million for the yemarended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, resplgctiThe liability for remainin
distributions under the Directors Plan was $4.2ionland $3.5 million at December 31, 2014 and 20&8pectively.

15. Underwriting, Acquisition and Insurance Experses
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense®ws follows:

For the Years Ended December 31

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Commission: $ 2311 $ 2296 $ 198.2
General expense 288.C 272.¢ 248.C
Premium taxes, boards and bure 25.5 24.2 22.8
544.¢ 526.€ 469.C
Net deferral of policy acquisition cos (5.4) (15.8) (4.5)
Total underwriting, acquisition and insurance eqes $ 539.2 $ 510.t $ 464.5

F-37




Included in general expenses for the years endezkrbiger 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is $19.6 millior3.82mnillion and $10.3 milliol
respectively, of expense for our total equity comgaion.

16. Income Taxes

We are incorporated under the laws of Bermuda ander current Bermuda law, are not obligated to gay taxes in Bermuda based u
income or capital gains. We have received an ualieig from the Supervisor of Insurance in Bermudaspant to the provisions of 1
Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection Act, 2011 clwlexempts us from any Bermuda taxes computed afitgpincome or any capital as:
gain or appreciation or any tax in the nature tdtesduty or inheritance tax, at least until thary2035.

We do not consider ourselves to be engaged irdea tabusiness in the United States or the Unitegdom and, accordingly, do not expec
be subject to direct United States or United Kingdocome taxation.

We have subsidiaries based in the United Kingdoat éine subject to the tax laws of that country. &inclrrent law, these subsidiaries
taxed at the applicable corporate tax rates. SithefUnited Kingdom subsidiaries are deemed torigmged in business in the United St:
and therefore, are subject to United States cotpdex in respect of a proportion of their Uniteét8s underwriting business only. Relie
available against the United Kingdom tax liabikti@ respect of overseas taxes paid that arise tihemunderwriting business. Corporate inc
tax losses incurred in the United Kingdom can beiea forward, for application against future inaenindefinitely. Our United Kingdo
subsidiaries file separate United Kingdom incomerédurns.

We have subsidiaries based in the United Statesatbasubject to United States tax laws. Undereruriaw, these subsidiaries are taxed &
applicable corporate tax rates. Our United Staiesidiaries file a consolidated United States fabiecome tax return.

We also have operations in Belgium, SwitzerlandzZidy France, Malta, Spain and Ireland, which @s® subject to income taxes impose!
the jurisdiction in which they operate. We haveragiens in the United Arab Emirates, which are suibject to income tax under the law:
that country.

Our income tax provision includes the following quonents:

For the Years Ended December 3]

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Current tax provisiol $ 52 $ 327 $ 9.4
Deferred tax provision related t
Future tax deductior 58.4 0.1 29
Valuation allowance chang (30.9) 3.7 2.1
Income tax provisiol $ 32.8 $ 36.E $ 144

Our expected income tax provision computed on @xertcome (loss) at the weighted average tax rasebleen calculated as the sum of the pr
tax income (loss) in each jurisdiction multiplied that jurisdictions applicable statutory tax rate. For the years @fmcember 31, 2014, 2C
and 2012, pre-tax income (loss) attributable toaperations and the operations’ effective tax ratee as follows:

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Pre-Tax Effective Pre-Tax Effective Pre-Tax Effective

Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax

(Loss) Rate (Loss) Rate (Loss) Rate
Bermuda $ 102.¢ 0.0% $ 50.5 0.0% $ 10.0 0.0%
United State: 98.C 28.1% 120.¢ 28.2% 52.0 21.3%
United Kingdom 21.5 24.8% 18.5 12.C% 14.0 24.4%
Belgium — O 63.6% 0.2 103.0% (0.1) 98.4%
Brazil (2.2 0.0% (9.7) 0.0% (6.5) 0.0%
United Arab Emirate (0.9) 0.0% 11 0.0% — @ 0.0%
Ireland (1.2) 0.0% (0.2) 0.0% (0.2 0.0%
Malta (2.2) 0.0% 1.7) 0.0% (2.6) 0.0%
France — 0.0% — 0.0% — 0.0%
Switzerland 0.1 17.6% — @ 5.6% 0.1 22.8%

Pre-tax income $ 216.C $ 179.7 $ 66.7

@ Pre-tax income for the respective year was less thah i$lion.
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A reconciliation of the difference between the psan for income taxes and the expected tax prowisit the weighted average tax rate
follows:

For the Years Ended December 31

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Income tax provision at expected r $ 372 % 43.1 $ 18.5
Tax effect of:
Tax-exempt interes (4.5) (5.6) (5.6)
Dividends received deductic (2.3) (2.3) (2.2)
Valuation allowance chan¢ (30.8) 3.7 2.1
Other permanent adjustments, (0.7 0.3 1.8
Adjustment for prior year tax retu (0.9 (1.6) 0.2
Prior period adjustment for deferr 15 — —
United States state tax expense (ben 2.5 0.3 (0.3
PXRE Reinsurance capital loss carryforw 29.8 — —
Other foreign adjustmen 0.7 (0.2) —
Prior year foreign taxe 0.1 1.1 —
Deferred tax rate reductic (0.9) (1.2 (0.6)
Foreign exchange adjustme! 0.2 .7 0.5
Foreign withholding taxe 0.4 0.5 —
Income tax provisiol $ 32.8 $ 36.E $ 14.4
Income tax provisior- Foreign $ 52 $ 24 $ 3.3
Income tax provisior United States, Feder 23.3 33.2 115
Income tax provision (benefi- United States, sta 3.9 0.4 (0.9)
Foreign withholding ta- United State: 0.4 0.5 —
Income tax provisiol $ 32.8 $ 36.E $ 144

The consolidated provision for income taxes forykar ended December 31, 2014 was affected by3arfiillion decrease for additional ta:
reported on the prior year tax return, a $0.4 millifeduction for change in the United Kingdom defdrtax rate and a $1.0 million increase
the foreign exchange adjustment on the transldtiom Sterling to the U.S. Dollar within the Syndiedl200 segment. Additionally, a $2
million increase is recognized due to the expiratid the PXRE Reinsurance Company capital loss/frakward benefit, which was offset
the related Valuation Allowance.

The consolidated provision for income taxes forykar ended December 31, 2013 was affected byGarfiillion decrease for additional ta:
reported on the prior year tax return, a $1.2 omllieduction for change in the United Kingdom defdrtax rate and a $1.7 million decreass
the foreign exchange adjustment on the transldtan Sterling to the U.S. Dollar within the Syndied 200 segment.

The consolidated provision for income taxes foryhar ended December 31, 2012 was affected by2argillion increase for additional ta>
reported on the prior year tax return, $0.6 millieduction for the change in the United Kingdomedeesd tax rate and $0.5 million increase
the foreign exchange adjustment on the transldt@n Sterling to the U.S. Dollar within the Syndied 200 segment.

We recognize potential accrued interest and pesaitiithin our global operations in “Interest expgnand ‘Underwriting, acquisition ar
insurance expenses,” respectively, in our Consdi&tatements of Income.
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Deferred taxes arise from temporary differencetherecognition of revenues and expenses for taxfimancial reporting purposes. The
deferred tax liability as of December 31, 2014 20d3 resulted from the teeffected temporary differences shown in the follagvtable. Du
primarily to changes in unrealized gains on avégldbr-sale investment securities, the net deferred &biliiy increased by $24.3 million a
decreased $15.1 million for the years ended DeceBihe2014 and 2013, respectively.

December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Unrealized losses on fixed maturities and otheestment securitie $ —  $ —
Losses and loss adjustment expense reserve digog 25.1 28.4
Unearned premiurr 24.8 23.0
Capital loss carryforwar — 29.8
Allowance for bad dek 2.0 1.9
Accrual for contingent commissiol 0.3 0.4
Net operating loss carryforwa 18.8 19.8
Impairment of investment valu 8.2 10.6
United States amortization of intangible as: 4.3 3.1
Accrued bonu 6.7 5.7
Accrued vacatiol 1.7 1.6
Stock option expens 8.0 6.4
United Kingdom interes — 0.8
Brazil operating losse 7.4 8.0
Malta operating losse 2.1 1.7
Depreciable fixed ass 5.2 —
Other 7.0 9.1
Deferred tax assets, grc 121.€ 150.2
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealized gains on equity securit (62.3) (65.12)
Unrealized gains on fixed maturities and other atneent securitie (15.3) (16.1)
Deferred acquisition cos (20.3) (19.5)
United States amortization of intangible as: (3.5 (3.3)
United Kingdom underwriting losst (9.0) (4.8)
United Kingdom amortization of intangible ass (2.3) (2.8)
Brussels pensio (0.2) (0.2)
Internally developed softwal (21.5) —
Unrealized FV gain on L (10.5) (9.2
Other (4.4) (1.8)
Deferred tax liabilities, gros (149.2) (122.§)
Deferred tax assets, net before valuation allow: (27.6) 27.5
Valuation allowanct (25.4) (56.2)
Deferred tax liabilities, ne $ (53.00 $ (28.7)
Net deferred tax liabilitie- Foreign $ (11.8) $ (7.0)
Net deferred tax liabilitie- United State: (41.2) (21.7)
Deferred tax liabilities, ne $ (53.0) $ (28.7)

Our net deferred tax assets (liabilities) are sujgloby taxes paid in previous periods, reversaaed@ble temporary differences and recogn
of future income. Management regularly evaluatesrtétoverability of the deferred tax assets andesi@ny necessary adjustments to 1
based upon any changes in managemeatpectations of future taxable income. Realipatib deferred tax assets is dependent upol
generation of sufficient taxable income in the fatto recover tax benefits that cannot be recovéd taxes paid in the carryback per
which is generally two years for net operating éssand three years for capital losses for our drifteates operations. At December 31, 2
we had a total net deferred tax liability of $2h8lion prior to any valuation allowance. Managernkas concluded that a valuation allowe
is required for a portion of the tax effected napital loss carryforward of $18.0 million generafesin PXRE Corporation and for the

effected net operating loss carryforward of $1.0iom from ARIS. The capital loss carryforward geaied from the sale of PXRE Reinsure
Company expired on December 31, 2013. Of the PXREp&ation loss carryforwards, $16.5 million wikmre if not used by December !
2025 and $1.5 million will expire if not used by &enber 31, 2027. Of the ARIS loss carryforward 28@illion will expire if not used k
December 31, 2027, $0.4 million will expire if noéed by December 31, 2028 and $0.4 million williexf not used by December 31, 2C
The
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valuation allowances have been established amhaitBevenue Code Section 382 limits the applicatiomet operating loss and net capital
carryforwards following an ownership change. Thesloarryforwards available per year are $2.8 milas required by Internal Revenue C
Section 382. Further, due to cumulative lossesesinception, management has concluded that a vatuatiowance is required for the {
amount of the tax effected net operating lossesm@éed by our Brazil and Malta entities. Accordingl valuation allowance of $25.4 millior
required as of December 31, 2014 of which $15.%ianikelates to the PXRE Corporation and ARIS loagyforwards, $7.4 million relates
Brazil operations, and $2.1 million relates to Madperations. During the year ended December 34,2fe valuation allowance was redc
by $29.8 million pertaining to the expiration oEtPXRE Reinsurance Company capital loss carryfahwaduced by $0.8 million pertaining
PXRE Corporation and ARIS loss carryforwards, daseel by $0.6 million pertaining to our Brazil ogémas and increased by $0.4 mill
pertaining to our Malta operations.

We had no material unrecognized tax benefits d@azember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. Our United Stafiesidiaries are no longer subjec
U.S. federal and state income tax examinationsakyatithorities for years before 2011. Our Uniteddtiom subsidiaries are no longer sut
to United Kingdom income tax examinations by Herj@dty’'s Revenue and Customs for years before 2012.

17 . Pension Benefits

Argo Group US sponsors a qualified defined bergfin and nomgualified unfunded supplemental defined benefingjaall of which wer
curtailed effective February 2004. The followingles set forth the change in plan assets and thiegehin projected benefit obligation, a:
December 31 with respect to these plans. The assetdiabilities of the plans were measured as etdbnber 31 of the respective ye
presented.

(in millions) 2014 2013
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ 202 $ 20.1
Actual return on plan asse 1.0 1.9
Employer contribution 0.2 0.2
Settlements and benefits pi (2.2) (2.0)
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 19.2 $ 20.2
(in millions) 2014 2013
Change in projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 226 $ 24.€
Interest cos 1.0 0.8
Actuarial loss (gain 4.3 (0.8)
Settlements and benefits pi (2.1) (2.0)
Projected benefit obligation at end of y $ 25.8 $ 22.6

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the qualifiedsjgenplan was underfunded by $4.4 million and $®i8ion, respectively. The non-
qualified pension plans were unfunded by $2.2 oiillat both December 31, 2014 and 2013. Underfuadéddunfunded amounts are inclu
in “Other liabilities” in our Consolidated Balan&heets.

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligatidri3exember 31 were as follows:

2014 2013
Weighted average discount ri 3.37% 4.42%
Expected rate of increase in future compensatiosid n/a n/a

Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Weighted average discount ri 4.39% 3.63% 4.50%
Expected return on plan ass 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Expected rate of increase in future compensatiosid: n/a n/a n/a

In 2014, 2013, and 2012, the expected return am ggaets was ascertained using multiple factotsrtblude market conditions, duration of
fixed maturity portion of the portfolio and longrbe return forecasts provided by several asset neanagt companies.
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Components of net periodic benefit cost follows:

For the Years Ended December 31

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Interest cos $ 1.0 $ 08 $ 1.0
Expected return on plan ass 1.2 (2.0 (1.2)
Settlement charg 0.4 — —
Amortization of actuarial los 0.3 0.3 0.3
Net periodic benefit co: $ 05 $ 01 $ 0.2

We estimate that $0.4 million of unrecognized adalidoss will be amortized from accumulated otkemprehensive gain into net peric
benefit cost during 2015.

The projected benefit obligation for the nqualified unfunded supplemental defined benefinglavith accumulated benefit obligation:
excess of plan assets, was $2.2 million at botreBser 31, 2014 and 2013. The fair value of plaetadsr these plans was zero for these !
periods. The accumulated benefit obligation fordafined benefit plans is equal to the projectedefie obligation for each of the ye:
presented.

Our investment policy for the qualified plan reggthe investments be prudently selected and gyogieersified so as to minimize the risk
large losses in accordance with applicable lawfudieg the Employee Retirement Income Security A£t1974. The overall investme
strategy is to achieve a balance of ldagn growth of capital and current income, takingpiaccount the need for liquidity to pay benedi
they come due. Periodic shifts in the asset aliosahay be made based on the assessment of can@mrospective market conditions.

The investment policy for the qualified plan contabsset allocation guidelines with target allaregithat remain effective until such time
the investment policy is revised. At December 3114 the target allocations were 65% fixed maturityestments, highly liquid fixed matur
investments, and cash; and 35% equity investmdims.target asset allocation percentages were sdléeised on risk diversification net
expected distribution patterns and asset managemmendations. The actual asset allocation as eckmber 31, 2014 was 67.4% fi;
maturity investments, highly liquid fixed maturitpvestments and cash; and 32.6% equity investmeitsyhich 25.1% and 7.5% we
allocated between U.S. and international equitiespectively. These allocations were in complianith the investment policy that allows
investment manager based on its judgment and meokelitions to deviate from the target allocations.

Following is a description of the valuation techrég used to measure the plan’s assets at fair.value

Mutual funds Fair value is determined using observable, mabksed inputs on the valuation date.

Short-term investment fundrair value is determined based on the net asde¢s provided by the plan trustee.
The methods described above may produce a faiewalculation that may not be indicative of netirable value or reflective of future fi
values. Furthermore, while it is believed the viramethods are appropriate and consistent whkranarket participants, the use of diffe

methodologies or assumptions to determine thevédire of certain financial instruments could resula different fair value measurement ai
reporting date.
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The fair values of the plan assets by asset categeras follows:

Fair Value Measurements

(in millions) at Reporting Date Using
December 31,
2014 Level 1® Level 2() Level 3()
Equity Securities
Mutual Funds
Large cap U.S. equi $ 29 % 29 % — 3 —
Smal-mid cap U.S. equit 1.2 1.2 — —
International equit 1.5 15 — —
Real estat 0.6 0.6 — —
U.S. and global government and corporate fixed ntgt 12.6 12.6 — —
Cash and shc-term investments
Shor-term investment fun(® 0.4 — 0.4 —
Total $ 19.2 $ 18.8 $ 04 $ —

@ Quoted prices in active markets for identical &

®  Significant other observable inpt

©  Significant unobservable inpu

@ Assets invested in one common collective trust amsed of hig-grade money market money instruments with shortiritats.

Fair Value Measurements

(in millions) at Reporting Date Using
December 31, 201 Level 1@ Level 2(b) Level 30
Equity Securities
Mutual Funds
Large cap U.S. equi $ 32 % 32 % — $ —
Smal-mid cap U.S. equit 1.4 1.4 — —
International equit 15 15 — —
Real estat 0.5 0.5 — —
Convertible bonds and equiti 0.2 0.2 — —
U.S. and global government and corporate fixed nitgt 12.9 12.9 — —
Cash and shc-term investments
Shor-term investment fun(® 0.5 — 0.5 —
Total $ 202 $ 19.7 $ 05 % =

@ Quoted prices in active markets for identical &

®  Significant other observable inpt

©  Significant unobservable inpu

@) Assets invested in one common collective trust amsed of hig-grade money market money instruments with shortiritats.

Based on the current funding status of the pengi@m, effects of the curtailment and expected charig pension plan asset values and pe
obligations, we do not believe any significant fumydof the pension plan will be required during yfear ending December 31, 2015.

We expect to make the following benefit payments:

Pension

(in millions) Benefits
2015 $ 1.7
2016 1.6
2017 1.9
2018 1.7
2019 1.8
Years 2020 to 202 7.9
Total $ 16.€
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Substantially all of our employees are either bliior mandated by applicable laws to participaternployee savings plans. Under these
a percentage of the employsgiay may be or is mandated based on applicabketlawe contributed to various savings alternatiVég plan
also call for our contributions under several folmeu Charges to income related to our contributiwase $7.1 million, $6.8 million and $¢
million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

1 8. Commitments and Contingencies

Argo Groups subsidiaries are parties to legal actions indaldo their business. Based on the opinion of seyrmanagement believes that
resolution of these matters will not materiallyeaff our financial condition or results of operation

We have contractual commitments to invest up to.S$T2illion related to our limited partnership intregnts at December 31, 2014. Tt
commitments will be funded as required by the paghip agreements.

19. Leases

We lease office space and equipment under leagemgnts that expire at various intervals and abgesuto renewal options at market ri
prevailing at the time of renewal. At December 3114, the future minimum payments under non-cabtelaperating leases are as follows:

(in millions) Amount Due
2015 $ 11.2
2016 9.1
2017 8.1
2018 7.8
2019 6.1
Thereaftel 9.4
Total $ 51.7

We incurred lease expense of $51.7 million, $57iiam and $55.3 million for the years ended Decem®l, 2014, 2013 and 20
respectively.

20. Segment Information

We are primarily engaged in underwriting propentyl @asualty insurance and reinsurance. We haveofogming reporting segments: Exc
and Surplus Lines, Commercial Specialty, IntermatioSpecialty and Syndicate 1200. Additionally, have a Rureff Lines segment fc
certain products that we no longer underwrite.

We consider many factors, including the natureamhesegmens’ insurance and reinsurance products, productiorces, distribution strateg
and the regulatory environment, in determining howaggregate reporting segments.

In evaluating the operating performance of our sEus) we focus on core underwriting and investiegults before the consideratior
realized gains or losses from the sales of investsneRealized investment gains are reported asngpaoeent of the Corporate and Of
segment, as decisions regarding the acquisitiordesmbsal of securities reside with the investnienttion and are not under the control of
individual business segments. Identifiable assgtelgment are those assets used in the operateacbfsegment.
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Revenue and income (loss) before income taxesafdt segment were as follows:

(in millions)
Revenue
Earned premium
Excess and Surplus Lin
Commercial Specialt
International Specialt
Syndicate 120!
Rur-off Lines
Total earned premiun
Net investment incom
Excess and Surplus Lin
Commercial Specialt
International Specialt
Syndicate 120i
Rur-off Lines
Corporate and Oth
Total net investment incon
Net realized investment and other g
Total revenu

(in millions)

Income (loss) before income tax
Excess and Surplus Lin
Commercial Specialt
International Specialt
Syndicate 120!

Rur-off Lines

Total segment income before ta
Corporate and Oth
Net realized investment and other gz

Total income before income tax

The table below presents earned premiums by gebigrémcation. For this disclosure, we determine ggaphic location by the country
domicile of our subsidiaries that underwrite thesihess and not by the location of insureds or weéts from whom the business 1

generated.

(in millions)
Bermuds
Brazil
Malta
United Kingdom
United State!
Total earned premiun

For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

$ 485.z $ 460.z $ 399.c

291.€ 299.C 317.5
148.5 142 .4 130.1
411.1 401.7 337.€
1.6 0.5 1.7
1,338.1 1,303.¢ 1,186.f
36.7 42.2 51.1
18.7 22.8 27.6
8.2 8.4 12.3
10.2 11.C 15.3
9.7 10.8 12.5
3.1 4.8 -
86.6 100.C 118.¢
94.C 71.3 25.7

$ 15185 $ 147571 $  1,331(

For the Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
$  106.C $ 89.4 $ 74.1
8.9 21.4 (24.9)
21.1 11.3 11.3
44.1 37.3 28.1
(23.0) (10.6) (0.9)
157.1 148.¢ 87.8
(35.1) (40.4) (46.9)
94.0 71.3 25.7
$ 2160 $ 1797 $ 66.7

For the Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
$ 101.5 $ 1017 $ 120.4
443 38.7 26.6
2.1 1.8 0.3
411.7 401.7 320.¢
778.5 759.€ 718.4

$ 133871 $ 1303.¢ $ 1,186.f
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The following table represents identifiable assets:

December 31

(in millions) 2014 2013
Excess and Surplus Lin $ 2,350.7 $ 2,252.2
Commercial Specialt 1,358.t 1,333.¢
International Specialt 776.€ 743.€
Syndicate 120! 1,258.t 1,638.¢
Rur-off Lines 552.¢ 555.¢
Corporate and Othe 59.0 67.1
Total $ 6,356.¢ $ 6,591.(

Included in total assets at December 31, 2014 &1@3 Zre $315.4 million and $386.8 million, respeaii, in assets associated with tr
capital providers.

The following table represents goodwill and intdodgiassets, net of accumulated amortization ascoEBber 31:

Intangible Assets, Net of

Goodwill Accumulated Amortization
(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Excess and Surplus Lin $ 76.4 $ 76.4 $ 28 % 3.4
Commercial Specialt 47.1 48.7 5.5 9.0
Syndicate 120! 28.7 28.7 70.3 73.6
Total $ 1522 $ 153.¢ $ 78.6 $ 86.0

21. Run-off Lines

We have discontinued active underwriting of certaies of business, including those lines that waeviously recorded in Argonaut Grogp’
Risk Management segment. All current activity witlihese lines is related to the management of sl@nd other administrative functio
Also included in Rureff Lines are other liability reserves, which induexposure to claims for asbestos and environmi@tidities written ir
past years. The other liability reserves are oftearacterized by long elapsed periods betweendtierence of a claim and ultimate paymel
resolve the claim. We use a specialized staff dgelicto administer and settle these claims.

The following table presents our gross reserveffor-off Lines as of December 31:

December 31

(in millions) 2014 2013
Asbestos and Environment
Reinsurance assum $ 401 $ 452
Other 13.8 12.3
Total Asbestos and Environmen 53.9 57.5
Risk managemet 257.1 264.3
Rur-off reinsurance line 4.1 5.8
Other rur-off lines 3.4 4.9
Total Rur-off Lines $ 318.E $ 332.t
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We have received asbestos and environmental tiablkims arising from other liability coverage iparily written in the 1960s, 1970s and i
the mid1980s. Asbestos and environmental claims origifrata policies directly underwritten by us and freeinsurance assumed during
period, including a portion assumed from the Londwarket. The following table represents the totakg reserves for our asbestos exposure:

December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Direct written
Case reserve $ 25 % 1.7 $ 2.0
Unallocated loss adjustment expense ("ULA 1.0 1.3 1.7
Incurred but not reported ("IBNR 7.6 6.4 4.3
Total direct written reserve 11.1 9.4 8.0
Assumed domesti
Case reserve 13.2 15.7 18.4
ULAE 1.6 2.2 2.7
IBNR 15.8 15.8 17.4
Total assumed domestic reser 30.6 33.7 38.5
Assumed Londol
Case reserve 4.7 5.8 5.9
ULAE 0.2 0.4 0.6
IBNR 1.2 1.4 2.5
Total assumed London resen 6.1 7.6 9.0
Total asbestos reserv $ 47.8 3 50.7 $ 55.5

The following table presents our net underwritieguits for Run-off Lines:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Asbestos and Environment
Reinsurance assum $ 8.3) $ (3.8) $ (3.6)
Other (5.0) (7.2) (5.5)
Total Asbestos and Environmen (13.3 (11.0 (9.2)
Risk managemet (15.5) (5.9) 0.9
Rur-off reinsurance line (1.5) (1.9 (1.2)
Other rur-off lines (0.7) (0.8) (1.6)
Total Rur-off Lines $ (31.0) $ (19.6) $ (10.9)

Reserves for asbestos and environmental claimsotdoenestimated with traditional loss reservinghtegues that rely on historical accid
year loss development factors. The uncertainthénasbestos and environmental reserves estimates &om several factors including lacl
historical data, inapplicability of standard actahprojection techniques, uncertainty with regarad<laim costs, coverage interpretations
judicial, statutory and regulatory provisions undgiich the claims may be ultimately resolved. Itnigossible to predict how the courts
interpret coverage issues and these resolutions mag a material impact on the ultimate resolutidrthe asbestos and environme
liabilities. We use a variety of estimation methddscalculate reserves as a whole; however, resdoreasbestos and environmental cle
were determined primarily based on the report yeathod with some weight applied to other methods fleport year method relies
heavily on our historical claims and severity imf@tion. Other methods rely more heavily on indusifgrmation. Although management
recorded its best estimate of loss reserves, duhetauncertainties of estimation of liabilities thaay arise as discussed herein, ful
deterioration of claims could occur in the future.

Please see Note 6, “Reserves for Losses and LdastAnt Expenses” for further discussion.
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22 . Statutory Accounting Principles
Financial Information

The statutory capital and surplus for our principaérating subsidiaries was as follows:

Statutory capital and surplus @ December 31

(in millions) 2014 2013
Bermudsa $ 1,278. $ 1,218.2
United Kingdom(® 224.F 225.¢
United State! 790.4 822.:

@ Such amounts include ownership interests in affilinsurance and reinsurance subsidia
@ Capital on deposit with Lloy s in U.S. Dollars

The statutory net income (loss) for our principaém@ting subsidiaries was as follows:

Statutory net income (loss)b) For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Bermudsa $ 1457 $ 1242 $ (4.2
United Kingdom(® 28.7 42.3 40.7
United State: 117.7 117.4 42.9

@ Such amounts include ownership interests in afilinsurance and reinsurance subsidia
@ In U.S. Dollars

Dividends

As an insurance and reinsurance holding companyreid¢argely dependent on dividends and other pthpayments from our insurance
reinsurance subsidiaries to pay cash dividendsitslareholders, for debt service and for our dpay@&xpenses. The ability of our insura
and reinsurance subsidiaries to pay dividends tis ssibject to certain restrictions imposed by jthesdictions of domicile that regulate «
insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries and eaiddigtion has calculations for the amount of divide that an insurance and reinsuri
company can pay without the approval of the insceanregulator.

The payment of dividends to our shareholders issgmd by the Bermuda Companies Act of 1981, as detgrwhich permits the paymen
dividends so long as (i) we are not, or would regfter the payment, unable to pay our liabiliieghey become due or (i) the realizable v
of our assets is in excess of our liabilities afeing such payment into account. In light of #hesstrictions, we have no additional mat
restrictions on dividend payments that may be ntadamir shareholders at December 31, 2014.

Argo Re is the direct subsidiary of Argo Group, dhdrefore, has direct dividend paying capabiliteeshe parent. As of December 31, 2(
Argo Re’s solvency and liquidity margins and statutory ta@nd surplus were in excess of the minimum kevedjuired by the Insurance #
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the minimum &taticapital and surplus required to be maintaingdirgo Re was $340.9 million a
$348.8 million, respectively.

Argo Re is generally prohibited from declaring @yjng, in any financial year, dividends of morerntt2b% of its total statutory capital ¢
surplus (as shown on its previous financial ygatatutory balance sheet) unless it files (at lsagen days before payment of such divide
with the Bermuda Monetary Authority (“BMA"an affidavit signed by at least two directors (ofihom must be a Bermuda resident dire
if any of the insures directors are resident in Bermuda) and the pralaiepresentative stating that it will continuenteet its solvency marg
and minimum liquidity ratio. Argo Re may not reduite total statutory capital by 15% or more, as @t in its previous yeas’ financia
statements, unless it has received the prior appraivthe BMA. Based on these regulatory restritdiothe maximum amount available
payment of dividends to Argo Group by Argo Re dgr2015 without prior regulatory approval is $31eilion.

In 2014 and 2013, Argo Re paid cash dividends @.%4million and $84.5 million, respectively, to Argsroup which were used to rej
intercompany notes in 2014 and intercompany natds@ceivables in 2013. Argo Re did not pay divitketo Argo Group in 2012.

Our U.S. insurance subsidiaries file financial esta¢nts prepared in accordance with statutory adicmuprinciples prescribed or permitted
insurance regulatory authorities of the state iriclvtthey are domiciled. The differences betweentustay-based financial statements .
financial statements prepared in accordance wittABAary between jurisdictions. The principal diffaces are that for statutobgse:
financial statements, deferred policy acquisitiosts are not recognized, a portion of the defeieddral
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income tax asset is non-admitted, bonds are géyneesatied at amortized cost, certain assets aneaglonitted and charged directly to surplt
collectability allowance related to reinsuranceorazrables are charged directly to surplus and audéhg losses and unearned premiun
presented net of reinsurance.

As an intermediate insurance holding company, ABJoup US is largely dependent on dividends andropieemitted payments from
insurance subsidiaries to service its debt, funerating expenses and pay dividends to Argo Ireldfadious state insurance laws restrict
amount that may be transferred to Argo Group U$fits subsidiaries in the form of dividends withuipr approval of regulatory authoriti
In addition, that portion of the insurance subsigil net equity that results from the difference betwstatutory insurance principles ¢
GAAP would not be available for dividends.

In December 2014, Argo Group US received an extiiaary dividend in the amount of $20.0 million iash from Rockwood. In Deceml
2014, Argo Group US received an ordinary divideh&48.8 million, in the form of $0.1 million in chsand $48.7 million in securities, fr¢
Argonaut Insurance Company. In December 2014, Asgoup US received an extraordinary dividend of @5%illion, in the form of $0.
million in cash and $55.0 million in securitiesprin Colony Insurance Company (“Colony”).

In December 2013, Argo Group US received an orglid@ridend in the amount of $9.5 million in casbrr Rockwood, an ordinary divide
in the amount of $24.8 million, in the form of $0nillion in cash and $24.7 million in the form oéaurities, from Argonaut Insurar
Company, and an extraordinary dividend of $76.2ioni) in the form of $0.3 million in cash and $7%8llion in the form of securities, fro
Colony.

In September 2012, Argo Group US received an ordidavidend in the amount of $10.0 million in cabm Rockwood and an ordin:
dividend of $59.0 million, in the form of securiiefrom Colony.

Argonaut Insurance Company is a direct subsidi&d®rgo Group US and is regulated by the lllinoissBion of Insurance. During 2015, ba
on the state of domicils’ordinary dividend calculation, Argonaut Insura@mEmpany may be permitted to pay dividends of up3®.1 millior
without approval from the lllinois Division of Insance. Colony, a direct subsidiary of Argo Group, $Segulated by the Virginia Bureau
Insurance. Colony may be permitted to pay dividesfdsgp to $71.7 million without approval from ther§finia Department of Insurance dur
2015. Rockwood, a direct subsidiary of Argo Group, is regulated by the Pennsylvania Departmenisafrance. Rockwood may be permi
to pay dividends of up to $13.3 million without appal from the Pennsylvania Department of Insuradieeng 2015. Each department
insurance may require prior approval for the payneémll dividends, based on business and reguylatonditions of the insurance companies.

Dividend payments from ArgoGlobal Syndicate 120@sdmmediate parent are not restricted by regmwaauthority. Dividend payments w
be at the discretion of ArgoGlobal Syndicate 120Board of Directors and will be subject to then@ays, operations, financial conditi
capital and general business requirements of Arglo@ISyndicate 1200.

Certain assets of our subsidiaries are pledgedduolatory agencies, serve as collateral for letdérsredit or are assigned as the assets ¢
trade capital providers of our Lloy&lsyndicate, and therefore, are not available ftmalsmay be paid up as dividends to Argo Groug. ISete
2, “Investments” and Note 20, “Segment Informatiéor’ further discussion.

23. Insurance Assessment

We are required to participate in statutorily ceglaihsolvency guarantee and weattedated loss protection associations in all statebe U.S
where we are authorized to transact business. Tdessrciations were formed for the purpose of patfiegclaims of insolvent companies.
are assessed a prata share of such claims based upon our premiutings, subject to a maximum annual assessmenlingeof insuranct
Certain of these assessments can be recoveredjthppamium tax offsets or policy surcharges. Wendbbelieve that assessments on cu
insolvencies will have a material impact on ourfinial condition or results of operations. We hawerued assessments of $17.0 million
$16.6 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respey.

24 . Transactions with Related Parties

In 2013, our Surety unit received a submissionughoits established broker network to issue apprately $13 million of surety bonds
behalf of Kinetica Partners, LLC (“Kineticai) connection with a Gulf of Mexico pipeline projeMr. Gary Woods, Chairman of our Boarc
Directors, is the President of Kinetica, and beriefily owns 10% of Kinetica through a family tru$the submission was underwritten, pri
and bound in the ordinary course of business bystirety unit. The terms and conditions of the gubeinds that were issued and the pren
charged to Kinetica for issuance of the bonds, veergsistent with those routinely applied and charfge similarly situated risks bound
unrelated third-parties. Per the Surety wnéfandard requirements in connection with theaisse of surety bonds, Kinetica and Mr. Wood
his personal capacity, among others, executed onatys
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unit's standard form of indemnity agreement holding Surety unit harmless against any and all losseseapdnses incurred resulting fr
the issuance of the surety bonds.

25. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following tables represent unaudited quartdimancial data for the years ended December 314284d 2013. In the opinion
management, all adjustments necessary to presegttfee results of operations for such periodséndeen made. Total revenue, net inc
before income taxes and net income include realgaeds or losses from the sale of investments dhdroWe cannot anticipate when ¢
similar gains or losses may occur in the futurec8ifinancial results rely heavily on estimatesjticea should be used in drawing spec
conclusions from quarterly consolidated results.

(in millions, except per share amour 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Year
2014
Total revenue $ 3601 $ 375z $ 371z $ 4121 $ 1,518
Net income before income tax 42.7 447 48.3 80.3 216.C
Net income 40.2 38.6 447 59.7 183.2
Net income per common shar

Basic* $ 152 $ 1.48 $ 172 % 232 % 7.02

Diluted* $ 149 $ 145 % 169 $ 228 $ 6.9C
Comprehensive incon $ 413 % 64.1 $ 68 $ 313 $ 143F
(in millions, except per share amour 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Year
2013
Total revenut $ 341€ $ 363 $ 3637 $ 406.C $ 1,475.1
Net income before income tax 37.5 42.8 32.9 66.5 179.7
Net income 32.7 31.7 31.0 47.8 143.2
Net income per common shar

Basic* 120 $ 1.18 1.17 % 1.8C 5.33

$ $ $
Diluted* $ 1.16 $ 113 $ 112 $ 1.74 $ 5.14
Comprehensive income (los $ 457 $ (352 % 472 3 438 $ 101kt

* Basic and diluted net income per common share@rguted independently for each quarter and fult @sed on the respective avel
number of common shares outstanding; thereforestime of the quarterly net income per common shata chay not equal the |
income per common share for the ye

2 6. Information Provided in Connection with Outstanding Debt of Subsidiaries

The following tables present condensed consoligafinancial information at December 31, 2014 and2@nd for the three years en
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, for Argo Grohp {Parent Guarantor”) and Argo Group US (the “Sdibsy Issuer”).The Subsidiar
Issuer is an indirect 100 percemimed subsidiary of the Parent Guarantor. Investsnersubsidiaries are accounted for by the Pa@eratranta
under the equity method for purposes of the suppieah consolidating presentation. Earnings of gliases are reflected in the Pai
Guarantor’s investment accounts and earnings.

The Parent Guarantor fully and unconditionally gudees certain of the debt of the Subsidiary IssGendensed consolidating finan

information of the Subsidiary Issuer is presentedia@onsolidated basis and consists principalthefnet assets, results of operations and
flows of operating insurance company subsidiaries.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2014

(in millions)
Argo Group
International
Holdings, Ltd  Argo Group US, Inc.  Other Subsidiaries Consolidating
(Parent and Subsidiaries and Eliminations Adjustments
Guarantor) (Subsidiary Issuer) 1) 2 Total
Assets
Investments $ 07 $ 2,841t % 12557 % — $ 4,097¢
Cash — 49.3 31.7 — 81.C
Accrued investment incorr — 17.8 4.3 — 22.1
Premiums receivabl — 154.€ 199.C — 353.€
Reinsurance recoverabl — 1,173.¢ (176.4) — 997.2
Goodwill and other intangible assets, — 131.7 99.1 — 230.¢
Current income taxes receivable, — 10.1 4.8 — 14.9
Deferred acquisition costs, r — 58.C 66.6 — 124.¢€
Ceded unearned premiui — 98.t 109.1 — 207.€
Other asset 9.6 174.1 67.9 (25.0) 226.€
Due from (to) affiliates 2.9 (19.9 19.8 (2.9 —
Intercompany note receivak — 72.C (72.0 — —
Investments in subsidiari 1,698.( — — (1,698.0) —
Total assets $ 17117 $ 4,761.¢ $ 1,609.6 $ (1,725.9 $ 6,356.1
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment
expense $ — $ 2,136.¢ $ 906.C $ — $ 3,042«
Unearned premiurr — 448.€ 368.3 — 817.2
Funds held and ceded reinsurance payable,
net — 675.1 (441.9) — 233.¢
Long-term debt 49.0 288.7 61.4 (20.€) 378.5
Deferred tax liabilities, ne — 41.2 11.8 — 53.C
Accrued underwriting expenses and other liabili 15.5 104.2 65.0 — 184.7
Total liabilities 64.5 3,694.t 971.2 (20.6) 4,709.¢
Total shareholders' equity 1,646.% 1,066.¢ 638.4 (1,705.9) 1,646.7
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 17112 $ 4,761 $ 1,609.6 $ (1,725.9 $ 6,356.

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliaions.
@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2013

(in millions)
Argo Group
International Argo Group US, Inc. Other Subsidiaries Consolidating
Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations  Adjustments
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) [ @) Total
Assets
Investments $ 11 $ 2,785.1 $ 1,293.C $ — $ 4,079.:
Cash — 132.1 25.3 — 157.4
Accrued investment incorr — 19.7 6.0 — 25.7
Premiums receivabl — 150.¢ 197.€ — 348.4
Reinsurance recoverabl — 1,145.¢ 117.€ — 1,263.t
Goodwill and other intangible assets, — 137.4 102.4 — 239.¢
Current income taxes receivable, — 0.5 (0.5) — —
Deferred acquisition costs, r — 55.€ 58.3 — 113.€
Ceded unearned premiui — 88.2 108.1 — 196.:
Other asset 4.6 97.8 64.4 — 166.€
Due from affiliates 3.1 15 (1.5) (3.1 —
Intercompany note receivak — 87.4 (87.4) —
Investments in subsidiari 1,625.2 — — (1,625.7) —
Total assets $ 1,634.C $ 4,702.( $ 1,883.5 $ (1,628.9) $ 6,591.(
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment
expense $ — $ 2,157.C $ 1,073.: $ — $ 3,230.:
Unearned premiurr — 425.5 353.€ — 779.1
Funds held and ceded reinsurance payable — 642.4 (244.0) — 398.4
Long-term debi 49.0 288.¢ 65.5 — 403.4
Current income taxes payable, — 8.9 (3.7) — 5.2
Deferred tax liabilities, ne — 22.8 5.9 — 28.7
Accrued underwriting expenses and other
liabilities 154 98.2 69.3 — 182.¢
Intercompany note payakt 6.6 — — (6.6) —
Total liabilities 71.0 3,643.7 1,319.¢ (6.6) 5,028.(
Total shareholders' equity 1,563.( 1,058.: 563.4 (1,621.79) 1,563.(
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 1,634.C $ 4,702.( $ 1,883.5 $ (1,628.9) $ 6,591.(

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.

@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic

F-52




CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
(in millions)

Argo Group

International Argo Group US, Inc. Other Subsidiaries Consolidating

Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations  Adjustments
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) 1) @) Total
Premiums and other revent
Earned premium $ — $ 461.C $ 8771 % — $ 1,338.1
Net investment income (expen: 40.5 56.7 (10.6) — 86.6
Net realized investment gains and
other 2.0 86.9 7.1 (2.0) 94.0
Total revenue 42.5 604.€ 873.€ (2.0) 1,518.%
Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment expet — 285.€ 461.¢ — 747 .4
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance
expense 17.3 199.¢ 322.C — 539.2
Interest expens 2.3 15.2 2.7 (0.3) 19.9
Fee expense (income), r — 2.4 (1.8) — 0.6
Foreign currency exchange loss (g¢ — 0.4 (8.2 — (7.8)
Impairment of intangible asse — 3.4 — — 3.4
Total expense 19.6 506.¢ 776.5 (0.3) 1,302.%
Income before income tax 22.9 97.7 97.1 2.7 216.C
Provision for income taxe — 27.5 5.3 — 32.8
Net income before equity in earnings
subsidiarie: 22.9 70.2 91.8 (1.7 183.2
Equity in undistributed earnings of
subsidiarie: 160.3 — — (160.9) —
Net income $ 183.2 $ 70.2 $ 918 $ (162.0) $ 183.2

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.
@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(in millions)
Argo Group
International Argo Group US, Inc. Other Subsidiaries Consolidating
Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations  Adjustments
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) 1) @) Total
Premiums and other revent
Earned premium $ — $ 439.¢ $ 863.¢ $ — $ 1,303
Net investment income (expen: 84.5 73.4 (57.9) — 100.C
Net realized investment gains (losses) and
other — 72.2 (0.9) — 71.3
Total revenus 84.5 585.5 805.1 — 1,475.1
Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment expet — 268.€ 473.4 — 742.C
Other reinsuranc-related expense — — 19.2 — 19.2
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance
expense 274 176.€ 306.5 — 510.€
Interest expens 3.3 15.2 29 (1.2 20.2
Fee expense, n - 4.1 0.8 - 4.9
Foreign currency exchange g — (0.3) (1.4) — (1.7)
Total expense 30.7 464.5 801.4 (1.2) 1,295.¢
Income before income tax 53.8 121.C 3.7 1.2 179.7
Provision for income taxe — 34.1 2.4 — 36.5
Net income before equity in earnings
subsidiarie: 53.8 86.9 1.3 1.2 143.2
Equity in undistributed earnings of
subsidiarie: 89.4 — — (89.9) —
Net income $ 143.2 $ 86.8 $ 13 $ (88.2) $ 143.2

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.
@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

(in millions)

Argo Group
International

Argo Group US, Inc.

Other Subsidiaries Consolidating

Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations  Adjustments
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) @) Total
Premiums and other revent
Earned premium $ — $ 434z $ 7525 $ — $ 1,186.F
Net investment incom 0.1 86.6 32.1 — 118.€
Net realized investment (losses) gains and
other (0.9) 19.5 7.0 — 25.7
Total revenue (0.7) 540.3 791.4 — 1,331.(
Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment expet — 300.€ 447.C — 747.€
Other reinsuranc-related expense — — 27.3 — 27.3
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 27.1 169.¢ 267.€ — 464.5
Interest expens 3.9 17.1 3.0 (0.3 23.7
Fee expense (income), r - (1.3 (4.0) - (5.3
Debt extinguishment cos 0.1 2.1 — — 2.2
Foreign currency exchange Ic — — 4.3 — 4.3
Total expense 31.1 488.3 745.2 (0.3 1,264.%
(Loss) income before income tax (31.8 52.C 46.2 0.3 66.7
Provision for income taxe — 11.1 3.3 — 14.4
Net (loss) income before equity in earningt
subsidiarie: (31.8 40.9 42.9 0.3 52.3
Equity in undistributed earnings of
subsidiarie: 84.1 — — (84.1) —
Net income (loss $ 523 $ 40.¢ $ 428 $ (83.8) $ 52.3

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.

@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Net cash flows from operating activiti
Cash flows from investing activitie

Proceeds from sales of investme

Maturities and mandatory calls of fixed
maturity investment

Purchases of investmer

Change in short-term investments and
foreign regulatory deposi

Settlements of foreign currency exchange
forward contract

Issuance of intercompany note,

Purchases of fixed assets and other

Cash (used) provided by investing activit
Cash flows from financing activitie

Borrowings under intercompany note,

Activity under stock incentive plar

Redemption of trust preferred securities,

Payment on note payat

Repurchase of Company's common sh

Excess tax expense from share-based
payment arrangemer

Payment of cash dividend to common
shareholder

Cash (used) provided by financing activit
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Change in cas

Cash, beginning of ye:i

Cash, end of yes

(6]
@

(in millions)

Argo Group
International

Argo Group US, Inc.

Other Subsidiaries

Consolidating

Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations  Adjustments
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) 1) @) Total
$ 257 $ 43.2 $ 372 $ 24.4 $ 130.5
— 803.€ 458.2 — 1,262.(
— 192.1 130.€ — 323.C
— (1,126.9) (610.7) —  (1,736.9)
0.5 76.C 20.0 — 96.5
1.3 — (2.4) — (1.1)
— 14.5 (7.6) (6.9) —
(7.0) (35.5) (16.0) (6.4) (64.9)
(5.2) (75.2) (27.6) (13.3) (121.9)
(6.9) — — 6.9 —
4.6 — — — 4.6
— — — (18.0) (18.0)
— (0.2) — — (0.2)
— (50.8) — — (50.8)
— 0.1 — — 0.1
(18.2) — — — (18.2)
(20.5) (50.8) — (11.2) (82.4)
— — (3.2) — (3.2)
— (82.8) 6.4 (—) (76.4)
— 132.1 25.3 — 157.4
$ — 3 49.2 $ 31.7 $ =) $ 81.0

Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intgfonal Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.
Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Net cash flows from operating activiti
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from sales of investme
Maturities and mandatory calls of fixed
maturity investment
Purchases of investmer
Change in short-term investments and
foreign regulatory deposi
Settlements of foreign currency exchange
forward contract
Issuance of intercompany note,
Purchases of fixed assets and other
Cash (used) provided by investing activit
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under intercompany note,
Activity under stock incentive plar
Repurchase of Company's common sh
Excess tax expense from share-based
payment arrangemer
Payment of cash dividend to common
shareholder
Cash (used) provided by financing activit
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Change in cas
Cash, beginning of ye:i
Cash, end of yes

(in millions)

Argo Group

International Argo Group US, Inc.

Other Subsidiaries Consolidating

Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations  Adjustments
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) @) Total
$ 63.2 $ 62.5 $ (125.9 $ — $ (0.2)
— 1,130.2 836.1 — 1,966.:
— 168.€ 112.€ — 281.€
— (1,156.7) (819.1) —  (1,975.9
(1.4) (119.7) (32.5) — (153.0)
0.7 — (4.6) — (3.9)
— 35.C 14.3 (49.3) —
— (16.3) 21.7 — 5.4
(0.7) 42.C 128.€ (49.3) 120.€
(49.3) — — 49.3 —
2.6 — — — 2.6
— (46.5) — — (46.5)
— 0.2 — — 0.2
(15.8) — — — (15.9)
(62.5) (46.3) = 49.3 (59.5)
— — 0.5 — 0.5
— 58.2 3.4 — 61.6
— 73.9 21.9 — 95.8
$ — $ 132.1 $ 253 $ — 8 157.4

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.

@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

(in millions)
Argo Group
International Argo Group US, Inc. Other Subsidiaries Consolidating
Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations  Adjustments
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) 1) @) Total
Net cash flows from operating activiti $ (30.2) $ 55 § 55.2 $ — $ 30.5
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from sales of investme — 573.¢ 556.¢ — 1,130.5
Maturities and mandatory calls of fixed
maturity investment — 326.2 156.€ — 483.C
Purchases of investmer — (889.7) (732.9) — (1,621.5)
Change in short-term investments and
foreign regulatory deposi (0.9 35.1 3.5 — 37.7
Settlements of foreign currency exchange
forward contract 2.3 — (1.9 — 0.4
Issuance of intercompany note, — (26.0) (29.0) 55.C —
Purchases of fixed assets and other — (29.1) (4.9) — (34.0)
Cash provided (used) by investing activit 14 (9.2) (51.0 55.C (3.7
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under intercompany note, 55.C — — (55.0) —
Proceeds from issuance of senior
unsecured fixed rate not — 138.7 — — 138.7
Redemption of trust preferred securities,
net (15.1) (102.7) — — (117.2)
Activity under stock incentive plar 1.2 — — — 1.2
Repurchase of Company's common sh — (44.2) — — (44.2)
Payment of cash dividend to common
shareholder (12.3) — — — (12.3)
Cash provided (used) by financing activit 28.8 (7.6) — (55.0) (33.9)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ — — 0.1 — 0.1
Change in cas — (11.2) 4.3 — (6.9)
Cash, beginning of yei — 85.1 17.6 — 102.7
Cash, end of ye: $ — $ 738 3 219 3 — $ 95.8

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliaions.
@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic

27. Subsequent Even

On February 17, 2015, our Board of Directors deda 10% stock dividend payable on March 16, 2@iShareholders of record at the ¢
of business on March 2, 2015. Based upon informaiailable to us as of the dividend declaratiote dae estimate approximately 2.6 mill
shares will be issued upon payment of the stocldeid. The share numbers and per share amountesdidcin the Consolidated Finan
Statements and Notes to the Consolidated Finatatements have not been retroactively adjustedivie effect to the stock divider
Presented below are pro forma basic and dilutethnetne per common share after giving effect ferstock dividend:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Pro forma net income per common shi
Basic $ 6.3 $ 485 $ 1.68
Diluted $ 6.27 $ 467 $ 1.66

The pro forma impact of the stock dividend on tlenéblidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2014 iiscaease in common stock of $
million, an increase in additional paid-in capibél$132.5 million and a decrease to retained egmaf $135.1 million.
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ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.

SCHEDULE I
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
(in millions)
BALANCE SHEETS December 31,
2014 2013
Assets
Other investments, unrealized loss on foreign cuye
exchange forward contrac $ 12 $ (1.4)
Shor-term investment 1.9 25
Investment in subsidiarie 1,698.( 1,625.2
Due from subsidiarie 2.9 3.1
Other asset 9.6 4.6
Total assets $ 1,711.2  $ 1,634.(
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Junior subordinated debentu $ 49.C $ 49.C
Intercompany note payakt — 6.6
Accrued underwriting expens 15.5 154
Total liabilities 64.5 71.C
Shareholders' equit 1,646.7 1,563.(
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 1,711 $ 1,634.(
STATEMENTS OF INCOME For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Revenue
Net investment incom(®) $ 405 $ 845 $ 0.1
Net realized investment loss 2.0 — (0.8)
Total revenue 42.5 84.5 (0.7)
Expenses
Interest expens 2.3 3.3 3.9
Debt extinguishment cos — — 0.1
Other expense 17.3 27.4 27.1
Total expense 19.6 30.7 31.1
Net income (loss) before equity in earnings (lopsé
subsidiarie® 22.9 53.8 (31.9
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidial 160.2 89.4 84.1
Net income $ 1832 $ 143z 3 52.3

@ For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013nvestment income includes intercompany divideati$40.9 million and $84
million, respectively
@ Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. is not sedfjto taxation
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ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.

SCHEDULE I
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
(in millions)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 183.2 143.2 52.3
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided (used) by operating
activities:
Amortization and depreciatic — 0.7 0.9
Share-based payments exper 5.7 8.7 4.8
Net realized investment and other ge (2.0) — —
Debt extinguishment cos — — 0.1
Undistributed earnings of subsidiar (160.3) (89.4) (84.1)
Change in
Prepaid asse 2.0 (0.2) 0.9
Accrued underwriting expens (2.2) (0.9 0.9
Due to subsidiarie (0.6) 0.2 (7.0)
Interest on intercompany note paya 0.3 0.8 0.3
Other assets and liabilities, r (0.4) — 0.7
Cash provided (used) by operating activi 25.7 63.2 (30.2)
Cash flows from investing activitie
Change in sha-term investment 0.5 (1.9 (0.9
Settlements of foreign currency exchange forward
contracts 1.3 0.7 2.3
Purchases of fixed asst (7.0) — —
Cash (used) provided by investing activit (5.2) (0.7 1.4
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under intercompany note payable, (6.9) (49.3) 55.0
Activity under stock incentive plar 4.6 2.6 1.2
Redemption of trust preferred securities, — — (15.7)
Payment of cash dividend to common sharehol (18.2) (15.8) (12.3)
Cash (used) provided by financing activit (20.5) (62.5) 28.8

Change in cas —
Cash, beginning of ye:i —

Cash, end of ye: $ —
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ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
SCHEDULE 1lI
SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE INFORMATION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2@

(in millions)
Reserves
for
Losses anc
Loss Net Amortization Other
Adjustment Premium  Investment Loss (Deferral) Operating  Premiums
DAC Expenses UPR Revenue Income & LAE DAC Expenses  Written
Segment (@ (b) (c) (d) 0] (e) 0 (2 (3) (@)

Year Ended December 31, 2014
Excess and Surplus Lin $ 36.¢ $ 1,165.« $274¢ $ 4852 $ 36.7 $248(C $ 1.9 $ 159.7 $ 487.t
Commercial Specialt 22.5 652.2 172.¢ 291.¢ 18.7 189.1 (4.3) 107.¢ 301.1
International Specialt 0.8 306.3 123.¢ 148.: 8.2 77.8 1.7 52.8 156.€
Syndicate 120i 64.4 600.C 245.5 411.1 10.2 208.1 4.7) 172.t 420.¢
Rur-off Lines — 318.E — 1.6 9.7 24.4 — 8.2 1.6
Corporate and Othe — — — — 3.1 — — 43.6 —
Total $124.€ $ 3,042« $817.2 $1,338.1 $ 86.6 $7474 $ (5.4) $ 544.€ $1,367.¢

Year Ended December 31, 2013
Excess and Surplus Lin $ 38.8 $ 1,171 $264.¢ $ 4602 $ 422 $244C $ (1.4) $ 158.6 $ 478.7
Commercial Specialt 18.1 653.4 159.4 299.C 22.8 194.C 0.4 97.C 288.2
International Specialt 2.2 295.€ 117.1 142.4 8.4 79.¢ (1.0 51.1 155.4
Syndicate 120! 54.8 777.C 237.¢ 401.7 11.C 208.€ (13.9 170.C 428.5
Rur-off Lines — 332.t — 0.5 10.8 15.t — 4.6 0.5
Corporate and Othe — — — — 4.8 — — 45.3 —
Total $ 113.€¢ $ 3,230.5 $779.1 $1,303¢ $ 100.C $742C $ (15.8) $ 526.€ $1,351.:

Year Ended December 31, 2012
Excess and Surplus Lin $ 373 $1,209.C $239.C $ 3992 $ 511 $223: $ (25) $ 1464 $ 420.
Commercial Specialt 18.€ 660.C 173.C 317.5 27.6 257.C 3.4 104.¢ 306.4
International Specialt 1.4 257.2 102.5 130.1 12.3 73.t 0.1 43.7 1455
Syndicate 120i 42.1 738.¢ 215.7 337.¢€ 15.3 184.C (5.5) 139.4 370.2
Rur-off Lines — 358.3 — 1.7 12.5 9.8 — 2.8 1.6
Corporate and Othe — — — — — — — 31.8 —
Total $ 994 $ 3,223% $730.z $1,186.F $ 118. $ 747 $ (4.5) $ 469.C $1,244.t

@  Deferred Policy Acquisition Co:

®  Future Policy Benefits, Losses, Claims and LosselBzps

©  Unearned Premiurr

@ Premium Revenue, net (premiums earr

©®  Benefits, Claims, Losses and Settlement Expe

®  Amortization (Deferral) of Deferred Policy Acquisih Costs

©  Premiums Written, ne

@ Net Investment Income allocated based upon eaches®'s share of investable func

@ The amortization (deferral) of DAC will not equdlet change in the balance sheet. See Not8dsitiess and Significant Account
Policie¢” for further discussior

@  Other Insurance Expenses allocated based on spiggfitification, where possible, and related ditis.
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ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.

SCHEDULE V
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in millions)
Net
Balance at Charged to Operating Charged to Balance at
Beginning Cost and Capital Loss Loss Other End
of Year Expense Carryforward  Carryforward Accounts Deductions of Year
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Deducted from asset
Valuation allowance for deferred tax as $ 56.2 $ (30.79) $ — 3 — $ (0.1 % — $ 254
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Deducted from assetl
Valuation allowance for deferred tax as $ 52 $ (10 $ — $ — 3 47 $ — $ 56.2
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Deducted from asset
Valuation allowance for deferred tax as $ 504 $ (10 $ — $ — $ 31 $ — $ 52F
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ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.

SCHEDULE VI
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION FOR PROPERTY-CASUALTY INSU RANCE COMPANIES
(in millions)
For the Years Ended December 3!
2014 2013 2012
Deferred acquisition cos $ 124€ $ 113¢ $ 991
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment exp $ 3,042 $ 3,230.8  $ 3,223.
Unamortized discount in reserves for los $ 176 $ 195 $ 20.8
Unearned premiurr $ 817z $ 7791 % 730.2
Premiums earne $ 1,338.1 $ 1,303.¢ $ 1,186.
Net investment incom $ 86.6 $ 100.C $ 118.€
Losses and loss adjustment expenses incL
Current yea $ 7851 $ 775€ % 780.5
Prior years (37.7) (33.6) (32.9)
Losses and loss adjustment expenses inci $ 7474 % 742 % 747.€
(Deferral) amortization of policy acquisition co®) $ 54 $ (15.8) $ (4.5)
Paid losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of
reinsuranc $ 736.7 $ 7535 $ 796.5
Gross premiums writte $ 19052 $ 1,888.. $ 1,745.5

@ The amortization (deferral) of policy acquisitionsts will not equal the change in the balance sifastfurther discussion, see Not:
“Business and Significant Accounting Polic”
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Exhibit 10.11

& ARGO INTERNATIONAL

DATED 12 May 2014

(1) ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD

and

(2) AXEL SCHMIDT

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT




4
« ARGO INTERNATIONAL

Clauses

© © N o gk~ o Ddh e

N N N NN R B R B B B B R B
A W NP O © o N O U~ WDN PO

INDEX

Interpretatiol

Appointment

Term and notict

Duties

Salary

Expense

Bonus scheme & Profit Commissi
Share schem:

Pensions, health and medical insurz

. lliness

. Holidays

. Other business intere

. Confidential and business informat
. Non competitiol

. Termination and Suspensi

. Events on Terminatic

. Resignation of office

. Grievance and disciplinary procedu

. Inventions and improvemet

Genera

. Reconstruction or amalgamat
. Notices
. Extent and subsistence of Agreen

. Governing law and jurisdictic

INDEX

Page Na

© ©O© 00 0 N N o o o b~ bW WDdN

e e e e L O O i i e =
o o N N N W W R O




>4
& ARGO INTERNATIONAL

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT
DATE: [ ]
PARTIES:

(1) ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD, whose regesed office is at Clarendon House, 2 Church Stidainilton HV
11, Bermuda“the Compan”); and

(2)  AXEL SCHMIDT (“the Executiv”).

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS
1. Interpretation
1.1 In this Agreement the following words and expressishall have the following meaning

“Group Company” means any company, which is the parent undertakiregsubsidiary undertaking of the Company or other
subsidiary undertaking of the Company’s parent uiatteng from time to time where the expressiossibsidiary undertaking ” and
“ parent undertaking ” have the meanings given to them by section 116&@anies Act 2006;

“Termination Date” means the date of the termination of the employroétite Executive hereunder, howsoever caused.
1.2 In this Agreement (unless the context otherwisaires):

(@) any reference to any statute or statutoryipiaw shall be construed as including a referen@nt modification, renactmer
or extension of such statute or statutory provigmnthe time being in force or to any subordiniaigislation made under t
same;

(b) any reference to a Clause is to a Clause of thieégent

(c) the expression “directly or indirectlyfieans (without prejudice to the generality of thRpression) either alone or jointly w
or on behalf of any other person, firm or body cogbe and whether on his own account or in partmeraith another ¢
others oras the holder of any interest in or as officer, kyge or agent of or consultant to any other perfiom or body
corporate

1.3 The index and headings contained in this Agreenagatfor convenience only and do not form part ofl ahall not affect tt
construction of this Agreement or any part o

2. Appointment
2.1 The Company hereby appoints the Executive and xiee Eive agrees to serve the Company as Group Chigérwriting Officer.

2.2.1 The Executive warrants that by virtue of enterintpithis Agreement he will not be in breach of axpress or implied terms of ¢
contract with or of any other obligation to anyrthparty binding upon hin

2.3 This Agreement is subject to the Bermuda Inmatign Departmens issuance of a valid work permit for the Emploifeequired. Th
parties shall use their best reasonable effortsbtain or renew a valid work permit from the Berraudhmigration Department. T
Company shall be responsible for the payment okwermit fees and any other fees or expenses edunrobtaining or renewing a
such work permit. In the event the Bermuda ImntigraDepartmen
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2.4

2.5

3.2

3.3

refuses to grant or renew a work permit, the Comisaaffiliates will employ the Employee in anotherigdiction on the same
equivalent terms as those set out hel

The Executive' principal place of work will be 110 Pitts Bay Rlo&@embroke, HM 08, Bermuda. However, in orddutfil his groug
duties to develop, organise, manage and promotiatd@ational business and affairs of the Compamgny Group Company, he st
also be required to work at such other locationi¢tvimay be anywhere in the world) as may be reduethe Company from time
time (whether on a permanent or temporary basdhenshall undertake any travel (anywhere in thedy@as may be necessary for
proper performance of his duties. In addition i® gosition as an officer of the Company, the Exe@eumay be required to perfo
duties as an officer or director of any Group Compand perform work for any Group Company and tigre from such positions
requested to do so) on termination of his employm&he Executive hereby appoints each member oBtberd of Directors of tt
Company (the “Board”) as the Executigeittorney for the purpose of doing anything nemmgst effect such resignation (includ
signing documents on the Execu’s behalf).

The Company will be entitled from time to time watit any further consent from the Executive to sdctrme Executive to tl
employment of any other Group Company without piigje to the rights of the Executive under this Agnent or to the provisions
this Agreement or to transfer this Agreement to atier Group Company at any time and without pmiatice to the Executive so tl
this Agreement shall have effect after the tranaseif originally made between the Executive anthsdroup Company

Term and notice

The Executive’ employment is subject to a probationary perio@ afionths, during which time his performance anddczt will be
appraised and monitored. If his performance issadisfactory the Company reserves the right terekthe probationary period o1
terminate the Executive’'s employment by giving omenth’s notice. During the probationary period the Exeeumay terminate h
employment by giving the Company one moathbtice. On successful completion of the prolmatip period, the provisions of 1
rest of this Clause 3 and this Agreement will applyespect of the termination of the Execu’s employment

Subject to the provisions of Clause 15, th@leyment of the Executive shall commence upon thgration of his noreompetitior
period with his previous employer on or before Nober 1, 2014 (the “Commencement Datéd)lowing which the employment sh
continue unless and until terminated by eithenypgiting the other not less than 6 months not

The Company reserves the option in its absotliscretion to terminate the Executiveshployment by paying him in lieu
notice. The payment shall be based solely on tteciives basic salary under clause 5.1, without taking aatcount any bont
profit commission, holiday pay, pension contribngmr benefits in kind, and shall be subject toudéidns for income tax and natio
insurance contributions as appropriate. The Exeutill not, under any circumstances, have anwtrig a payment in lieu of noti
unless the Company has made an election by writtéine to make such a payment to the Execu

Duties
The Executive shall during the continuance of hiplyment:

€) exercise such powers and perform such duties @ioal to the business of the Company or of any @rGampany as mi
from time to time be vested in or assigned to t
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

(b) well and faithfully serve the Company and any rael@vGroup Companies to the best of his ability eaudly out his duties in
proper and efficient manner and use his best emdea¥o promote and maintain their interests apdtagion;

(c) unless prevented by sickness, injury or other iacyp or as otherwise agreed by the Company dehetevhole of his tims
attention and abilities on a full time basis, faclks hours as may be necessary for the proper peaifare of his duties to t
business affairs of the Company and any relevaotigCompany for which he is required to performieti

In performance of his duties the Executive st

@) comply with the Company’normal hours of work and will also work any adtgil hours which are reasonably necesse
perform his duties. The Executive will not receasy further remuneration for any hours worked didiion to the normi
working hours

(b) perform his duties at 110 Pitts Bay Road, Pembrékd, 08, Bermuda or at such other locations (inatgdbut withou
limitation, the United States, Switzerland or theitdd Kingdom) as the Company shall reasonably ireqwhether on
permanent or temporary bas

(c) travel to such places in such manner and on sucdisamns as the Company may from time to time redsgnequire; an

(d) if so required by the Company, perform his dutiesehinder jointly with such other person or pessas the Company
from time to time reasonably requi

For the avoidance of doubt, subject always to tlxechtive retaining the same or a similar level e$ponsibility, authorit
remuneration and status, the Company may, in gslate discretion, reasonably vary from time toetithe functions and job title
the Executive

The Executive shall promptly disclose to the Boangg misconduct or breach of duty on his part andiaformation that comes in
his possession which adversely affects or may adWeaffect the Company or any Group Company obtigness of the Company
Group Company including, but not limited

(a) the plans of any other senior employee to leaveCii@pany or any Group Company (whether alone @oircert with an
other employee), including but not limited to tHans of such an employee to join a competitor cedtablish a business
competition with the Company or any Group Compamd

(b) the misuse by any employee of any confidentialrimition belonging to the Company or any Group Camp

The Executive acknowledges that: (a) in Bermuda, @mpany and certain Group Companies are autdoasd regulated by t
Bermuda Monetary Authority (“BMA”); If) in the United Kingdom, certain Group Companies authorised and regulated by
Financial conduct Authority (the “FCA”) and a membaf Lloyd’'s of London specialist insurance markeLloyds); and (c) i
Switzerland, certain Group Companies are regulayethe Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authostyd (d) in other jurisdictiol
in which certain Group Companies operate, theyaatborised and regulated by similar or equivalegutatory bodies (collective
referred to as the “Regulatory BodiesAccordingly, the Executive acknowledges that somealb of his duties will involve th
Company and/or a Group Company and/or the Executiveying on activities regulated by the RegulatBagdies. The Executi
undertakes to comply at all times with all relevardvisions of the any handbooks, relevant statutdss or guidance issued by o
relation to the Regulatory Bodies from time to timegplace. The Executive agrees that the Comparmny Group Company may te
or require the Executive to take all steps necgdsacomply with any instruction, direction or rexgt properly made or imposed by
on behalf of the Regulatory Bodies, and that hdl sh-operate fully where so require
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5.

5.2

5.3

6.2

7.2

7.3

Salary

The Company shall pay to the Executive by whyemuneration for his services under this Agreetnee basic salary af325,00(
(three hundred and twenty five thousand pounds stding) , which shall accrue from day to day and be payabkrears by equ
monthly instalments on or around the 24th of eaontimby credit transfer to your nominated bank witding society account. Whe
the Executive is only employed during part of a thahe salary will be pr-rated.

Such salary shall be reviewed by the Company incklan each calendar year, but without any commitnerincrease, with ai
change effective from 1st April following the rewie

The Company shall be entitled to deduct from anpspayable to the Executive (including salary)salins from time to time owed
the Company or to any Group Company by the Exeeutowsoever arising and the Executive expresskyeagio such deductior

Expenses

The Company shall reimburse the Executive all nealle travelling, hotel, entertainment and other afupocket expenses prope
incurred by him in or about the performance of diigies under this Agreement subject to his compawith the Company’ thel
current guidelines, if any, relating to expensed tarthe production of receipts, vouchers or othgrporting document

Subject to the production of appropriate evidentgayment (if requested), the Company shall proynpgimburse you up to
maximum of: (a) 85,000 (forty five thousand pounds sterling) eaelaryin respect of the cost of accommodation arghtfi ir
commuting from your home in Switzerland to youmgipal place of work; and (b)38000 (three thousand pounds sterling) each y
respect of the cost of assistance to you in pregamnd filing your tax return:

Bonus scheme & Profit Commission

Subject to Clause 7.3 below, at the absolute discref the Company the Executive may during theticmance of his employment,
addition to the basic salary payable to him pursdarClause 5.1, be eligible to receive an annuafippsharing award (thePS
Award”) and an annual long-term incentive awara (thTI Award”), (together, the “Awards"ubject to the rules of the Award pl
of the Company in place from time to time. The amtoof the Awards (if any) shall be determined la¢ sole discretion of tl
Company taking into account the performance of Gepany and each Group Company and the Execstisatisfaction of ar
individual performance goals set by the Compangnftime to time. The Executivetarget in respect of the PS Award shall be 8C
his basic salary and in respect of the LTI Awar@%0of his basic salary as set out in Clause 5He Awards (if any) shall not for
part of the Executive contractual remuneration under this Agreemeitthel Company makes a payment in relation to eitindroth o
the Awards to the Executive in respect of a paldicinancial year of the Company it shall not baliged to make subsequ
payments to him in respect of subsequent finaryeiats of the Compan

The Executive’s PS Award for the 2014 finahgiar shall be prorated from the Commencement.Dakee Executives participatio
in the Companys LTI Award plan shall begin in 2015. In lieu 02814 LTI Award, the Company shall grant to the &xé/e on th
Commencement Date (i) an award of restricted stoith a market value of 50,000, and (ii) an award of restricted stock édo
100% of the Executive’ basic annual salary under Clause 5.1 proratedh®r2014 financial year from the Commencement
(collectively, the" Sign-On Award ”). The Sigi-On Award shall vest on the third anniversary of @@mmencement Dat

The Company may alter the terms of the Awards arttiftargets or withdraw them altogether at ametivithout prior notice




>4
& ARGO INTERNATIONAL

7.4

8.2

9.2

9.3

The Executive will have no right to any Awards iond-apportioned Awards il
(&) he has not been employed throughout the wholeeofelevant financial year of the Company

(b) his employment terminates for any reason or hen@eunotice of termination (whether given by thes€&xtive or the Compan
at or prior to the date when the Awards might athse have been payat

Any Awards payable in accordance with this clauséall not be pensionable.

Share schemes

At the absolute discretion of the Company, the E&ge may be allowed to participate in such shateemes as the Company r
operate for employees of comparable status, subjetihe rules of such schemes from time to time apdn such terms as -
Company may from time to time determine. In anyhssieare scheme, no shares, securities, optiomglotsrto acquire the same s
vest or accrue after notice of termination has lggeen by either party including where the Execaiiy on garden leav

The Executive shall have no claim against the Cawma any Group Company in connection with the faation of his employme
in relation to the provision of any written agreemehich has the effect of requiring the Executiwesell or give up shares, securit
option or rights to acquire the same and/or whalses any such option or rights to lapse or regucalue.

Pensions, health and medical insurance

The Executive shall during his employment, subjecthe insurer in each case accepting the Exectbiveover under the relev:
policy and at normal rates, be entitled to partitiin any

(@) permanent health insurance sche

(b) arrangements for private medical treatment or nadtiealth insurance
(c) life insurance scheme; a

(d) critical illness insurance schen

operated from time to time by or for the Companytfe benefit of employees of the Company or angurCompany of equivale
status to the Executive, subject to any applicables and conditions and subject to the Companight to substitute other scher
for such schemes or amend the scale, and levedradfids provided under such schemes provided thasach change or substitut
provides a comparable level of coverage. The Bikexunderstands and accepts that it is the decisidhe insurer whether bene
are to be paid under any of the schemes or polieiiesred to in this clause and the Company shalemo liability or responsibili
for any decision that is made by the insurer. tRheravoidance of doubt, the Company shall notdiddi to make any payments un
it has received appropriate payments from the arsur

During his employment hereunder the Company slagh enonth pay into such personal pension planeotttecutive as he shall dir
an amount calculated (and accruing on a daily pasian annual rate equivalesftfifteen (15) per centof the Executives salary fa
the time being payable under clause

No contracting out certificate is in force in rédet to this employmen
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10.
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

11.
111

Iliness

The Executive shall in the event of iliness or ofineapacity beyond his control as a result of uhie is unable to perform his du
remain entitled to receive his salary in full faryacontinuous period of six months or an aggregatéed of six monthsabsence in at
consecutive twelve month period subject

() compliance with the Company’s procedures relatmgitkness notification, statutory sick pay and-smrtification to cove

absence from work due to sickness or other incpacid to the provision of medical certificates fandat the Companyg’
discretion) undergoing a medical examination byoatar appointed by the Company. The Executivel stmbperate i
ensuring the prompt delivery of such report to @mmpany subject to disclosure to the Executivei®i@eneral Practition
and authorise his own medical practitioner to syailsuch information as may be required by thadtdr and, if so request
by the Company, authorise his medical practitidoatisclose to the Company his opinion of the Exiee’s state of healtt

(b) a deduction (at the Compasydiscretion) from his salary of an amount or antewgual to any statutory sick pay or sc
security benefits to which the Executive is entl

(c) a deduction (at the Compasydiscretion) from his/ salary of an amount or anmisuequal to any payment made to
Executive under any health insurance arrangemdetsted from time to time by the Company and/or &mpup Company ¢
his behalf.

If the Executive is away from work due to illnessinjury for a consecutive period of 40 working dayhe Company may appc
another person or persons to perform the Exec's duties until he returns to wol

The Executive hereby covenants with the Companybelmalf of himself and his personal representataesll times fully an
effectively to comply with the terms of any insucarpolicy taken out by the Company or any Group @amy on his life or in respe
of his position as a director and/or officer of #iempany and further undertakes toagerate fully and assist the Company o1
relevant Group Company in relation to any claimgde or to be made in connection with such ins@wadicy (including withot
limitation submitting to a medical examination) wihstanding that this Agreement has been termihatédhas come to an er

If the Executive is unable to perform his dutieslemthis Agreement as a result of ill health, aentdor injury caused by a third pe
in respect of which damages may be recoverableExeeutive shall immediately inform the Companytlu fact and all releva
particulars. The Executive shall (if requested tosd by the Company) pursue a claim against thd ffarty for damages and sl
notify the Company of any settlement, award or judgt. He shall, upon request from the Company tpayCompany that part of &
damages or compensation recovered by him whiclereta loss of earnings for the period during whiehwas unable to perform
duties under this Agreement less any cost borrigrhyin connection with the recovery of the damaaed compensation provided t
the payment to the Company will not exceed thd tet@uneration paid to him by the Company in respéthe period during whic
he was unable to perform his duti

If the incapacity referred to in clause 1€batinues for more thasix months or for more thah?0working days (whether consecut
or in aggregate) in any continuous period of twatvenths, then provided that such action does rgjtigice the effect of any Gro
permanent health insurance scheme, the Compangithey terminate this Agreement forthwith by writteotice.

Holidays

The Executive shall be entitled to 25 workitays’holiday (in addition to the normal bank and otheblz holidays and accruing ol
weekly basis) in each calendar year commencing dantiary in each year (of which not more thal
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11.2

11.3

114

12.
121

12.2

13.
131

working days may be taken consecutively) to benakesuch times as the Company shall consider owstenient having regard
the requirements of the Compi’s business

Save with the prior written consent of the Compamytaken holiday entitlement for any one calendsarymay not be carried forw:
to any subsequent year. No payment shall be ndenf/ unused holiday entitleme

The Company reserves the right, at its absoluteretion, to require the Executive to take any @uiding holiday during any noti
period or to make payment in lieu thereof on teation as set out in clause 11.4 bel:

On termination of the Executigedmployment (howsoever occasioned), if the Exeeutas taken more or less than his annual hc
entitlement an appropriate adjustment shall be naday payment of salary or benefits from the Canypto the Executive at the r
of 1/260th of the Executive’gross basic salary as set out in clause 5.1 dubjeleductions of tax and national insurancehadiday
day.

Other business interests

The Executive shall not during the continuanceisfdmployment (whether during or outside workingitsd without the prior conse
in writing of the Company, be directly or indirgc#tngaged, concerned or interested in any busipesfession or occupation otl
than the Company provided that nothing in this €&ali2 shall prohibit the Executive from being iatted as a director or the hol
of not more than ten per cent of any class of stelelres or debentures or other securities in ampany or as the Company from ti
to time agrees in writing such agreement not tarreasonably withheld or withdrawn so long as satdrests of the Executive or ¢
of them shall not prejudice the business intereétthe Company or of any Group Company and foresglas the Executive sk
during his employment comply with the provisionghis Clause 12

The Executive shall not during the continuanceisfdmployment (except with the prior written cortseihthe Company) introduce
any other person firm or company business of amg kithich could appropriately be dealt with by thentpany or any Grot
Company and/or have any financial interest in aivéeany financial benefit from the contracts magethe Company or any ott
Group Company with any third part

Confidential and business information

In addition to and without prejudice to theeButives common law obligations to keep information seciteé@ Executive shall n
(except for the purpose of performing his dutiesshader or unless ordered to do so by a courthdunis employment or after
termination directly or indirectly use, disclosecmmmunicate Confidential Information and he shak his best endeavours to pre
the improper use, disclosure or communication aiff@ential Information, which for these purposesams

(a) any information of a confidential nature (whetheivate or secret information including informatioalating to corpora
strategy, business development plans, intelleqioaperty, business contacts, names and addressastuzl and potenti
customers and their requirements, terms of busiveiis such customers and potential customers, dnbudgets
management accounts and other financial informptthe Company or any Group Company or of angntlor prospectiy
client of the Company or of any Group Company oany person or entity which shall have disclosddrimation to an
member of the Company or any Group Company; ar

(b) any confidential report or research undertaken ifoothe Company or any Group Company before amduthe course
his employment; and/c

(c) information so designated by the Company gr @roup Company or which to the Executiv&nowledge has been supp
to the Company or any Group Company subject toadnigation of confidentiality
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13.2

13.3

14,
141

The restrictions contained in this Clause 13 sbedlse to apply with respect to any information,fidemtial report or research tl
comes into the public domain otherwise that throaghunauthorised disclosure by the Executive drird fparty. This clause is r
intended to exclude or restrict the Executiveight to make a protected disclosure under thdi®interest Disclosure Act 1998
applicable) if the Executive reasonably believdsaenmful or illegal activity is being undertaken. dach a case, the Executive shi
refer to the Compar' s Whistle Blowing Policy, which can be found in temployee Handbool

(@)

(b)

(©

By signing this Agreement the Executive cotsen

to the Company or any Group Company holding anatgssing any information about him which he may @ewo the
Company or any Group Company which they may accasra result of his employment providing such ss@ iaccordanc
with applicable law

to the Company or any Group Company holdind processing any “sensitive personal dates (efined by applicable la
relating to him (including, for example, informaticelating to his health or racial or ethnic origiand

to the transfer of all or any part of the infornoatithat the Company or any Group Company holdgimgldo him to othe
jurisdictions in accordance with applicable I

Non competition

For the purposes of this Clause the following eggians shall have the following meanin

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

“Relevant Employe” means

any senior employee or consultant to the Compangngr Group Company with whom the Executive has hmensonall
involved or any director, employee or consultantled Company or any Group Company who at any tioménd the 1.
months immediately prior to the Termination Dateswemployed by the Company or any Group Company Berdo
managerial, senior sales or technical position loo was in a position from which he had access tdidential information ¢
the Company or any Group Company to a materiainexted with whom the Executive has had deali

“Relevant Custom” means a person, firm or compa

who at any time during the twelve months prior te fTermination Date was a customer of the Compargng Grou,
Company (whether or not services were actually iplex during such period) with whom the Executive hzaterial conta
or about whom he became aware or informed in tlheseoof his employment or intermediary of such @or with whon
the Executive had material contact or about whorhdwmame aware or informed in the course of his eympént or to whot
at the Termination Date the Executive on behathefCompany or any Group Company was actively aretity seeking t
supply services in either case for the purposeRélavant Business;

“Relevant Busine” means
an insurance or reinsurance company or a syndiceteaging agency at Llo’s;
“Restricted Goods and/or Servi” means

any services with the provision of which the Ex@aitvas materially concerned on behalf of the Camypend/or any Grot
Company during the period of twelve months immealjaprior to the Termination Date; and

10
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14.2

14.3

14.4

145

14.6

14.7

14.8

15.
151

(e) “Restricted Peric’” means
the period of 12 months following the date of taration of this employment.

In order to safeguard the legitimate business @stsrof the Company and any Group Company andcpkntiy the goodwill of th
Company and any Group Company in connection wilclients, suppliers and employees the Executivebyeundertakes with t
Company (for itself and as trustee for each Groagm@any) that, he will not directly or indirectly ifivout the prior consent in writit
of the Company), during the Restricted Per

€) entice or solicit or endeavour to entice or sobeitay from the Company or any Group Company ang\Relt Employee

(b) in competition with the Company or any Group Companpply or seek to supply Restricted Goods an8&wices to ar
Relevant Custome

The Executive shall not (except with the prior et consent of the Company) at any time after ¢éhmination of his employme
represent himself to be connected with or inteteBtghe business of or employed by the CompargngrGroup Company or use
any purpose the name or style of the Company oiGroyp Company or any name or style capable ofusiafi therewith or likely 1
cause an assumption of association with the Compaayy Group Compan

The Executive acknowledges that the provisionshif tlause 14 are fair and reasonable and necesanptect the goodwill ai
interests of the Company and any Group Companyshali constitute separate and severable undertijivgn for the benefit of ea
of the Company and each Group Company and may fleeced by the Company on behalf of any Group Comparhe Executiv
further acknowledges that damages may not be ajuatieremedy in respect of a breach of clausedrtdZaccordingly that injuncti
relief or other equitable remedies may be sought @btained by the Company acting on its behalf @andh behalf of any Grol
Companies

If any of the restrictions or obligations containadthis clause 14 is found to be invalid as gogyond what is reasonable for
protection of the goodwill and interest of the Ca@nyp and any Group Company this will not affect vhédity or enforceability of ar
of the other restrictions or obligations. Furtifeany of the restrictions shall be adjudged tovb& or ineffective for whatever reas
but would be judged valid and effective if parttbé wording thereof was deleted they shall applthwsuch modifications as may
necessary to make them valid and effect

The Executive agrees that the Company may enfocedvenants (or any of them) set out in claus® after it has exercised its rif
to place the Executive on garden leave, but tinemtspn garden leave will be deducted from the Rastt Period. Provisions relati
to garden leave are set out in clause 16.2 be

The Executive agrees that in the event of him k@egifrom any person, company, business entitytbemorganisation an offer
employment or engagement either during the contice®f this Agreement or during the continuanc®ine of any of the restrictio
set out in this clause 14, he will forthwith proeitb such person, company, business entity or attgamisation making the offer
employment or engagement a full and accurate cbflyinAgreement signed by the parties hereto afichatify the Company of suc
offer of employment or engageme

The Executive agrees that if he becomes awareyEmployees that are considering leaving the Companif he is approached
another employee or other employees to discusiigalve Company, that he will report these evemtdiuman Resources forthwit

Termination and Suspension

Notwithstanding clause 3, the employment of thedaxge may be terminated by the Company withoutceobr payment in lieu -
notice if the Executive is guilty of gross miscontlar commits any serious or (having been givelicedh writing)

11
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15.2

persistent breach of any of his obligations to@wnpany or any Group Company (whether under thieément or otherwise). T
following is a non-exhaustive list of circumstanéesvhich the Company may terminate the Execusivahployment without notice
payment in lieu of notice

@)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

()
(@)
(h)

@
)

(k)

o

(m)

the Executive refuses or neglects to comply with @asonable lawful acts or directions given to byrthe Company

the Executive is guilty of dishonesty or is congtiof any criminal offence by a court of competenisdiction (other than
minor motoring offence for which a fine or othernatustodial penalty is imposed) whether in connectwith his
employment or not

the Executive is unable to perform his duties hedeun through illness or other incapacity (includibgt not limited to, whe
the Executive becomes of unsound mind or a pafiierihe purpose of any statute relating to mengallth) for any continuol
period of 6 months or an aggregate period exceeglmgnths in any period of twelve mont|

the Executive fails or ceases to meet the requinésnef any regulatory body whose consent is requiceenable him 1
undertake all or any of his duties under this Agreet or is guilty of serious breach of the rules aegulations of suc
regulatory body or of any compliance manual of@wnpany or any Group Compar

the Executive is guilty of a serious breach of anles issued by the Company or any Group Compammy fiime to tim
regarding its electronic communications syste

the Executive is adjudged bankrupt or enters infop@mposition or arrangement with or for the béraffhis creditors
the Executive is adjudged liable for any violatiomder applicable law or regulation relating to diesidealing

the Executive becomes prohibited by law or is didifjed or is liable to be disqualified from beig officer or director ¢
becomes of unsound mind or a patient under anytsteglating to mental healt

the Executive resigns as an officer of the Compargn officer or director of any Group Company otten at the request
the Company where the Executive is currently aitexffor director

the Executive is required to vacate his office aractor of the Company where the Executive igenity a director of tt
Company and/or any Group Company for whom he per$oexecutive duties by virtue of any provision loé tArticles o
Association of the Company or any Group Compi

the Executive commits and serious or persistenadbreof any of the terms, conditions or stipulati@mmntained in th
Agreement

the Executive is guilty of any serious negligencgmss misconduct in connection with or affectihg business or affairs
the Company or any Group Company for which hedsiired to perform duties; «

the Executive is guilty of conduct which is likdty bring himself or the Company or any Group Conypato disrepute

The Company may suspend the Executive from his @ymptnt on full salary and benefits at any time doreasonable period
investigate any matter in which the Executive iplicated or involved (whether directly or indirggtl During this time the Compa
may exclude the Executive from all or any premisethe Company or any Group Company and requireettexutive to refrain frol
any contact with directors, employees, consultaoastners, officers, customers, clients, agentsuppliers of the Company or ¢
Group Company (except as necessary in connectiinamy such investigation) during any period in ebhthe Company is carryi
out their investigation. During such suspensianBxecutive will continue t

12
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be bound by all of his obligations under this Agneait insofar as they are compatible with him beiagpended, including his duties
good faith and fidelity

15.3 The Company shall not be liable for breach of ahigscobligations hereunder including, without liation, its obligations as set ou
Clauses 2 and 3 if the Executive is removed adfarepof the Company or an officer or directorasfy Group Compan

15.4  The termination of the Executise@mployment hereunder for whatsoever reason sbalffect those terms of this Agreement, w
are expressed to have effect after such terminatioihshall be without prejudice to any accruedtsgin remedies of the partie

16. Events on Termination

16.1 On the termination of the Executis&mployment, or at any other time in accordandk imstructions given to him by the Compe
the Executive will immediately return to the Compaall equipment, correspondence, records, spetifits, software, models, not
reports, documents and other information and amyesothereof, including, without limitation, auraisual or electronic form or ¢
any magnetic or optical disk or memory and wherdeeated and any other property belonging to then@any or any Grot
Company (including but not limited to car keys,diteards, keys and passes and any mobile phoaekli#rry, home computer or lap-
top which the Company or any Group Company has igeavthe Executive with for the performance of Higties under th
Agreement) which are in the Execut's possession or under his cont

16.2  After notice of termination has been given by aitharty or if the Executive seeks to resign withonatice or by giving shorter noti
than is required under Clause 3, provided thatGloenpany continues to pay the Executive his badiarngsaand to provide ¢
contractual benefits until his employment termisate accordance with the terms of this Agreememt, Company has absol
discretion for all or part of the notice peric

(a) to exclude the Executive from such of the premeed IT and telecommunications systems of the Comnjaad/or Grou
Company as the Company may dir¢

(b) to instruct him not to communicate with suppliezsstomers, employees, agents or representativibe @@ompany or Grot
Company.

(c) not to provide any work to or vest any powers ia Executive

(d) (except during any periods taken as holiday inuth@al way) to require the Executive to ensure hieatan be contacted dur
each working day and comply with any written redsiés contact a specified representative of the om.

Any accrued but unused holiday entitlement shaliéemed to be taken during any period of garderelea

17.  Resignation of offices

The Executive shall immediately upon the earlietesfnination of his employment or notice of terntioa being served by eitt
party in accordance with this Agreement give wnitteotice resigning forthwith as an officer or diecor trustee or from any ott
office he may hold from time to time with the Compgaand/or any Group Company or arising from hisagrggnent by the Compa
and/or any Group Company without any further conspéon.

13
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18.
18.1

18.2

18.3

19.
191

19.2

19.3

194

19.5

20.
20.1

Grievance and disciplinary procedures

If the Executive wishes to seek redress of anygriee relating to his employment (other than otetirg to a disciplinary decisio
he shalldo so in accordance with the Comp’s Employee Handboo

If the Executive wishes to seek redress of anyvgriee relating to a disciplinary decision he siullso in accordance with
Compan’s Employee Handboo

The Company'disciplinary and grievance procedures from timérhe in force shall apply to the Executive bualshot form part c
his contract of employmer

Inventions and improvements

It shall be part of the normal duties of the Exaeautt all times to consider in what manner andahyat new methods any devic
goods, products, services, processes, equipmesysbems of the Company and each Group Company rbigihitnproved and/
extended and/or promoted and promptly to give éoQ@oempany full details of any invention, discovelgsign, improvement or ott
matter or work whatsoever (the “Inventionsihich he may from time to time make or discoverimyhis employment and to furtt
the interests of the Company and/or any Group Compath regard thereto. The Executive hereby ackadges and agrees that
sole ownership of the Inventions and all proprigtéghts therein discovered or made by him (whetdene or jointly with others)
any time during his engagement hereunder shalligstulbto any contrary provisions of applicable lamdao any rights of a joi
inventor thereof) belong free of charge and exgkigito the Company or as it may dire

All records, documents, papers (including all cepi@d summaries thereof) and copyright protectexksvonade or acquired by
Executive in the course of his employment and altlswide copyright and design rights in all the émtions, shall be and remain
property of the Company and/or any relevant Groomgany.

For the avoidance of doubt the Executive irrevogaild unconditionally waives all rights granteddpplicable law that vests in 1
Executive the authorship of any copyright worksdspect of the Inventions by the Executive in therse of his employment with 1
Company or any Group Company including without tation the right to be identified as the authomnf such works and the ri
not to have any such works subjected to derogadteagment

The Executive hereby agrees (at any timendunis employment or thereafter and at the Compaexpense) to do all such acts
things (including without limitation making appliwan for letters patent) as the Company may readgnaquest to vest effectua
any Invention (whether owned by the Company or@nmyup Company in accordance with Clause 19.1 oreoMay the Executive) a
any protection as to ownership or use (in any pathe world) of the same in the Company or in &rpup Company or as it m
direct, jointly if necessary with any joint inventtihereof, and the Executive hereby irrevocablycams the Company or any relev
Group Company for the purposes aforesaid to bathigney in his name and on his behalf to execntedm any such documents
and things aforesai

The Executive shall not knowingly do or omit to doything which will or may have the result of imilerg any such protectic
aforesaid or any application there

General

No failure or delay by either party in exercisingyaight, power or privilege under this Agreememalsoperate as a waiver thereof
shall any single or partial exercise by eitheryaftany right, power or privilege hereunder preewany further exercise thereof or
exercise of any other right, power or privile

14
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20.2

20.3
20.4

20.5
20.6
20.7

21.

22.
22.1

22.2

23.

The Executive hereby irrevocably and by way of sécappoints the Company and each Group Compamyaran the future existir
to be his attorney and in his name and on his behal as his act and deed to sign, execute andl dots, things and documents wt
he is obliged to execute and do under the provésadrthis Agreement (and in particular, but withbuotitation, Clauses 17 and 19) ¢
the Executive hereby agrees forthwith on the remoiethe Company to ratify and confirm all suchsat¢hings and documents sigr
executed or done in pursuance of this po

There are no collective agreements, which affextéhms and conditions of the employment of thechtiee hereundel

The Executive is required, as a condition of hipliyment, to observe all Company policies and pdaces as advised to him by
Company from time to time. These policies and pdaces are summarised in the Employee Handbookdaw\vo the Executive
the commencement of his employment (the “Employaadiook”), and set out in full on the Companintranet, as amended fr
time to time.

This Agreement may only be modified by the writtggreement of the partie
The Executive cannot assign this Agreement to amgise

If either party agrees to waive their rights undqarovision of this Agreement, that waiver will pride effective if it is in writing and
is signed by the relevant party. A pastyagreement to waive any breach of any term oritiondof this Agreement will not
regarded as a waiver of any subsequent breacte afatime term of condition or a different term ordiban.

Reconstruction or amalgamation

If this Agreement is terminated because of theidigtion of the Company for the purpose of amalg@mabr reconstruction and t
Executive is offered employment with such amalg&uhatr reconstructed company on terms no less fabtaiin all material respe:
than the terms of this Agreement the Executivel $faale no claim against the Company in respectuoi sermination.

Notices

Any notice or communication given or required untes Agreement may be served by personal deligetyy leaving the same at
by sending the same through the post addressé icaise of the Company to its registered officenftine to time and in the case
the Executive to his aforesaid address or to tldeesd provided from time to time by the Executivéhie Company for the purpose:
its employment record

Any notice sent by post shall be deemed to have beeved 48 hours after the time of posting byt fitass mail and service ther
shall be sufficiently proved by proving that thetine was duly despatched through the post in apaiel envelope addressec
aforesaid

Extent and subsistence of Agreement

This Agreement supersedes all other agreements thitue those expressly referred to in this Agredrbetween the Company or ¢
Group Company and the Executive relating to theleympent of the Executive (which shall be deemetiawe been terminated
mutual consent). The Executive acknowledges andawts to the Company that he is not entering ihte Agreement in relian
upon any representation not expressly set outmherei

15
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24.  Governing law and jurisdiction
This Agreement shall be governed by and constmed¢ordance with English law and the parties atgresibmit to the exclusive jurisdicti
of the English Courts as regards any claim, disput@atter arising out of or relating to this Agment.

IN WITNESS whereof a duly authorised representative of the @omg has executed this Agreement and the Exechtgeexecuted tr
Agreement as his Deed on the date of this Agreement

ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL EXECUTIVE:
HOLDINGS, LTD.
By:

Mark E. Watson IlI Axel Schmidt

16
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(1) ARGO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD

and

(2) JOSE RIBEIRO

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT
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EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT
DATE: 24 July 2014
PARTIES:

(1)

(2)

ARGO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD, whose registereaffice is at Exchequer Court, 33 St. Mary Axe, LondEC3A 8AA
United Kingdom “the Compan”); and

JOSE RIBEIRO"the Executiv”).

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

1.
11

1.2

1.3

2.2.1

2.3

Interpretation
In this Agreement the following words and expressishall have the following meaning

“Group Company” means any company, which is the parent undertating subsidiary undertaking of the Company or «
subsidiary undertaking of the Company’s parent va#térg from time to time where the expressiéssbsidiary undertaking” anc
“parent undertaking” have the meanings given to them by section 1162paoies Act 2006;

“Termination Date” means the date of the termination of the employroétite Executive hereunder, howsoever caused.

In this Agreement (unless the context otherwisaires):

(a) any reference to any statute or statutoryipi@n shall be construed as including a referénany modification, reenactmer
or extension of such statute or statutory provigmnthe time being in force or to any subordiniaigislation made under t
same;

(b) any reference to a Clause is to a Clause of thieégent

(¢) the expression “directly or indirectlyieans (without prejudice to the generality of tkpression) either alone or jointly w
or on behalf of any other person, firm or body cogbe and whether on his own account or in parmeraith another ¢
others or as the holder of any interest in or disef employee or agent of or consultant to arfyeotperson, firm or bot
corporate

The index and headings contained in this Agreenaeatfor convenience only and do not form part ofl ahall not affect tf
construction of this Agreement or any part o

Appointment

The Company hereby appoints the Executive thedExecutive agrees to serve the Company as Magdgirector -Head o
International

The Executive warrants that by virtue of enterintpithis Agreement he will not be in breach of &xpress or implied terms of ¢
contract with or of any other obligation to anyrthparty binding upon hin

The Executives principal place of work will be Exchequer Co@®8 St. Mary Axe, London EC3A 8AA, United Kingdorklowever
in order to fulfil his duties to develop, organiseanage and promote the international businessaffaits of the Company or a
Group Company, he shall also be required to woduah other location (which may be anywhere invtbeld) as may be required
the Company from time to time (whether on a permane temporary basis) and he shall undertake @wek (anywhere in the worl
as may be necessary for the proper performancis ofuties. In addition to h
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2.4

3.2

4.2

position as an officer of the Company, the Exeautiay be required to perform duties as an officatiector of any Group Compa
and perform work for any Group Company and to mesigpm such positions (if requested to do so) ommieation of hi
employment. The Executive hereby appoints each beeraf the Board of Directors of the Company or &mpup Company (tt
“Board”) as the Executive’ attorney for the purpose of doing anything nemgss$o effect such resignation (including sigr
documents on the Execut’s behalf).

The Company will be entitled from time to time watit any further consent from the Executive to sdctrme Executive to tl
employment of any other Group Company without piigje to the rights of the Executive under this Agnent or to the provisions
this Agreement or to transfer this Agreement to atiner Group Company at any time and without pmigtice to the Executive so tl
this Agreement shall have effect after the tranaseif originally made between the Executive anthsdroup Company

Term and notice

Subject to the provisions of Clause 15, thelegment of the Executive shall commence on 1 Sepéx 2014 (th€ Commencemen
Date” ), following which the employment shall continue uislesd until terminated by either party giving thibes not less than :
months notice

The Company reserves the option in its absotliscretion to terminate the Executiveshployment by paying him in lieu
notice. The payment shall be based solely on tteciives basic salary under clause 5.1, without taking axtcount any bont
profit commission, holiday pay, pension contribnsmr benefits in kind, and shall be subject toudtidns for income tax and natio
insurance contributions as appropriate. The Exeeuwtill not, under any circumstances, have anytrig a payment in lieu of noti
unless the Company has made an election by writtéine to make such a payment to the Execu

Duties
The Executive shall during the continuance of hiplyment:

(a) exercise such powers and perform such duties #@tioel to the business of the Company or of any @rG@ampany as mi
from time to time be vested in or assigned to t

(b)  well and faithfully serve the Company and any ratevGroup Companies to the best of his ability ey out his duties in
proper and efficient manner and use his best emdea¥o promote and maintain their interests apdtagion;

(¢c) unless prevented by sickness, injury or other iacyp or as otherwise agreed by the Company dehetevhole of his tim
attention and abilities on a full time basis, facls hours as may be necessary for the proper paafaze of his duties to t
business affairs of the Company and any relevaatiCompany for which he is required to performesu

In performance of his duties the Executive st

(a) comply with the Company’'normal hours of work and will also work any agditl hours which are reasonably necesse
perform his duties. The Executive will not receasmy further remuneration for any hours worked didition to the normi

working hours

(b) perform his duties at Exchequer Court, 33 St. Maxg, London EC3A 8AA, United Kingdom or at such etHocation
(including but without limitation, the United StateBrazil, Switzerland or Bermuda) as the Compadrall seasonably requi
whether on a permanent or temporary b
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4.3

4.4

4.5

5.2

5.3

(c) travel to such places in such manner and on sucdis@ns as the Company may from time to time resd@gmequire; an

(d) if so required by the Company, perform his dutieeehinder jointly with such other person or pessas the Company
from time to time reasonably requi

For the avoidance of doubt, subject always to thkxechtive retaining the same or a similar level esponsibility, authorit
remuneration and status, the Company may, in gslate discretion, reasonably vary from time toetithe functions and job title
the Executive

The Executive shall promptly disclose to the Boangg misconduct or breach of duty on his part andiaformation that comes in
his possession which adversely affects or may adWeaffect the Company or any Group Company obtigness of the Company
Group Company including, but not limited

(@) the plans of any other senior employee to leaveCii@pany or any Group Company (whether alone @oimcert with an
other employee), including but not limited to tHans of such an employee to join a competitor cedtablish a business
competition with the Company or any Group Compamgd

(b)  the misuse by any employee of any confidentialrimftion belonging to the Company or any Group Camgp

The Executive acknowledges that: (a) in Bermuda, @ompany and certain Group Companies are autkdoasd regulated by t
Bermuda Monetary Authority (“BMA”); If) in the United Kingdom, certain Group Companies authorised and regulated by
Financial conduct Authority (the “FCA”) and a memioé Lloyd’s of London specialist insurance markdtloyds); (c) in Switzerlant
certain Group Companies are regulated by the Swiisancial Market Supervisory Authority; (d) in Biazertain Group Compani
are regulated by SUSEP and (e) in other jurisdistim which certain Group Companies operate, tmeyaathorised and regulated
similar or equivalent regulatory bodies (collechweeferred to as the “Regulatory BodiesAccordingly, the Executive acknowled
that some or all of his duties will involve the Cpamy and/or a Group Company and/or the Executiwgiog on activities regulats
by the Regulatory Bodies. The Executive undertakiesomply at all times with all relevant provisioatthe any handbooks, relev
statutes, rules or guidance issued by or in reiaiiothe Regulatory Bodies from time to time ingela The Executive agrees that
Company or any Group Company may take or requedetkecutive to take all steps necessary to comjity any instruction, directic
or request properly made or imposed by or on beaifalie Regulatory Bodies, and that he shalbperate fully where so required.
addition, the parties shall use their best readenefforts to obtain or renew a valid work permiorh the Bermuda Immigrati
Department. The Company shall be responsible Herpgayment of work permit fees and any other faesxpenses incurred
obtaining or renewing any such work perr

Salary

The Company shall pay to the Executive by whyemuneration for his services under this Agresinge basic salary at365,00(
(three hundred and sixty five thousand pounds steihg) , which shall accrue from day to day and be payablarrears by equ
monthly instalments on or around the 24th of eaontimby credit transfer to your nominated bank witding society account. Whe
the Executive is only employed during part of a thahe salary will be pr-rated.

Such salary shall be reviewed by the Company incklan each calendar year, but without any commitnterincrease, with ai
change effective from 1st April following the rewie

The Company shall be entitled to deduct from anpspayable to the Executive (including salary)salins from time to time owed
the Company or to any Group Company by the Exeeutowsoever arising and the Executive expresskyesgio such deductior
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6.2

7.2

7.3
7.4

Expenses

The Company shall reimburse the Executive all nealke travelling, hotel, entertainment and other afupocket expenses prope
incurred by him in or about the performance of dhigies under this Agreement subject to his compbawith the Companyg’ thel
current guidelines, if any, relating to expensed tarthe production of receipts, vouchers or othgrporting document

Subject to the production of appropriate evidentgayment (if requested), the Company shall proynpgimburse you up to
maximum ot£25,000 (twenty five thousand pounds sterling) spext of the cost of relocating from Brazil to theited Kingdom.

Bonus scheme & Profit Commission

Subject to Clause 7.3 below, at the absolute discref the Company the Executive may during theticmance of his employment,
addition to the basic salary payable to him pursuanClause 5.1, be eligible to receive an annuafitpsharing award (thePS
Award”) and an annual long-term incentive awara (thTI Award”), (together, the “Awards”subject to the rules of the Award pl
of the Companys ultimate parent in place from time to time. Tdraount of the Awards (if any) shall be determinédha sol
discretion of the Company taking into account tlfgrmance of the Company and each Group Compadytlzen Executives
satisfaction of any individual performance goals Isethe Company from time to time. The Executivigdrget in respect of the
Award shall be 100% of his basic salary and in eespf the LTI Award 100% of his basic salary asa# in Clause 5.1. The Awal
(if any) shall not form part of the Executigetontractual remuneration under this Agreemeinthd Company makes a paymen
relation to either or both of the Awards to the &xéve in respect of a particular financial yeartted Company it shall not be oblic
to make subsequent payments to him in respectosiesuent financial years of the Compe

The Executive’s PS Award for the 2014 finahgear shall be prorated from the Commencement.Dabe Executives participatio
in the Companys LTI Award plan shall begin in 2015. In lieu o214 LTI Award, the Company shall grant to the &xive on th
Commencement Date an award of restricted stock avitharket value of £150,000 (theSfgn-On Award ”). The SignOn Awarc
shall vest on the third anniversary of the Commererg Date. In addition, the Company shall payh Executive a cash sign
bonus of £00,000 to be paid with the first payroll periodeafthe Commencement Date which shall be paid batke Company on
net after tax basis in the event Executive giveticado terminate his employment with the Companyirdy Executives first year ¢
employment

The Company may alter the terms of the Awards arttiftargets or withdraw them altogether at ametivithout prior notice
The Executive will have no right to any Awards iond-apportioned Awards i
(a) he has not been employed throughout the wholeeofelevant financial year of the Company

(b) his employment terminates for any reason or henideu notice of termination (whether given by theeéixtive or th
Company) at or prior to the date when the Awardghtnotherwise have been paya

Any Awards payable in accordance with this clauséall not be pensionable.

Share schemes

At the absolute discretion of the Company, the E&ge may be allowed to participate in such shateemes as the Company r
operate for employees of comparable status, subgetihe rules of such schemes from time to time apdn such terms as -
Company may from time to time determine. In anyhssitare scheme, no shares, securities, opti
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rights to acquire the same shall vest or accruer afitice of termination has been given by eitlaatypincluding where the Executive
on garden leave

8.2 The Executive shall have no claim against the Cawmat any Group Company in connection with the faation of his employme
in relation to the provision of any written agreemehich has the effect of requiring the Executiwesell or give up shares, securit
option or rights to acquire the same and/or whalses any such option or rights to lapse or regucalue.

9. Pensions, health and medical insurance

9.1 The Executive shall during his employment, subjecthe insurer in each case accepting the Exectiiveover under the relev:
policy and at normal rates, be entitled to partitéin any

(a) permanent health insurance sche

(b) arrangements for private medical treatment or nadtiealth insurance
(c) life insurance scheme; a

(d) critical illness insurance schen

operated from time to time by or for the Companytfe benefit of employees of the Company or angurCompany of equivale
status to the Executive, subject to any applicables and conditions and subject to the Companight to substitute other scher
for such schemes or amend the scale, and levedradfits provided under such schemes provided thasach change or substitut
provides a comparable level of coverage. The Bikexunderstands and accepts that it is the decisidhe insurer whether bene
are to be paid under any of the schemes or polieiiesred to in this clause and the Company shailkmo liability or responsibili
for any decision that is made by the insurer. tRheravoidance of doubt, the Company shall notdiidi to make any payments un
it has received appropriate payments from the grsur

9.2 During his employment hereunder the Compaajl shch month pay to the Executive as a pensivanaual rate equivalent fifteen
(15) per centof the Executiv’s salary for the time being payable under clause

9.3 No contracting out certificate is in force in rédet to this employmen

10. lliness

10.1 The Executive shall in the event of illness or otineapacity beyond his control as a result of wHie is unable to perform his du
remain entitled to receive his salary in full faryacontinuous period of six months or an aggrepated of six monthsabsence in ar
consecutive twelve month period subject

(a)  compliance with the Company’s procedures relatingitkness notification, statutory sick pay and-smrtification to cove

absence from work due to sickness or other incapacid to the provision of medical certificates fandat the Company’
discretion) undergoing a medical examination byoatar appointed by the Company. The Executivel stmbperate i
ensuring the prompt delivery of such report to @wnpany subject to disclosure to the Executivei®iGeneral Practition
and authorise his own medical practitioner to syfilsuch information as may be required by thadtdr and, if so request
by the Company, authorise his medical practitidneatisclose to the Company his opinion of the Exige’s state of healtt

(b) a deduction (at the Compasydiscretion) from his salary of an amount or amtewggual to any statutory sick pay or sc
security benefits to which the Executive is enitl
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10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

11.
111

11.2

11.3

114

12.
12.1

(¢) a deduction (at the Compasydiscretion) from his/ salary of an amount or antsuequal to any payment made to
Executive under any health insurance arrangeméfetsted from time to time by the Company and/or @rpup Company ¢
his behalf.

If the Executive is away from work due todss or injury for a consecutive period4df working days, the Company may app
another person or persons to perform the Exec's duties until he returns to wol

The Executive hereby covenants with the Companybemalf of himself and his personal representatizesll times fully an
effectively to comply with the terms of any insucarpolicy taken out by the Company or any Group gamy on his life or in respe
of his position as a director and/or officer of tiempany and further undertakes toogerate fully and assist the Company o1
relevant Group Company in relation to any clain(gde or to be made in connection with such ins@rgudicy (including withot
limitation submitting to a medical examination) withstanding that this Agreement has been termihatéhas come to an er

If the Executive is unable to perform his dutieslemthis Agreement as a result of ill health, aentdor injury caused by a third pe
in respect of which damages may be recoverableExgeutive shall immediately inform the Companytlf fact and all releva
particulars. The Executive shall (if requested dosd by the Company) pursue a claim against thid tharty for damages and st
notify the Company of any settlement, award or judgt. He shall, upon request from the Company tpayCompany that part of 8
damages or compensation recovered by him whicleseta loss of earnings for the period during whiehwas unable to perform
duties under this Agreement less any cost borrigryin connection with the recovery of the damagied compensation provided t
the payment to the Company will not exceed thd ta@t@uneration paid to him by the Company in respéthe period during whic
he was unable to perform his duti

If the incapacity referred to in clause 1€oatinues for more thasix months or for more thah20working days (whether consecut
or in aggregate) in any continuous period of twatvenths, then provided that such action does rejugice the effect of any Gro
permanent health insurance scheme, the Companithey terminate this Agreement forthwith by writteotice.

Holidays

The Executive shall be entitled to 25 workitays’holiday (in addition to the normal bank and otheblz holidays and accruing ol
weekly basis) in each calendar year commencing danliary in each year (of which not more than 1¥ing days may be tak
consecutively) to be taken at such times as the gaom shall consider most convenient having regarthé requirements of t
Compan’s business

Save with the prior written consent of the Compamytaken holiday entitlement for any one calendsarymay not be carried forw:
to any subsequent year. No payment shall be ndef/ unused holiday entitleme

The Company reserves the right, at its absoluteretion, to require the Executive to take any @uiding holiday during any noti
period or to make payment in lieu thereof on teation as set out in clause 11.4 bel:

On termination of the Executigedmployment (howsoever occasioned), if the Exeeutas taken more or less than his annual hc
entitlement an appropriate adjustment shall be maday payment of salary or benefits from the Canypto the Executive at the r
of 1/260th of the Executive’gross basic salary as set out in clause 5.1 dubjeleductions of tax and national insurancehadiday
day.

Other business interests

The Executive shall not during the continuanceisfdmployment (whether during or outside workingitsd without the prior conse
in writing of the Company, be directly or indirgcéngaged, concerned or interested in any busi
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12.2

13.
131

13.2

13.3

profession or occupation other than the Companyiged that nothing in this Clause 12 shall prohibi¢ Executive from beir
interested as a director or the holder of not ntbam ten per cent of any class of stock, shareebentures or other securities in
company or as the Company from time to time agire@giting such agreement not to be unreasonabtiheid or withdrawn so lor
as such interests of the Executive or any of theall ot prejudice the business interests of then@any or of any Group Compe
and for so long as the Executive shall during hipleyment comply with the provisions of this Clause

The Executive shall not during the continuanceisfdmployment (except with the prior written cortseihthe Company) introduce
any other person firm or company business of amg kirhich could appropriately be dealt with by thentpany or any Grot
Company and/or have any financial interest in aitvéeany financial benefit from the contracts mdgethe Company or any ott
Group Company with any third part

Confidential and business information

In addition to and without prejudice to theeButives common law obligations to keep information seciteé@ Executive shall n
(except for the purpose of performing his dutiesshader or unless ordered to do so by a courthdunis employment or after
termination directly or indirectly use, discloseammmunicate Confidential Information and he shak his best endeavours to pre
the improper use, disclosure or communication aiff@ential Information, which for these purposesams

(a) any information of a confidential nature (whetheivate or secret information including informatioelating to corpora
strategy, business development plans, intellequaperty, business contacts, names and addressastuzil and potenti
customers and their requirements, terms of busineifis such customers and potential customers, dnbudgets
management accounts and other financial informptthe Company or any Group Company or of angntlor prospectiy
client of the Company or of any Group Company oany person or entity which shall have disclosddrimation to an
member of the Company or any Group Company; ar

(b) any confidential report or research undertaken tbfpothe Company or any Group Company before gimduthe course
his employment; and/c

(¢ information so designated by the Companyny @roup Company or which to the Executsv&nowledge has been supp
to the Company or any Group Company subject toadtigation of confidentiality

The restrictions contained in this Clause 13 sbedlse to apply with respect to any information,fidemtial report or research tl
comes into the public domain otherwise that throaghunauthorised disclosure by the Executive dvird fparty. This clause is r
intended to exclude or restrict the Executiveight to make a protected disclosure under thdi®interest Disclosure Act 1998
applicable) if the Executive reasonably believdsaenmful or illegal activity is being undertaken. dach a case, the Executive shi
refer to the Compar' s Whistle Blowing Policy, which can be found in temployee Handbool

By signing this Agreement the Executive conse

(a) to the Company or any Group Company holding anagssing any information about him which he may meuo the
Company or any Group Company which they may accasra result of his employment providing such ss@ iaccordanc
with applicable law

(b) to the Company or any Group Company holdind processing any “sensitive personal dates’ defined by applicable la
relating to him (including, for example, informaticelating to his health or racial or ethnic orjgiand
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14.
141

14.2

14.3

(¢)

to the transfer of all or any part of the infornoatithat the Company or any Group Company holdgimgldo him to othe
jurisdictions in accordance with applicable ¢

Non competition

For the purposes of this Clause the following egpi@ns shall have the following meanin

(a)

(b)

(¢)

(d)

(e)

“Relevant Employe” means

any senior employee or consultant to the Compangngr Group Company with whom the Executive has hmeEmonall
involved or any director, employee or consultantled Company or any Group Company who at any tioménd the 1.
months immediately prior to the Termination Dateswaemployed by the Company or any Group Company Berdo
managerial, senior sales or technical position loo was in a position from which he had access nfidential information c
the Company or any Group Company to a materiah¢xbed with whom the Executive has had deali

“Relevant Custom” means a person, firm or compa

who at any time during the twelve months prior lhe fTermination Date was a customer of the Compangng Grou
Company (whether or not services were actually idext during such period) with whom the Executive haaterial conta
or about whom he became aware or informed in theseoof his employment or intermediary of such @osr with whor
the Executive had material contact or about whorbdwame aware or informed in the course of his eympént or to whol
at the Termination Date the Executive on behathef Company or any Group Company was actively aretitly seeking t
supply services in either case for the purposeRélavant Busines:

“Relevant Busine” means
an insurance or reinsurance company or a syndicatenaging agency at LI0’s;
“Restricted Goods and/or Servi” means

any services with the provision of which the Exasutvas materially concerned on behalf of the Camypand/or any Grot
Company during the period of twelve months immealyaprior to the Termination Date; a

“Restricted Peric’ means

the period of 12 months following the date of teration of this employmen

In order to safeguard the legitimate business ésterof the Company and any Group Company andcpkatly the goodwill of th
Company and any Group Company in connection wittclients, suppliers and employees the Executivebyeundertakes with t
Company (for itself and as trustee for each Grogm@any) that, he will not directly or indirectly iflvout the prior consent in writii
of the Company), during the Restricted Per

(a)

(b)

entice or solicit or endeavour to entice or sobeitay from the Company or any Group Company ang\Relt Employee

in competition with the Company or any Group Companpply or seek to supply Restricted Goods an8&wices to ar
Relevant Custome

The Executive shall not (except with the prior wenit consent of the Company) at any time after éneination of his employme
represent himself to be connected with or inteckstéhe business of or employed by the Compargng

10
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14.4

145

14.6

14.7

14.8

15.
151

Group Company or use for any purpose the nameyte ef the Company or any Group Company or any namstyle capable
confusion therewith or likely to cause an assunmtibassociation with the Company or any Group Camyg

The Executive acknowledges that the provisionshidf tlause 14 are fair and reasonable and necessamptect the goodwill ai
interests of the Company and any Group Companyshali constitute separate and severable undertakjivgn for the benefit of ea
of the Company and each Group Company and may foeced by the Company on behalf of any Group Compdrhe Executiv
further acknowledges that damages may not be ajuatieremedy in respect of a breach of clausedrd2accordingly that injuncti
relief or other equitable remedies may be souglt @stained by the Company acting on its behalf @andh behalf of any Grot
Companies

If any of the restrictions or obligations containedthis clause 14 is found to be invalid as goimyond what is reasonable for
protection of the goodwill and interest of the Camnyp and any Group Company this will not affect haédity or enforceability of ar
of the other restrictions or obligations. Furtifeany of the restrictions shall be adjudged tovb&l or ineffective for whatever reas
but would be judged valid and effective if parttbé wording thereof was deleted they shall applthwuch modifications as may
necessary to make them valid and effect

The Executive agrees that the Company may enfbrecedvenants (or any of them) set out in claus2 a#er it has exercised its rif
to place the Executive on garden leave, but tinemtspn garden leave will be deducted from the Resth Period. Provisions relati
to garden leave are set out in clause 16.2 be

The Executive agrees that in the event of him k&egifrom any person, company, business entitytbemorganisation an offer
employment or engagement either during the conticei@f this Agreement or during the continuanc®ine of any of the restrictio
set out in this clause 14, he will forthwith progitb such person, company, business entity or atgamisation making the offer
employment or engagement a full and accurate cbflyisnAgreement signed by the parties hereto aifichatify the Company of suc
offer of employment or engageme

The Executive agrees that if he becomes awareyEaployees that are considering leaving the Companif he is approached
another employee or other employees to discusiigdélve Company, that he will report these evemtduman Resources forthwit

Termination and Suspension

Notwithstanding clause 3, the employment of thedtkge may be terminated by the Company withoutceodr payment in lieu
notice if the Executive is guilty of gross miscontlar commits any serious or (having been giveicedh writing) persistent breach
any of his obligations to the Company or any Gr@gmpany (whether under this Agreement or otherwi3dge following is a non-
exhaustive list of circumstances in which the Conypaay terminate the Executigeémployment without notice or payment in lie
notice:

(a) the Executive refuses or neglects to comply with riasonable lawful acts or directions given to biyrthe Company

(b)  the Executive is guilty of dishonesty or is congittof any criminal offence by a court of competenisdiction (other than
minor motoring offence for which a fine or othernatustodial penalty is imposed) whether in connectwith his
employment or not

(¢) the Executive is unable to perform his duties hedeu through illness or other incapacity (includibgt not limited to, whe
the Executive becomes of unsound mind or a pafiierihe purpose of any statute relating to mengallth) for any continuol
period of 6 months or an aggregate period exceeglmgnths in any period of twelve mont|
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15.2

15.3

15.4

16.
16.1

(d) the Executive fails or ceases to meet the requinésnef any regulatory body whose consent is reduiceenable him 1
undertake all or any of his duties under this Agrert or is guilty of serious breach of the rulesl aagulations of sut
regulatory body or of any compliance manual of@wnpany or any Group Compar

(e) the Executive is guilty of a serious breach of anles issued by the Company or any Group Compammy fime to tim
regarding its electronic communications syste

() the Executive is adjudged bankrupt or enters infpa@mposition or arrangement with or for the béradfhis creditors
(g) the Executive is adjudged liable for any violatiomder applicable law or regulation relating to diesidealing

(h)  the Executive becomes prohibited by law or is didifjed or is liable to be disqualified from beig officer or director ¢
becomes of unsound mind or a patient under anytsteglating to mental healt

(D the Executive resigns as an officer of the Compargn officer or director of any Group Company otthen at the request
the Company where the Executive is currently aiteffor director

() the Executive is required to vacate his office aractor of the Company where the Executive igenity a director of tt
Company and/or any Group Company for whom he peroexecutive duties by virtue of any provision loé tArticles o
Association of the Company or any Group Compi

(k) the Executive commits and serious or persistenadbreof any of the terms, conditions or stipulati@mntained in th
Agreement

(n the Executive is guilty of any serious negligencgmss misconduct in connection with or affectihg business or affairs
the Company or any Group Company for which hedgsiired to perform duties; «

(m) the Executive is guilty of conduct which is likety bring himself or the Company or any Group Conypato disrepute

The Company may suspend the Executive from his @ymptnt on full salary and benefits at any time doreasonable period
investigate any matter in which the Executive iplicated or involved (whether directly or indirggtl During this time the Compa
may exclude the Executive from all or any premisethe Company or any Group Company and requiréettexutive to refrain frol
any contact with directors, employees, consultgpastners, officers, customers, clients, agentsuppliers of the Company or ¢
Group Company (except as necessary in connectiinamy such investigation) during any period in ebhthe Company is carryi
out their investigation. During such suspensian Executive will continue to be bound by all of bisligations under this Agreem:
insofar as they are compatible with him being sadpd, including his duties of good faith and fidel

The Company shall not be liable for breach of ahigsoobligations hereunder including, without ltation, its obligations as set ou
Clauses 2 and 3 if the Executive is removed adfarepof the Company or an officer or directorasfy Group Compan

The termination of the Executige@mployment hereunder for whatsoever reason sbabffect those terms of this Agreement, w
are expressed to have effect after such terminatioihshall be without prejudice to any accruedtsgin remedies of the partie

Events on Termination

On the termination of the Executise&mployment, or at any other time in accordandk imstructions given to him by the Compse
the Executive will immediately return to the Compatl equipment, correspondence, records, spetidits,
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16.2

17.

18.
18.1

18.2

18.3

19.
19.1

software, models, notes, reports, documents aret otformation and any copies thereof, includinghaut limitation, aural, visual
electronic form or on any magnetic or optical disknemory and wherever located and any other ptpelonging to the Compa
or any Group Company (including but not limitedctar keys, credit cards, keys and passes and aniyenpdtone, blackberry, hor
computer or lagep which the Company or any Group Company hasigeavthe Executive with for the performance of tigies
under this Agreement) which are in the Exect's possession or under his cont

After notice of termination has been given by aitharty or if the Executive seeks to resign withoatice or by giving shorter noti
than is required under Clause 3, provided thatGloenpany continues to pay the Executive his badiangaand to provide ¢
contractual benefits until his employment termisate accordance with the terms of this Agreemémt, Company has absol
discretion for all or part of the notice peric

(a) to exclude the Executive from such of the premead IT and telecommunications systems of the Compaud/or Grou
Company as the Company may dire

(b)  to instruct him not to communicate with suppliemgstomers, employees, agents or representativibe @¢ompany or Grot
Company.

(c) not to provide any work to or vest any powers ia Executive

(d) (except during any periods taken as holiday inutheal way) to require the Executive to ensure hleatan be contacted dur
each working day and comply with any written redsiés contact a specified representative of the om.

Any accrued but unused holiday entitlement shaliéemed to be taken during any period of garderelea

Resignation of offices

The Executive shall immediately upon the earlietesfination of his employment or notice of terntioa being served by eitt
party in accordance with this Agreement give wnittetice resigning forthwith as an officer or diecor trustee or from any ott
office he may hold from time to time with the Compgaand/or any Group Company or arising from hisagrggnent by the Compa
and/or any Group Company without any further conspénon.

Grievance and disciplinary procedures

If the Executive wishes to seek redress of anygriee relating to his employment (other than otetirg to a disciplinary decisio
he shall do so in accordance with the Com|'s Employee Handboo

If the Executive wishes to seek redress of anyvgriee relating to a disciplinary decision he sldallso in accordance with 1
Compan’s Employee Handboo

The Company'disciplinary and grievance procedures from timérhe in force shall apply to the Executive bualshot form part c
his contract of employmer

Inventions and improvements

It shall be part of the normal duties of the Examuit all times to consider in what manner andahyat new methods any devic
goods, products, services, processes, equipmesysbems of the Company and each Group Company rbighitnproved and/
extended and/or promoted and promptly to give éoGompany full details of any invention, discoveatgsign, improvement or ott
matter or work whatsoever (tIInvention:’) which he may from time to time make
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19.2

19.3

19.4

195

20.
20.1

20.2

20.3
20.4

20.5
20.6

discover during his employment and to further thierests of the Company and/or any Group Compatly megard thereto. TI
Executive hereby acknowledges and agrees thatdlleeosvnership of the Inventions and all proprietaghts therein discovered
made by him (whether alone or jointly with otheet) any time during his engagement hereunder skalhjéct to any contra
provisions of applicable law and to any rights gbiat inventor thereof) belong free of charge @xdlusively to the Company or a
may direct.

All records, documents, papers (including all cepg@d summaries thereof) and copyright protectedksvmade or acquired by
Executive in the course of his employment and altldwide copyright and design rights in all the émtions, shall be and remain
property of the Company and/or any relevant Grogmg@any.

For the avoidance of doubt the Executive irrevogainld unconditionally waives all rights granteddpplicable law that vests in 1
Executive the authorship of any copyright worksaspect of the Inventions by the Executive in tharse of his employment with t
Company or any Group Company including without tation the right to be identified as the authomnf such works and the ri
not to have any such works subjected to derogateagment

The Executive hereby agrees (at any timendunis employment or thereafter and at the Compaaypense) to do all such acts
things (including without limitation making applitan for letters patent) as the Company may redsgnaquest to vest effectua
any Invention (whether owned by the Company or@nyup Company in accordance with Clause 19.1 orea\by the Executive) a
any protection as to ownership or use (in any pathe world) of the same in the Company or in &rpup Company or as it m
direct, jointly if necessary with any joint inventtihereof, and the Executive hereby irrevocablycams the Company or any relev
Group Company for the purposes aforesaid to bathésney in his name and on his behalf to execnted®d any such documents ¢
and things aforesai

The Executive shall not knowingly do or omit to dnything which will or may have the result of imiflerg any such protectic
aforesaid or any application there

General

No failure or delay by either party in exercisingyaight, power or privilege under this Agreememal§ operate as a waiver thereof
shall any single or partial exercise by eitherypaftany right, power or privilege hereunder pre@wany further exercise thereof or
exercise of any other right, power or privile

The Executive hereby irrevocably and by way of sécappoints the Company and each Group Compamyaran the future existir
to be his attorney and in his name and on his behal as his act and deed to sign, execute andl dots, things and documents wt
he is obliged to execute and do under the provésadrthis Agreement (and in particular, but withbiotitation, Clauses 17 and 19) ¢
the Executive hereby agrees forthwith on the remoiethe Company to ratify and confirm all suchsat¢hings and documents sigr
executed or done in pursuance of this po

There are no collective agreements, which affextéhms and conditions of the employment of thechtiee hereundel

The Executive is required, as a condition of hipliyment, to observe all Company policies and pdaces as advised to him by
Company from time to time. These policies and pdaces are summarised in the Employee Handbookdaw\vo the Executive
the commencement of his employment (the “Employaadiook”), and set out in full on the Companintranet, as amended fr
time to time.

This Agreement may only be modified by the writtggreement of the partie

The Executive cannot assign this Agreement to ampise

14




4
- ARGO INTERNATIONAL

20.7

21.

22.

23.

24,

If either party agrees to waive their rights underovision of this Agreement, that waiver will pride effective if it is in writing and
is signed by the relevant party. A pagyigreement to waive any breach of any term oritondf this Agreement will not be regarc
as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the sainmeotiecondition or a different term or conditic

Reconstruction or amalgamation

If this Agreement is terminated because of theidigtion of the Company for the purpose of amalgématr reconstruction and t
Executive is offered employment with such amalga&uhatr reconstructed company on terms no less fabtriin all material respe:
than the terms of this Agreement the Executivel $faale no claim against the Company in respectuoih sermination.

Notices

22.1 Any notice or communication given or required untlés Agreement may be served by personal delieeryy leaving th
same at or by sending the same through the postssit! in the case of the Company to its registaffad from time to tim
and in the case of the Executive to his aforesddtess or to the address provided from time to tim¢he Executive to tl
Company for the purposes of its employment recc

22.2  Any notice sent by post shall be deemed to hava beeved 48 hours after the time of posting byt fitass mail and servi
thereof shall be sufficiently proved by proving ttilae notice was duly despatched through the post pre-paid envelop
addressed as aforese

Extent and subsistence of Agreement

This Agreement supersedes all other agreements thitie those expressly referred to in this Agredrbetween the Company or ¢
Group Company and the Executive relating to theleympent of the Executive (which shall be deemethdawe been terminated
mutual consent). The Executive acknowledges andants to the Company that he is not entering ihte Agreement in relian
upon any representation not expressly set outmherei

Governing law and jurisdiction

This Agreement shall be governed by and constmed¢ordance with English law and the parties atgresibmit to the exclusive jurisdicti
of the English Courts as regards any claim, disputatter arising out of or relating to this Agment.

IN WITNESS whereof a duly authorised representative of the @omg has executed this Agreement and the Exechtgeexecuted tt
Agreement as his Deed on the date of this Agreement

ARGO INTERNATIONAL EXECUTIVE:
HOLDINGS, LTD.

By:

Jay S. Bullock Jose Ribeiro
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Exhibit 12

ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
STATEMENTS OF COMPUTATION OF RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
AND EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRE D SHARE DIVIDENDS
(in millions, except ratios)

For the Years Ended December 3]

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Earnings:

Income (loss) before provision for income ta $ 216.C $ 1797  $ 66.7 $ (619 $ 121.¢
Add:

Fixed charge 24.8 25.1 28.4 26.7 26.€
Total earning $ 240.t $ 204t $ 951 $ (35.2) $ 148.5
Fixed charges

Interest expens $ 192 $ 202 $ 237 $ 221  $ 22.9

Rental interest factc 4.9 4.9 4.7 4.6 3.7

Total fixed charge $ 248 $ 251 $ 284 $ 26.7 $ 26.6
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 9.7:1 8.2:1 3.3:1 (@) 5.6:1

@ The coverage deficiency for the year ended DeceBibe2011 was $69.1 milliol



Subsidiaries of Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd.

Company Name
The Argo Foundatio

PXRE Capital Statutory Trust
PXRE Capital Statutory Trust
PXRE Capital Trust VI

Argo International Holdings A(
Argonaut Services Gmb

Argo Re, Ltd.

Argo Irish Holdings I, Ltd

Argo Irish Holdings I

Argo Brasil Participac8es Ltd.

Argo Re Escritério de Representagéo no Brasil L
PXRE Reinsurance (Barbados), L
Mid Atlantic Risk Systems, Ltc

Argo Re DIFC, Ltd

Argo International Holdings, Ltc
Argo Underwriting Agency, Ltd
Argo Management Services, L
Argo Management Holdings, Lt
Argo Managing Agency, Ltc

Argo Direct, Ltd.

Argo (No. 604), Ltd

Argo (No. 616), Ltd

Argo (No. 607), Ltd

Argo (No. 617), Ltd

Argo (No. 703), Ltd

Argo (No. 704), Ltd

Argo (Alpha), Ltd.

Argo (Beta), Ltd.

Argo (Chi), Ltd.

Argo (Delta), Ltd.

Argo (Epsilon), Ltd.

ArgoGlobal Underwriting Asia Pacific Pte Lt
ArgoGlobal Holdings (Malta) Ltt
ArgoGlobal SE

Argo Financial Holding, Ltd. (Irelanc
Argo Solutions, S#£

Argo Financial Holding (Brazil) Limitet
Argo Seguras Brasil, S

Argo Group US, Inc

Argonaut Group Statutory Tru
Argonaut Group Statutory Trust |
Argonaut Group Statutory Trust |
Argonaut Group Statutory Trust
Argonaut Group Statutory Trust
Argonaut Group Statutory Trust Vv
Argonaut Group Statutory Trust VI
Argonaut Group Statutory Trust |
Argonaut Group Statutory Trust
Argonaut Management Services, |
Argus Reinsurance Intermediaries, |
Argo Group Fund to Secure the Fut
Alteris, Inc

Sonoma Risk Management, L1
John Sutak Insurance Brokers, |
Trident Insurance Services, LL
Alteris Insurance Services, Ir
Canterbury Claims Services, Ir

Country/State of Incorporation

Bermuda
Connecticu
Connecticu
Delaware
Switzerland
Switzerland
Bermuda
Bermuda
Bermuda
Brazil

Brazil
Barbados
Bermuda

United Arab Emirate

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Singapore
Malta

Malta

Ireland

Belgium

Ireland

Brazil

Delaware
Connecticu
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Connecticu
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Texas

Texas
Delaware
Delaware
California
Texas
Massachuseti
New Jerse!




Company Name
Colony Management Services, li

Colony Agency Services, In

Argonaut Claims Management, LL
Argonaut Claims Services, Lt

Colony Insurance Compal

Colony Specialty Insurance Compe
Colony National Insurance Compa
Argonaut Insurance Compa
Argonau-Midwest Insurance Compal
Argonau-Southwest Insurance Compa
Argonaut Great Central Insurance Comp
Insight Insurance Services, Ir

Select Markets Insurance Compe
Argonaut Limited Risk Insurance Compa
Central Insurance Management, |
Grocers Insurance Agency, Ir

AGI Properties, Inc

Rockwood Casualty Insurance Compi
Somerset Casualty Insurance Comp
Coal Operators Indemnity Compa

ARIS Title Insurance Corporatic

Country/State of Incorporation

Virginia
Virginia
Texas

Texas
Virginia
Ohio
Virginia
lllinois
lllinois
lllinois
lllinois
lllinois
lllinois
lllinois
lllinois
Oregon
California
Pennsylvani:
Pennsylvani:
Pennsylvani:
New York



Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference infdlewing Registration Statements and in the edla®rospectuses:

1.

Registration Statement (Form S-8 File No. 3833967) pertaining to Argo Group International Halgs, Ltd. 2007 Lond-erm Incentiv:
Plan and Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd02@Employee Share Purchase P

Registration Statement (Form S-8 File No. 33371L4) pertaining to the Argo Group Internationaldings, Ltd. —Argonaut Group, In
Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan, the engoGroup, Inc. Nom=mployee Director Stock Option Plan, and the Argd
Deferred Compensation Plan for MEmployee Directors

Registration Statement (Form S-8 File No. 383299) pertaining to the Argo Group InternatioHaldings, Ltd. 2007 Employee Sh
Purchase Plat

Registration Statement (Form S-8 File No. 3939B2) pertaining to the Argo Group Internationadldings, Ltd. 2014 Long-errr
Incentive Plan

Registration Statement (Form S-3 File No. 383445) pertaining to the Argo Group Internatiodaldings, Ltd. registration of senior d
securities, subordinated debt securities, commamesh preferred shares, warrants, units, depos#iaayes, purchase contracts, hy
securities, trust preferred securities and guaesndé trust preferred securities; ¢

Registration Statement (Form S-3 File No. 383957) pertaining to the Argo Group Internatiortldings, Ltd. registration of de
securities, common shares, preferred shares, vtsrranits, depositary shares, purchase contragtsrich securities, trust preferr
securities and guarantees of trust preferred sexsiand debt securitie

of our reports dated February 27, 2015, with respeche consolidated financial statements and dudes of Argo Group Internatior
Holdings, Ltd. and the effectiveness of internahtcol over financial reporting of Argo Group Intational Holdings, Ltd. included in tt
Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended Decenddi, 2014.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Antonio, Texas
February 27, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

I, Mark E. Watson lll, President and Chief Execat®fficer of Argo Group International Holdings, Ltdertify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Argo Group International Holdings, Ltc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistite a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repcdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of ogerastand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this rep

The registrant’ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contawid procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatatnal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 135(f)
and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedunesaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly durihg period in which this report is being prepal

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registgadisclosure controls and procedures and preséantbds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbmg that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrang’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdhon our most recent evaluation of internal @mver financial reportin
to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thevadent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controkiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrastinterna
control over financial reporting

Date: February 27, 201

/sl Mark E. Watson Il
Mark E. Watson IlI
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

[, Jay S. Bullock, Executive Vice President andeCRinancial Officer of Argo Group International ldimgs, Ltd., certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Argo Group International Holdings, Ltc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistite a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repcdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of ogerastand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this rep

The registrant’ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contawid procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatatnal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 135(f)
and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedunesaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly durihg period in which this report is being prepal

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registgadisclosure controls and procedures and preséantbds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbmg that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrang’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdhon our most recent evaluation of internal @mver financial reportin
to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thevadent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controkiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrastinterna
control over financial reporting

Date: February 27, 201

[s/ Jay S. Bullocl
Jay S. Bullock

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104Aogo Group International Holdings, Ltd. (the “Cpamy”) for the year ended Decem
31, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Excha@igemmission on the date hereof (the “Repofgrk E. Watson lll, as President and C
Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifiparsuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursoag®@6 of the Sarban&xley Act o
2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodiand results of operations of
Company.

Certified this 27t day of February 201

/s/ Mark E. Watson |l
Mark E. Watson IlI
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104Aogo Group International Holdings, Ltd. (the “Cpamy”) for the year ended Decem
31, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Excha@gmmission on the date hereof (the “Repordgy S. Bullock, as Executive Vice Presic
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, herebytifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopteduant to §906 of the Sarbar@sley
Act of 2002 that, to the best of his knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodiand results of operations of
Company.

Certified this 27t day of February 201

[s/ Jay S. Bullocl
Jay S. Bullock

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



